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The 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of 1st ulianc;l@cﬂrgices Corporation will be held at
10:00 a.m. on Monday, July 28, 2008, at the Thomas AM&SW@W&)“M W. Sink, Jr. Building at Blue
Ridge Community College located a1 100 College Drive, Flat Rggk, North Carolina.

The purposes of the meeting arc: BEST AVAILABLE COPY

1. Election of Directors. To elect three directors, each to serve a three-year term;

2. Proposal to Approve Charter Amendment. To consider a proposal to amend our Articles of
Incorporation to authorize the issuance of a new class of stock;

3. Proposal to Approve 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan. To consider a proposal to approve our 2008
Omnibus Equity Plan;

4. Proposal to Approve 2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. To consider a proposal to approve our
2008 Employce Stock Purchase Plan;

5. Proposal to Ratify the Appointment of Independent Accountants. To consider a proposal to ratify the
appointment of Elliott Davis PLLC as our independent accountants for 2008; and

6. Other Business. To transact any other business properly presented for action at the Annual Meeting.

You are invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person. However, if you are the record holder
of your shares of our common stock, we ask that you appoint the Proxies named in the enclosed proxy
statement to vote your shares for you by signing and returning the enclosed proxy card or following the
instruction in the proxy statement to appoint the Proxies by Internet even if you plan 1o attend the
Annual Meeting. If your shares are held in "street name" by a broker or other nominee, we ask that
you follow your broker's or nominee's directions and instruct your broker or nominee on how to vote
your shares. Doing that will help us ensure that your shares are represented and that a quorum is
present at the Annual Meeting. Even if you sign a proxy card or vote by Internet, you may still revoke it
later or attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person.

This notice and the enclosed Proxy Statement and form of appointment of proxv are beine
mailed to our shareholders on ar about July 3, 2008. ’

By Order of the Board of Directors

e A Al B

08064303 Gregory L. Gibson ' mOMSON REUTERS

Chief Executive Officer

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. .
WHETHER YOU OWN ONE SHARE OR MANY, YOUR PROMPT COOPERATION
IN VOTING YOUR PROXY CARD 1S APPRECIATED.
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Financial Services - pp vy STATEMENT

Corporation Mountainl®
Bank & Trust

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

General

This proxy statement is dated July 3, 2008, and is being furnished to our shareholders by our Board
of Directors in connection with our solicitation of appointments of proxy in the enclosed form for use at the
2608 Annual Meeting of our sharcholders and at any adjournments of the meeting. The Annual Meeting
will be held at the Thomas Auditorium in the David W. Sink, Jr. Building at Blue Ridge Community
College located at 100 College Drive, Flat Rock, North Carolina at 10:00 a.m. on Monday, July 28, 2008.

In this proxy statement, the terms "you," "your,” and similar terms refer to the shareholder
receiving it. The terms “we,” "us,” "our," "our company," and similar terms refer to Ist Financial Services
Corporation. Our banking subsidiary, Mountain 1st Bank & Trust Company, is referred to as the "Bank.”

At the Annual Meeting, record holders of our common stock will consider and vote on proposals to:
®  Elect three directors for three-year terms (see "Proposal 1: Election of Directors” on page 5);

® Approve a Charter Amendment authorizing the issuance of a new class of stock (see
"Proposal 2: Approval of Charter Amendment to Authorize Issuance of a New Class of Stock”

on page 29);

® Approve our 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan (see Proposal 3: Approval of 2008 Omnibus Equity
Plan on page 32);

®  Approve our 2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (see Proposal 4: Approval of 2008
Employee Stock Purchase Plan on page 43); '

®  Ratify the appointment of Elliot Davis, PLLC as our independent accountants for 2008 (sce
"Proposal 5: Ratification of Appointment of Independent Accounitants” on page 47); and

®  Transact any other business properly presented for action at the Annual Meeting.

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote "FOR" the election of each of the three
nominees for director named in this proxy statement, and "FOR" each of the other four proposals.

How You Can Vote at the Annual Meeting

If your shares of our commeon stock are held of record in your name, you can vote at the Annual
Meeting in one of the following ways:

® You can attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person;




® . You can sign and return an appointment of proxy (a proxy card} in the form enclosed with-
this proxy statement and appoint the "Proxies” named below to vote your shares for you at
the meeting, or your can validly appoint another person to vote  your shares for you; or

® "You can appoint the Proxies to vote your shares for you by going to our Intemet voting
website (Atps://www.mountainist.com), entering the "control number" pnnled just above ©
your name on the enclosed proxy card, and then following the instructions you will be
given. You may vote by Internet only until 5:00 p.m. EDT on July 27, 2008, which is the
day before the Annual Meeting date. If you vote by Internet, you need not sign and return a
proxy card. You will be appointing the Proxies to vote your shares on the same terms and
with the same authority as if you marked, signed and returned a proxy card. The authority
you will be giving the Proxies is described below and in the proxy card enclosed with this
proxy statement,

If your shares of our common stock are held for you in "street name" by a broker or other nominee,
then the record holder of your shares is required to vote them for you. You will need to follow the
directions your broker or nominee provides you and give it instructions as to how it should vote your
shares. Brokers who hold shares in street name for their clients typically have the authority to vote those
shares on "routine” proposals, such as the election of directors, when they have not received instructions
from the beneficial owners of the shares. However, without specific voting instructions from bencficial
owners, brokers generally are not-allowed to exercise their voting discretion with respect to the approval of
non-routine matters.

Solicitation and Voting of Proxy Cards

A proxy card is included with this proxy statement that provides for you to name three of our
officers, Peggy H. Denny, Mary K. Dopko, and Sherrie B. Rogers, or any substitute appointed by them,
individually or as a group, to act as your "Proxies" and vote your shares at the Annual Meeting. We ask
that you sign and date your proxy card and return it in the enclosed envelope, or follow the instructions
above for appointing the Proxies by Internet, so that your shares will be represented at the meeting.

If you sign a proxy card and return it to us so that we receive it before the Annual Meeting, or you
appoint the Proxies by Internet, the shares of our common stock that you hold of record will be voted by the
Proxies according to your instructions. If you sign and return a proxy card or appoint the Proxies by
Internet, but do not give any voting instructions, then your shares will be voted by the Proxies "FOR" the
election of each of the three nominees for director named in Proposal | below and "FOR" Proposals 2, 3, 4
and 5 discussed in this proxy statement. 1f you do not return a proxy card or appoint the Proxies by
Internet, the Proxies will not have authority to vote for you and shares you hold of record will not be
represented or voted at the Annual Meeting unless you attend the meeting in person or validly appoint
another person to vote your shares for you. if, before the Annual Meeting, any nominee named in
Proposal 1 becomes unable or unwilling to serve as a director for any reason, your proxy card will give the
Proxies discretion to vote for a substitute nominee named by our Board of Directors. We are not aware of
any other business that will be brought before the Annual Meeting but, if any other matter is properly
presented for action by our shareholders, your proxy card will authorize the Proxies to vote your shares
according to their best judgment.




Voting on Adjournments and Conduct of the Meeting

The Proxies also will be authorized to vote your shares according to their best judgment on motions
to adjourn the meeting and other matters incident to the conduct of the Annual Meeting. Under North
Carolina law, a shareholders meeting may be adjourned and reconvened one or more times to a later date
for any reason. If the new time and place at which the meeting will be reconvened are announced at the
meeting before the adjournment, no further notice of the reconvened meeting is required to be given unless
the adjournment is for more than 120 days. Even if a quorum is not present, shareholders who are
represented at a meeting may approve an adjournment of the meeting.

If a quorum is not present at the annual meeting, or if there are insufficient shares of our common
stock represented at the annual meeting, or being voted in favor of any of Proposals | through 5, our
management may determine that it is necessary or desirable to adjourn the meeting until a later date and
time in order to permit us to solicit additional proxy cards. Your proxy card will authorize the Proxies to
vote your shares in favor of one or more adjoumnments of the annual meeting for up to not more than a total
of 120 days in the event that our management believes that an adjournment is necessary or desirable in
order to obtain a quorum, to solicit additional proxy cards needed to vote on or approve Proposals 1
through 5, or for any other reason. : :

LY

Revocation of Appointment of Proxy; How You Can Change Your Vote

If you are the record holder of your shares and you sign and return a proxy card or appoint the
Proxies by Intemet and later wish to revoke it or to change the voting instructions you gave the Proxies,
you can do so at any time before the voting takes place at the Annual Meeting by taking the appropriate
action described below:

To change the voting instructions you gave the Proxie_s:;

® ° You can sign and submit a proxy card dated after the date of your original proxy card, and
containing your new instructions; or ' '

o If you appointed the Proxies by Internet, you can go to the same Internet Website
(https:/fwww.mountainlst.com) and enter the same control number (printed just above your
name on the enclosed proxy card) that you previously used to appoint the Proxies, and then
change your voting instructions.

The Proxies will follow the last voting instructions they receive from you before the Annual
Meeting. If your shares are held in "street name" and you want 1o change the voting instructions you have
given to your broker or other nominee, you must follow your broker's or nomince's directions.

To revoke your proxy card or your appointment of the Proxies by Intemet:

e You should give our Corporate Secretary a written notice that you want to revoke your
proxy card; or

[ ] You can attend the Annual Meeting and notify our Corporate Secretary that you want to
- revoke your proxy card and vote your shares in person. Simply attending the Annual
Meeting without notifying our Corporate Secretary will not revoke your proxy card or
Internet vote. D J




Expenses and Method of Solicitation

We will pay all costs of our sclicitation of proxy cards for the Annual Meeting, including costs of
preparing and mailing this proxy statement. We are requesting that banks, brokers and other custodians,
nominees and fiduciaries forward copies of our proxy solicitation materials to their principals and request
their vating instructions, and we will reimburse those persons for their expenses in doing so. In addition to
using the mail, our directors, officers and employees may solicit proxy cards either personally, by telephone
or by other methods of communication, but they will not receive any additional compensation from us for
doing so. '

In connection with the solicitation of proxy cards for the Annual Meeting, we have not authorized
anyone to give you any information, or make any representation, not contained in this proxy statement. If
anyone gives you any other information or makes any other representation to you, you should not rely on it
as having been authorized by us. '

Record Date and Voting Securities

The close of business on June 10, 2008, is the "Record Date" we are using to determine which
shareholders are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting and how many shares they
are entitled to vote. Our voting securities are the 4,997,027 shares of our common stock that were
outstanding on the Record Date. You must have been a record holder of our stock on the Record Date to
vote at the Annual Meeting.

Quorum and Voting Procedures

A quorum must be present for business to be conducted at the Annual Meeting. For all matters to
be voted on at the meeting, a quorum will consist of a majority of the outstanding shares of our common
stock. Shares represented in person or by proxy at the meeting will be counted for the purpose of
determining whether a quorum exists. Once a share is represented for any purpose at the meeting, it will be
treated as present for quorum purposes for the remainder of the meeting and for any adjounments. If you
return a valid proxy card, appoint the Proxies by Internet, or attend the meeting in person, your shares will
be counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum, even if you abstain from voting. Broker
"non-votes" also will be counted in determining whether there is a quorum. Broker "non-votes" will occur
if your shares are held by a broker and are voted on one or more matters at the meeting but they are not
voted by the broker on a "non-routine” matter because you have not given the broker voting instructions on
that matter. If your shares are represented at the meeting with respect to any matter voted on, they will be
treated as present with respect to all matters voted on, even if they are not voted on all matters.

You may cast one vote for each share of our common stock you held of record on the Record Date
on each director to be elected and on each other matter voted on by shareholders at the Annual Meeting.
Y ou may not cumulate your votes in the election of directors. )

Vote Required for Approval

Our directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast in elections. In the election of directors at
the Annual Meeting, the three nominees receiving the highest numbers of votes will be elected. For
Proposals 2, 3, 4 and 5 to be approved, the votes cast in favor of each proposal must exceed the votes cast
against it. Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect in the voting for directors or on Proposals
2,3,4and 5.




PropPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General
Our Bylaws provide that:

® Our Board of Directors consists of not less than five nor more than 20 members, and our Board is
authorized to set and change the actual number of our directors from time to time within those
limits; and '

° Our Board of Directors is divided into three classes and directors are elected to staggered three-

year terms, and that each year the terms of the directors in one class expire and directors in that
class are elected for new three-year terms or until their respective successors have been duly
elected and qualified.

Nominees

The number of members of our Board of Directors currently is set at 11. The terms of four of our
current directors expire at the Annual Meeting. One of these directors, J. Michael Smith, is retiring. Based
on the recommendation of our Corporate Governance Committee, the three directors listed below have
been nominated by our Board for reelection to a new three-year term.

" Positions Year first  Proposed Principal occupation
Name and Age with Us (1) elected (2} term of office and business experience
William H. Burton Vice Chairman 2004 3 years Owner and Chairman, Cafe Enterprises,
(54) . Inc., Tayiors, SC (parent company of Fatz

Cafe restaurants); previously served as
director and Audit Committee Chairman of
MountainBank and MountainBank
Financial Corporation

H. Steve McManus Director 2004 3 years QOwner, McManus Development LLC, and
{66) Moon-McManus Development LLC

(residential real estate developers); Co-

owner and President, Beacon Food

Services, Inc., (restaurants); previously,

. : Chief Executive Officer, Hardee's Food

. ’ Systems, Inc., Rocky Mount, NC (1995 to
1996); previously scrved as director and
Executive Committee member of
MountainBank and MountainBank
Financial Corporation

Bradley B. Schnyder Chairman 2004 3years  Owner, Mountainscape, Inc,,
(51) Hendersonville, NC (residential contractor);

and co-owner, Schnyder and Riels,
Hendersonville, NC (residential community
developer), and Burney Mtn Assoc. {o¢.,
Hendersonville, NC (restdential community
developer)

(1) Listings of the members of committees of our Board are contained below under the heading "Committees of Qur
Board."

(2) “First clected” refers to the year in which each individual first became a director of the Bank. Each person became our
director during 2008 in connection with our organization as the Bank's holding company and previously served as a director
of the Bank. ’ :

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote "FOR" each of the three nominees named above.
The three nominees receiving the highest numbers of votes will be elected.

5




Incumbent Directors

The foilowing table contains information about our other eight current directors whose terms of
office will continue after the Annual Meeting.

First elected/

current term

Principal ¢ccupation
-_and business experience

Owner, Historic Inns, Inc., Hendersonville, NC (bed and

Owner and President, Foster Real Estate Appraisers,
Inc., Asheville, NC (real estate appraisal firm)

Real estate investor; former Co-owner and President,
Forge Mountain Foods, Hendersonville, NC (specialty
food wholesaler and retailer) (2000 to 2004); previously,
part-time weather anchor for WSPA TV, Spartanburg,
SC (CBS affiliate television station)

Co-owner and Vice President, Great Mcadows, Inc.,
Spruce Pine, NC (real estate developer and investor);
previously served as director and Executive Committee
member of MountainBank and MountainBank Financial
Corporation, and as Chairman, First Western Bank,

Co-owner, Schroader Honda, Hendersonville, NC
{motorcycle dealership); previously served as director

Name and Age Position with Us (1) expires (2)
B. Lee Beason Chief Operating Officer 2004 /2009  Our executive officer
{50) and Director
Gregory L. Gibson Chief Executive Officer 2004 /2009 Our executive officer
{51) and Director '
Vincent K. Rees President and Director 2004 /2009  Qur executive officer
(40}
John S. Sheiry Director 2004 /2009
(56) breakfast accommodations)
Michael D. Foster Director 2004 /2010
(66)
James C, Kirkpatrick Director 2004 /2010
(44)
Van F. Phillips Director 2004 /2010
(56)
Burnsville, NC
Catherine H. Director 2004 /2010
Schroader
@1

and Compensation Committee Chairman, MountainBank
and MountainBank Financial Corporation

(1)  Listings of the members of commiitees of our Board arc contsined below under the heading "Committees of Our Board.”
(2)  First elected” refers to the year in which each individual first became a director of the Bank. Each person became our
director during 2008 in connection with our organization as the Bank's holding company and previously served as a director

of the Bank.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Director Independence

Our Board of Directors periodically reviews transactions, relationships and other arrangements
involving our directors and determines which directors the Board considers to be "independent.” 1n making
those determinations, the Board applies the independence criteria contained in the listing requirements of
The Nasdaq Stock Market. Beginning in 2008, the Board has directed our Corporate Governance
Committee to assess each outside director's independence and report its findings to the Board in connection
with the Board's periodic determinations, and to monitor the status of each director on an ongoing basis and
inform the Board of changes in factors or circumstances that may affect a director’s ability to exercise
independent judgment. The following table lists persons who served as directors of the Bank during 2007
and all nominees for election as directors at the Annual Meeung who our Board believes are, or will be,

"independent” directors under Nasdaq's criteria.




Wiiliam H. Burton H. Steven McManus John S. Sheiry
Michael D. Foster Van F. Phillips Catherine H. Schroader
Tames C. Kirkpatrick Bradley B. Schnyder 3. Michael Smith (1)

(1) On April 28, 2008, Mr. Smith announced his retirement from the Board effective as of July 28, 2008. '

In addition 10 the specific Nasdaq criteria, in determining the independence of each director the
Board considers whether it believes any other transactions, relationships, arrangements or factors
(including our directors’ borrowing relationships with us) could impair his or her ability to exercise
independent Judgment In its determination that the above directors are independent, those other factors
considered by the Board included the lease arrangements between us and Mr, McManus' and Mr. Phillips'
companies described under the caption "Transactions with Related Persons — Related Person Transactions
During 2007, as well as appraisal services provided to us from time to time by Mr. Foster's company.

Attendance by Directors at Meetings

Board of Directors Meetings. Since the completion of our bank holding company reorganization
in May 2008, the Bank's and our Boards of Directors have met jointly. During 2007, the Bank's Board met
13 times, and each of our current directors atiended 75% or more of the aggregate number of meetings of
the Board and any committees on which he or she served.

Annual Meetings. Attendance by our directors at Annual Meetings of our shareholders gives
directors an opportunity to meet, talk with and hear the concerns of sharcholders who attend those
meetings, and it gives those sharcholders access to our directors that they may not have at any other time
during the year. Our Board of Directors recognizes that directors have their own business interests and are
not our employees, and that it is not always possible for them to attend Annual Meetings. However, our
board's policy is that attendance by directors at our Annual Meetmgs is beneficial to us and to our
shareholders and that our directors are strongly encouraged to attend each Annual Meeting whenever
possible. Eleven of the Bank's then current directors attended the last Annual Meeting which was held
during June 2007.

Communications with Our Board

Qur Board of Directors encourages our shareholders to communicate with it regarding their
concerns and other matters related to our business, and the board has established a process by which you
may send written communications to the board or to one or more individual directors. You may address
and mail your communication to our Corporate Secretary at:

I st Financial Services Corporation
Attention: Corporate Secretary

101 Jack Street

Hendersonville, North Carolina 28792

You also may send them by email to srogers@mountainist.com. -You should indicate whether
your communication is directed 1o the entire Board of Directors, to a particular committee of the Board or
its Chairman, or to one or more individual directors. All communications will be reviewed by our
Corporate Secretary, and with the exception of communications our Corporate Secretary considers to be
unrelated to our business, forwarded on to the intended recipients. Copies of communications.from a
customer of the Bank relating 10 a deposit, loan or other financial relationship or transaction also will be
forwarded to the department or division most closely associated with the subject.




Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to our directors and ali of our
executive officers, including cur Chief Exgcutive Officer and Principal Accounting Officer, and, among
other things, is intended to promote:

] Honest and ethical conduct;

L The ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interests between personal and professnonal
relationships;

) Full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that we file with

the Securitics and Exchange Commission and other public communications we make;
Compliance with governmental laws, rules and regulations;

Prompt intemal reporting of violations of the Code to the Board's Audit Committee; and
Accountability for adherence to the Code.

A copy of the Code of Ethics will be provided without charge upon written request to our
Corporate Secretary at 1st Financial Service Corporation, 101 Jack Street, Hendersonville, North Carolina
28792, or by telephone at (828) 697-3100.

COMMITTEES OF OUR BOARD
General

Our Board of Directors has two independent, standing committees that assist the Board in oversight
and governance matters. They are the Audit Committee, and the Corporate Governance Committee. Those
Committees operate under a written charter approved by our Board that sets out their composition,
authority, duties and rcsponsibilitics We believe each member of those committees is an "independent
director” as that term is defined by the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market. A current copy of
each Committee's charter is posted on’our Internet website at www.mountainist.com. The current members
of each commmittee are listed in the following table, and the function of and other information about each
committee is described in the paragraphs below.

Audit Committee (1) Corporate Governance Committee

Van F. Phillips - Chairman John 8. Sheiry - Chairman
William H. Burton ' William H. Burton
H. Steve McManus H. Steve McManus
Bradley B. Schnyder Catherine H. Schroader

J. Michael Smith

{1) On April 28, 2008, Mr. Smith announced his retirement as of July 28, 2008.

Audit Committee

Our Audit Committee is a joint committee of the Bank's and our Boards of Directors. Under its
charter, the Committee is rcsponmble for:

® Selecting our independent accountants and approving their compensation and the terms of their

engagement,;
e Approving services proposed to be prowded by the independent accountants; and
® Monitoring and overseeing the quality and integrity of our accounting and financial reporting

process and systems of internal controls.




The Committee reviews various reports from our independent accountants (including its annual
report on our audited consolidated financial statements), reports we file under the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, and reports of examinations by our regulatory agencies, and it oversees our internal audit
program. The Committee met six times during 2007. '

Audit Committee Financial Expert. Our Board of Directors believes that Mr. Smith, who serves
as a member of our Audit Committee, is an "audit committee financial expert" as that term is defined by the
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. When Mr. Smith retires, we will not have a designated
audit committee financial expert because we will not have identified and selected another current director
who is an audit committee financial ex;':ert. Our Corporate Governance Committee is actively considering
the recruitment of a nominee to our board who is an.audit committee financial expert.

Audit Committee Report

Our management is responsible for our financial reporting process, including our system of internal
controls and disclosure controls and procedures, and for the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our independent accountants are responsible for auditing those financial statements. The Audit Committee
oversees and reviews those processes. In connection with the preparation and audit of the Bank's financial
statements for 2007, the Audit Committee has:

L Reviewed our audited consolidated financial statements for 2007 and discussed them with
management;

° Discussed with our independent accountants the matters required to be discussed by Statement on
Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended,

L] Received written disclosures and a letter from our independent accountants required by
Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1; and

o Discussed the independence of our accountants with the accountants.

Based on the above review and discussions, the Audit Committce recommended to our Board of
Dircctors that the audited financial statements be included in the Bank's 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K
as filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

The Audit Committee:
William H. Burton  H. Steve McManus ~ Van F. Phillips  Bradley B. Schnyder  J. Michael Smith

Corporate Governance Committee

Function. Our Corporate Governance Committee is a joint committee of our and the Bank's
Boards of Directors. Under its written charter, the Corporate Governance Committee acts as a nominations
committee for our Board and as a compensation committee for our and the Bank's Board. The Committee
met six times during 2007. |

Nominations Committee Functions. Among its other dutics and responsibilities assigned from
time 10 time by the Board, the Corporate Governance Committee functions as a nominations committee by
identifying individuals who are qualified to become directors and recommending candidates to the Board
for selection as nominees for election as directors at our Annual Meetings and for appointment to fill
vacancies on our Board.

The Committee's charter provides that the Committee will recommend individuals who have high
personal and professional integrity, who demonstrate ability and judgment, and who, with other members
of the Board, will be effective in collectively serving the long-term interests of our shareholders.
Candidates also must satisfy applicable requirements of state and federal banking regulators, and the
Committee may develop other criteria or minimum qualifications for use in identifying and evaluating
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candidates. In identifying candidates to be recommended to the Board of Directors, the Committee will
consider candidates recommended by shareholders. The Committee has not used the services of a third-
party search firm. Shareholders who wish to recommend candidates to the Committee should send their
recommendations in writing to:

Corporate Governance Committee

Ist Financial Service Corporation
Attention: Corporate Secretary

101 Jack Street

Héndersonville, North Carolina 28792

Each recommendation should be accompanied by the following:

[ The full name, address and telephone number of the person making the recommendation, and a
statemnent that the person making the recommendation is a shareholder of record (or, if the person is
a beneficial owner of our shares but not a record holder, a statement from the record holder of the
shares verifying the number of shares beneficially owned), and a statement as to whether the
person making the recommendation has a good faith intention to continue to hold those shares
through the date of our next Annual Meeting;

® The full name, address and telephone number of the candidate being recommended, information
regarding the candidate’s beneficial ownership of our equity securities and any business or personal
relationship between the candidate and the person making the recommendation, and an explanation
of the value or benefit the person making the recommendation believes the candidate would
provide as a director;

® A statement signed by the candidate that he or she is aware of and consents to bemg recommended
to the Committee and will provide such information as the Committee may request in connection
with its evaluation of candidates;

® A descnpnon of the candidate's current principal occupation, business or professional experience,
previous employment history, educational background, and any areas of particular expertise;
® Information about any business or personal relationships between the candidate and any of our

customers, suppliers, vendors, competitors, directors or officers, affiliated companies, or other
persons with any special interest regarding our bank and any transactions between the candidate
and our bank; and

[ Any information in addition to the above regarding the candidate that would be required to be
included in our proxy statement pursuant to the SEC's Regulation 14A (including without
limitation information regarding legal proceedings in which the candidate has been involved within
the past five years).

To be considered by the Committee in connection with its recommendations of candidates for
selection as nominees for election at an Annual Meeting, a shareholder's recommendation must be received
by the Committee not later than the 120th day prior to the first anniversary of the date that our proxy
statement was first mailed to our shareholders in conjunction with our preceding year's Annual Meeting.
Recommendations submitted by shareholders other than in accordance with these procedures will not be
considered by the Committee.

The Committee will evaluate candidates recommended by sharcholders in a manner similar to its
evaluation of other candidates. The Committee will select candidates to be recommended to the Board of
Directors each year based on its assessment of, among other things, (1) candidates' business, personal and
educational background and experience, community leadership, independence, geographic location within
our service area, and their other qualifications, attributes and potential contributions; (2} the past and future
contributions of our current directors, and the value of continuity and prior board experience; (3) the
existence of one or more vacancies on the Board; (4) the need for a director possessing particular attributes
or particular experience or expertise; (5) the role of directors in our business development activities; and
(6) other factors that it considers relevant, including any specific qualifications the Committee adopts from
time to time.
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The Corporate Governance Committee recommended to our Board of Directors that three of our
current directors whose terms are expiring at the Annual Meeting be nominated for reclection for new
terms.

Compensation Committee Functions. The Corporate Governance Committee also functions as a
compensation committee. Under its written charter, and in addition to other duties that may be assigned
from time to time by the joint Board of Directors of our company and the Bank, the Committee reviews
and provides overall guidance to the Board regarding our executive and director compensation and benefit
programs and makes recommendations to the Boards about:

® Cash and other compensation paid or provided to our and the Bank's Chief Executive Officer and
other executive officers; ’

°® The adoption of new compensation or benefit plans, or changes in existing plans, under which
compensation or benefits are or will be paid or provided to those persons; and

[ ) The administration of the Bank's annual incentive program.

The Committee also reviews and makes recommendations to the Board about amounts of
compensation paid to our directors and, to the extent requested by the Board, compensation paid
(individually or in the aggregate) to our other employees.

In performing its duties the Committee may, if it considers it appropriate, delegate any of its
responsibilities to a subcommittee. However, any subcommittee must be composed entirely of independent
directors. The Committee is authorized to conduct investigations, and to request and consider any
information (from management or otherwise) that it believes is necessary, relevant or helpful in its
deliberations and in making its recommendations. It may rely on.information provided by management
without further verification. However, under its charter, when the Committee takes an action, it should
exercise independent judgment on an informed basis and in a manner it considers to be in the best interests
of our shareholders. In its review and consideration of compensation matters in general, the Committee
considers information provided by our Chief Executive Officer about those officers' individual performance
and his recommendations as to their compensation. Afier receiving the Committee's recommendations, the
Board makes all final decisions about compensation matters, . .

The Committee may retain the services of outside counsel or consultants, at our expense, and on
terms (including fees) that it approves. During 2007, the Committee independently engaged Clark
Consulting as outside consultants, and Grady & Associates as independent legal counsel, for executive
compensation issues. Clark Consulting is a leading provider of compensation and benefits consulting to the
banking industry. Grady & Associates is a Cleveland, Ohio, law firm specializing in financial institution
executive compensation planning. Other than in these advisory capacities, neither Clark Consulting nor
Grady & Associates have any role in the actual recommendations the Committee makes to our Board of
Directors, or in our Board's approval of the amounts of executive compensation.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
We consider our officers listed below to be our executive officers:

Gregory L. Gibson, age 51, serves as our Chief Executive Officer. He was employed by
MountainBank from 2000 until October 2003, where he served as Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of that bank and its parent holding company. From 1997 unti{ 2000, Mr. Gibson operated
his own public accounting and financial institutions consulting firm. He was employed as Senior Vice
President of Bank of Mecklenburg, Charlotte, North Carolina, from 1994 to 1997, and as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Rock Hill National Bank and its parent holding company, RHNB
Corporation, Rock Hill, South Carolina, from 1985 until 1994, and he previously held positions with two
other North Carolina commercial banks. Mr. Gibson is a certified public accountant and has a total of 28
years of experience in the banking industry, having served as an executive officer of six community banks
and bank holding companies.

Vincent K. Rees, age 40, scrves as our President. He was employed by MountainBank from its
organization during 1997 until October 2003. He served MountainBank as Chief Lending Officer from
1997 until 2001 and then as a Regional President of that bank and Executive Vice President of its parent
holding company. Mr. Rees previously was employed in South Carolina for seven years by NationsBank
(now Bank of America) and its predecessor, C&S Bank, where he served in various positions in branch
management, credit analysis, and consumer and commercial lending. Mr. Rees has a total of 18 years of
banking cxperience.

B. Lee Beason, age 50, serves as our Chief Operating Officer. From 2001 to November 2003, he
was employed by MountainBank in various administrative and branch supervisory positions, including
State Executive. He was employed as City Executive of High Street Banking Co., Asheville, North
Carolina, from 1997 until 2001. He has a total of 18 years 6f banking experience.

Peggy H. Denny, age 57, serves as our Chief Administrative Officer and is responsible for branch
network management, training, and various other functions. From 1997 to November 2003, Ms. Denny
was employed by MountainBank as Senior Vice Presidént. Earlier, she was employed by First Union
National Bank and its predecessor, Northwestern Bank. She has a total of 35 years of banking experience.

Kirk P. Robinson, age 40, has served as our Chief Credlt Officer since 2004. He previously was
employed by Capital Bank in Raleigh, North Carolina, as Scnior Credit Analyst from 2003 to 2004; by
MountainBank as Senior Credit Analyst from 2002 to 2003; and by BB&T as a City Executive and
Business Banker in Lexington, South Carolma from 1998 to 2002. He has a total of 12 years of banking

experience. ,
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The compensation tables in the section captioned “Executive Compensation” in this proxy
staternent give details about the salary, bonus, options, and other compensation paid or awarded to the
Bank’s Chief Executive Officer, Principal Accounting Officer, and the three other most highly
compensated executive officers. The narrative accompanying those tables gives additional information
about the terms on which the compensation is paid or awarded.

The Corporate Governance Committee's Deliberations about Compensation. Compensation of
executive officers, includifg the five executives named in the Summary Compensation Table, is within the
jurisdiction of the board’s Corporate Governance Committee, although the, full board has reserved to itself
the final authority to accept or reject Committee recommendations. As of December 31, 2007 members of
the Committee were John S. Sheiry (Chair), William H. Burton, Catherine H. Schroader, and H. Steve
McManus, each of whom is “independent” within the meaning of the listing standards of the Nasdag, is a
“non-employee director” within the meamng of Rule 16b-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and is
an “outside director” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

The Committee frequently discusses executive compensation and Bank and individual performance
with the CEO and other executives. At the Committee’s request, management provides pertinent financial,
tax, accounting, or operational information relevant to board deliberations on a monthly basis. Three
executives — Messrs. Gibson, Beason, and Rees - serve as directors and therefore participate in board
deliberations and voting concerning Corporate Governance Committee recommendations, bul the
Committee itself is comprised entirely of directors who are neither executive officers nor employees. In
both 2006 and 2007 the Committee engaged compensation consultants to assist with the analysis of and to
recommend enhancements to the Bank’s executive compensation practices. The Committee also relies on
its own independent outside legal counsel for advice about compensation issues.

Peer group comparisons are used by many banks not only to judge bank financial performance but
also executive compensation practlces and individual executives’ performance. The committee engaged
Clark Consulting in 2006 to do an in depth peer comparison of executive and director compensation. The
Committee’s original intention was toc commission peer group analyses by third party compensation
consultants and to cause those analyses to be updated periodically for the Committee’s use. In 2007 the
Committee dedicated significant time and resources to establishing the terms of executives’ compensation
arrangements, including employment agreements that will potentially provide severance benefits for the
executives, split dollar insurance arrangements that will provide death benefits to executives’ designated
beneficiaries at each executives’ death, and salary continuation agreements that will assure the executives
of retirement benefits when their.service with the Bank is ended. The employment agreements and split
dollar insurance agreements were finalized at the end of 2007 and the salary continuation agreements were
finalized in March 2008. After obtaining estimates of the costs associated with purchasing customized peer
group analyses, and taking into account the expenses incurred in 2007 in the process of establishing the
employment, split dollar, and salary continuation arrangements, the Committee determined that the
considerable additional costs to obtain 2007 peer group analyses were not justified.

The committee is generally aware of compensation paid by other North Carolina and South
Carolina community banking organizations that are publicly owned and that therefore report compensation
information in proxy statements filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, particularly those
community banking organizations that management considers to be comparable in size or business focus to
the Bank or that are direct competitors of the Bank. The Committee has a very active role with executive
compensation issues and maintains an ongoing dialogue with senjor management about compensation
topics. The committee chair attended the 2006 and 2007 Bank Director Conference on Compensation and
participated in the 2007 Peer Exchange Program held the day immediately preceding that conference. Both
of these conferences were accredited by Institutional Shareholders Services and sponsored by Bank
Director magazine and the Nasdaq Stock Exchange. These events brought together leading experts in
compensation consulting and banking to provide exposure to industry best practices and invaluable first-
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hand information on the topic of compensation. The events featured separate tracks focusing on the
perspectives of large banks, public community banks, and private/thinly traded banks. As a result of
information obtained at these conferences combined with information provided by other sources including
the Committee’s outside counsel, the Committee’s subjective impression is that executive compensation
paid by the Bank is actually more modest than that of community banking organizations that are
comparable in size or business focus in North and South Carolina or that are direct competitors of the Bank,
particularly taking into account Mountain Ist Bank's performance and growth that the Committee considers
to be very favorable in comparison. As the Bank continues to grow, the Committee plans to stay informed
on current compensation trends and periodically allocate the resources necessary for production of peer
group analyses to assist the Committee’s deliberations about executive compensation.

Results of the Corporate Governance Committee’s Deliberations. The principal elements of
compensation of the five executives identified in the Summary Compensation Table consist of salary,
annual incentive cash bonuses, stock options, and post-termination benefits.

Salary. To ¢ontrol expenses and promote more rapid achievement of profitability, when the
Bank’s operations began in 2004, executive officers suggested that base salaries be less than the amounts-
they could have demanded. The Corporate Governance Committee and ultimately the Board of Directors
concurred, anticipating that other benefits forming part of a comprehensive executive benefit arrangement
would be added as the Bank matured. Base salaries have been maintained since inception at rates the
Committee considers to be below market levels. Based on recommendations from the Committee, on
March 24, 2008 the Committee approved the following salaries for the five officers identified in the
Summary Compensation Table: $173,250 to Greg Gibson, $157,500 for Vincent K. Rees, $131,250 for Lee
Beason, and $131,250 for Peggy H. Denny, and $65,000 for Mary K. Dopko This represents a 5%
increase in the officer's salaries over 2007.

Senior management, the Committee, and the board remain committed to controlling compensation
expense, consisting both of salary and employee benefit expense and stock compensation expense, which is
second only to deposit interest expense in its impact on the Bank’s net income. Establishing a
comprehensive benefits program that offers the appropriate mix of rewards for services rendered and
incentives for further contributions to the Bank’s success requires careful planning, review, and analysis.
The death benefit promise under endorsement split dollar insurance agreements entered into with
executives in 2007, the severance benefits potentially payable under employment agreements also entered
into in 2007, and the retirement benefit promise under salary continuation agreements entered into in
March 2008 are component parts of the comprehensive benefits arrangement that senior management and
the Committee had in mind in 2004 when they agreed to maintain salary at modest levels.

With input from management, from Grady & Associates, a Cleveland, Ohio law firm that acts as
legal counsel to the Committee, from Clark Consulting, and from the company that arranged the Bank’s
purchase of split dollar insurance and that will service the Bank’s split dollar and salary continuation
arrangements, the Committee invested significant time and resources in 2007 to establish the terms of
executives’ employment agreements, endorsement spllt dollar insurance agreements, and salary
continuation agreements.

Initially a request for proposals was sent out to five qualified vendors with superior reputations
within the banking community for their ability to provide and service the types of insurance products that
the Committee was interested in. Afier a thorough review of the RFP responses, two of the five vendors
were selected to give presentations to the Committee. The process of final vendor interviews and selection
was turned over to the ALCO Committee for two reasons. First, the purchase of bank owned life insurance
is considered an investment decision and those types of decisions should be reviewed and recommended by
the ALCO Committee. Second, the Committee felt strongly that additional input and review would be an
invaluable addition to the decision making process. The ALCO Committee selected Clark Consulting to be
the vendor which would invest and administer the selected program and made that recommendation to the
full Board of Directors who approved it unanimously. Taking into account that these new benefit
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arrangements fill in most if not all of the missing pieces of a comprehensive executive benefit arrangemcnt
the Committee recommended nominal salary increases for 2008.

These factors also account for the more significant salary increases established at the beginning of
2007, when Mr. Gibson’s salary increased by approximately 38% compared to 2006 and 25% to 30% for
Messrs. Beason and Rees and Ms. Denny. Although the Committee’s consideration of potential severance,
death benefit, and retirement benefit arrangements had begun before 2007, those arrangements became a
Committee priority in early 2007. At that time the Committee anticipated that final agreement upon the
terms of employment, split dollar, and salary continuation arrangements, selection of life insurance vendors
for the insurance policies supporting the split dollar agreements, Commitiee and Board approval of the
arrangements, and execution of the final documents would not occur for many months,

| Section 162(m) of the Intemnal Revenue Code places a limit on the tax deduction for compensation
exceeding $1 million paid to the chief executive officer and the four most highly compensated executive
officers of a corporation in a taxable year, but performance-based compensation such as stock-option
compensation and performance-based cash bonuses are generally exempt from the $1 million limit. We

‘ expect all of the compensation paid in 2007 and in 2008 to our executive officers to be deductible.

|

Annual Cash Incentive Bonuses. Calculation of the annual cash incentive bonus is in part a
mathematical process determined by the Bank’s net income, return on average assets, return on average
equity, and asset growth. The Committee’s role is limited to (x) annually recommending target amounts for
each financial measure (net income, ROAA, ROAE, and total assets) at each performance level (minimum,
strategic, superlative, and extraordinary) and (v) annually recommending the bonus amounts for cach of
Messrs. Gibson, Rees, and Beason and Ms. Denny at each performance level. Ms. Dopko is not a
participant in the annual cash incentive bonus. plan, although she is eligible for cash bonus payments based
on Management's subjective assessment of her performance. Recommended by the Committee and
thereafter approved by the board at their scparate May 29, 2007 meetings, the targets established for 2007

were as follows: .
Goal_ Weight Minimum Strategic _Superlative Extraordinary
Net income afler tax .........oocoveenvnnnens 40% $3,750,000 $4,000,000 $4,250,000 $4,500,000
Retumn on average assets (ROAA).... 20% 0.75% 0.78% 0.80% 0.82%
Return on average equity (ROAE).... 20% 8.36% 8.89% 9.42% 9.94%
Total assets .....cooemerenrrnceeresrmemninanennas 20% $525,000,000 = $550,000,000 $'5rS0,000,000 $615,000,000

The Committee fixed the bonus potential ‘of Messrs. Gibson and Rees at $60,000 for achieving
minimum performance in all four categories, with an additional $20,000 at each performance leve! beyond
the minimum. The Committee fixed the bonus potential of Mr. Beason and Ms. Denny at $50,000 for
achieving minimum perfonnance in ali four categories, with an additional $15,000 at each performance
level beyond the minimum. The aggregate bonus of each officer is the sum for each of the four financial
measures of the weighted value of (x) the bonus applicable to the performance level achieved plus (y) a
proportionate share of the additional bonus amount for financial results within the'range between
performance levels. 1t is not necessary to achieve minimum performance in all four financial measures in
order for a bonus to be payable. Achievement of minimum perfonnancc in any one of the four financial
measures is sufficient to yield a bonus. The poténtial bonus amounts under the annual cash incentive plan
are capped at $120,000 for each of Messrs. Gibson and Rees and $95,000 for Mr. Beason and Ms. Denny,
but the Committee and the Board have the discretion to award cash bonuses beyond those amounts based
on extraordinary performance on a non-objective area of performance

[n the case of each executive the minimum bonus amounts for 2007 are less than the actual bonuses
paid to the executives for 2006 results, reflecting the Committee’s conclusion that the minimum
performance level would probably be achieved merely by continuation of established trends in the Bank’s
financial performance. The Committee's expectation when the Committee established the bonus amounts
and financial goals was that financial results should at least reach the strategic level. The Commitiee fixed
the bonus amounts for the four executives at levels the Committee believes reflect the executives’
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responsibilitics and ability to contribute to achievement of the targeted financial metrics, with a potentially
significant increase over the bonus actually paid for 2006 performance if and only if the Bank’s financial
results reach the extraordinary performance level.

Because of the unsustainable rapid growth that naturally occurs in a bank’s start-up phase, it was
difficult to establish performance targets for cash incentive compensation in the period from 2004 through
2006. The annual incentive bonuses paid in early 2007 for performance in 2006 were therefore awarded.
based on the Committee’s subjective assessment at year-end 2006 of each executive’s individual
performance as well the Bank's asset growth, eamnings growth, asset quality, and overall achievement of
the Bank's annual strategic business plan and budgetary goals.

There currently is no formal policy requiring repayment by executives of cash bonuses if financial
restatements adversely affect the financial measures that formed the basis of the cash bonus payments.
However, the Committee has had several discusstons throughout 2007 on this matter and may establish a
format "clawback” provision that will have that effect. If that provision is adopted, the Bank will thereafter
have the right to demand repayment of bonuses if financial restatements undermine the basis on which
bonus payments were made, even if the restatements are not the result of misconduct on the executives’
part.

Long-term Incentives: Stock Options. The Corporate Governance Committee administers the
2004 Employee Stock Option Plan, in addition to the Committee’s responsibility for other forms of
executive compensation. The Committee awarded no stock options in 2007 to the executives named in the
Summary Compensation Table.

The Bank believes that equity ownership by executive officers aligns their interests with those of
shareholders and that stock options create incentives for executives to promote the Bank's short-term and
long-term success. Although the stock option grants made to the executive officers identified in the
Summary Compensation Table have become fully vested and exercisable, the time-based vesting featurc of
stock option grants creates an incentive for key employees to remain with the Bank and to maintain their
commitment to the Bank’s long-term success.

The attention given by the Committee to planning, negotiation, and implementation of endorsement
split doilar, salary continuation, and employment agreements throughout 2007 and into early 2008
demanded a significant amount of Committee time and resources. With the recent finalization of those
arrangements, however, the essential parts of a comprehensive executive benefits arrangement have now
been assembled. When the Committee again considers whether to make additional stock option awards,
including awards to executives identified in the Summary Compensation Table, the Committee will take
account of the executives’ previous stock option grants as well as the Committee’s subjective impression of
the total compensation and benefit arrangements provided by the Bank to the executives.

Post-termination Benefits: Employment Agreements. During 2007, the Bank entered into
employment agreements with Messrs. Gibson, Rees, and Beason, with Ms. Denny, and with one other
executive officer who is not identified in the Summary Compensation Table. These agreements are
summarized in this proxy statement in the Executive Compensation section that follows this discussion.
The Bank and the executives had deferred entering into employment agreements because neither the
executives nor the Committee felt there was a compelling reason to rush into these types of agreements
during the Bank's start-up phase. With 2007 representing the Bank's third full year of operations and with
the Bank's growth patterns and profitability established, both senior management and the Committee
concluded that entry into employment contracts would promote long-term management stability. The
Bank's employment agrecments were entered into on September 24, 2007, although they were amended in
December for the principal purpose of eliminating the operation of a parachute payment tax gross up in
2007 and 2008 that was otherwise promised by the employment agreements executed on September 24,
2007.

16




To assist the Committee and senior management with negotiation of the terms of the agreements,
the Committee’s independent legal counsel prepared surveys of the terms of executive employment
agreements and change-in-control benefit arrangements of publicly owned community banking
organizations located in South Carolina and North Carolina. The vast majority of peer banks in the two
Carolinas with assets'less than $1 billion use employment contracts for their most senior officers. Because
a company’s top executive officers are the people most likely to be terminated after a change in control and
because their undivided attention to the goal of maximizing sharcholder values is most urgently needed in
the context of a possible change in control, the board believes that severance and change-iri-control benefit
arrangements are in the Bank’s best interest. The Bank believes the arrangements are necessary to remain
competitive for the retention and recruttment of top management talent

The employment agreements entered into in September 2007 prom:sed a fuII section 280(3
parachute payment tax gross-up benefit to the executives. Aftér examining, with the assistance of legal
counsel, estimated change-in-control benefits potentially payable to-senior management in a hypothetical
change in control of the Bank occurring.in 2008, .including:

o estimated section 280G gross-up benefits,

® change-in-control benefits payable under the employment agreements, and

@ .change-in-control benefits payable under the salary continuation agreements entered into

+ during March 2008 .

the Committec.and management agreed that total unaccrued benefits payable to senior.management as a
percentage of the total value payable to shareholders in a hypothetical change in control exceeded the tevels
the Committee and management considered reasonable given the Bank's size in 2007. For that reason the
Committce and management agreed to revise the employment agreements principally for the purpose of
eliminating the gross-up benefit in 2007 and 2008, and providing for it in stages beginning in 2009.
Accordmgly, the September 2607 employmenl agreements were replaced by amended employment .
agreements in December. :

Under the amended agreements, no gross-up benefit would be payable for a change in control
occurring in 2007 or 2008. A gross-up benefit equal to 33% of a full gross-up benefit could be payable for
a change in control occurring in 2009, 66% of a full benefit for a change in control occurring in 2010, and
100% for a change in control occurring in 2011 or thereafier. The salary-continuation agreements entered
into in March 2008 contain an identical parachute payment tax gross-up provision, but that contract right ,
merely reiterates the executives” entitlement to the gross-up benefit and does not represent an additional
benefit expectation. The Committee reasoned that the total value payable to shareholders in a change in
control is likely to increase significantly as the Bank grows over time, with the effect that total benefits
payable to senior management should represent a smaller percentage of that aggregate value with each
passing year. Secondly, calculation of total change-in-control benefits for section 280G and section 4999
purposes is not based simply on cash benefits paid. Instead the calculation takes account of non-cash :
benefits to which executives become entitled on an accelerated basis because of a change in control {such '
as accelerated vesting of stock options), as well as the present-value enhancement associated with cash
benefits paid immediately after a change in control that would otherwise not have been paid to the
executives for many years, such as rétirement benefits under a salary continuation agreement. In other
words, a retirement benefit under a salary continuation agreement that is settled for a lump sum in cash
afler a change in control is much more likely to cause total change-in-control benefits to exceed the section
280G and section 4999 threshold (three times base amount) immediatcly after that benefit arrangement is
adopted, with a diminishing effect each year thereafter as the executive approaches retirement or as his or
her vested interest in the benefit grows. Taking account of the implementation in 2007 and early 2008 of
comprchensive benefit arrangements for executives, the Committee and management agreed to eliminate
the gross-up benefit for a change in control occurring in 2008 and to phase in the full gross-up benefit over
a four-year period. . ot -

Finally, the change-in-control benefit feature of the employment agreements (and of the salary
continuation agreements entered into in March 2008) is known as a single-trigger benefit, meaning the
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benefit is payable immediately after a change in control even if the executive’s employment is not also
terminated after the change in control. The Bank recognizes that single-trigger change-in-control benefits
are more disfavored by shareholder advocates and others than double-trigger change-in-control benefits,
which are payable if and only if employment termination follows shortly after a change in control. The
Bank nevertheless agreed to single-trigger change-in-control benefits for reasons having to do with section
409A of the Internal Revenue Code. That section imposes a six-month delay on termination benefits, such
as double-trigger change-in-control benefits, payable to a publicly traded company’s highest compensated
executives, with a series of exceptions that could potentially be difficult to apply and that might or might
not be available when termination actually occurs. Section 409A imposes no delay at all, however on
single-trigger change-in-control benefits. Recognizing that the executives who are parties to the
employment agreements are highly likety to be terminated after a change in control in any event, and taking
into account the potential legal complications and potential legal expenses associated with applying the six-
month delay required by section 409A for double-trigger change-in-controt benefits, the Committee
concluded that the only practical differences between a single-trigger versus double-trigger benefit are (x)
the terminated executive would receive single-trigger benefits immediately, as intended, whereas the same
terminated executive might have to wait six months for the double-trigger benefit, and (y) the single-trigger
benefit is clear and requires no expertise to apply, whereas the double-trigger benefit would almost
inevitably involve payment of legal expenses to determine whether exceptions to the six-month delay are
available and to determine precisely when the benefit may be paid, as well as expenses associated with
ensuring that the acquiring company honors payment of the delayed benefit. Finally, the four executive
officers identified in the Summary Compensation Table who have employment agrecments are founding
employees since the date of the Bank's original charter. The success of the Bank to date is largely the result
of their leadership and commitment to the organization. For all of these reasons, the Bank’s employment
agreements provide for single-trigger change-in-contrel benefits.

Post-termination Benefits: Endorsement Split Dollar Life Insurance and Salary Continuation
Agreements. In December 2007 the Bank entered into endorsement split dollar insurance agreements with
Messrs. Gibson, Rees, and Beason, with Ms. Denny and Ms. Dopko, and with one other executive officer
who is not identified in the Summary Compensation Table, entitling each executive to designate the
benefictary of a specified portion of the death benefits payable under bank-owned policies on these
executives' lives. The death benefit payable to an executive’s beneficiary is the lesser of (x) the policy’s net
death proceeds, meaning the total death benefit minus the policy's cash surrender value, or () $1.25
million in the case of Messrs. Gibson and Rees, $1 million in the case of Mr. Beason and Ms. Denny, and
$50,000 in the case of Ms. Dopko. The Bank is entitled to all insurance policy death proceeds remaining
after payment of the death benefit to the executive’s beneficiary. The Bank paid total premiums of
approximately $3.3 miflion in 2007 and 2008 for all policies subject to split dollar agreements with these
executives, but the Bank expects to recover in full its life insurance investment from its portion of the
policies’ death proceeds.

Adequate life insurance coverage for executive management is an essential component of the
compensation necessary to retain, attract and reward excellent service. The Bank fully paid the premiums
for policies on the six lives (Messrs. Gibson, Rees and Beason, Ms. Denny and Ms. Dopko, and the other
executive officer not named in the Summary Compensation Table) with lump sum premium payments in
the aggregate of approximately $3.3 million. The Bank determined that a lump sum premium was the most
financially advantageous way to secure coverage because the premiuvm paid is not an expense and the initial
cash surrender value equals the premiums paid. Like any whole life insurance policy, the bank-owned life
insurance policy contract has a cash surrender value that increases over time. For purposes of generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™), the increase in cash surrender value is booked as "other non-
interest income." The Bank expects to recover in full premiums paid and the earnings credited to the cash
value from the Bank’s portion of the policies’ death benefits.

Because the Bank intends to hold the bank-owned life insurance until the death of the insureds, the
increase of cash surrender value should be tax-free income under current federal income tax law. This
compares favorably to the taxable gain the Bank would recognize for assets in traditional taxable
investments such as U.S. Treasury or agency securities. The collection of death benefits on the policies,
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which is likewise currently tax free under current federal and state income taxation, is expected to further
enhance the company’s return. '

This informal life insurance financing is not expected to result in any material cost to the Bank, and
the bank-owned life insurance ("BOLI") is expected to increase the Bank’s non-interest income in future
operating periods. The BOLI financing is designed to eam sufficient income on the insurance policies' cash
surrender value to offset the after-tax expense of the accrual for the bank's supplemental executive
retirement agreements with the five executives.

In March 2008 the Bank also entered into salary continuation agreements with the same five
executive officers who entered into employment and split dollar insurance agreements.

The life insurance purchased by the Bank is designed to help offset the Bank's contractual
obligation to pay retirement benefits and to recover the Bank’s cost of providing benefits. The insurance
contracts and the salary continuation agreements were executed at the same time; however, there is no
direct linkage between the two. The Bank also believes that the split dollar insurance arrangement
reinforces executives’ long-term commitment to the Bank.

The combination of tax-preferred income generated by the cash value of the insurance policy, the
tax-free insurance death benefit; and fully tax-deductible benefit payments to participants are the economic
reasons that a bank can often provide this significant benefit to its executives at little or no net cost to the
Bank. The Board believes that the BOLI used to finance the salary continuation agreements allows the
Bank to cost effectively implement compensation programs that serve the vital purpose of attracting,
retaining, and rewarding valued executive officer service.

Because the split dollar life insurance death benefit is payable to executives' designated
beneficiaries whether death occurs before or afier employment termination, the Bank 1s required by
accounting principles clarified in 2006 to accrue during the executives' working years for the cost of
maintaining the insurance in the executives' retirement. With clarification in 2006 that expense recognition
for the post-retirement benefit is necessary, the Financial Accounting Standards Board permitted employers
to recognize the cost of post-retirement split dollar arrangements with a one-time charge to retained
earnings for agreements in force at the end of 2007, with recognition of accrual expense beginning in 2008.
For that reason the Bank completed the purchase of insurance dedicated to the executives' endorsement
split dollar arrangements, and entered into the split dollar agreements, before the end of 2007,

In early 2008 the Bank established a separate endorsement split dollar life insurance arrangement
for other officers, including Ms. Dopko, providing to each of these other officers the right to designate the
beneficiary of a $50,000 portion of death proceeds payable under Bank-owned policies on the officer's life.
The officers' rights lapse at employment termination.

The determinations were made with the aid of the Committee’s iegal counsel and the company that
arranged the Bank's purchase of BOLI and will also administer the Bank’s BOLI, split dollar and salary
continuation arrangements. The Bank’s goal was to ensure that the executive's final income produced by
all employer-financed retirement benefits would approximate 60% of his ‘or her projected final pay at 62,
taking into account the Bank’s portion of Social Security benefits, Bank 401(k) plan contributions, and
benefits payable under the salary continuation agreements. Payable for 15 years in monthly installments
beginning at age 62, the annual retirement benefits are as follows: $134,000 for Mr. Gibson, $186,000 for
Mr. Rees, $100,000 for Mr. Beason, and $72,000 for Ms. Denny. The salary continuation agreements
provide that the annual retirement benefit shall be increased by 3% each year in retirement. Also
increasing by 3% annually, the benefit for termination before age 62 is a reduced amount that is calculated
based on the Bank’s liability accrual balance existing when employment termination occurs, also payable in
monthly installments for 15 years beginning at age 62.

If a change in contro) of the Bank occurs, each executive will be entitled under his or her salary
continuation agreement to the greater of (x) an amount equal to the Bank’s liability accrual balance existing
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when the change in control occurs or () $750,000 in the case of the four executive officers named in the
Summary Compensation table and $400,000 in the case of the executive officer who is not identified in the
Summary Compensation Table. In either case, this benefit is payable in a single lump sum immediately
after the change in control.” Because most of the executives are many years away from the age 62 normal
retirement age, the Bank’s liability accrual balance for any of the five officers receiving a salary
continuation agreecment will not exceed $750,000 for many years. The Bank believes the change-in-control
benefit feature of a salary continuation agreement is important and that it, together with the retirement
benefit features of the agreement, reinforces an executive’s long-term commitment to the Bank. For that
reason the Bank believes the change-in-control benefit feature of the salary continuation agreements as well
as the retirement benefit features of the agreement are in the Bank's best interest.

Like the employment agreement change-in-control benefit discussed elsewhere, the change-in-
control benefit payable under the salary continuation agreement is a single-trigger benefit.

Perquisites and Other Compensation. Our executive officers participate in the Bank’s broad-
based employee benefit plans, such as medical; dental, supplemental disability, and term life insurance
programs. However, during 2007 they did not receive any special, unigue, or additional perquisites or
personal benefits that are not available to all of the Bank’s employees.

Effective January 1, 2005 the Bank adopted a 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan (the “401(k) Plan™),
enabling all full-time employees and all part-time employees working more than 1,000 hours per year to
make contributions to individual plan accounts. Employee contributions take the form of deferred
compensation. An employee’s contribution of up to 3% of his or her compensation is matched dollar-for-
dollar by the Bank. The Bank also matches 50% of the employee’s contribution over 3% and up to 5% of
his or her compensation. Both employee contributions and the Bank matching contribution of up to 3% of
compensation are 100% vested at all times. The Bank’s additional 50% matching contribution becomes
100% vested after three years. The Bank also makes discretionary annual profit-sharing contributions to
the 401(k) Plan, depending on the Bank’s profitability and subject to Internal Revenue Code and 401(k)
Plan contribution limits. The board of directors determines the final amount of the profit-sharing
contribution, after considering management’s recommendation at the end of the fiscal year. Employees
with service of six months or more are eligible to participate in the profit-sharing portion of the 401(k)
Plan. The profit-sharing contribution is allocated among participating employees in the proportion that
each participant’s compensation for the fiscal year bears to the total compensation for all participating
employees for the year. Benefits attributable to profit-sharing contributions vest at a rate of 20% annuaily.
Participants may receive distributions from their profit-sharing accounts at retirement, employment
termination, or attainment of age of 59 %, but distributions may occur sooner for a participant who
experiences a financial hardship. The 401(k) Plan does not offer 1st Financial Services Corporation stock
as an investment option. The Bank made no profit-sharing contribution for the 2007 plan year.

Compensation Committee Report

The Corporate Governance Committee, in its capacity as our compensation committee, has:

' reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis that is
included in this proxy statement; and

® based on that review and discussion, recommended to the full Board of Directors that the
Compensation Discugsion and Analysis be included in our proxy statement and Annuai Report on
Form 10-K/A.

The Corporate Governance Committee

John S. Sheiry H, Steve McManus  Catherine H. Schroeder William H. Burton
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OFFICER COMPENSATION )

Summary

.

The following table shows the cash and certain other compensation paid or provided to or deferred
by our named officers for 2007 and 2006. Our named officers are compensated by the Bank for their
services as its officers, and they reccive no separate salaries or other cash compensation from us for their
services.as our officers. With the exception of Ms. Dopko, each of our named officers is employed under
an employment agreement with the Bank as described below. Ms. Dopko is employed on an "at will" basis
and subject to reelection as an officer each year.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Non-Equity
) Option Incentive Plan
Name and ‘ ! Salary Awards Compensation - All Other

— Principal Positlon Yenr 2 —Bonus | (3 (2)(4) Compensation (5) - _Total
Gregory L. Gibson (1) 2007 $165,000 -0- -0- $61,32 $10.771 $237,093

Chief Executive Officer ....ovloee 2006 120,000 $100,000 32,620 . -0- 10,427 2]0'427
Vincent K. Rees (1) ‘ 2007 1.50‘000 . 0- £0- . 6|',322 . ‘ 12,658 223,980

President ..c.o...ovveeereemermcrcensnnenns 2006 117,813 100,000 2,620 -0- 8,536 226,349
B. Lec Beason (1) 2007 125,000 -0- 0. 50,896 8373 184,269

Executive Vice President :

and Chicf Operating Officer............. 2006 99,447 75,000 2,620 -0 18,685 193,132
Peggy H. Denny 2007 125,000 20 0- 50,896 S 86 184,012

Executive Vice President

and Chief Administrative Officer..... 2006 99,375 75,000 2,620 % 16,644 191,019
Mary K. Dopko 2007 60,000 -0- 0- 30,000 1,640 93,640

Controller and

Principal Accounting Officer ........... 2006 52,000 25.000 0- 0, 7,822 84,822

)

)
3)

)
(5)

Messrs. Gibson, Rees and Beason are members of our Board, but they do not receive any additional compensation for scrvice as

dircctors.

Includes the amount of salary deferred at each officer's election under our Secticn 401(k) plan.

Reflects the amount of compensation expense, as calculated under SFAS 23R, that we recognized in our financial statements

for each year relating to outstanding stock options held by each officer. A discussion of material assumptions made in our

valuation of and expense related to outsianding stock options is contained in Notes 1(S) and 12 to our audited financia!

Statements.

Reflects the amounts of cash awards paid 1o cach officer for each year undcr our annua! Incentive Plan described below under

the caption "Plan Based Awards." )

The 2007 amounts include; .

o for cach officer, matching contributions made by us under our Section 401(k) plan as follows: Mr. Gibson - §9,053;
Mr. Rees - $6,703; Mr. Beason - $7,453; Ms. Denny - $7,036; Ms. Dopko - $3,600;

*  payments to three officers as reimbursement for additional income taxes and penalties resulting from errors in prior years by
our outside payroll processing agency as follows: Mr. Gibson - $480; Mr. Rees - $5,280; ; Ms. Dopko - §3,192; and

s for the following officers, the imputed income for the officer’s interest under a split dollar agreement, in insurance policies
owned by the Bank as follows: Mr. Gibson - $1,238; Mr. Rees - $675; Mr. Beason - $920; and Ms. Denny - $1,080.
These split-dollar life insurance policies are deseribed below under the caption "Potential Payments Upen Termination of
Employment or a Change of Control — Endorsement Split-Dollar Agreements.” in addition to compensation paid in cash,
from time to time our executive officers receive various personal benefits. None of the named officers received personal
benefits during 2007 for which our estimated aggregate incremental cost exceeded $10,000, and the amounts of any such
benefits they received during 2007 are not included in the table. We also provide our offices with group life, health,
medicel and other insurance coverages that are generally available to al! salaried cmployecs. and the cost of the insurance is
not included in the table.

Employment Agreements

Messrs. Gibson, Rees, Beason and Ms. Denny are each employed pursuant to an Employee
Agreement which has a "rolling” three year term which, on each anniversary date of the agreement, is
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extended by one additional year unless our Board of Directors gives notice that it will not be extended.
Unless sooner terminated, the term of the agreement will end at the time each of them reaches age 65.
Each agreement provides for:

®  annual base salary, which will be reviewed and must be increased for cost of living increases
on an annual basis; and otherwise may be increased at the discretion of the Board;

® participation in all officer or employee compensation, bonus, incentive and benefit plans in
effect from time to time; :

o reimbursement of reasonable business expenses and reasonable expenses for attendance at
annual and other periodic meetings of trade associations; and

®  rcimbursement for the cost of disability insurance providing an annual benefit not to exceed
60% of the officer’s base and bonus salary after an elimination period of 90 days.

The employment agreements were entered into on September 24, 2007, and then amended at the

end of 2007 for the purpose of eliminating the operation of a parachute payment tax gross up in 2007 and
2008, and phase in the gross up beginning in 2009, and to eliminate the payment of outplacement expenses.

The agreements contain other provisions under which payments and benefits will be provided to
Messrs. Gibson, Rees, Beason and Ms. Denny following an involuntary termination of his or her
employment without cause, or a voluntary termination under varous circurastances, whether before or after
a change in control of the Bank, and that restrict their ability to compete against the Bank following
termination of employment. Those provisions are described below under the caption "Potential Payments
Upon Termination of Employment or a Change of Control."

Plan-Based Awards

We have two compensation plans under which we grant awards from time to time to our executive
officers, including our;

®  Employee Stock Option Plan, under which options to buy shares of our common stock have
been granted; and

@ Incentive Plan, under which additional cash compensation may be paid each year based on
our corporate performance. '

Stock Options. Stock options granted under the Employee Stock Option Plan give the officer to
whom it is granted the right to buy shares of our commeon stock during a stated period of time (ordinarily
ten years) at a fixed price per share equal to the market value of our stock on the date the option is granted.
Unless the individual option agreement that evidences an option provides otherwise, an officer's options
will terminate 90 days following his or her voluntary termination of employment (except in the case of
retirement), or one year following termination as a result of disability. In the case of retirement, death or
involuntary termination without cause, an officer’s options will remain in effect for their full terms. They
will terminate immediately following the involuntary termination of an officer's employment for cause.
Option grants currently do not include any performance-based conditions. The exercise price and vesting
schedule for each option are approved by our Corporate Governance Committee at the time the option is
granted. .

Incentive Plan. Under our [ncentive Plan, a portion of the cash compensation paid each year to
our executive officers and other employees chosen to participate in the plan is tied to the extent to which
we achieve goals set by our Board for the year with respect to various measures of corporate performance.
Cash awards under the plan are calculated based on a percentage of each executive officer's annual base
salary. Additional information about the operation of the plan for 2007, including information about the
threshold, target and maximum targets, and the refative weights of each performance measure, and the
formula used to calculate each named officer's award, is contained under the caption "Compensation
Discussion and Analysis —Annual Cash Incentive Bonuses."”

22




Grants During 2007. During 2007, there were no new stock options granted to any of our
executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table. Four officers named in the Summary
Compensation Table were participants in the Incentive Plan. This table contains information about the cash
award each officer was eligible to receive under the Incentive Plan:

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS DURING 2607

Estimated Future Payouts Under

uity Incen wards (1
Grant
Name Date Minimum Strategic Seperiative Extraordinary
Gregory L. Gibson N/A $60,000 $80,000 $100,000 $120,000
Vincent K. REeS ccommmnnnecrrisss NA 60,000 80,000 100,000 120,000
B. Lee Beason. ..covmiierseerinces N/A 50,000 65,000 80,000 95,000
Peggy H. Denny......ocoecmrrereeee N/A 50,000 65,000 80,000 95,000

(1) Reflects the dollar amount each officer could have received for 2007 under our Incentive Plan based on corporate

performance at each level.

The actual cash awards paid for 2007 to our named executive officers, based on performance, are
listed in the "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation" column of the Summary Compensation Table
above. No adjustments were made to the performance targets, and there was no discretionary increase in,
or reduclion_of, the amount paid to any of our executive officers.

Outstanding Stock Options.  During 2007, no previously granted options were exercised by any
of our executive offices named in the Summary Compensation Table. This table contains information
about all outstanding options held by those named officers on December 31, 2007:

QUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2007 YEAR END

Option Awards_
Number of Securities Number of Securities
Underlying Underiyiog
Unexercised Unexerelsed Option Option
Stock Options Stock Options Exercise Expiration
o [Name (Exercisable) —{Unexercisable) Price —Date
Gregory L. Gibson......ccevvvvcnenes 37,108 -0- § 5.63 07/26/2014
Vincent K. Rees....civrvnreniivssirenrens 37,108 . ) -0 5.63 07/2612014
B.Llee Beason ... . 37,108 0- 5.63 07/26/2014
Peggy H. Denny .... 37,108 0- 5.63 07/26/2014
Mary K. Dopko ..... 6,836 -0- 5.63 07/26/2014
Mary K. Dopko ....ocoeveeirrsrenicicane. 6,250 -0- 13.31 0973012015

Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment or a Change of Control

Under employment agreements between the Bank and Messrs. Gibson, Rees and Beason and
Ms. Denny (the "Exccutive Officers"), the executive officers will receive payments and benefits from the
Bank if their employment terminates under various circumstances. Those arrangements are described in
the following paragraphs, and a summary of the payments and benefits each officer will receive following
different termination events is contained in the table below.

Employment Agreements. The Executive Officers' employment agreements are described under
the caption "Employment Agreements.” If an executive officer's employment is terminated by us without
cause, or if an executive officer terminates his or her own employment for "good reason," the Executive
Officer will continue to receive salary payments for the unexpired term of the agreement, and we will
provide him or her with continued life and medical insurance coverage for the remaining term or, if earlier,
until the Executive Officer reaches age 65, dies, or becomes employed elsewhere. Continued life and
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medical insurance coverage also will be provided for the remaining term of the agreement following
termination of the Executive Officer's employment as a result of disability. "Good reason” will exist for the
Executive Officer to terminate his or her own employment if, without the executive officer’s consent:

The Executive Officer's salary is reduced,;

Duties are assigned to the executive officer that are materially inconsistent with his or her
position or represent a reduction in the officer's authority;

There is a material diminution in the authority, duties, or responsibilities of the supervisor o
who the exécutive officer is required to report;

There is a material change in the geographic location at which the executive officer must
perform services; or

The Bank matenally breaches the employment agreement.

No payments will be made under the agreement if the executive officers’ employment is terminated
by us "for cause” or by the executive officer without "good reason.”

If there is a change in control of our holding company or the Bank, each Executive Officer will be

entitled to:
)

A lump-sum payment equal to three times the total of his or her base salary rate at the time
of the change in control plus the amount of'any bonuses or incentive compensation ¢armed
for the preceding calendar year;

Continued medical and life insurance coverage for the remaining term of the agreement or,
if earlier, until the executive officer reaches age 65, dies, or becomes employed elsewhere;
Immediate vesting of his benefits under any qualified and non-qualified plans in which he
or she participates, unless those plans separately address the effect of a change in control;
and ] )

If the payment and acceleration of benefits under other plans or arrangements results in a
“parachute payment" that is subject to an excise tax under Sections 280G and 4999 of the
Internal Revenue Code, in 2009 or later an additional "gross-up payment” equal to the
amount of the excise tax he owes, plus the additional amount needed for him to receive the
amount of the excise tax net of all income, payroll or other excise taxes. The applicable
percentage gross-up payment amount that the Executive Officer is entitled is 33% fora
change of.control occurring in 2009, 66% for a change of control occurring in 2010 and
100% for a change in control occurring in 201 | or thereafier.

Those changes in control payments and benefits would be in lieu of any other severance payments
provided for in the agreement, and an Executive Officer's right 1o reccive the lump-sum payment would not
depend on whether his or her employment was terminated.

Executive Officers' agreements provide that, in general, a "change in control” will have occurred if:

A person accumulates ownership of our stock that amounts to more than 50% of the total
fair market value or total voting power of our outstanding stock;

Within a 12-month period a person acquires shares of our stock that amount to 30% or
more of the total voting power of our outstanding stock;

A majority of our directors are replaced during any 12-month peried by persons whose
appointment or election is not endorsed in advance by a majority of our directors; or

There is a change in ownership of our assets that amounts to 40% or more of the total gross
fair market value of all of our assets.

Under the Employment Agreements, each Executive Officer agrecs not to disclose any confidential
or proprietary information regarding our company or the Bank to any other person and that, for the
remaining petiod of the agreement following a termination of his or her émployment, the Executive
Officer may not directly or indirectly compete with the Bank by providing financial products or services on
behalf of another financial institution, or assisting another financial institution in providing financial

24




products or services, within the counties in North Carolina in which the Bank or any of its affiliates
conducted operations at the time the Executive Officers' cmployment was terminated, or in any North
Carolina county contiguous to those counties. 1f the Executive Officer violates this non-competition
provision, he or she will forfeit all rights and retirement benefits under his or her employment agreement as
well as all death benefits under his or her Endorsement Split-Dollar Agreement described below. However,
the restriction on their ability to compete against the Bank will terminate immediately upon a change in
control. '

This table lists estimates of aggregate payments and benefits that would have been paid or provided
to the executive officers under their employment agreements if their employment had terminated under
various circumstances, or there had been a change in control, on December 31, 2007:

Type of Termination Event and G.L. V. K. B.L. P. H.
Description of Payment or Benefit Gihson Rees Beason Denny
INVOLUNTARY TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE,
OR .
VOLUNTARY TERMINATION WITH "GOOD
REASON,"” ) .
OTHER THAN AFTER A CHANGE IN CONTROL
Apggregate cash payments (1) e 3488151 $443.774 $369.811 $369,811
Continued insurance coverage (2) ... 23,831 23,831 23,831 23,831
CHANGE IN CONTROL, WITHOUT REGARD
TO TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT '
Lump Sum Cash Payment ........coevvreeee. $795,000  $795,000 $600,000 $600,000
Continued Insurance Coverage (2) ...coeeee. . 25,209 25,209 25,209 25,209

Additional 280G "gross-up payment” (3).... - — — _ -_—

(1) Reflects the aggregate of monthly payments, based on the following annual salary cates: Mr. Gibson - $165,000;
Mr. Rees - $150,000; Mr. Beason - $125.000; and Ms. Denny - $125,000; that would be made during the remaining
term of the Employment Agreement.

(2) Reflects our estimale of the aggregate cost of continued insurance coverage equivalent to that currently provided to
each executive officer that could be obtained in the marketplace for the remaining term of the Employment

Agreement,
{3) The applicable percentage gross-up payment amount that the Executive Officer is entitled is 33% for a change of

cantrol occurring in 2009, 66% for a change of control occurring in 2010 and 100% for a change in control
occurring in 2011 or thereafier.

Endorsement Split-Dollar Agreements. The Bank has purchased insurance policies on the lives
of 33 of its officers, including our named executive officers, and has entered into Endorsement Split-Dollar
Agreements with each of them. The policies are owned by the Bank. Under the agreements, upon an
officer's death, whether or not he or she remains employed by the Bank, a portion of the total death benefits
under the policies on his or her life will be paid to the officer's beneficiary. The amount that will be paid to
cach officer's beneficiary will be equal to the lesser of the policy's "net death proceeds;” meaning the total
death benefit minus the policy's cash surrender value, or $1.25 million in the case of Messrs. Gibson and
Rees.or $1 million in the case of Mr. Beason or Ms. Denny. In 2008, the Bank established a separate
endorsement split dollar life insurance arrangement for other officers, including Ms. Dopko, providing the
right to designate the beneficiary of a $50,000 portion of the death proceeds payable under the Bank-owned

"policies on her life. The Bank will receive the remainder of the death benefits from each officer’s policies

including the full cash surrender value of the policies.

Employee Group Life Insurance Plan. We also provide life insurance benefits to each of the
named executive officers under our group life insurance plan in which all employees participate. Under the
group plan, death benefits are payable to a participant's beneficiaries equal to two times the participant's
annual salary rate at the date of death.
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This table lists estimates of aggrepate death benefits, calculated as described above, that would
have been paid to the named officers' beneficiaries under the policies if they had died on December 31,
2007.

Type of Termination Event and G.L. V.K B. L. P. H. M. K

Description of Payment or Bene_ﬂi Gibson Rees Beason Denﬁg Dopko
DEATH
Death benefits under split-dotlar
life insurance policies...... .o eeerenenceinrrccenr e erenen e $1,250,000 $).250,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $ 50,000
Death benefits under group life insurance plan ............... s 200,000 s 200’000 s zoo'ﬂw s * 200'm0 3122'000

Accelerated Vesting of Stock Options. In the event of a change in control of our company, if a
provision is not made for the assumption of outstanding stock options held under our option plans, or
for the exchange of those options for new options covering shares of the successor company, our
executive officers' rights under their options will terminate at the time the transaction becomes
effective. However, 1o the extent that any option has not yet become exercisable, it will become
exercisable in full immediately before the transaction becomes effective, without regard to any vesting
schedule. All options currently granted to our executive officers have vested in full.

1

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Directors' Fees

Our outside directors serve and are compensated as directors of the Bank and they do not receive
any additional compensation for their services as our directors. The following table describes our standard
schedule of fees paid to the Bank's directors beginning in July 2607, and is now paid to our dircctors.

Description ' _ Amount

Per diem fee for attendance at

meetings of our Board ... $400
Per diem fee for attendance at

COMIMItIEE MEELINES....ccooeeeeireeee e e ormese s somssnares 100
Additional per diem for aitendance at

Committee meetings by the Committee Chairman 100
Additional per diem for atiendance at Audit

Committee meetings by financial expert..........ccovvvvvecrvinnsrnienes . 100

Director Stock Options

We have a Director Stock Option Plan under which options are granted from time to time to our
directors to purchase shares of our common stock. Each stock option gives the director to whom it is
granted the right to buy shares of our common stock during a stated period of time (ordinarily ten years) at
a fixed price per share that is equal to the market value of our stock on the date the option is granted.
Options generally remain in effect for their full terms following the termination of a director's service for
any reason. Option grants do not include any performance-based conditions. The exercise price and
vesting schedule for each option is recommended by the Corporate Governance Commitiee to our Board of
Directors which approves the terms of such grants at the time the option is granted.

During 2007, no new stock options were granted to any of our directors and no previousty granted

options were exercised by any of them. Information about stock options held by our outside directors on
December 31, 2007, is contained in the footnotes to the Director Compensation Table below.
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Director Compeansation for 2007

2007 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Fees Earned or All Other

Name (1) Paid in Cash Option Awards (2) Compensation Total
William H. Bunton...........cceceece $4.100 $ -0- $ -0- $4,100
Michael D. Foster...ovvvvivnnns 3,800 -0~ ’ -0- ' 3,800
Tames C. Kirkpatrick ..o, 4,400 2 : 0 4,400
H. Steve McManus.l................. 2,800 0- -0- 2,800
Van F. Phillips.........c.cennveinens 3,600 -0- -0- 3,600
Bradley B. Schnyder............... " 3600 - -0- 3,600
Catherine H. Schroader............. 3,700 - . D ~ 3700
John S. Sheiry ..o -3,800 -0- -0- . 3,800
). Michael Smith (3) eooeocorvee.. . 3,500 . .0 0 . - 3,500

(1) Messrs. Beason, Gibson and Rees are not listed in the table. They are compensated as officers and employees of the Bank and
do not receive any scparate cash compensation for their services as directors.

(2) Al outstanding stock options held by our outside directors are fully vested and exercisable. As a result, we did not recognize
any compensation expense for those options in our financial statements for 2007 under SFAS 123R. On December 31, 2007
each of our outside directors held stock options covering 55,589 shares, with the exception of Mr. Smith who held options
covering 50,237 shares. )

(3} On April 28, 2008, Mr. Smith announced his retirement as of July 28, 2008.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS ,

Our Policy

Our Board of Directors has adopted a written policy under which our independent directors, acting
as a separate commitiee, review and approve certain transactions, arrangements or relationships in which
we are a participant and in which any of ur "related persons" has a material interest. Our related persons
include our directors, nominees for election as directors, executive officers, beneficial owners of more than
5% of a class of our’common stock, and members of the immediate family of one of those persons.

Except as described below, the policy covers:

o Any transactions, arrangements or relationships, or series of transactions, arrangements or
relationships that are required to be disclosed in our proxy statement under rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (in general, those in which the dollar amount involved
exceeds or will exceed an aggregate of $120,000, including all periodic payments); and,

®  Any other transactions, arrangements or relationships that would fall in the first category
above except for their amount being less than the $120,000 dollar threshold specified above.

The transactions covered by the policy generally include loans, but it does not cover loans we make
in the ordinary course of our business that are subject to banking regulations related to "insider loans™ and
that are required to be approved by a majority of our Board of Directors. The policy alse does not cover
our provision of services as a depositary of funds or similar banking services in the ordinary course of our
business, or compensation paid to our executive officers that has been reviewed and approved, or
recommended to our Board of Directors for approval, by our Corporate Govermance Committee. -

In its review of related person transactions, the policy provides that the Committee should exercise

independent judgment and should not approve any proposed transaction unless and untit it shalt have
concluded to its satisfaction that the transaction:
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o Has been or will be agreed to or engaged in on an arm's-length basis;
® Is to be made on terms that are fair and reasonable to us; and
] [s in our best interests.

Related Person Transactions During 2007

The Bank has had, and expects to have in the future, banking transactions in the ordinary course of
its business with certain of our current directors, nominees for director, executive officers, and other related
persons. All loans included in those transactions during 2007 were made in the ordinary course of the
Bank's business on substantially the same terms, including interest rates, repayment terms and collateral, as
those prevailing at the time those loans were made for comparable transactions with other persons, and
those loans did not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features.

During prior years, we entered into leases with related parties of two of our directors on buildings
that we use as branch offices. Van F. Phillips is Vice Prestdent and co-owner of Great Meadows, Inc.,
which has leased us the building that houses our branch office in Marion, North Carolina. The initial lease
term is five years, and we have options to renew the lease for up to four successive three-year renewal
terms. The terms of the lease call for a $3,500 per month rental payment during the initial term. Rental
payments for each renewal term will be adjusted by the aggregate increase in the Consumer Price Index for
all Urban Consumers for the |mmcd|ate1y preceding lease ferm. S

H. Steve McManus is the owner of McManus Development LLC which leases us the building that
houses our Fletcher, North Carolina, branch office. The initial lease term is ten years, and we have options
to renew the lease for up to three successive five-year renewal terms. The terms of the lease call fora
$3,200 per month rental payment during the first five years of the initial term, with payments during the
second five years to be increased by the lesser of 18% or the aggregate increase in the Chained Consumer
Price Index for all Urban Consumers during the previous five years. Rental payments during each renewal
term will be adjusted by the lesser of 15% or the aggregate increase in the Chained Consumer Price Index
for all Urban Consumers for the immediately preceding five years.

In each of the above leases we are responsible for the payment of insurance and property taxes on
the building during the term of the lease. Both of these leases were approved by our Board of Directors and
are on terms and conditions our Board believes are at least as favorable to us as those we could have
obtained in leases from non-affiliated lessors on comparable properties in stimilar locations.

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF OUR COMMON STOCK

Principa) Shareholders

We are not aware of anyone who owned, beneficially or of record, 5% or more of our outstanding
shares on the Record Date for the Annual Meeting.

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table describes the beneficial ownership of our common stock on the Record Date
for the Annual Meeting by our current directors, nominees for election as directors, and certain of our
officers, individually, and by all our directors and executive officers as a group.

Antount and nature of Percent of
Name of beneficial owner . beneficial ownership (1 class (2)
B. Lee Beason.......cccooieiiiineninmereciraresscsransenas 62,814 1.25%
William H. Burton.........ooovveoeire v 171,106 3.39%
Peggy H. Denny .....ccocoviviviiiicenieirreeeennn 51,033 . C1L.01%
Mary K. Dopko.......cconiveenrerennreesennrersssssenns 14,218 . 0.28%
Michael D, FOSIEN ...uevvviiineirerrerereeesennenns 95,271 1.89%
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Amount and nature of Percent of

Name of beneficial owner beneficial ownership (1 . class (2)
Gregory L. GibSON......coerrecrecviiciciininanrinns 98,639 1.96%
James C. Kirkpatrick .......occoevevcsivniinrniesens 111,555 221%
H. Steve McManus....ooeevcerrrere e csrcissiens 167,167 3.31%
Van F. PhIllIps.....c.ccovenevmercerrcrmisiiannns 170,230 337%
Vincent K. Rees.......ccvvneirrerrinnsnsiessesssrssesions 99,076 ' 1.97%
Bradley B. Schoyder......cooonnninninininns 106,531 2.11%
Catherine H. Schroedert ........ccooveeeoceieeeenne 163,280 3.23%
John S, Shelry ..o it . 67,185 ) 1.33%
J. Michael Smith.....ccoomccerccccrccrnlecnins : 68,658 - T 1.36%
All current directors and executive o -

officers as a group (15 people} ..c.onvennen. 1,470,359 25.90%

(1)  Except as otherwise noted, and to the best of our knowledge, the individuals named and included in the group exercise sole
voting and investment power with respect to all listed shares. Individuals named and included in the group have shared
voting and investment power with respect to certain of the listed shares as follows: Mr. Beason - 7,952 shares; Mr. Burton -
30,493 shares; Ms. Denny - 4,707 shares; Ms. Dopko - 195 shares; Mr. Foster - 5,42§ shares; Mr. Gibson - 52,631 shares;
Mr. McManus - 19,531 shares; Mr. Phillips - 109,678 shares; Mr. Schnyder - 4,305; Ms. Schroader - 21,875 shares; and all
persons included in the group - 256,944 shares. The listed shares include the following numbers of shares that could be
purchased pursuant 1o stock options granted under our stock option plans that could be exercised within 60 days following
the Record Date and with respect to which shares the individuals named and included in the group may be considered to
exercise sole investment power only: Mr. Beason, Ms. Denny, Mr. Gibson, and Mr. Rees - 37,108 shares each; Mr. Burton,
Mr, Faster, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Mr. McManus, Mr. Phillips, Mr. Schnyder, Ms. Schroader, and Mr. Sheiry - 55,858 shares cach;
Ms. Dopko - 13,086 shares; Mr. Smith - 50,237 shares; all individuals included in the group - 680,884 shares, Shares listed
for certain of the named individuals have been pledged as security for loans as follows: Mr. Kirkpatrick - 35.227 shares; and
Mr. McManus — 98,290 shares. .

(2) Percentages are catculated based on 4,997,027 total outstanding shares plus, in the case of cach named individual and the
group, the number of additional shares that could be purchased by that individual or by persons included in the group
pursuant to stock options that could be exercised within 60 days following the Record Date.

Section 16(a2) Beneficizl Ownership Repm:ling Compliance

In 2007, our directors and exccutive ofﬁcérs were required by federal law to file reports with the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation regarding the amounts of and changes in their beneficial ownership
of our common stock. Based on our review of copies of those reports, we are required to disclose in our
proxy statements failures to report shares beneficially owned or changes in beneficial ownership, and
failures to timely file fequired reports, during previous years. We currently are not aware of any required
reports which were not filed, or which were filed late, during 2007. ) '

PROPOSAL 2: APPROVAL OF CHARTER AMENDMENT TO
AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF A NEw CLASS OF STOCK

General

A proposal will be submitted to shareholders at the Annual Meeting to approve an amendment (the
"Proposed Amendment") to our Articles of Incorporation ("Charter”) to authorize a new class of capital
stock. Section 2 of our Charter currently provides that our authorized capital stock consists of 20,000,000
shares of common stock, all of one class and having a par value of $5.00 per share. The Proposcd
Amendment would amend Section 2 so that it also authorizes us to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of Class B
Stock as an additional class of capital stock. Our Board of Directors would be authorized to issue shares of
Class B Stock from time to time, to create separate series of shares within the new class, and to determine
the number of shares, designations, terms, relative rights, preferences and limitations of the Class B Stock,
or of shares within each series of Class B Stock, at the time of issuance, all by its resolution and without
further shareholder approval. ' .

A copy of the Proposed Amendment, which includes the text of Section 2 of our Charter as it is
proposed to be amended, is attached as Appendix A to this proxy statement. [f the proposal is approved by
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our shareholders, our Board of Directors would retain the authority to make any and all changes to the
Proposed Amendment it deemed necessary to give it effect and cause the North Carolina Secretary of State
to accept it for filing.

Effect of the Proposed Amendment

The Proposed Amendment would:

L Authorize us to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of the new Class B Stock;-and

® As permitted by the North Carolina General Statutes, authorize our Board of Directors to issue
shares of the newly authorized Class B Stock from time to time in the future, to create separate
series of Class B Stock within the new class, and to determine the number of shares, designations,
terms, relative rights, preferences and limitations of the Class B Stock, or of shares within each
series of Class B Stock, at the time of issuance, all by its resolution and without any further
approval of our shareholders.

If our shareholders approve the Proposed Amendment, then, to establish any series of shares within
the new class of Class B Stock, the Board of Directors would approve and file a further amendment to our
charter (which it could do without further shareholder approval) that would specify the designation of that
series and the number, terms, relative rights, preferences and limitations of shares within that series.

Reasons for the Proposed Amendment

As we have grown, our capital ratios have decreased, and continued growth will further reduce our
ratios. Our Board of Directors believes that, to continue to maintain our capital ratios at desired levels, at
some point in the future we probably will need to further increase our capital.

There are various actions we could take to increase our capital. Issuing and selling new shares of
common stock is one method of increasing capital. Other methods of increasing capital that bank holding
companies frequently use and that currently are available to us include sales of trust preferred securities, or,
to a limited extent, the issuance of subordinated debt. However, recent unfavorable conditions in the
capital markets generally have made it more difficult for all financial institutions to increase their capital
through sales of common stock and trust preferred securities, and the issuance of subordinated debt would
not be as effective a methed of increasing capital as the issuance of new equity securities. Having the
authority to issue and sell Class B Stock, in addition to common stock, debt securities, and trust preferred
securities, would give our Board of Directors an additional option and, as discussed below, more flexibility
in tailoring the terms of the equity securities we can issue to meet specific market conditions or financing
Or acquisition opportunitics.

if the Proposed Amendment is approved, then, in general, any shares of Class B Stock we issue
likely would have certain preferences over, or other special terms that differed from, outstanding shares of
our common stock. Among other things, those special terms might include:

[ The night to receive dividends (which may be cumulative or noncumulative) at a stated rate before
any dividend could be paid on our common stock;

[ ) The right to receive a stated distribution upon any liquidation of our Company before any
distribution could be made to holders of our common stock;

® If they are voting shares, special voting rights, including rights to vote as a separate group or class
in matters submitted for a vote of our sharcholders; ‘

® Terms providing for the conversion of shares of Class B Stock into shares of our common stock,
either automatically or at the option of the holders of the stock, at specified rates; and

® Terms providing for the redemption of the shares, either at our option or at the option of holders of

the shares or both, or upon the happening of a specified cvent, and, if the shares are redeemable,
the redemption prices and the conditions and times upon which redemption may take place.
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Substantiaily all of the proceeds of any such sale of Class B Stock likely would be used 1o infuse
additional capital into the Bank to support its continued growth in earning assets and deposits.” Portions of
the net proceeds also might be used by us or the Bank for other general corporate purposes, including:
financing new branches and/or lending offices, or other capital improvements; acquiring other financial
institutions or their assets and related liabilities, including branch offices; creating or acquiring non-bank
providers of financial or other services; and continuing 10 expand and/of upgrade the Bank’s products, -
systems, and operations.

Issuing any shares of Class B Stock could dilute the relative percentage equity interests of the
current holders of our common stock. Our then current shareholders would not have preemptive rights to
acquire any additional shares of capital stock we issue, and they would have no right to purchase a
proportionate share, or any portion, of any shares of Class B Stock issued.

If the Proposed Amendment is approved by our shareholders at the Annual Meeting, shares of
Class B Stock could be issued in the future from time to time, in one or more series, in a variety of types of
transactions including, without limitation, ‘public offerings or private sales of shares to increase our capital,
or as consideration for acquisitions. The shares issued in each separate transaction could all be of one
series, or our Board of Directors could establish a separate series of shares for each separate transaction.
Our Board would be authorized to establish different series of Class B Stock from time to time, and to issue
shares from those series, without any further sharcholder approval. At the time each series is established,
the Board would determine the number of shares in that series and the terms, and relative rights, including
any preferences or limitations, of shares within that series. The terms and relative rights of shares included
in each separate series of Class B Stock could differ materially. The Board would have broad discretion
with respect to designating and establishing the number, terms, and relative rights, regarding any
preferences, or limitations, of our Class B Stock and of each separate series of Class B Stock. The
Proposed Amendment itself, which is included as Appendix A to this Proxy Statement, contains a list of
the types of terms and preferences that the Board of Directors would have the authority to determine.
You should read the Proposed Amendment carefully before you decide how to vote at the Annual
Meeting.

Our Board of Directors believes that we will benefit from the Proposed Amendment by having the
flexibility in our capital structure to issue more than one type of capital stock having different terms and
relative rights. The Board believes that it is in our best interests to allow the Board the flexibility to tailor
the specific terms of each series of Class B Stock issued in the future to meet specific market conditions, or
the facts and circumstances of specific financing or acquisition opportunities, without the expense, delay,
and uncertainty that would result if a meeting of our shareholders was required to be held to approve each
issuance of Class B Stock or the terms of each specific series of Class B Stock. The Proposed Amendment
would give our Board of Directors the maximum amount of flexibility in designing and issuing Class B
Stock in the future. : :

Anti-takeover Effects

The purpose of the Proposed Amendment is to provide our Board of Directors with an additional
option for increasing our capital, not to establish any barriers to a change of control or acquisition of our
company. However, the Board's authority to issue shares of Class B Stock, to establish one or more series
of Class B Stock, and to determine the terms and preferences of each series of Preferred Stock, could be
used for that purpose or have that effect. For example, the issuance to a group that is friendly to our
management of shares of a series of Class B Stock having group or other special voting rights, or certain
other preferential terms, could give that group effective control over the election of our directors and could
deter or discourage efforts by another group or company to acquire contro) of our company, even if our
other shareholders favored a change of control. Our Board is not aware of any current proposal or effort 10
acquire control of our company.
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Effectiveness of the Proposed Amendment

[f our shareholders approve the Proposed Amendment, we will file Articles of Amendment with the
North Carolina Secretary of State as soon as practicable following the Annual Meeting. The Proposed’

Amendment would become effective at the time those Articles are filed.
, .

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vete "FOR" Proposal 2.
To be approved, the number of votes cast in person and by proxy at the Annual Meeting
in favor of the proposal must exceed the number of votes cast against it.

PROPOSAL 3: APPROVAL OF 2008 OMNIBUS EQUITY PLAN
General

At its April 28, 2008, meeting, based on the recommendation of the Corporate Governance
Committee, our Board of Directors adopted the 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan, subject to shareholder
approval. We are submitting the proposal to approve the Plan for your consideration and vote at the
Annual Meeting because doing so is consistent with our historical practices and with principles of good
corporate governance. Also, shareholder approval is required for tax-advantaged treatment of incentive
stock options granted to employees and for the performance-based compensation exemption from
compensation deduction limitations on awards to certain executive officers. (See "Federal Income Tax
Consequences — Tax Consequences of 1S0s" and "— Code Section 162(m)" below). .

The goal of the 2008 Omaibus Equity Plan is to promote our long-term financial success and to.
increase shareholder value. In contrast to our existing stock option plans, which provide solely for stock
option awards, the Plan gives us authority to make awards of stock options, stock appreciation nghts, .
restricted stock, and performance share awards. Awards may be made to our employees and to employees
of our subsidiaries, including the Bank. Awards of stock options and restricted stock also may be made to
directors who are not employees of the company or its subsidiaries. The Plan is designed to enhance our
ability to attract and retain the services of employees and directors upon whose judgment, skill, and efforts
our success depends. The vanety of awards that may be made gives us flexibility to respond to changes in
equity compensation practices in the market for banking talent in which we compete.

The Plan contains provisions we believe are consistent with the interests of shareholders and
principles of good-corporate governance. For example, stock options and stock appreciation rights must
have an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair market value of 1st Financial common stock on the
date the award is made. Similarly, the plan prohibits repricing of stock options and stock appreciation
rights without shareholder approval. For example, if the fair market value of Ist Financial stock
experienced a sustained decline to a price less than the exercise price of a stock option, we could not adjust
the exercise price of the option to compensate for loss of the option's value without shareholder approval.

If shareholders approve the Plan, the total number of our shares of common stock available for
grant under the Plan, plus the number of shares that could ‘be acquired by exercising stock options
previously granted under the Director Stock Option Plan and the Employee Stock Option Plan will exceed
20% of our outstanding shares of common stock. We recognize that we already have granted options under
which the number of shares that could be acquired will be approximately 19% of our outstanding shares of
common stock, and that this already exceeds the average for peer banking organizations in our market,
which is closer to the 14% to 15% range. We also recognize that award of stock options, restricted stock,
and similar awards are dilutive to existing shareholders. However, we believe the benefits we expectto *
receive from the Plan will offset this disadvantage to our shareholders.

The Board believes that our management has been underpaid since 2004 and remains underpatd
today, particularly if the Bank's rapid growth in total assets and earnings is taken into account. The Board
believes management fulfilled its promise at the bank’s inception to achieve above-average financial results
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despite below-average compensation, and that it is appropriate now to finalize the non-salary components
of executive compensation both to reward management for above-average performance and to create equity
incentives that will promote above-average performance in the future. The Plan is an important part of that
total compensation package.

We do not expect to continue the practice of granting quickly vested equity awards or accelerating
vesting. We expect instead that awards under the Plan, which are as likely to consist of restricted stock
awards as they are to consist of stock option grants, will be made at a rate that will not exhaust in the early
years of the Plan all shares available for grant and will be made on terms providing for vesting over time.
However, the board has not established a fixed annual award limit. -

Under the existing stock option plans, the Bank granted stock options to directors and some
employees in 2004 without lengthy time-based vesting requirements to reward employecs and directors
who took risks associated with the creation of the Bank. Grants to four of the Bank's executive officers had
three-year vesting periods, but these vesting periods were accelerated in 2005 because 2005 was the last
year in which option expense was not required to be recognized by us for stock option grants and vesting.
The requirement under SFAS 123(R) that an expense be recognized for stock options became effective in
2006 for the bank. Like many organizations that amended stock options to accelerate vesting to avoid
compensation expense for 2006 and thereafter, we took advantage in 2005 of that final opportunity to avoid
compensation expense. The circumstances of 2005 were unique and will not recur under existing
accounting principles. Option awards and restricted stock awards under the Plan will require that we
recognize compensation expense, recognized in its entirety at grant if the award is not subject to time-based
vesting or recognized over time if it is. The Board's and Compensation Committee's decisions about Plan
awards will therefore take into account the associated accounting expense, and for that reason we expect
that awards will be made at a slower rate and with a time-based vesting feature that is consistent with
average award rates and award terms of peer group organizations in our market. In addition, we expect that
restricted stock awards ordinarily will require payment of no consideration by the award recipient, in
contrast to stock option awards, and that as a consequence a restricted stock award for a given number of
shares will provide an equivalent financial benefit to a stock option award that represents the right to
acquire a significantly larger number of shares. Because we expect a sizeable percentage of Plan awards
will consist of restricted stock grants, we expect that the total shares available for Plan awards will be
exhausted more stowly under the Plan than under the existing Employee Stock Option Plan, which did not
allow restricted stock grants,

Although we cannot determine the awards that may be granted in the future to directors and/or
executive officers of our company and/or the Bank, each of those directors and executive officers, and
other employees of the Bank, has an interest in the approval of the Plan as they will be eligible to receive
awards under the Plan if it is approved. . ' .

The principal features of the Plan are summarized below, but a copy of the Plan is included as
Appendix B. We encourage you to read the Plan in its entirety. References in this summary to the Code
mean the Intermnal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote "FOR" Proposal 3.
To be approved, the number of votes cast in person and by proxy at the Annual Meeting

in favor of the proposal must exceed the number of votes cast againsi it.
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Authorized Shares

The Plan authorizes the issuance of 288,292 shares of our common stock. That number amounts to
approximately 5.8% of our total outstanding shares, and it includes 250,000 new shares being authorized
for issuance (approximately 5% of our outstanding shares), plus 38,292 shares that remain available for
stock option grants under the Mountain 1* Bank & Trust Company Employee Stock Option Plan that we
assumed in the recent holding company reorganization. If shareholders approve the new Plan, no
additional awards will be made under the Employee Stock Option Plan. Previously granted options for an
aggregate of 461,254 shares are outstanding under that plan and may be exercised in the future. Shares of
our common stock issued under the Plan may consist in whole or in part of shares we acquire or of
authorized and unissued shares not reserved for any other purpose. 1f an award made under the Plan is later
forfeited, terminated, exchanged, or otherwise settled without the issuance of shares or payment of cash, the
shares associated with that award may again become available for future grants. :

Awards
Awards to Employees. Awards to employees under the Plan may take the form of:

Incentive stock options that qualify for favored tax treatment under Code section 422;
Stock options that do not qualify under Code section 422; :

Stock appreciation rights;

Restricted stock:-and

Performance shares.

Each of those au_.'ards is described in more detail below.

Awards to Non-Employee Directors. Non-employee directors are ellglblc only for awards of non-
qualified stock options and restricted stock.

Award Agreements. The terms of each award will be described in an award agreement between us
and the person 1o whom the award is granted. By accepting an award, the person to whom the award is
granted agrees to be bound by the terms of the Plan and the award agreement. 1f there is a conflict between
the terms of the Plan and the terms of the associated award agreement, the terms of the Plan will govern.

Plan Administration

A committee of our board of directors called the Plan Committee will administer the plan. The
Plan Committee must consist of at least three individuals, each of whom must be;

® An outside director within the meaning of Code section 162(m), receiving no compensation
from us or from a related entity in any capacity other than as a dlrector except as permitted
by the Code;
® A non-employee director within the meaning of the Securities and Exchange Commission's
. Rule 16b-3; and
®  Anindependent dlrcctor within the meaning of Nasdaq's Markelplacc Rules, specifically

Rule 4200(a)(15).

The Board of Directors has designated its Corporate Governance Committee, which functions as the
Board's Compensation Committee, to serve as the Plan Commiitee. The Board believes each of the
individual members of that committee satisfies these independence requirements. The Plan Committee has
final authority to make awards to employees and establish award terms. The amount and terms of equity
awards to non-employee directors, however, must be established by the entire board of directors.
Accordingly, when the term Plan Committee is used in reference to grants to non-employee directors, the
term means the entire board of directors.
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The Plan Committee’s authority includes the power to:

Construe and interpret the Plan;

Adopt, amend, and rescind rules and regulations relating to Plan administration;
Determine the types of awards made to employees,

Designate the employees to whom awards will be made;

Specify the terms and conditions of each award, including the procedures for exercising an
award; and

® Administer any performance-based awards, including determining whether applicable
performance objectives have been satisfied.

Under Section 14.5 of the Plan, our directors are entitled to indemnification by us for liabilities arising
under the Plan.

Award Eligibility

The Plan Committee may make awards to any employee of our company or any of our subsidiaries.
We currently have no employees of our own, but there currently are approximately 138 full-time
employees of the Bank who wiil be eligible for an award, including our and the Bank's officers. We and
the Bank currently have eight non-employee directors who will be eligible for awards. The Plan
Committee has the discretion to select participants and determine the type and size of awards; our entire
Board functions as the Plan Committee in making decisions about awards to non-employee directors. No
awards have been made under the Plan. No discretionary awards to employees or directors are currently
determinable.

Award Limits

Of the shares authorized for issuance under the Plan, up to 50,000 may be reserved for issuance
under incentive stock options. The aggregate number of shares underlying awards granted to an individual
participant in a single year may not exceed 15% of the aggregate amount authorized to be issued under the
Plan (43,244 shares).

Adjustments

If a corporate transaction such as a stock dividend, stock split, recapitalization, merger, or similar
corporate change affects our outstanding shares of common stock, the Plan Committee will make
adjustments to prevent dilution or enlargement of benefits provided under the Plan, including adjustment of
the number of shares authorized under the Plan, adjustment of award limits, and adjustments of the terms of
outstanding awards.

Description of Awards

Options. An option is the right to acquire shares of our common stock during a stated period at a
specified exercise price. An option may be an incentive stock option, or "1S0," qualifying for favored tax
treatment under Code section 422. [SOs may be granted to employees only. Any option that is not an 1SO
is known as a non-qualified stock option, or "NQSO." An NQSO may be granted to employees or to non-
employee directors.

The exercise price of an option is determined by the Plan Committee. However, an option's
exercise price may not be less than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date the
option is granted. For this purpose fair market value is determined according to the following rules:

®  If our common stock is traded on an exchange or on an automated quotation system giving
closing prices, fair market value means the reported closing price on the relevant date if it is
a trading day and otherwise on the next trading day; or
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° if our common stock is traded over-the-counter with no reported closing price, fair market
value is the mean between the highest bid and the lowest asked prices on that quotation
system on the relevant date if it is a trading day and otherwise on the next trading day; or

® . [fneither of the above circumstances exists, fair market value is determined by the Plan
Committee in good faith and, for [SOs, consistent with Code section 422 and, for NQSOs,
consistent with Code section 409A and other applicable tax authority.

Our common slock is currently traded over-the-counter on the OTC Bulletin Board. The closing
price of the stock on June 27, 2008 was $9.30. :

The Plan Committee will establish the term of each option, but the term of an 1SO or an NQSO
granted to a non-ecmployee director may not exceed ten years. The Plan Committee may, however, grant an
NQSO with a term longer than ten years to an employee. The exercise price of an option must be paid in a
form allowed by the Plan Committee, which may allow payment in cash or a cash equivalent, actual or
constructive surrender of unrestricted shares of our common stock, or a combination of these payment
methods. The Plan Committee also may allow a cashless stock option exercise. A cashless stock option
exercise can take a varicty of forms, but in essence it allows the participant to exercise the stock option and
pay for the shares by having us issue to the participant a net number of shares equal to the difference
between the value of the entire option and the exercise price.

The aggregate fair market value of our common stock for which a participant’s ISOs are
exercisable for the first time in any calendar year under all of our stock option plans may not exceed
$100,000, determined as of the date the option is granted. The exercise price of an ISO granted to any
employee who owns stock possessing more than 10% of the voting power of our outstanding stock:may not
be less than 110% of the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant. The term of an
ISO may not exceed five years if the employee owns stock possessing more than 10% of the voting power
of our outstanding stock.

Stock Appreciation Rights. A stock appreciation right, or "SAR," is the right to receive cash equal
to the difference between the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date the SAR is
exercised the SAR's exercise price stated in the award. The exercise price of a SAR may not be less than
the fair market value of our common stock on the date the SAR is granted. A SAR ordinarily yields the
same value on the date of exercise as a stock option, although SARs ordinarily are more likely to be settied
in cash rather than stock and the exercise of a SAR does not require payment by the award recipient. As an
alternative to cash settlement of a SAR, the award agreement may permit or require a participant to receive
common stock having an aggregate fair market value on the exercise date equal to the amount of cash the
participant would have received had the SAR been exercised for cash instead.of stock, with any fractional
share settled in cash. : SR .-

In contrast to the typical stock option, the expense of SARs is accounted for using liability
accounting if the SAR can be settled in cash. The accounting expense of a typical stock option is fixed at
the date of grant by an estimate of the option’s value on that date. The expense associated with a SAR that
may be settled in cash will vary with time as the value of the SAR varies, depending on changes in the
stock's value during the life of the SAR.

Restricted Stock. A restricted stock award is an award of common stock subject forfeiture if
conditions specified in the award agreement are nol satisfied by the end of a specified restriction period.
During the restriction period established by the Plan Committee, restricted stock is held in escrow and may
not be sold, transferred, or hypothecated. Restricted stock vests when the conditions to vesting stated in the
award agreement are satisfied, and at that time the transfer restrictions and risk of forfeiture lapse and the
shares are released to the participant. If the vesting conditions are not satisfied, restricted stock is forfeited
and the forfeited shares again become available under the Plan for future awards. Unless an award
agreement for restricted stock specifies otherwise, a participant who holds restricted stock has the right to
receive dividends or other distributions on the shares and the right to vote the shares during the restriction
period. But dividends or other distributions payable in the form of stock, such as stock splits, would
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themselves be considered shares of restricted stock and would be subject to the same restrictions and
conditions as the original restricted stock award.

If restricted stock awards are made, they most likely will be made at no cost to the participant.
However, the Plan Committee could make an award conditional upon the participant paying a purchase
price for the shares of restricted stock, in addition to other conditions it could impose. Although the Plan
places no limitations on the conditions that may be imposed on restricted stock awards, we expect the
typical condition imposed would be employment with the Bank for a specified period.

Performance Shares. Performance shares are similar to restricted stock awards in some ways but
are differ significantly in others. Like a restricted stock award, a performance share award fully vests if
conditions imposed in the award agreement are satisfied by the end of the specified period. Performance
awards, however, ordinarily vest if and only if corporate goals or individual performance goals, or both,
specified in the award agreement are satisfied by the end of the specified performance period. In contrast,
although restricted stock awards could be subject to performance conditions, restricted stock awards
ordinarily vest if the award recipient remains employed with the company for a specified time. Also,
restricted stock awards tend to be more uniform from one grant to the next and from one award recipient to
the next, while the terms of performance share awards tend to vary quite widely. Terms having to do with
such things as performance criteria and the duration of the period in which performance is measured need
not be uniform and are likely to be influenced by the particular award recipiént's responsibilities, by
corporate goals and operating results, and by other factors. Restricted stock may be awarded to non-
employee directors, but performance shares may be awarded solely to employees.

Virtually every term of performance share awards can be customized for individual award
recipients. Performance criteria specified in awards usually will include a combination of some or all of
these factors:

s net eamnings or net income {before or » productivity ratios
after taxes)

e eamings per share e customer satisfaction

¢ deposit or asset growth e expense tanl'gcls

e et operating income o credit quality

e return on assets and return on equity o efficiency ratio

o feeincome ‘ e market share

e carnings before or after taxes, interest, s share price (including but not limited to growth
depreciation and/or amortization measures and total shareholder return)

¢ interest spread e net income after cost of capital

If the Plan Committee makes performance share awards, it will establish the performance criteria,
select the participants or class of participants to whom the performance criteria apply, and designate the
period over which performance will be measured. Unless the associated award agreement specifies
otherwise, a participant may not exercise voting rights over shares subject to a performance award. But
shares subject to a performance award generally will be credited with an allocable portion of dividends and
other distributions paid on common stock. Dividends and other distributions allocable to unvested
performance shares will be held by us as escrow agent during the period in which satisfaction of the
performance criteria is determined, without interest crediting or other accruals while held in escrow. If
dividends or other distributions are paid in the form of shares of common stock, such as a stock split, those
shares would themselves be considered performance shares and would be subject to the same conditions
and restrictions as the original performance share award.
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The Plan Committec will make appropriate adjustments 1o performance criteria to account for the
impact of a stock dividend or stock split affecting the common stock or a recapitalization, merger,
consolidation, combination, spin-off, distribution of assets to sharcholders, exchange of shares, or similar
corporate change. Unless otherwise provided in the plan or an employee participant’s award agreement, at
the end of the period in which satisfaction of the performance criteria is determined, the Plan Committee
will certify that the employee has or has not satisfied the performance criteria: The shares will be forfeited
if the performance criteria are not satisfied, or issued to the employee participant if the performance criteria
are satisfied.

Effect of Termination of Service on Awards

Unless the award agreement provides otherwise, when a participant's employment or director
service terminates the participant forfeits any portion of any award that is not exercisable, and also forfeits
any NQSOQs, SARs, and ISOs that are exercisable if the participant does not exercise the award before the
earlier of the expiration date specified in the award agreement or 90 days after termination occurs.
However, all of a participant’s outstanding awards are forfeited if the participant's employment or director
service terminates for "cause” or if in our judgment a basis for termination for cause exists, regardless of
whether the awards are exercisable and regardless of whether the participant's employment or director
service actually terminates. Defined in section 10.1(b) of the Plan, the term “cause” includes a violation of
our or the Bank's code of ethics. However, shares of restricted stock or performance shares that have been
released from escrow and distributed to the participant are not affected by a termination for cause.

Effect of a Change in Control
[f a change in control of our company occurs, the Plan Committee has broad authonty and sole

discretion to take actions it deems appropriate to preserve the value of participants' awards. If a change in
control occurs, the Plan Committee may, for example:

® Accclerate the exercisability or vesting of any or alt awards, despite any limitations stated
in the Plan or in an award agreement; or
o Cancel any or all outstanding options, SARs, restricted stock, and performance share

awards in exchange for the kind and amount of consideration that the holder of the award
would have received had the award been converted into our stock before the change in
control (less the exercise price of the award); or

® Convert any or all option, SAR, restricted stock, or performance share awards into the
right to receive at exercise or vesting the kind and amount of consideration that the holder
of the award would have received had the award been converted into our stock before the
change in control (less the exercise price of the award).

The Plan Committee may provide for these results in advance in an award agreement, when a
change in control actually occurs, or both. Alternatively, the Plan Committee may require the acquiring
company in a change in control to take any of these actions.

Events that would constitute a change in control are defined in section, l l | of the Plan, but the
Plan definition of change of control also includes any definition in another agreement to which a participant
may be a party, such as an employment agreement, or the competing definition contained in Code section
409A if that provision of the Federal tax code is deemed to apply to the participant's award. In general, a
change in control means one or more of the following cvents: '

® A change in the composition of our board of directors, after which the incumbent members
of the board on the effective date of the Plan, including their successors whose election or
nomination was approved by those incumbent directors and their successors no longer '
represent a majority of the board; or .-
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® A person (other than persons such as subsidiaries or benefit plans) becomes a beneficial
owner of our securities representing 25% or more of the combined voting power of all
securities eligible to vote for the election of directors, excepting business combinations after
which our shareholders own more than 50% of the resulting company and excepting stock
issuances approved by incumbent directors and their successors; or .

® A merger, consolidation, share exchange, or similar form of business combination requiring
approval of our sharcholders, excepting business combinations after which our sharcholders
own more than 50% of the resulting company; or

®  OQur shareholders approve a plan of complete llquldanon or dissolution or sale of all or

- substantially all of our assets. . -

Amendment, Modlﬁcauon and Termination of the Plan

The Plan was adOpIed by our Board of Directors at its meeting on April 28, 2008, but wili not.,
become effective unless it is also approved by shareholders. If approved, the Plan will remain in effect
until the tenth anniversary of the date the plan was approved by the Board.

We may terminate, suspend, or amend the plan at any time without shareholder approval, unless
shareholder approval is necessary to satisfy applicable requirements of SEC Rule 16b-3, the Code, or any
securities exchange, market, or other quotation system on which our securities are listed or traded. But no
amendment of the plan may (x) result in the loss of a Plan Committee member’s status as a non-employee
director as defined in SEC Rule 16b-3, (y) cause the plan to fail to satisfy the requirements of Rule 16b-3,
or (z) adversely affect outstanding awards. However, we may amend the plan as necessary to comply with
Code section 409A even if the amendment does adversely affect participants’ rights.

Transfers

Awards generally are not transferable except as specified in the Plan. During a participant's
lifetime, awards are exercisable solely by the participant or the participant's guardian or legal
representative. Plan awards may be transferred by will and by the laws of descent and distribution.

Accounting for Share-Based Payments

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) published FASB Statement
No. 123 (revised): Share Based Payment, or "SFAS 123 (R)". SFAS 123 (R) requires that compensation
cost relating 1o share-based payment transactions, including grants of stock options, be recognized as an
expense in financial statements. For this purpose cost is measured based on the fair value of the equity
instrument issued, according to any option-pricing model satisfying the fair value objective of
SFAS 123 (R). . S

U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following discussion briefly summarizes the U.S. federal income and employment tax
consequences relating to the Plan. This summary is based on existing provisions of the Code, final,
temporary, and proposed Treasury Regulations under the Code, existing judicial decisions, and current
administrative rulings and practice, all of which are subject to'change, including possible retroactive
change. Included for general informational purposes only, this summary is not a complete description of
the applicable U.S. federal income or employment tax laws and it does not address state or local tax -
consequences and other tax consequences.

Generally, we will withhold from distributions under the plan the amount of cash or shares we
determine is necessary to satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations. Alternatively, we may require
participants to pay to us the amount necessary to satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations.

L]
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Tax Consequences of ISOs. 1SOs qualify for special treatment under Code section 422. A
participant recognizes no income when an 1SO is granted or exercised and we are entitled to no
compensation deduction at either of those times. Also, 1SOs are not subject to employment taxes. Ifa
participant acquires our common stock by exercising an ISO and continues to hold that stock for one year
or, if longer, until the second anniversary of the grant date, the amount the participant receives when he or
she finally disposes of the stock, minus the exercise, price is taxed at long-term capital gain or loss rates.
Disposal afier this period is referred to as a "qualifying disposition.” We are entitled to no deduction for a
qualifying disposition. : .

If a participant disposes of the common stock within one year after exercising the ISO or within
two years after the grant date, this is referred to as a disqualifying disposition. When a disqualifying
disposition occurs, the participant recognizes ordinary income equal to the excess of (x) the fair market
value of the stock on the date the ISO is exercised, or the amount received on the disposition if less, over
(y) the exercise price. We are entitled to a deduction equal to the income that the participant recognizes on
the disqualifying disposition. The participant's additional gain is taxed at long-term or short-term capital
gain rates, depending on whether the participant held the common stock for more than one year.

The rules that generally apply to ISOs do not apply when calculating any alternative minimum tax
liability. When an ISQO is exercised a participant must treat the excess, if any, of the fair market value of
the stock on the date of exercise over the exercise price as a tax preference item for purposes of the
alternative minimum tax. The rules affecting the application of the alternative minimum tax are complex
and their effect depends on individual circumstances, including whether a pammpant has tax preference
items other than those derived from 1SOs,

Tax Consequences of NQSOs. NQSOs are not entitled to the special tax treatment granted to
ISOs. Nevertheless, a participant recognizes no income when an NQSO is granted and we are entitled to
no compensation deduction at that time. Unlike an ISO, when an NQSO is exercised the participant
recognizes ordinary income equal to the excess of the stock’s fair market value on the date of exercise over
the exercise price. Also unlike an ISO, this same amount is subject to employment taxes, including social
security and Medicare taxes. If a participant uses common stock or a combination of common stock and
cash 10 pay the exercise price of an NQSO, he or she will have ordinary income equal to the value of the
excess of the number of shares of common stock that the participant purchases over the number he or she
surrenders, less any cash the participant uses to pay the exercise price. This same amount is subject to
employment taxes, including social security and Medicare taxes. When an NQSO is exercised, we are
entitled to a deduction equal to the ordinary income that the participant recognizes.

A participant's cost, also known as "basis,” for shares acquired by exercising an NQSO generally is
the fair market value of the stock on the date the NQSO is exercised, recognizing that the participant is
taxed at ordinary income rates at that time. And when the participant finally disposes of stock acquired by
exercising an NQSO, the participant will have a long-term capital gain or loss or a short-term capital gain
or loss, depending on whether the participant held the stock after option exercise for more than one year
and whether the sale price exceeds the participant's cost basis.

Tax Consequences of SARs. A participant recognizes no income when an SAR is granted, and we
are entitled to no compensation deduction at that time. But when an SAR is exercised, the participant
recognizes ordinary income equal to the cash received upon exercise, or the fair market value of the stock
reccived at exercise if the SAR is settled with stock. We are entitled to a compensation deduction equat to
the ordinary income the participant recognizes. Also, the same amount is subject to employment taxes,
including social security and Medicare taxes. If the SAR is settled with stock, the participant will have a
long-term or short-term capital gain or loss when he or she finally disposes of the stock, depending on
whether the participant held the stock for more than one year after the SAR was exercised and depending of
course on the price at which the stock is sold.

Tax Consequences of Restricted Stock. Unless a participant makes an election under Code section
83(b) to recognize taxable income, a participant generally does not recognize taxable income when
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restricted stock is granted, and we are'not entitled to a compensation deduction at that time. instead, a
participant usually recognizes ordinary income when the shares of restricted stock vest, meaning when the
shares are no longer subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. The income.recognized at that time is equal
to the fair market value of the stock the participant receives when the restrictions lapse, less any
consideration paid for the restricted stock. - We gencrally are entitled to a deduction equal to the income that
the participant recognizes. Also, the same amount is subject to employment taxes, including social security
and Medicare taxes. When a participant finally disposes of restricted stock that has become vested, the
participant will have a long-term or short-term capital gain or loss, depending on whether the participant
held the shares for more than one year after the restricted stock vested and depending on the sale price.

If a participant does make an election under Code section 83(b), the participant recognizes ordinary
income on the grant date equal to the fair market value of the shares of restricted stock on the grant date,
and we are entitled to a.deduction equal to the income that the participant recognizes at that time. .Also, the
same amount is subjectto employment taxes, including social security and Medicare taxes: However, the
participant recognizes no income when-the restrictions finally lapse. If a participant becomes vested in the
shares, any appreciation between the grant date and the date the participant disposes of the shares is.treated
as a long-term or short-term capital gain or loss, depending on whether he or she held the shares for.-more
than one year after the grant date and depending on the sale price. A participant cannot take a tax .
deduction for any forfeiture.

Tax Conseguences of Performance Shares. A participant recognizes no taxable income when he
or she receives a performance share award, and we are entitled to no compensation deduction at that time.
However, when a participant satisfies the conditions imposed on the award he or she must recognize
ordinary income equal.to the cash or the fair market value of the common stock he or she receives, and we
generally are entitled to a compensation deduction equal to the income that the participant recognizes Also,
the same amount is subject to employment taxes, including social security and Medicare taxes. The
participant will theréafter have a long-term or short-term capital gain or loss when he or she finally
disposes of the common stock acquired in setttement of the performance share award, depending on
whether the pamc1pant held the shares for more than one year after they were issued and depending of
course on the price at which the shates are sold. -

1 ' . . +, .
Code Section 162(m). Code section 162(m) imposes an annual $1,000,000 limit on the tax
deduction allowable for compensation paid to the chief executive officer and to the three other highest-paid
executives, other than the Chief Financial-Officer, of a company whose equity securities are required to be
registered under section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, with an exception for "performance-
based” compensation. To qualify as performance-based compensation, awards must be made by a
committee consisting solely of two or more outside directors, must be disclosed to and approved in advance
by the company's sharcholders after disclosure.of the material terms of the performance-based ..
compensation, and subject to certification by the committee on satisfaction of performance standards. For
granis other than options and SARs to qualify as performance-based compensation, the granting, issuance,
vesting, or retention of the grant must be contingent upon satisfying one or more performance criteria.
Stock options and SARs may be.treated as performance-based compensation if the exercise price is at jeast
equal to the fair market value of the stock on the grant date and if the plan states the maximum number of
shares acquirable under options or SARs granied to any one individual in any.single year. We expect that
stock options as well as awards with a performance component generally will satisfy the requirements for
performance-based compensation under section 162(m), but the Plan Committee will have authority to
grant awards, including restricted stock awards, that are not performance-based.

Performance share awards may be made in a manner that qualifies as performance-based
compensation under Code section 162(m) in the case of awards to our Chief Executive Officer and to the
three most highly compensated executives other than the Chief Financial Officer. To ensure compliance
with section 162(m), (x) the applicable performance criteria for performance-based compensation such as
performance share awards must be established in the associated award agreement as soon as
administratively practicable, but no later than the earlier of 90 days aficr the beginning of the applicable
performance period and the expiration of 25% of the applicable performance period, and (y) vesting must
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be contingent on satisfaction of the performance criteria outlined in this proxy statement's discussion of
performance share awards. The Plan Committee may make appropriate adjustments to performance criteria
to reflect a substantive change in an employee's job description or assigned duties and responsibilities.
Vesting of performance share awards made to other employees need not comply with the requirements of
Code section 162(m), but nevertheless we expect that performance share awards to those other employees
will be based on similar pcrformance criteria.

Code Sections 280G and 4999. Code sections 280G and 4999 impose penalties on persons who
pay and persons who receive excess "parachute payments." A parachute payment is the value of any
amount that is paid to company officers on account of a change in control. If total parachute payments
from all sources, including but not limited to stock-based compensation plans, equal or exceed three times
an officer's "base amount,” meaning his or her five-year average taxable compensation, then the amount of
the parachute payments exceeding one times the base amount constitutes an excess parachute payment.
Because of Code section 4999 the officer must pay an excise tax equal to 20% of the total excess parachute
payments. This tax is in addition to other federal, state, and local income, wage, and employment taxes
imposed onthe individual’s change-in-control payments. Moreover, because of section 280G the company
paying the compensation is unable to deduct the excess parachute payment, and the $1,000,000 limit on
deductible compensation under Code section 162(m) is reduced by the amount of the excess parachute

payment.

Benefits to which participants are entitled under the Plan and associated award agreements could
constitute parachute payments under sections 280G and 4999 if a change in controt occurs. If this happens,
the value of each participant’s parachute payment arising under the Plan must be combined with other
parachute payments the same participant may be entitled to receive under other agreements or plans with us
or a subsidiary, such as an employment agreement or a severance agreement.

Code Section 4094. Code section 409A was added to the Internal Revenue Code by the American
Jobs Creation Act of 2004, Section 409A creates new rules for amounts deferred under "nonqualified
deferred compensation plans.” Section 409A's broad definition of nonqualified deferred compensation
plans may apply to various types of awards granted under the Plan. The proceeds of any grant that is
governed by section 409A are subject to a 20% excise tax if those proceeds are distributed before the
recipient separates from service or before the occurrence of other specified events such as death, disability,
or a change of control, all as defined in section 409A. The Plan Committee intends to administer the plan
to avoid or minimize the impact of section 409A, which is borne principally by the employee rather than
the employer. If necessary, the Plan Committee will amend the Plan to comply with section 409A. By
accepting an award, a participant agrees that the Plan Committee (including our board of directors when
dealing with awards to directors) may amend the plan and the award agreement without any additional
consideration if necessary to avoid penalties arising under section 409A, even if the amendment reduces,
restricts, or eliminates rights that were granted under the plan, the award agreement, or both before the
amendment.

ANY U.S. FEDERAL TAX ADVICE CONTAINED IN THE PRECEDING SUMMARY IS NOT
INTENDED OR WRITTEN BY THE PREPARER OF SUCH ADVICE TO BE USED, AND IT
CANNOT BE USED BY THE RECIPIENT, FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING PENALTIES THAT
MAY BE IMPOSED ON THE RECIPIENT, THIS DISCLOSURE IS INTENDED TO SATISFY U.S.
TREASURY DEPARTMENT REGULATIONS.
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Shares Currently Authorized for Issuance Under Our Existing Stock Option Plans. The
following t1able summarizes all compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements in effect on
December 31, 2007, under which shares of common stock have been authorized for issuance.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION (1)

(a)
Number of
securities to be

issued upon exercise

(©)
Number of securities
(b} remaining available for
Weighted-average future issuance under
exercise price of equity compensation

of outstanding outstanding plans (excluding
options, warrants, options, warrants, securities reflected in

Plan category and rights and rights celumn (a))
Equity compensation pians approved by
security holders (2) ..., 928,777 38.86 ‘ . 40,605
Equity compensation plans not approved .
by security holders ..o — - —

Total..oeeeeerrereeceaee. ——— 928,777 $8.86 40,605

(1) As adjusied for all stock splits. '
(2) The Employee Stock Option Plan and the Director Stock Option Plan of Mountain 1* Bank & Trust Company, which were

assumed by us in the holding company reorganization

PROPOSAL 4: APPROVAL OF 2008 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

General

At its April 28, 2008, meeting, based on the recommendation of the Corporate Governance
Committee, our board of directors adopted the 2008 Employec Stock Purchase Plan, which we refer to in
this proxy statement as the ESPP. The ESPP will enable eligible employees to acquire our common stock
at a 5% discount, which we believe will promote employee ownership of our stock and employees' personal
financial commitment to our success. We intend that the ESPP qualify as an employee stock purchase plan
under Internal Revenue Code section 423, but the ESPP cannot qualify unless it is approved by our
shareholders. Additional information about the tax treatment under Internal Revenue Code section 423 of
the right to acquire shares under the ESPP is contained in this discussion under the subheading "U.S.
Federal lncome Tax Consequences.”

Each of our executive officers, and other employees of the Bank, has an interest in the approval of
the ESPP as they will be eligibie to purchase our stock at a discount if the ESPP is approved.

The principal features of the Pian are summarized below, but a'c:Op_y of the Plan is included as
Appendix C. We encourage you to read the Plan in it$ entirety. References in this summary to the Code
mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

The ESPP makes a maximum of 100,000 shares of our common stock available for-sale to
employees, but the number of available shares may be adjusted for stock dividends, stock splits, stock
COMNVErsions, exchangcs reclassifications, or substitutions. Shares of our common stock issued under the
ESPP may consist in whole or in part of shares 'we purchase or of authorized and unissued shares not
reserved for any other purpose.

All full-time employees who are considered employees for federal tax withholding purposes and
who have been employees for three months or more are eligible to participate in the ESPP. Employee
participation is entirely voluntary. No employee is permitted to participate in the ESPP, however, if the
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employee would own stock and/or hold options to purchase stock possessing 5% or more of the total
combined voting power or value of all classes of our stock immediately after purchase of shares under the
ESPP. Additionally, no employee is permitted to purchase more than $25,000 worth of our stock through
all employee stock purchase plans in any calendar year. Because employee participation in the ESPP is
entirely voluntary, the benefits or amounts to be received by officers or employees cannot be determined at
this time. As of June 16, 2008, there were approximately 132 employees eligible to participate in the
ESPP. .

The ESPP allows participating employees to purchase our common stock only through regular
payroll deductions. Employees may not make additional cash contributions to purchase shares. Funds
applied to purchase shares will consist entirely of money set aside by employees through payroll deductions
from regular base pay, and not from bonuses or other forms of cash or non-cash compensation.
Participating employees will choose the percentage of their pay 10 be deducted, up to a maximum of 15%.
Payroll deductions will be accumulated over consecutive six-month periods, with each six-month period
being referred to as an "Offering Period.” The six-month Offering Periods will begin on the first trading on
or after January 1 of each year (ending on the final trading day in the period ending June 30) and the first
trading day on or afier July 1 of each year (ending on the final trading day in the period ending December
31).

On the last trading day of each six-month Offering Period, the participating employees’
accumulated payroll deductions will be automatically applied to the purchase of whole shares of our
common stock. Fractional shares will not be issued. The purchase price per share will be 95% of the fair
market value of a share of our common stock on the purchase date. For this purpose, fair market value is
determined according to the following rules:

® If our common stock is traded on an exchange or on an automated quotation system giving
closing prices, fair market value means the reported closing price on the relevant date if it is
a trading day and otherwise on the next trading day; or

o If our common stock is traded over-the-counter with no reported closing price, fair market
value is the mean between the highest bid and the lowest asked prices on that quotation

) system on the relevant date if it is a trading day and otherwise on the next trading day; or

@  If neither of the above circumstances exists, fair market value is determined in good faith by

the board committee that administers the ESPP. :

Our common stock is currently traded over-the-counter on the OTC Bulletin Board. The closing
price of the stock on June 27, 2008 was $9.30.

Our board may terminate the ESPP at any time. The ESPP will terminate in any case after ten
years. If at any time the shares of common stock reserved for the ESPP are available for purchase but not
in sufficient number to satisfy all purchase requirements, the avatilable shares will be apportioned among
the participants in proportion to their accumulated deductions and the ESPP will terminate. The board may
amend the ESPP after adoption, but subject to shareholder approval if shareholder approval of the
amendment is required by Code section 423. '

As noted in the discussion of Proposal 4, the number of shares that could be acquired by exercise of
options already granted and options remaining available for grant under existing stock option plans is
approximately 19% of our outstanding stock, a percentage that will increase if the 2008 Omnibus Equity
Plan is approved by shareholders. We believe that the ESPP is not fundamentally a compensatory plan that
it is not dilutive to shareholders, but that it will promote our success in much the same way that a
compensatory plan might. 'We designed the ESPP as a non-compensatory plan under applicable accounting
standards with the goal of avoiding financial statement compensation expense for share purchases under the
ESPP. To achieve that result we incorporated two significant features into the ESPP that are at variance
from what we believe to be the typical employee stock purchase plan: (x) we limited the purchase price
discount to 5%, even though the ESPP could qualify for favored tax treatment under Internal Revenue Code
section 423 with a discount of as much as 15%, and (y) we provided in the ESPP that the discount is 5% of




the fair market value at the time of purchase, not 5% of the fair market value at the beginning of each six-
month Offering Period, even though the ESPP could qualify for favored tax treatment under section 423 if
the discount were a percentage of the lower of those two fair market value figures (with fair market value at
the beginning of the six-month Offering Period more likely to be the Jower of the two figures).

Accounting principles allow us to avoid compensation expense if we first eliminate the
compensatory aspect of the plan. The 5% discount is economically indistinguishable from, and may
actually be less, than an underwriting discount we would pay to an investment banking firm managing a
public offering of our shares. The ESPP reserves only $00,000 shares for sale to employees, which we
believe is a modest number, and of course those shares will not be sold all at once as they would be in a
true public offering of our stock. We therefore believe the ESPP is'less-dilutive than a public offering of
our stock would be, that the ESPP will yield additional equity capital for us and the Bank as a public
offering would, and that sales of the ESPP shares will be confined to persons — our employces — who
have not only a personal financial interest in our success but more importantly the unique ability to help us
achieve that result.

For all these reasons, we believe the ESPP is in the best interests of our company and its
shareholders. ! . o

Accounting for Share-Based Payments

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) published FASB Statement
No. 123 (revised): Sharc Based Payment, or "SFAS 123 (R)." SFAS 123 (R) requires that the
compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions, including grants of stock options, be
recognized as an expense in financial statements. For this purpose, cost is measured based on the fair value
of the equity instrument issued, according to any option-pricing mode] satisfying the fair value objective of
SFAS 123 (R). However, compensation does not have to be recognized for share-based plans that,
according to standards contained in SFAS 123(R), are not cossidered compensatory. We intend that the
ESPP be considered non-compensatory so that we will not be required to recognize compensation expense
for share purchases under the ESPP.

To be considered non-compensatory, the ESPP must satisfy the SFAS 123(R) criteria for non-
compensatory arrangements, including these: (x) substantially all full-time employees must be eligible to
participate on the same terms, although limited qualifications such as a minimum number of months of
service may be imposed; (y) the purchase discount for purchase of shares relative to the fair market value
of the shares generally may not exceed 5%,;and (z) although Code section 423 would allow the purchase
discount to be the lesser of 5% of the shares’ fair market value at the beginning of each six-month Offering
Period or at the end of each six-month Offering Period, to be considered non-compensatory the purchase
discount must be measured at the time of purchase, meaning the end of the Offering Period only. So that
the ESPP is considered non-compensatory, we have limited the price discount to 5% and we have provided
in the ESPP that the discount will be measured relative to fair market value on the purchase date, the final
trading day of each six-month Offering Period. We believe that the ESPP and purchases of shares under
the ESPP will be considered non-compcnsalory and that compensation expense will therefore not have to |
be récognized for the ESPP.- .
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U.S. Federal [ncome Tax Consequences

The following discussion briefly summarizes the U.S. federal income tax consequences relating to
the ESPP. This summary is based on existing provisions of the Code, final, temporary, and proposed
Treasury Regulations promulgated under the Code, existing judicial decisions, and current administrative
rulings and practice, all of which are subject to change, possibly retroactively. This summary is included
for general informational purposes only, and is not a complete description of the applicable U.S. federal
income tax laws and does not address state or local tax consequences and other tax consequences.

If the requirements of Code section 423 for employee stock purchase plans are satisfied, a
participating employee will not realize taxable income for his or her purchase of shares under the ESPP.
The applicable requirements of section 423 include:

Participant limitation to employees ;

Shareholder approval within 12 months after the date the plan is adopted by our Board;
Exclusion of any person who owns 5% or more of our shares; .

Eligibility of substantially all our employees, although highly compensated employees, part-
time employees, and employees who do not satisfy limited qualifications such as a minimum
period of service may be excluded,;

Equal treatment of all participating employees under the terms of the ESPP;

Limitation of purchase price discount to the lesser of (x) 15% of the shares' fair market value
at the beginning of each stock offering peried, or (y) 15% of the shares' fair market value at
the end of each stock offering period;

[ Limitation of duration of each Offening Period to five ycars

Non-transferabilty of participant employees' rights to purchase our shares; and

Limitation on each participant employee's purchase in any calendar year under all employee
stock purchase plans to a value not exceeding $25,000, valued at the beginning of the
offering period.

We believe the ESPP satisfics all of these requirements so that the ESPP will qualify as an
employee stock purchase plan for purposes of Code section 423.

Although a participating employee will not realize taxable income when he or she purchases shares
at a discount, the employee's disposition of shares thereafter will be a taxable event, whether the disposition
is a sale or gift. If the participating employee makes a qualifying disposition of the shares, meaning a
disposition that does not occur until the later of (x) two ycars after the beginning of the six-month Offering
Period in which the shares were acquired, and (y) one year from the date on which the shares were
acquired, when the employee finally sells the shares, the employee will recognize as ordinary income an
amount equal to the lesser of:

(a) The excess of the fair market value of the shares of Common Stock on the date of
disposition over the amount the employee paid for the shares; or

(b) The excess of the fair market value of the shares at the beginning of the Offering
Period in which the shares were acquired over the price paid for the shares.

The employee also will recognize a long-term capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the
difference between (x) the amount realized upon the sale of the Common Stock and (y) the sum of the
amount the employee paid for the shares plus the amount, if any, taxed to the employee as ordinary income
under (a} or (b) above.

If the employee instead makes a disqualifying disposition of shares of Common Stock, meaning a
disposition that occurs before the later of (x) two years after the beginning of the six-month Offering Period
in which the shares were acquired and (y) one year from the date on which the shares were acquired, upon
disposition the employee will recognize as ordinary income an amount equal to the excess of the fair

46




market value of the shares of Common Stock on the date the employee purchased them over the amount the
employee paid for the shares. The employee also will recognize a capital gain or loss in an amount equal to
the difference between (x) the amount realized upon the sale of the shares of Common Stock and (y) the
sum of the amount the employee paid for the shares plus the amount, if any, taxed to the employee as
ordinary income. If the employee holds the shares for more than one year, this gain or loss will be a long-
term capital gain or loss.

Generally, we will not be entitled 1o a deduction for federal income tax purposes when shares of .
Common Stock are purchased under the ESPP. If the employee makes a disqualifying disposition of stock,
however, we will be entitled to a deduction in an amount equal to the amount that the employee must
recognize as ordinary income on his or her tax return. For qualifying dispositions we will not be entitled to
any deduction whatsoever, even though an employee might recognize ordinary income as the result of a
qualifying disposition.

ANY U.S. FEDERAL TaX ADVICE CONTAINED IN THE PRECEDING SUMMARY IS NOT
INTENDED OR WRITTEN BY THE PREPARER OF SUCH ADVICE TO BE USED, AND IT
CANNOT BE USED BY THE RECIPIENT, FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING PENALTIES THAT
MAY BE IMPOSED ON THE RECIPIENT. THIS DISCLOSURE IS INTENDED TO SATISFY L1.5.
TREASURY DEPARTMENT REGULATIONS.

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote "FOR'" Proposal 4.
To be approved, the number of votes cast in person and by proxy at the Annual Meeting
in favor of the proposal must exceed the number of votes cast against if.

PROPOSAL 5: RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Appointment of Independent Accountants

Our Audit Committee has selected Elliott Davis PLLC to serve as our independent accountants for
2008. The Committee's charter gives it the responsibility and authority to select and appoint our
independent accountants each year and to approve the compensation and terms of the engagement our
accountants, and our shareholders are not required by our Bylaws or the law 10 ratify the Committee's
selection. However, we will submit a proposal to ratify the appointment of Elliott Davis PLLC for 2008 for
voting by sharcholders at the Annual Meeting as a matter of good corporate practice and as a way for
shareholders to be heard in the selection process. Representatives of Elliott Davis PLLC are expected to
attend the Annual Meeting and be available to respond to appropriate questions, and they will have an
oppertunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. If our shareholders do not ratify the Audit
Committee's selection, the Committee will reconsider its decision, but it could choose to reaffirm its
appointment of Elliott Davis PLLC. Even if our shareholders vote to ratify the Commitiee's selection,
during the year the Committee could choose to appoint different independent accountants at any time if it
determines that a change would be in our best interests.

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote '"FOR" Proposal 5.
To be approved, the number of votes cast in person and by proxy at the Annual Meeting in
Javor of the proposal must exceed the number of votes cast against it.
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Services and Fees During 2007 ard 2006

Under its current procedures, our Audit Committee specifically pre-approves all audit services and
other services provided by our independent accountants. In the future, in connection with its approval of
services the Committee may authorize its Chairman to approve non-audit services that we propose to obtain
from time 1o time during the year from our accountants. The Chairman would report his approval of any
services to the full Committee at its next regularly scheduled meeting.

As our independent accountants for 2007, Elliott Davis PLLC provided us with various audit and
other professional services for which we were billed, or expect to be billed, for fees as further described
below. Qur Audit Committee considers whether the provision of non-audit services by our independent
accounting firm is compatible with maintaining its indepéndence. The Committee believes that the
provision of non-audit services by Elliott Davis PLLC during 2006 did not affect its independence.

The following table lists the aggregate amounts of fees paid 1o Elliott Davis PLLC for audit
services for 2006 and 2005 and for other services they provided during 2006 and 2005.

Type of Fees and Description of Services . - 2007 2006
Audit Fees, including audits of our financial statements and reviews
of our interim financial STAIEMENTS ... ..o eceese st s senessesasesians $119,000 $149,588
Audit-Related Fees ... s -0- -0-
All Other Fees, including for 2006, consultation- regardmg comphancc : . '
with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.., -0- 4,860

PROPOSALS FOR 2009 ANNUAL MEETING

Any proposal of a shareholder other than a nomination for election as a director that is intended to
be presented for action at the 2009 Annual Meeting must be received by our Corporate Secretary in writing
at our address listed below no later than March 4, 2009, to be considered timely received for inclusion in
the proxy statement and proxy card that we will distribute in connection with that meeting. Written
proposals should be sent to the same address as is listed below for communications with our board. In
order for a proposal to be included in our proxy materials for a particular meeting, the person submitting
the proposal must own, beneficially or of record, at least 1% or $2,000 in market value, whichever is less,
of shares of our common stock entitled to be voted on that proposal at the meeting and must have held
those shares for a period of at least one year and continue to hold them through the date of the meeting.
Also, the proposal and the shareholder submitting it must comply with certain other eligibility and
procedural requirements contained in rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Written notice of a shareholder proposal (other than a nomination) intended to be presented at our
2008 Annual Meeting, but which is not intended to be inclided in our proxy statement and form of
appointment of proxy, must be received by our Corporate Secretary (at the address listed below) no later
than May 18, 2009, in order for that proposal to be considered timely received for purposes of the Proxies’
discretionary authority 10 vote on other matters presented for action by shareholders at that meeting.

However, we may hold our annual meeting during May or June of 2008 and, if we do, the
deadlines for submitting shareholder proposals will be earlier than the dates listed above. In that event, we
will announce the earlier deadline in our earliest possible quarterly filing on Form 10-QSB or in a Current
Report on Form 8-K.

Under our Bylaws, at a meeting of our shareholders at which directors will be elected, nominations

for election to our Board of Directors may be made by our board or by a shareholder of record who is
entitled to vote at the meeting if writlen notice of the shareholder's nomination has been delivered to our
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Corporate Secretary at our principal office not later than the close of business on the tenth business day
following the date on which notice of the meeting is first given to shareholders.

The required notice of a nomination must include: (1) the names and addresses of the shareholder
who intends to make the nomination and of the person to be nominated; (2} a representation that the
shareholder is a holder of record of shares of our common stock entitled to vote at the meeting and that he
or she intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to nominate the person named in the notice;
(3) a description of all arrangements or understandings between the sharcholder and the nominee and any
other persons (naming those persons) pursuant to which the nomination is to be made by the sharcholder;
(4) a representation that each nominee satisfies all qualifications provided by our Bylaws or by applicable
statute or regulation to serve as a director, and (5) the written consent of the nominee to serve as a director
if elected. The shareholder also shall provide such other information regarding each nominee proposed as
we shall reasonably request and which can be obtained by the shareholder, including information of a type
that would be required to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 if the nominee had been nominated by the Board of Directors. Only
persons who are nominated in the manner described in our Bylaws are eligible to be elected as directors at
meetings of our shareholders, and the Chairman of a meeting of our shareholders may refuse to
acknowledge a nomination that is not made in compliance with the procedures set out in our Bylaws.

The notices described above should be mailed to:

Ist Financial Services Corporation
Attention: Corporate Secretary

101 Jack Street

Hendersonville, North Carolina 28792

* ANNUAL REPORT ON FOrRM 10-K -

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and we file
reports and other information, about our company with the Securities and Exchange Commission including
proxy statements, annual reports and quarterly reports. You may review information that we file
electronically with the SEC on the SEC's Internet website al www.sec.gov.

A copy of the Bank's 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, as filed with the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, accompanies this proxy statement. We became the Bank's parent holding
company this year in a holding company reorganization, and did not file an annual report on Form 10-K
in 2007 because we were nof then subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934.
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APPENDIX A

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORA TION

The corporation's Articles of Incorporation hereby are amended by deletmg current Article 2 thereof in its
entirety and addmg anew Article 2 thereof as follows:

"2. The aggregate number of shares which the corporation shall have the authority to
issue is 30,000,000 shares divided into two classes. The designation, par value and number of shares of
each class are as follows:

Class - Par Value T Number of Shares
Common Stock ' $5.00 ' 20,000,000
Class B'Stock - ' No Par . ' ) 10,000,000

Total Shares * - : ' * - 30,000,000
The corporation's Board of Directors shall be authorized to issue shares 6f Class B Stock
" from time totime; to create series thereof, and to determine the designations, terms, and
relative rights, and any preferences or limitations of the Class B Stock, or of shares within
each series of Class B Stock, at the time of issuance, all by its resolution. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing authority, the Board of Dlrectors shall be authonzed to fix
and determine: :

(a) the designation of each series and the number of shares to constitute each series
{which number may be increased or decreased from time to time unless otherwise
provided by the Board of Directors);

(b) the dividend rate (or method of determining such rate), if any; any conditions on
which and times at which dividends are payable; any preference or relation which
such dividends shall bear to the dividends payable on any other class or classes or
any other series of capital stock, including Class B Stock; whether such dividends
shall be cumulative or non-cumulative; and whether the Class B Stock wili be
participating or nonparticipating with other shares with respect to dividends;

(c) whether shares within a series will be redeemable (at the option of the corporation
or the holders of such shares or both, or upon the happening of a specified event)
and, if 50, the redemption prices and the conditions and times upon which
redemption may take place and whether for cash, property, or rights, including
securities of the corporation or of another corporation;

(d) the terms and amount of any sinking, retirement, or purchase fund,

(e) with respect to each series, the conversion or exchange rights (at the option of the
corporation or the holders of such shares or both, or upon the happening of a
specified event), if any, including the conversion or exchange times, prices, rates,
adjustments, and other terms of conversion or exchange;




)

(2)
(h)

(i)
)

the voting rights, if any (other than any voting rights that the Class B Stock may
have as a matter of law);

any restrictions on the issuance or reissuance of additional Class B Stock;

with respect to each series, the rights of the holders upon voluntary or involuntary
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the corporation, including
any preferences over the common stack or any other class or classes or any other
series of capital stock, including Class B Stock, and whether the Class B Stock will
be participating or nonparticipating with other shares with respect to distributions
of the corporation's assets; '

any limitations or restrictions on transfer; and

with respect to each series, such other special rights and privileges, if any, for the
benefit of the holders of, or other terms or limitations with respect to, the shares
within that series as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of the
corporation's Articles of Incorporation, as amended, or applicable law,

All shares of Class B Stock of the same series shall be identical in all respects, except that
shares of any one series issued al different times may differ as to dates, if any, from which
dividends thereon may accumulate. The number, designations, terms, relative rights,
preferences, and limitations of shares within.any one series may differ from those of shares
within any other series.: All shares of Class B Stock redeemed, purchased or otherwise
acquired by the corporation (including shares surrendered for conversion) shall be canceled
and thereupon restored to the status of authorized but unissued shares of Class B Stock
undesignated as to series." :
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APPENDIX B

2008 OMNIBUS EQUITY PLAN
1ST FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION

ARTICLE |
PURPOSE AND EFFECTIVE DATE

1.1 Purpose. The purpose of this 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan of Ist Financial Services Corporation is to
promote the long-term financial success of 1st Financial Services Corporation, increasing stockholder value by
providing employees and directérs the opportunity to acquirc an ownership interest in Ist Financial Services
Corporation aind enabling st Financial Services Corporation and its related entities to attract and retain the services of
the employees and directors upon whom the successful conduct of Ist Financial Services Corporation’s business
depends. " *

1.2 Effective Date. This Plan shall be effective when it is adopted by 1st Financial Services
Corporation’s board of directors and approved thereafter by the affirmative vote of 1st Financial Services Corporation
stockholders in accordance with applicable rules and procedures, including those in Internal Revenue Code section
422 and Treasury Regulation section 1.422-3. Any award granted under this Plan before stockholder approval shall be
null and void if stockholders do not approve the Plan within 12 months after the Plan’s adoption by 1st Financial
Services Corporation’s board of directors. Subject to Article 12, the Plan shalt continue until the tenth anniversary of
the date it is approved by st Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors. )

ARTICLE 2
DEFINITIONS

When used in this Plan, the following words, terms, and phrases have the meanings given in this Article 2
unless another meaning is expressly provided elsewhere'in this document or is clearly required by the context. When
applying these definitions and any other word, tetm, or phrast used in this Plan, the form of any word, term, or phrase
shall include any and all of its other forms. : '

2.1 Award means a grant of (a) the right under Article 6 to purchase 1st Financial Services Corporation
common stock at a stated price during a specified period of time (an “Option™), which Option may be (x) an Incentive
Stock Option that on the date of the Award is identified as an Incentive Stock Option, satisfies the conditions imposed
under Interal Revenue Code section 422, and is not later modified in a manner inconsistent with Internal Revenue
Code section 422 or () a Nonqualified Stock Option, méaning any Option that is not an Incentive Stock Option, or (5)
Restricted Stock, meaning a share of {st Financial Services Corporation common stock granted to a Participant
contingent upon satisfaction of conditions described in Article 7, or (c) Performance Shares, meaning shares of 1st
Financial Services Corporation common stock granted to a Participant contingent upon satisfaction of conditions
described in Article 8, or (d) a Stock Appreciation Right or “SAR,” meaning an Award granted under Article 9 and
consisting of the potential appreciation of the shares of Ist Financial Services Corporation common stock underlying
the Award. v

2.2 Award Agreement mcans the written or electronic agreement between 1st Financial Services
Corporation and ¢ach Participant containing the terms and conditions of an Award and the manner in which it will or
may be settled if carned. If there is a conflict between the terms of this Plan and the terms of the Award Agreement,
the terms of this Plan shall govern. ' '

23 Covered Officer means those Employees whose compensation is or likely will be subject to limited
deductibility under Intemnal Revenue Code section 162(m) as of the last day of any calendar year.

24 Director means a person' who, on the date an Award is made to him or to her, is not an Employee
but who is a member of 1st Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors, a member of the board of directors of
a Related Entity, or a member of the governing body of any unincorporated Related Entity.’ For purposes of applying
this definition a Director’s status shall be determined as of the date an Award is made to him or 10 her.

25 Employee means any person who, on any applicable date, is a common law employee of 1st
Financial Services Corporation or a Related Entity. A worker who is not classified as a common law employee but




who is subsequently reclassified as a common law employee for any reason and on any basis shall be treated as a
common law employee solely from the date reclassification occurs. Reclassification shall not be applied retroactively
for any purpose of this Plan.

2.6 Exercise Price means the amount, if any, a Participant must pay to exercise an Award.

2.7 Fair Market Value means the value of one share of 1st Financial Services Corporation common
stock, determined according te the following rules: (x) if Ist Financial Services Corporation common stock is traded
on an exchange or on an autornated quotation system giving closing prices, the reported closing price on the relevant
date if it is a trading day and otherwise on the next trading day, (y) if 1st Financial Services Corporation common
stock s traded over-the-counter with no reported closing price, the mean between the highest bid and the lowest asked
prices on that quotation systemn on the relevant date if it is a trading day and otherwise on the next trading day, or (z) if
neither clause (x) nor clause ()) applies, the fair market value as determined by the Plan Committee in good faith and,
for Incentive Stock Options, consistent with the rules prescribed under Internal Revenue Code section 422.

2.8 Internal Revenue Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended or superseded after
the date this Plan becomes effective under section 1.2, and any applicable rulings or regulations issued under the
internal Revenue Code of 1986.

29 Participant means an Employee or Director 1o whom an Award is granted, for as long as the Award
remains outstanding.

2.10  Plan means this 2008 Omnibus Equity Plan of lst Financial Services Corporation, as amen(ied from
time to time. '

2.1  Plan Committee means a committee of [st Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors
consisting entirely of individuals (@) who are outside directors as defined in Treasury Regulation section I.162-
27(e)(3)(i), (b) who are non-employee directors within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Securties Exchange Act
of 1934, {c) who do not receive remuneration from Ist Financial Services Corporation or any Related Entity in any
capacity other than as a director, except as permitted under Treasury Regulation section 1.162-27{e)}3), and (d) who
are independent directors within the meaning of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc.’s rules. The Plan Commitiee shal!
consist of at least three individuals. <

2.12  Plac Year means Ist Financial Services Corporation’s fiscal year.

2.13  Related Entity means an entity that is or becomes related to st Financial Services Corporation
through common ownership, as determined under Internal Revenue Code section 414(b) or {c) but modified as
permitted under Treasury Regulation section 1.409A-1(b)(5)(iii)(E) and any successor to those regulations.

2.14 1st Financial Services Corporation means 1st Financial Services Corporation, a North Carolina
corporation. Except for purposes of determining whether a Change in Control has occurred (according to Article [1),
the 1erm 135t Financial Services Corporation also means any corporation or entity that is a successor to 1st Financial
Services Corporation or substantially ali of its assets and that assumes the obligations of 1st Financial Services
Corporation under this Plan by operation of law or otherwise.

ARTICLE 3
PARTICIPATION

3.1 Awards to Employees. Consistent with the terms of the Plan and subject to section 3.3, the Plan
Committee alone shall decide which Employees will be granted Awards, shall specify the types of Awards granted to
Employees, and shall determine the terms upon which Awards are granted and may be eamed. The Plan Committee
may establish different terms and conditions for each type of Award granted to an Employee and for each Employee
receiving the same type of Award, regardless of whether the Awards arc granted at the same or different times. The
Plan Committee shall have exclusive authority to determine whether an Award qualifies or is intended to qualify for
the exemption from the deduction limitations of Internal Revenue Code section 162(m) for performance-based
compensation.
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3.2 Awards to Directors. Consistent with the terms of the Plan and subject to section 3.3, Ist Financial
Services Corporation’s board of directors alone may grant to Directors Nonqualified Stock Options under section 6.1
and Restricted Stock under section 7.1.

33 Conditions of Participation. By accepting an Award, each Employce and Direclor agrees (x) to be
bound by the terms of the Award Agreement and the Plan and to comply with other conditions imposed by the Plan
Committec, and (y) that the Plan Committee (or Ist Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors, as
appropriate) may amend the Plan and the Award Agreements without any additional consideration if necessary to
avoid penalties arising under Intcrnal Revenue Code section 409A, even if the amendment reduces, restricts, or
eliminates nights that were granted under the Plan, the Award Agreement, ot both before the amendment.

ARTICLE 4
ADMINISTRATION

4.1 Duties. The Plan Committee is responsible for administering the Plan and shall have all powers
appropriate and necessary for that purpose. Consistent with the Plan's objectives, 1st Financial Services
Corporation’s board of directors and the Plan Committee may adopt, amend, and rescind rules and regulations relating
to the Plan to protect st Financial Services Corporation’s and Related Entities” interests. Consistent with'the Plan’s
objectives, 1st Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors and the Plan Committee shali have complete
discretion to make all other decisions necessary or advisable for the administration and interpretation of the Plan.
Actions of Ist Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors and the Plan Commitice shall be final, binding, and
conclusive for all purposes and upon all persons.

- 4.2 Delegation of Duties. In its sole discretion, 1st Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors
and the Plan Committee may delegate ministerial duties associated with the Plan to any person that it deems
appropriate, including an Employee. However, neither 1st Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors nor the
Plan Commitiee shall delegate a duty it must discharge to comply with the conditions for exemption of performance-
based compensation from the deduction limitations of section 162(m).

4.3 Award Agreement. As soon as administratively practical afler an Award is made, the Plan
Committee or 15t Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors shall prepare and deliver an Award Agreement

to each affected Participant. The Award Agreement shall -

(a) describe the terms of the Award, including the type of Award and when and how it may be
exercised or eamned,

® state the Exercise Price, if any, associated with the Award,
{c) state how the Award will or may be settled,
(d) if different from the terms of the Plan, describe (x) any conditions that must be satisfied before the

Award is eared or may be exercised, (¥) any objective restrictions placed on the Award and any performance-retated
conditions and performance criteria that must be satisfied before those restrictions are released, and (z) any other
applicable terms and conditions affecting the Award.

4.4 Restriction oo Repricing. Regardless of any other provision of this Plan or an Award Agreement,
neither Ist Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors nor the Plan Committee may reprice (as defined under
rules of the New York Stock Exchange or The Nasdaq Stock Market) any Award unless the repricing is approved in
advance by 1st Financial Services Corporation’s stockholders acting at a meeting.

ARTICLES
LIMITS ON STOCK SUBJECT TO AWARDS

5.1 Number of Authorized Shares of Stock. With any adjustments required by section 5.4, the
maximum number of shares of 15t Financial Services Corporation common stock that may be subject to Awards under
this Plan is 288,292, which includes 38,292 shares authorized to be granted under the Employec Stock Option Plan of
Mountain 1* Bank & Trust Company that was assumed by 1st Financial Services Corporation and that are not subject
to oulstanding awards under that plan on the date this Plan becomes effective under section 1.2, but excluding any
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shares subject to awards issued under the Employee Stock Option Plan that are subsequently forfeited under the terms
of that plan. However, if this Plan is not approved by 1st Financial Service Corporation’s stockholders, the Employee
Stock Option Plan shall be unaffected and shall remain in effect for the remaining term specified in that plan. The
shares of 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock to be delivered under this Plan may consist in whole or in
part of treasury stock or authorized but unissued shares not reserved for any other purpose.

5.2 Award Limits and Annual Participant Limits. (a) Award Limits. Of the sharcs authorized under
section 5.1, up to 50,000 may be reserved for issuance under Incentive Stock Options.

(b) . Annual Participans Limits. The aggregate number of shares of 1st Financial Services Corporation
common stock underlying Awards granted under this Plan to an individual Participant in any Plan Year (including but
not limited to Options and SARS), regardiess of whether the Awards are thereafler canceled, forfeited, or terminated,
shall not exceed 15% of the total number of shares issuable under the Plan (43,244 shares). This annual limitation is
intended to include the grant of all Awards, including but not limited to Awards representing performance-based
compensation described in Internal Revenue Code section 162(m)(4)(C).

53 Share Accounting. (a) As appropriate, the number of shares of st Financial Services Corporation
common stock available for Awards under this Plan shall be conditionalty reduced by the number of shares of 1st
Financial Services Corporation commen siock subject to outstanding Awards, including the full number of shares
underlying SARs.

(b) As appropriate, the number of shares of 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock available
for Awards under this Plan shall be absolutely reduced by (x) the number of shares of Lst Financial Services
Corporation common stock issued through Option exercises, (¥)-the number of shares of |st Financial Services
Corporation common stock issued because of satisfaction of the terms of an Award Agreement for Performance .
Shares or Restricted Stock that, by the terms of the applicable Award Agreement, are to be settled in shares of Ist
Financial Services Corporation common stock, and (z) the full number of shares of 15t Financial Services Corporation
common stock underlying an earied and exercised SAR.

{c) As appropriate, shares of Ist Financial Services Corporation common stock subject to an Award that
for any reason is forfeited, cancelled, terminated, relinquished, exchanged, or otherwise settled without the issuance of
1st Financial Services Corporation common stock or without payment of cash equal to its Fair Market Value or the
difference between the Award’s Fair Market Value and its Exercise Price, if any, may again be granted under the Plan.
[f the Exercise Price of an Award is paid in shares of 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock, the shares
received by 1st Financial Services Corporation shall not be added to the maximum aggregate number of shares of st
Financial Services Corporation common stock that may be issued under section 5.1.

54 Adjustment in Capitalization. If after the date this Plan becomes effective under section 1.2 there
is a stock dividend or stock split, recapitalization (including payment of an extracrdinary dividend), merger,
consolidation, combination, spin-off, distribution of assets to stockholders, exchange of shares or other similar
corporate change affecting 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock, then consistent with the applicable
provisions of Intenal Revenue Code sections 162(m), 409A, 422, and 424 and associated regulations and to prevent
dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be made available under this Plan, the Plan
Committee shall, in a manner the Plan Commitiee considers equitable, adjust {a} the number of Awards that may be
granted to Participants during a Plan Year, (b) the aggregate number of shares available for Awards under section 5.1
or subject to outstanding Awards, as well as any share-based limits imposcd under this Plan, {¢) the respective
Exercise Price, number of shares, and other limitations applicable to outstanding or subsequently granted Awards, and
(d) any other factors, limits, or.terms affecting any outstanding or subsequently granted Awards.
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. ARTICLE 6
OPTIONS

6.1 Grant of Options. Subject to Article 10 and the terms of the Plan and the associated Award
Agreement, at any time during the term of this Plan the Plan Committee may grant Incentive Stock Options and
Nongqualified Stock Options to Employees and ist Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors may grant
Nongqualified Stock Options to Directors. Unless an Award Agreement provides otherwise, Options awarded under
this Plan are intended to satisfy the requirements for exclusion from coverage under Internal Revenue Code section
409A. All Option Award Agreements shall be construed and administered consistent with that intention.

6.2 Exercise Price. Except as necessary to implement section 6.6, each Option shall have an Exercise
Price per share at least equal to the Fair Market Value of a share of st Financial Services Corporation common stock
on the date of grant, meaning the closing price on the date of grant if 1st Financial Services Corporation common
stock is traded on an exchange or on an automated quotation system giving closing prices (or the closing price on the
next trading day-if the grant date is not a irading day). However, the Exercise Price per share of an Incentive Stock
Option shall be at least 110% of the Fair Market Value of a share of !st Financial Services Corporation common stock
on the date of grant for any Incentive Stock Option issued to an Employee who, on the date of grant, owns (as defined
in Internal Revenue Code section 424(d)) 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock possessing more than
10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock (or the combined voting power of any Related Entity),
determined according to rules issued under Internal Revenue Code section 422.

6.3 Exercise of Options. Subject to Article 10 and any terms, restrictions, and conditions specifted in
the Plan and unless specificd otherwise in the Award Agreement, Options shall be exercisable at the time or times
specified in the Award Agreement, but (x) no Lncentive Stock Option may be exercised more than ten years afler it is
granted, or more than five years after it is granted in the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to an Employee
who on the date of grant owns (as defined in Internal Revenue Code section 424(d)) st Financial Services
Corporation common stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock or the
combined voting power of any Related Entity, determined under rules issued under Internal Revenue Code section
422, () no Nonqualified Stock Option granted to a Director shall be exercisable more than ten years after it is granted,
and (z) Nongualified Stock Options not granted to Directors shall be exercisable for the period specified in the Award
Agreement, but not more than ten years afier the grant date if no period is specified in the Award Agreement,

6.4 Incentive Stock Options. Despite any provision in this Plan to-the contrary -

{(a) -no provision of this Plan relating to Incentive Stock Options shall be interpreted, amended, or
altered, nor shall any discretion or authority granted under the Plan be exercised, in a manner that is inconsistent with
Internal Revenue Code section 422 or, without the consent of the affected Participant, to cause any Incentive Stock
Option to fail to qualify for the federal income tax treatment provided by Internal Revenue Code section 421,

(b) the aggregate Fair Market Value of the 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock
(determined as of the date of grant) for which Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time by a
Participant in any calendar year under all stock option plans of 1st Financial Services Corporation and all Related
Entities shall not exceed $100,000 (or other amount specified in Internal Revenue Code section 422(d)), determined
under rules issued under Intemal Revenue Code section 422, and

{c) no Incentive Stock Option shall be granted to a person who is not an Employee on the émnt date.

6.5 Exercise Procedures and Payment for Options. The Exercise Price associated with each Option
must be paid according to procedures described in the Award Agreement. The Plan Committee shall establish
acceptable methods and forms of payment of the Exercise Price, which may include but are not limited to: (x)
payment in cash or a cash equivalent, (v} actual or constructive transfer by the Participant to 1* Financial Services
Corporation of unrestricted shares of ist Financial Services Corporation common stock as partial or full payment of
the Exercise Price, either by actual delivery of the shares or by attestation, with each share valued at the Fair Market
Value of a share of 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock on the exercise date, or {z) a form of cashless
exercise or net exercise of the Option. In its sole discretion the Plan Committee may withhold its approval for any
method of payment for any reason, including but not limited to concerns that the proposed method of payment will
result in adverse financial accounting treatment, adverse tax treatment for Lst Financial Services Corporation or the
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Participant, or a violation of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended from time (o time, and related regulations
and guidance. A Participant may exercise an Option'solely by sending to the Plan Commitiee or its designee a
completed exercise notice in the form prescribed by the Plan Committee along with payment, or designation of an
approved payment procedure, of the Exercise Price.

6.6 Substitution of Options. In Ist Financial Services Corporation’s discretion, persons who become
Employees as a result of a transaction described in Internal Revenue Code section 424(a) may receive Options in
exchange for options granted by their former employer or the former Related Entity subject to the rules and
procedurcs prescribed under section 424.

6.7 Rights Associated With Options. A Participant holding an unexercised Option shall have no
voting or dividend rights associated with shares underlying the unexercised Option. The Option shall be transferable
solcly as provided in section 14.1. Unless othenwise specified in the Award Agreement or as otherwise specifically
provided in the Plan, Ist Financial Services Corporation common stock acquired by Option exercise shall have all
dividend and voting rights associated with st Financial Services Corporation common stock and shall be transferable,
subject to applicable federal securities laws, applicable requirements of any national securities exchange or system on
which shares of 15t Financial Services Corporation common stock are then listed or traded, and applicable blue sky or

 state securities laws.

ARTICLE 7
RESTRICTED STOCK

7.1 Grant of Restricted Stock. Subject to the terms, restrictions, and conditions specified in the Plan
and the associated Award Agreement, at any time during the term of this Plan the Plan Committee may grant shares of
Restricted Stock to Employees and st Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors may grant shares of
Restricted Stock to Directors. Restricted Stock may be granted at no cosl or at a price per share determined by the
Plan Committee or the board of directors, which may be less than the Fair Market Value of a share of Ist Financial
Services Corporation common stock on the date of grant.

7.2 Earning Restricted Stock. Subject to the terms, restrictions, and conditions specified in the Plan
and the associated Award Agreement and unless otherwise specified in the Award Agreement -

(a) terms, restrictions, and conditions imposed on Restricted Stock granted to Employees and Dircctors
shali lapse as described in the Award Agreement,

{b) during the period in which satisfaction of the conditions imposed on Restricted Stock is to be
determined, Restricted Stock and any shares of common stock issuable as a dividend or other distribution on the
Restricted Stock shail be heldiby st Financial Services Corporation as escrow agent,

(©) at the end of the period in which satisfaction of the conditions imposed on Restricted Stock is to be
determined, the Restricted Stock shall be (x) forfeited if all terms, restrictions, and conditions described in the Award
Agreement arc not satisfied (with-a refund, without interest, of any consideration paid by the Participant), or ()
released from cscrow and distributed to the Participant as soon as practicable after the last day of the period in which
satisfaction of the conditions imposed on Restricted Stock is to be determined if all terms, restrictions, and conditions
specified in the Award Agreement arc satisfied. Any Restricted Stock Award relating to a fractional share of Ist
Financial Services Corporation common stock shall be rounded to the next whole share when settled.

7.3 Rights Associated With Restricted Stock. During the period in which satisfaction of the
conditions imposed on Restricted Stock is to be determined and unless the Restricted Stock Award Agreement
specifies otherwise, Restricted Stock may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or
hypothecated. Except as otherwise required for compliance with the conditions for exemption of performance-based
compensation from the deduction limitations of Internal Revenue Code section 162(m) and except as otherwise
required by the terms of the applicable Award Agreement, during the period in which satisfaction of the conditions
imposed on Restricted Stock is to be determined each Participant to whom Restricted Stock is issued may exercise full
voting rights associated with that Restricted Stock and shall be entitled to reccive all dividends and other distributions
on that Restricted Stock; provided, however, that if a dividend or other distribution is paid in the form of shares of
common stoack, those shares shall also be considered Restricted Stock and shatl be subject to the same restrictions on
transferability and forfeitability as the shares of Restricted Stock to which the dividend or distribution relates.
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74 Internal Revenue Code Section 83(b) Election. The Plan Committee may provide in an Award
Agreement that the Award of Restricted Stock is conditioned upon the Participant making or refraining from making
an election under Intenal Revenue Code section 83(b). If a Participant makes an election under [nternal Revenue
Code section 83(b) concerning a Restricted Stock Award, the Participant must promptly file a copy of the election
with 1st Financial Services Corporation. . .

ARTICLES .
PERFORMANCE SHARES

8.1 Generally. Subject to the terms, restrictions, and conditions specified in the Plan or the Award
Agreement, the granting or vesting of Performance Shares shall, in the Plan Committee’s sole discretion, be based on
achievement of performance objectives derived from one or more of the Performance Criteria specified in section 8.2.
Performance Shares may be granted (x) to Covered Officers on terms and in a manner that qualifies as performance-
based compensation under Internal Revenue Code section 162(m) or (v) to Employees who are not Covered Officers
on terms and in any manner reasonably determined by the Plan Committee. Unless an Award Agreement provides
otherwise, Performance Shares awarded under this Plan are intended to satisfy the requirements for exclusion from
coverage under Internal Revenue Code section 409A. All Performance Share Award Agreements shall be construed
and administered consistent with that intention. Despite any contrary provision in this Plan, the Plan Committee shall
not have the authority to accelerate the vesting of or to amend a Covered Officer’s Performance Share award
(including but not limited to waiver of performance conditions to vesting) if (x) accelerated vesting or amendment of
the award would disqualify the award from performance-based compensation treatment under Intemal Revenue Code
section 162{m) and (y) all or part of the award would as a result be non-deductible by 1" Financial Services
Corporation under section 162(m). :

8.2 Performance Criteria. (a) Vesting of Performance Shares that are intended to qualify as
performance-based compensation under Internal Revenue Code section 162(m) shall be based on one or more or any
combination of the following criteria (the “Performance Criteria”) and may be applicd solely with reference to 1st
Financial Services Corporation, to a Related Entity, to st Financial Services Corporation and a Related Entity, or
relatively between 1st Financial Services Corporation, a Related Entity, or both and one or more unrclated entities —

)] net carnings or net income (before or afier taxes),

2) eamings per share,

k)] deposit or asset growth,

4) net operating income, .

5) retum measures (including return on assets and equity),

6) fee income, .

U] eamings before or after taxes, interest, depreciation and/or amortization,
g8) interest spread,

9) productivity ratios,

10) share price, including but not limited to growth measures and total stockholder return,
1) expense targets,

12) credit quality,

13) efficiency ratio,

14) market share,

15) customer satisfaction, and

16) net income after cost of capital.

b) Vesting of Performance Shares granted to Participants who are not Covered Officers may be based
on one or more or any combination of the Performance Criteria listed in section 8.2(a) or on other factors the Plan
Committee considers relevant and appropriate.

(c) Different Performance Criteria may be applied to individual Employees or te groups of Employees
and, as specified by the Plan Committee, may be based on the results achieved (x) scparately by Ist Financial Services
Corporation or any Related Entity, () by any combination of 1st Financial Services Corporation and Related Entitics,
or () by any combination of segments, products, or divisions of 1st Financial Services Corporation and Related
Entities.

B-7




(d) The Plan Committee shall make appropriate adjustments of Performance Criteria to reflect the effect
on any Performance Criteria of any stock dividend or stock split affecting 1st Financial Services Corporation common
stock, a recapitalization (including without limitation payment of an extraordinary dividend), merger, consolidation,
combination, spin-off, distribution of assets to stockholders, exchange of shares, or similar corporate change. Also,
the Plan Committee shall make 2 similar adjustment to any portion of a Performance Criterion that is not based on st
Financial Services Corporation common stock but that is affected by an event having an effect similar to those
described. As permitted under Internal Revenue Code section 162(m), the Plan Committee may make appropriate
adjustments of Performance Criteria to reflect a substantive change in an Employee’s job description or assigned
duties and responsibilities. : .

(e) Performance Cnteria shall be established in an associated Award Agreement as soon as
administratively practicable after the criteria are established, but in the case of Covered Officers no later than the
earlier of (x) 80 days after the beginning of the applicable Performance Period and (y) the expirtion of 25% of the
applicable period in which satisfaction of the applicable Performance Criteria is to be determined.

83 Earning Performance Shares. Except as'otherwise provided in the Plan or the Award Agreement,
at the end of each applicable period in which satisfaction of the Performance Criteria is to be determined, the Plan
Committec shall certify that the Employee has or has not satisfied the Performance Criteria. Performance Shares shall
then be — S .

(a) forfeited to the extent the Plan Committee certifies that the Performance Criteria are not satisfied, or

(b) to the extent the Performance Criteria are certified by the Plan Committee as having been satisfied,
distributed to the Employee in the form of shares of Ist Financial Services Corporation common stock (unless
otherwise specified in the Award Agreement) on or before the later of (x) the 15* day of the third month after the end
of the Participant’s first taxable year in which the Plan Committee certifies that the related Performance Criteria are
satisfied and (y) the 15" day of the-ihird month after the end of Ist Financial Services Corporation’s first taxable year
in which the Plan Commitiee certifies that the related Performance Criteria are satisfied. However, the Performance
Shares may be distributed later if Ist Financial Services Corporation reasonably determines that compliance with that
schedule is not administratively practical and if the'distribution is made as soon as.practical.

84 Rights Associated with Performance Shares. During the applicable period in which satisfaction
of the Performance Criteria is to be determined, Performance Shares may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned,
or otherwise alienated or hypothecated. During the applicable period in which satisfaction of the Performance Criteria
is to be dctermined and unless the Award Agreement provides otherwise, Employces may not exercise voting rights
associated with their Performance Shares and all dividends and other distributions paid on Performance Shares shall
be held by st Financial Services Corporation as escrow agent. At the end of the period in which satisfaction of the
applicable Performance Criteria is to be determined, dividends or other distributions held in escrow shall be
distributed to the Participant or forfeited as provided in section 8.3. No interest or other accretion shall be credited on
dividends or other distributions held in escrow. 1f a dividend or other distribution is paid in the form of shares of
common stock, the shares shall be subject to the same restrictions on transferability and forfeitability as the shares of
1st Financial Services Corporation common stock to which the dividend or distribution relates, -

B-8




ARTICLEY
STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS

9.1 SAR Grants. Subject to the terms of the Plan and the associated Award Agreement, the Plan
Committee may grant SARs to Employees at any time during the term of this Plan. Unless an Award Agrecment
provides otherwise, SARs awarded under this Plan are intended to satisfy the requirements for exclusion from
coverage under Internal Revenuc Code section 409A. All SAR Award Agreements shall be construed and
administered consistent with that intention. .

9.2 Exercise Price. The Exercise Price specifted in the Award Agreement shall not be less than 100%
of the Fair Market Value of a share of Ist Financial Services Corporation common stock on the date of grant.

9.3 Exercise and Settling of SARs. SARs shall be exercisable according to the terms specified in the
Award Agreement. A Participant exercising an SAR shall receive whole shares of Ist Financial Services Corporation
common stock or cash (as determined in the Award Agreement) having a value equal to (a) the excess of (x) the Fair
Market Value of a share of 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock on the exercise date over (v} the
Exercise Price, multiplied by (b) the number of shares of 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock for which
the SAR is exercised. The value of any fractional share of 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock
produced by this formula shall be settled in cash.

ARTICLE 10
TERMINATION

10.1 Termination for Cause. (a) [fa Participant’s employment or director service terminates for Cause
or if in 1st Financial Services Cotporation’s judgment a basis for termination for Cause exists, alt Awards held by the
Participant that are outstanding shall be forfeited, regardless of whether the Awards are exercisable and regardless of
whether Participant’s employment or director service with 1st Financial Services Corporation or 2 Related Entity
actually terminates, except that Restricted Stock or Performance Shares that have been released from escrow and
distributed to the Participant shall not be affected by termination for Cause.

(b) The term “Cause” shall mean one or more of the acts described in this section 10.1. However,
Cause shall not be deemed to exist merely because the Participant is absent from active employment during periods of
paid time off, consistent with the applicable paid time-off policy of Ist Financial Services Corporation or the Related
Entity with which the Participant is employed, as the case may be, sickness or illness or while suffering from an
incapacity due to physical or mental illness, including a condition that does or may constitute a Disability, or other
period of absence approved by 1st Financial Services Corporation or the Related Entity, as the case may be:

D an act of fraud, intentional misrepresentation, embezzlement, misappropriation, or
- conversion by the Participant of the assets or business opportunities of Ist Financial Services Corporation or
a Related Entity, -
2) conviction of the Participant of or plea by the Participant of guilty or no contest to a felony
or a misdemeanor,

3) violation by the Participant of the written policies or procedures of Ist Financial Services
Corporation or the Related Entity with which the Participant is employed, including but pot limited to
violation of 1st Financial Services Corporation’s or the Related Entity’s code of ethics,

4) unless disclosure is inadvertent, disclosure to unauthorized persons of any confidential
information not in the public domain relating to 1st Financial Services Corporation’s or a Related Entity’s
business, including all processes, inventions, trade secrets, computer programs, technical data, drawings or
designs, information conceming pricing and pricing policies, marketing techniques, plans and forecasts, new
product information, information concerning methods and manner of operations, and information relating to
the identity and location of all past, present, and prospective customers and suppliers,

5) intentional breach of any contract with or violation of any legal obligation owed to Ist
Financial Services Corporation or a Related Entity,
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6) dishonesty relating to the duties owed by the Participant to 1st Financial Services
Corporation or a Related Entity,

N the Participant’s willful and continued refusal to substantially perform assigned duties,
other than refusal resulting from sickness or illness or while suffering from an incapacity due to physical or
mental illness, including a condition that does or may constitute a Disability, -

. 1 Lo

8) the Participant’s willful engagement in gross misconduct materially and demonstrably

injurigus to 1st Financial Services Corporation or a Related Entity, .

9 the Participant’s breach of any term of this Plan or an Award Agreement,

14) intentional cooperation with a party attempting a Change in Controi of 1st Financial
Services Corporation, usless 15t Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors approves or ratifies the
Participant’s action before the Change in Control or unless the Participant’s coaperation is required by law,
or . .

11) any action that constitutes cause as defined in any writtcn agreement betwecn the
Participant and 1st Financial Services Corporation or a Related Entity.

10.2  Termination for any Other Reason. Unless specified otherwise in the Award Agreement or in
this Plan and except as provided in section 10.1, the portion of a Participant’s outstanding Award that is unvested and
unexercisable when the Participant’s employment or director service terminates shall be forfeited and the portion of
any Restricted Stock Award or Performance Share Award that is unvested and held in escrow shall be forfeited.
Options and SARs that are exercisable when termination occurs shall be forfeited if not exercised before the earlier of
(x) the expiration date specified in the Award Agreement or () 90 days afier the termination date.

ARTICLE 11
EFFECT OF A CHANGE IN CONTROL
1.1  Definition of Change in Contro). The term “Change in Control” shall have the meaning given in
any written agreement between the Employee and Ist Financial Services Corporation or a Related Entity. However, if
an Award is subject to Intenal Revenue Code section 409A, the term Change in Control shall have the meaning given
in section 409A. If an Award is not subject to Internal Revenue Code section 409A and if the term Change in-Controt
is not defined in a written agreement between the Employee and 1st Financial Services Corporation or a Related
Entity, any of the following events occurring on or aﬁer lhe date this Plan becomes effectwe under section 1.2 shall
constitute a Change in Control —

‘(@) °  Change in board compasition. If individuals who constitute Ist Financial Services Corporation’s
board of directors on the date this Plan becomes effective under section 1.2 (the “Incumbent Directors™) cease for any
reason to constitute a majority of the board of directors. A person who becomes a director after the date.this Plan
becomes effective and whose election or nomination for election is.approved by a vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of
the Incumbent Directors on the board of directors shall be deemed 10 be an Incumbent Director. The necessary two-
thirds approval may take the form of a specific vote on that person’s election or nomination or approval of 1st
Financial Services Corporation’s proxy statement in which the person is named as a nominee for director, without
written objection by Incumbent Directors to the nomination. A person elected or nominated as a director of 1st
Financial Services Corporation initially as the result of an actual or threatened director-election contest or any other
actual or threatened solicitation of proxies by or on behalf of any person other than 1st Financial Services
Corporation’s board of directors shall never be considered an Incumbent Director unless at least two-thirds (2/3) of the
Incumbent Directors specifically vote to treat that person as an Incumbent Director.

(b) Significant ownership change, If any person directly or indirectly is or becomes the beneficial
owner bf securities whose combined voting power in the election of. 1st Financial Services Corporation’s directors is —

1)) 50% or more of the combined voting power of all of 1st Financial Services Corporation’s
outstanding securities eligible to vote for the election of 1st Financial Services Corporation directors,
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2) 25% or more, but less than 50%, of the combined voting power of all of st Financial
Services Corporation’s outstanding securities eligible to vote in the election of st Financial Services
Corporation’s directors, except that an event described in this paragraph (b)(2) shall not constitute a Change
in Control if it is the result of any of the followmg acquisitions of Ist Financial Servuces Corporation’s
. securities ~ . ' .

{(a) by 1st Financial Services Corporation or a Related Entity, reducing the number of
15t Financial Services Corporation securitics outstanding (unless the person thereafter becomes the
beneficial owner of additional securities that are eligiblc to vote in the election of Ist Financial
Services Corporation directors, increasing the person’s beneficial ownership by more than one
percent), :

b by or through an employcc benefit plan sponsored or maintained by st Financial
Services Corporation or a Related Entity and described (or intended to be described) in Iniernal
Revenue Code section 401a), - - ]

(c) by or through an equity compensanon plan maintained by lst Fmanc:al Services
Corporation or a Related Entity, mcludmg this P]an and any program described in Internal Revenue
Code section 423, .

{(d) by an underwnter temporarily holding securities in an offcnng of securities,
' (e). . inaNon-Control Transaction, as defined in section 11.1(c); or - .
{f in a transaction (other than one described in section 11.1(c)) in which securities

eligible to vote in the election of Ist Financial Services Corporation directors are acquired from 1st
Financial Services Corporation, if a majority of the Incumbent Direciors approves a resolution
providing express]y ihat the ncqmsmon shall not constitute a Change in Conrrol.

(c) Merger. Consummation of a merger, consolidation, share exchange or-similar form of corporate
transaction involving Ist Financial Services Corporation or a Related Entity and requiring approval of 1st Financial
Services Corporation’s stockholders, whether for the transaction or for the issuance of securitics in the transaction (a
“Business Combination™), unless immediately after.the Business Combination -

)] more than 50% of the total voting power of either (x) the corporation resulting from
consummation of the Business Combination (the “Surviving Corporation”) or, if applicable, () the ultimate
s parent corporation that directly or indirectly bencficially owns 100% of the voting securities eligible to elect
directors of the Surviving Corporation (the “Parent Corporation™) is represented by securities that were
eligible to vote in the clection of 1st Financial Services Corporation directors and that were outstanding
immediately before the Business Combination (or, if applicable, represented by securities into which the 1st
Financial Services Corporation securities were converted in thé Business Combination), and that voting
power among the holders thereof is in substantially the same proportion as the voling power of securities
eligible to vote in the eléction of 1st Financial Services Corporatlon directors among the holders thereof
|mmedlately bcfore the Business Combination, . -

2) -+ noperson (olher than any cmployce beneﬁt plan sponsored or maintained by the Surviving
Corporation or the Parent Corporation or any employee stock benefit trust created by the Surviving
Corporation or the Parcnt Corporation) directly or indirectly is or becomes the beneficial owner of 25% or
more of the total voting power of the outstanding voting securities eligible to elect directors of the Parent
Corporation (or, if there is no Parent Corporation, the Surviving Corporation), and

3) at least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the Parent Corporation (or, if
there is no Parent Corporation, the Surviving Corporation) were Incumbent Directors when the initial
agreement providing for the Business Combination was approvcd by tst Financial Services Corporation’s
board of directors. . ' Lo .

A Business Combination satisfying all of the critenia specified in clauses (1), (2), and (3) of this section
11.1{c) shall constitute a “*Neon-Control Transaction,” or .

(d) Sale of Assefs. If st Financial Services Corporation’s stockholders approve a plan of complete
liquidation or dissolution of 1st Financial Services Corporation or a sale of all or substanlialiy all of its assets, but in
any case if and only if Ist Financial Services Corporation’s assets are transferred 10 an enmy not owned directly or
.indirectly by 1st Financial Services Corporation or its stockholders.
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11.2  Effect of Change in Control. If a Change in Control occurs, the Plan Committee shall have the
right in its sole discretion to —

(2) accelerate the exercisability of any or all Options or SARs, despite any limitations contained in the
Plan or Award Agreement,

(b) accelerate the vesting of Restricted Stock, despite any limitations contained in the Plan or Award
Agreement,

(c) accelerate the vesting of Performance Shares, despite any limitations contained in the Plan or Award
Agreement, ..

(d) cancel any or all outstanding Options, SARs, unvested Restricted Stock, and Performance Shares in

exchange for the kind and amount of shares of the surviving or new corporation, cash, securities, evidences of
indebtedness, other property, or any combination thereof that the holder of the Option, SAR, unvested Restricted
Stock, or Performance Share would have received upon consummation of the Change-in-Control transaction (the
“Acquisition Consideration’) had the Restricted Stock been vested or had the Option, SAR, or Performance Share
been exercised or converted into shares of 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock before the transaction,
less the applicable exercise or purchase price,

(e) cause the holders of any or all Options, SARs, and Performance Shares to have the right during the
term of the Option, SAR, or Performance Share to receive upon exercise - or cause the holders of unvested Restricted
Stock to receive - the Acquisition Consideration receivable upon consummation of the transaction by a holder of the
number of shares of st Financial Services Corporation common stock that might have been obtained upon exercise or
conversion of all or any portion thereof, less the applicable excreise or purchase price therefore, or to convert the
Stock Option, SAR, unvested Restricted Stock, or Performance Share into a stock option, appreciation right, restricted
share, or performance share relating to the surviving or new corporation in the transaction, or

{f) take such other action as it deems appropnate to preserve the value of the Award to the Participant.

The Plan Committee may provide for any of the foregoing actions in an Award Agreement in advance, may
provide for any of the foregoing actions in connection with the Change in Control, or both. Alternatively, the Plan
Committee shall also have the right to require any purchaser of Ist Financial Services Corporation’s assets or stock, as
the case may be, to take any of the actions set forth in the preceding sentence as such purchaser may determine to be
appropriate or desirable. The manner of application and interpretation of the provisions of this section 11.2 shall be
determined by the Plan Committee in its sole and absolute discretion. Despite any provision of this Plan or an Award
Agreement to the contrary, a Participant shall not be entitled to any amount under this Plan if he or she acted in
concert with any person to effect a Change in Control, unless the Participant acted at the specific direction of Ist
Financial Services Corporation’s board of directors and in his or her capacity as an employee of Ist Financial Services
Corporation or a Related Entity. For purposes of this Plan the term *person™ shall be as defined in section 3(a)(9) and
as used in sections 13(d)(3) and 14(d) (2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the terms “beneficial owner”
and “beneficial ownership” shall have the meaning given in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rule 13d-3
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

The Plan Committee shall not have the discretion, however, to accelerate the vesting or exercisability of any
Award held by a Covered Officer to the extent that (x) the Award is eligible for the exemption of performance-based
compensation from the deduction limitation of Internal Revenue Code section 162(m) and () the existence of the Plan
Committee’s authority to accelerate vesting or exercisability or actual acceleration of vesting or exercisability would
render unavailable for the Award the exemption of performance-based compensation from the deduction limitation of
Internal Revenue Code section 162(m).

ARTICLE 12
AMENDMENT, MODIFICATION, AND TERMINATION OF THIS PLAN

1st Financial Services Corporation may terminate, suspend, or amend the Plan at any time without

stockholder approval, unless stockholder approval is necessary to satisfy applicable requirements imposed by (@) Rule
16b-3 under the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, or any successor rule or regulation, (b) the Internal Revenue Code,
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which requirements may include qualification of an-Award as performance-based compensation under Internal
Revenue Code section 162{m), or (c) any sccurities exchange, market; or other quotation system on or through which
1st Financial Scrvices Corporation’s securitics are listed or traded. However, no Plan amendment shall (x) result in
the loss of a Plan Committee member’'s status as a “non-employee director,” as that term is defined in Rule 16b-3
under the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934 or any successor rule or regulation, (y) cause the Plan to fail to satisfy the
requirements imposcd by Rule 16b-3, or (z) without the affected Participant’s consent (and except as specifically
provided otherwise in this Plan or the Award Agrecment), adversely affect any Award granted before the amendment,
modification, or termination. Despite any provision in the Plan, including this Article 12, to the contrary, 1st
Financial Services Corporation shatl have the right to-amend the Plan and any Award Agreements without additional
consideration to affected Participants if amendment is necessary to avoid penalties arising under Internal Revenue
Code section 409A, cven if the amendment reduces, restricts, of eliminates rights granted under the Plan, the Award
Agreement, or both bcfore the amendmem .

.*ARTICLE 13
ISSUANCE OF SHARES AND SHARE CERTIFICATES . .
Lt ' .

13.1 Issuance of Shares. lst Financial Scrwces Corporation shall-issue or cause to be issued shares of
its common stock as soon as practicable upon exercise or conversion of an Award that is payable in shares of 1st
Financial Services Corporation common stock: No shares shall be issued until full payment is made, if payment is
required by the terms of the Award. Until a stock certificate evidencing the shares is issued and except as otherwise
provided in this Plan, né right to vote or receive-dividends or any other rights as a stockholder shall exist for the shares
of 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock to be issued, despite the exgrcisc or conversion of the Award
payable in shares, except as may be otherwise provided in this Plan. Issuance of a stock certificate shall be evidenced
by the appropriate entry on the books of 1st Financial Services Corporauon or of a duly authorized.transfer agenl of
Ist Financial Services Corporation .

13.2 Delivery of Share Certificates. 1st Financial Services Comporation shall not be required to issue or
deliver any certificates.until all of the. following conditions are fulfilled - . . .

(a) payment in full for the shares and for any tax withholding, .

(b) completion of any -regislration or other qualification of the shares the Plan Committee in its
discretion deems necessary or advisable under any Federa} or state laws or under the ruhngs or rcgulauons of the
Securities and Exchange Commission or any other rcgulalmg body, :

{c) if 1st Financial Services Corporauon common stock is listed on The Nasdaq Stock Market or
another exchange, admission of the shares to listing on The Nasdaq Stock Market or the other exchange,

(d) if the offer and-sale of shares of st Financial Services Corporation common stock is not registered
under the Sccurities Act of 1933, qualification of the offer and salc as a private placement under the Securities Act of
1933 or qualification under another reglstrauon exemption under the Securities Acl of 1933,

(e) obtaining any approval or othcr clearance from any Federal or state governmental agency the Plan
Committee in its discretion determines to be nccessary or ndwsable and

{f) the Plan Commmee is sausﬁed that the issuance and delwery of shares-of 1st Financial Services
Corporation common stock under this Plan complies with applicable Federal, state, or local law, rule, regulation, or
ordinance or any rulc or regulation of any other regulating body, for which the Plan Committee may seck approval of
1st Financial Services Corporation’s counsel.

133 Applicable Restrictions on Shares.- Shares of 1st Financial Services Corporation common stock
issued may be subject to such stock transfer orders and other restrictions as the.Plan Committee may determine are
necessary or advisable under any applicable Federal or state securities law rules, regulations and other requirements,
the rules, regulations and other requircments of The Nasdaq Stock Market or any stock exchange upon which 1st
Financial Services Corporation common stock is listed, and any other applicable Federal or state law. Certificates for
the common stock may bear any restrictive legends the Plan Committee considers appropriate,

..
L .t * * -
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134  Book Entry. Instead of issuing stock certificates evidencing shares, 1st Financial Services
Corporation may use 4 book entry system in which a computerized or manual entry is made in the records of Ist
Financial Services Corporation to evidence the issuance of shares of |st Financial Services Corporation common
stock. 1st Financial Services Corporation’s records are binding on all parties, unless manifest error exists.

ARTICLE 14
MISCELLANEOUS

14.1  Assignability. Except as described in this section or as provided in section 14.2, an Award may not
be transferred except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and an Award may be exercised duning the
Participant’s lifetime solely by the Participant or by the Participant’s guardian or legal representative. However, with
the permission of the Plan Commitiee a Participant or a specified group of Partictpants may transfer Awards other
than Incentive Stock Options to a revocable infer vivos trust of which the Participant is the settlor, or may transfer
Awards other than Incentive Stock Options to a member of the Participant’s immediate family, a revocable or
irrevocable trust established solely for the benefit of the Panticipant’s immediate family, a partnership or limited
liability company whose only partmers or members are members of the Participant’s immediate family, or an
organization described in Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3). An Award transferred to one of these permitted
transferees shall continue to be subject to all of the terms and conditions that applicd to the Award before the transfer
and to any other rules prescribed by the Plan Committee. A permitted transferee may not retransfer an Award except
by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and the transfer by will or by the laws of descent and distribution
must be a transfer to a person who would be a penmitted transferee according to this section 14.1.

142  Beneficiary Designation. Each Participant may name a beneficiary or beneficiaries to receive or to
exercise any vested Award that is unpaid or unexercised at the Participant’s death. Beneficianies may be named
contingently or successively. Unless otherwise provided in the beneficiary designation, each designation made shall
revoke all prior designations made by the same Participant. A beneficiary designation must be made on a form
prescribed by the Plan Committee and shall not be effective until filed in writing with the Plan Committee. 1fa
Participant has not made an ¢ffective beneficiary designation, the deceased Participant’s beneficiary shall be his or her
surviving spouse or, if none, the deceased Participant’s estate. None of 15t Financial Scrvices Corperation, its board
of directors, or the Pian Committee is required to infer a beneficiary from any other source. The identity of a
Participant’s designated beneficiary shall be based solely on the information included in the latest beneficiary
designation form completed by the Participant and shall not be inferred from any other evidence.

14.3 No Implied Rights to Awards or Continued Services. No potential participant has any ciaim er
right to be granted an Award under this Plan, and there is no obligation of uniformity of treatment of participants
under this Plan. Nothing in the Plan guarantees or shall be construed to guarantee that any Participant will receive a
future Award. Neither this Plan nor any Award shail be construed as giving any individual any right to continue as an
Employee or Director of 1st Financial Scrvices Corporation or 8 Related Entity. Neither the Plan nor any Award shall
constitute a contract of employment, and 1st Financial Services Corporation expressly reserves to itself and all Related
Entities the right at any time 10 terminate employees free from liability or any claim under this Plan, except as may be
specifically provided in this Plan or in an Award Agreement.

144  Tax Withholding. (a) Ist Financial Services Corporation shall withhold from other amounts owed
to the Participant or require a Participant to remit to 1st Financial Services Corporation an amount sufficient to satisfy
federal, state, and local withholding tax requirements on any Award, exercise, or cancellation of an Award or purchase
of stock. If these amounts are not to be withheld from other payments due to the Participant or if there are no other
payments due to the Participant, 1st Financial Services Corporation shall defer payment of cash or issuance of shares
of stock until the carlicr of (x) 30 days after the settlement date, or () the date the Participant remits the required
amount.

(b) If the Participant does not remit the required amount within 30 days after the settlement date, Ist
Financial Services Corporation shall permanently withhold from the value of the Awards to be distributed the
minimum amount required to be withheld to comply with applicable federal, state, and local income, wage, and
employment taxes, distributing the balance to the Participant.

{c) In its sole discretion, which may be withheld for any reason or for no reason, the Plan Committee
may permit a Participant to reimburse 1st Financial Services Corporation for this tax withholding obligation through
one or more of the following methods, subject to conditions the Plan Committee establishes —
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1) having shares of stock otherwise issuable under the Plan withheld by 1st Financial Services
Corporation, but only to the ¢xtent of the minimum amount that must be withheld to comply with applicable
state, federal, and local income, employment, and wage tax laws, .

2) delivering to 1st Financial Services Corporation previously acquired shares of 1st Financial
Services Corporation common stock, . .

3) remitting cash to 1st Financial Services Corporation, or
4) remitting a personal check immediately payable to 1st Financial Services Corporation

14.5 Indemnification. Each individual who is or was a member of 13t Financial Services Corporation’s
board of directors or Plan Commitiee shall be indemnified and held harmless by |st Financial Services Corporation
against and from any loss, cost, liability, or expense that may be imposed upon or reasonably incurred by him or her in
connection with or resulting from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding to which he or she may be made a party or in
which he or she may be involved by reason of any action taken or not taken under the Plan as a director of 1st
Financial Services Corporation or as a Plan Committee member and against and from any and ail amounts paid, with
Ist Financial Services Corporation’s approval, by him or her in settlement of any matter related to or arising from the
Plan as a st Financial Services Corporation director or as a Plan Committee member or paid by him or her in
satisfaction of any judgment in any action, suit or procceding relating to or arising from the Plan against him or her as
a Ist Financial Services Corporation director or as a Plan Committce member, but only if he or she gives 1st Financial
Services Corporation an opportunity at its expense to handle and defend the matter before he or she undertakes to
handle and defend it in his or her own behalf, The right of indemnification described in this section is not exclusive
and is independent of any other rights of indemnification to which the individual may be entitled under 1st Financial
Services Corporation’s organizational documents, by contract, as a matter of law, or otherwise,

14.6  No Limitation on Compensation. Nothing in the Plan shall be construed to limit the right of st
Financial Services Corporation to establish other plans or to pay compensation to its employees or dircctors in cash or
property in a manner not expressly authorized under the Plan.

147  Governing Law. The Plan and all agreements hereunder shall be construed in accordance with and
governed by the laws, other than laws governing conflict of laws, of the State of North Carolina. This Plan is not
intended to be governed by the Employee Retirement Income Sccurity Act of 1974, The Plan shall be construed and
administered in a manner consistent with that intent.

148  No Impact on Benefits. Plan Awards are not compensation for purposes of calculating a
Participant's rights under any employee benefit plan that does not specifically require the inclusion of Awards in
benefit calculations. :

149  Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 16b-3. The Plan is intended to comply with all
applicable conditions of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as that rnule may be amended from time 1o time. All transactions involving a Participant who is subject to beneficial
ownership reporting under section 16(a) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934 shall be subject to the conditions sct
forth in Rule 16b-3, regardless of whether the conditions are expressly set forth in this Plan, and any provision of this
Plan that is contrary to Rule 16b-3 shall not apply to that Participant.

14.10  Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m). The Plan is intended to comply with applicable
requirements of section 162(m) for exemption of performance-based compensation from the deduction limitatiens of
section 162(m). Unless the Plan Committee expressly determines otherwise, any provision of this Plan that is contrary
to those section 162(m) exemption reguirements shall not apply to an Award that is intended to qualify for the
exemption for performance-based compensation.

14.11  Successors. All obligations of Ist Financial Services Corporation under Awards granted under this
Plan are binding on any successor to 1st Financial Services Corporation, whether as a result of a direct or indirect
purchase, merger, consolidation, or otherwise of alt or substantially ail of the business or assets of 1st Financial
Services Corporation.
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14.12  Severability. If any provision of this Plan or the application thereof to any person or circumstances
is held to be illegal or invalid, the illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts of this Plan or other
applications, and this Plan is to be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid provision had not been included.

14.13  No Golden Parachute Payments. Despite any provision in this Plan or in an Award Agreement to
the contrary, st Financial Services Corporation shall not be required to make any payment under this Plan or an
Award Agreement that would be a prohibited golden parachute paymenl within the meaning of section 18(k) of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Act.
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APPENDIX C

" 2008 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN
15" FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

When used in this 2008 Empioyee Stock Purchase Plan, the following words, terms, and phrases have the
meanings given in this Article | unless another meaning is expressly provided elsewhere in this document or is clearly
required by the context. When applying these definitions and any other word, t€rm, or phrase used in this 2008
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the form of any word, term, or phrase shall include any and all of its other forms.

L1 Board ieans the board of directors of 1° Financial Services Corporation.

1.2 Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 2s amended or superseded afier the date this Plan
becomes effective, and any applicable rulings or regulations issued under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

1.3 Common Stock means the common stock of the Company. *
1.4 Company means 1® Financial Services Corporation, a North Carolina corporation.
1.5 Compensation means all base, straight-lime, gross camings, but excluding and payments, incorme,

or awards for or associated with overtime, shift premiums and commissions, incentive compensation, incentive
payments, bonuses, equity-based awards, and other awards and compensation.

1.6 Employee means any individual who is an employee of the Company or a Subsidiary for tax
purposes, but excludmg any employee whose customary employment with the Company and Subsidiary(ies) is for
fewer than 20 hours per week. Erployces of a Subsidiary that the Board in its sole discretion designates as ineligible
to participate in the Plan shall not be eligible to participate in their capacity as employees of that incligible Subsidiary.
For purposes of the Plan, the employment relationiship shall be treated as continuing intact while the individual is on
sick leave or other leave of absence approved by the Company, but if the period of leave exceeds 90 days and if the
individual’s right to reemployment is not guaranteed by either statute or contract, the employment relationship shall be
deemed 10 have terminated on the 917 day of leave.

1.7 Fair Market Value means the value of one share of the Common Stock, determined according to
the following rules: (x) if the Common Stock is traded on an exchange or on an automated quotation system giving
closing prices, the reported closing price on the relevant date if it is a trading day and otherwisc on the next trading
day, () if the Common Stock is traded over-the-counter with no reported closing price, the mean between the highest
bid and the lowest asked prices on that quotation system on the relevant date if it is a trading day and otherwise on the
next trading day, or (z) il neither clause (x) nor clause (y) applies, the fair market value as determined by the Plan
Committee in good faith, consistent with rules prescribed under the Code.

1.8 Offering Commencement Date means the first day of each Offering Period.

1.9 Oﬂ'ering Period means a period of approximately six months dunng which funds may be
accumulated for the exercise of options, beginning and ending as follows: begmmng on the first Trading Day on or
afier January | and terminating on the last Trading Day in the period ending June 30, and beginning on the first
Trading Day on or after July 1 and ending on the last Trading Day in the period ending December 31. The duration of
Offering Periods may be changed under section 4.2.

1.10  Participant means an Employee ‘who is eligible under section 3.1 to participate in this Plan and who
clects to participate. No Employee who alone or t'ogelher with any person whose stock would be attributed to the
Employee under Code section 424(d) owns stock possessing 5% or more of the total combined véting power or value
of all classes of stock of the Company shall be eligible for pamclpauon in this Plan For this purpose stock owned
shall include stock the Employee may have the right to acquire under outslandmg optmns warrants or other purchase
or conversion rights.




t.11  Plan means this 1* Financial Services Corporation 2008 Employce Stock Purchase Plan, as the
same may be amended or restated from time to time.

1.12  Plan Committee means a committee consisting entirely of Company directors designated by the
Board.

1.13 Purchase Date means the last Trading Day of each Offering Period.

1.14  Purchase Price means an amount equal to 95% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common
Stock on the Purchase Date.

1.15  Reserves means the number of shares of Common Stock covered by each option under the Plan that
have not yet been acquired by exercise and the number of shares of Common Stock that have been zuthorized for
issuance under the Plan but not yet placed under option.

1.16  Subsidiary mcans Mountain 1* Bank & Trust Company and any corporation, domestic or foreign,
of which not less than 50% of the voting shares are held by the Company or another Subsidiary, whether the
corporation exists now or is hereafter organized or acquired by the Company or the other Subsidiary.

1.17  Trading Day means a day on which national stock exchanges, including Nasdaq, are open for
trading.

ARTICLE 2
PURPOSE, EFFECTIVE DATE, AND TERM

2.1 Purpose. The purpose of this Plan is to give to employees of the Company and Subsidiaries the
opportunity to use accumulated payroll deductions to buy Company Common Stock. The Company intends that the
Plan (x) qualify as an “Employee Stock Purchase Plan™ under Code section 423 and (y) be considered non-
compensatory for purposes of generally accepted accounting principles so that the Company will not be required to
recognize compensation expense for the Plan. Accordingly, the provisions of the Plan shall be construed in a manner
consistent with the requirements of Code scction 423 and with the Company’s desire to avoid compensation expense
associated with the Plan.

2.2 Effective Date. This Plan shall become effective at the first Offering Commencement Date after its
adoption by the Board, subjcct to approval of stockholders in accordance with Treasury Regulation section 1.423-2(c)
within 12 months after Board adoption.

2.3 Term of Plan. Once effective, the Plan shall continue in effect for ten years from the first Offering
Commencement Date unless sooner terminated by the Board under section 6.2,

ARTICLE 3
PARTICIPANTS

kY Eligibility for Participation. (a) On each Offering Commencement Date every person who is an
Employee on that date is eligible to panticipate for the Offering Period beginning with that date, unless the person has
not been an Employee for three or more months on that date. Part-time Employees, meaning any employee whose
customary employment with the Company and Subsidiary(ies) is for fewer than 20 hours per week, are not eligible.

(b) Despite any contrary provision of this Plan, an Employee shall not be granted an option under the
Plan () if immediately after the grant the Employee (or any other person whose stock would be attributed to the
Employee under Code section 424(d)) would own stock, including outstanding options to purchase stock, possessing
5% or more of the total combined voting power or value of all classes of stock of the Company, or (¥} if his or her
options to purchase stock under all employee stock purchase plans of the Company and Subsidiaries, including this
Plan, have a value of $25,000 or more (based on the Fair Market Value of the shares when the option is granted) in the
aggregate for each calendar year in which the option is outstanding at any time.
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3.2 Participation by Submitting a Subscription Agreement. Unless a later time for filing
subscription agreements is fixed by the Board for all eligible Employees for a given Offering Period, an cligible
Employee may become a Participant in the Plan by completing a subscription agreement and filing the subscription
agreement with the Company’s designated human resources representative at least ten business days before the
Offering Commencement Date for the Offering Period in which the eligible Employee desires to be a Participant. The
subscription agreement shall be in the form approved by the Plan Committee.

33 Payroll Deductions. (a) When a Participant files his or her subscription agreement with the
Company’s designated human resources representative, the Participant shall elect to have payrotl deductions made on
each payday during the Offering Period in an amount equal to a whole percentage, but not exceeding 15%, of the
Compensation that he or she receives on each payday during the Offering Period. Payroil deductions for a Participant
during an Offering Period shall begin with the first payroll date occurring on or after the applicable Offering
Commenceritent Date and shall end on the last payroll date occurring on or before the Purchase Dale of the Offering
Period to which the authorization is applicable, unless sooner terminated by the Participant as provided in section 3.5.

(b) A Participant may not change the rate of his or her payroll deductions for an Offering Period during
that Offering Period, but a Participant may change the rate of his or her payroll deductions for the next Offering
Period by submitting a new subscription agreement at least ten days before the Offering Commencement Date of the
next Offering Period. A Participant’s subscription agreement shall remain in effect for successive Offering Periods
unless terminated as provided in section 3.5 or replaced by a new subscription agreement as provided in this section
3.3(b) for future Offering Periods.

(c) Despite any contrary provision in this Plan however, a Participant’s payroll deductions may be
decreased to 0% of Compensation at any time during an Offering Period if necessary to comply with Code section
423(b)(8) and section 3.1(b) of this Plan. If that occurs, payroll deductions shall begin again at the rate provided in
the Participant’s subscription agreement at the beginning of the first Offering Period scheduled to end in the next
calendar year, unless terminated by the Participant as provided in section 3.5.

34 Accounts and Reports. Individual accounts shall be maintained for each Participant. All payroll
deductions made for a Participant shall be credited to his or her account under the Plan. A Participant may not make
any additional payments into the account. A Participant’s account is merely a bookkeeping account maintained by the
Company, the account is not a trust fund of any kind, and conceming the account the Participant shall be a general
unsecured creditor of the Company. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary shall be obligated to segregate or hold
in trust or escrow any funds in a Participant’s account. Except for amounts not expended because of the Plan rule that
fractional shares shall not be purchased; no amount of a Participant’s accumulated payroll deductions shall be carried
over from the end of one Offering Period to the beginning of another. Statements of account shall be given to
Participants at least annually, which statements shall set forth the amount of payroll deductions, the Purchase Price,
the number of shares purchased and the remaining cash balance, if any.

s Withdrawal; Termination of Employment. (a) By written notice delivered to the Company’s
designated human resources representative, at any time until the 14® calendar day before the Purchasc Date of an
Offering Period, a Participant may withdraw all but not less than all of the payroll deductions credited to his or her
account for that Offering Period and not yet used 1o exercise his or her option under the Plan. All of the Participant’s
payroll deductions credited to his or her account shall be paid to the withdrawing Participant prompily after receipt of
notice of withdrawal. The withdrawing Participant’s option for the Offering Period shall automatically be terminated
and no further payroll deductions for the purchase of shares shall be made for the Offering Period. If a Participant
withdraws from an Offering Period, payroll deductions shall not resume at the beginning of the next Offering Period
or any Offering Period thereafter unless the Participant delivers to the Company a new subscription agreement.

(b) A Participant’s withdrawal from an Offering Period shall not have any effect upon his or her
eligibility to participate in any Offering Period that begins after termination of the Offering Pcriod from which the
Participant withdraws.

(c) If a Participant ceases to be an Employee for any reason on or before a Purchase Date of an Offering
Period, he or she shall be deemed to have elected to withdraw from the Plan, the Participant’s option shall be
automatically terminated, and the payroli deductions credited to the Participant’s account during the Offering Period
shall be retumed o thc Participant or, in the case of his or her death, to the person or perscns entitled thereto under
Article 5.
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3.6 . Interest. No interest shall accrue on the payroll deductions of a Participant or on a Participant’s
account balance. :

3.7 Use of Funds. All payroll deductions received or held by the Company under the Plan may be used
by the Company for any corporate purpose;and the Company shall not be obligated to segregate payroll deductions.

" . ARTICLE4
OFFERING PERIOI? AND PURCHASE-OPTION

L

4.1 Shares Reserved. The maximum number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock available for
sale under the Plan is 100,000 shares, subject to adjustment for changes in capitalization of the Company as provided
in section 4.5, Shares sold under the Plan may consist in whole or in part-of authorized and unissued shares or shares
held in treasury by the Company. If on a given Purchase Date the number of shares for which options are to be
exercised exceeds the number of shares then available under the Plan, the Company shall make a pro raia allocation
of the shares remaining available for purchase in a manner as uniform as is practicable and as the Company

determines to be equitable. v

4.2 Offering Periods. ‘The Plan shall be implemented by consecutive Offering Periods of six months’
duration, with a new Offering Period beginning on the first Trading Day on or after January | and July 1 each year, or
on such other date as the Board shall determine; provided, however, that the first Offering Period shall begin on a
Trading Day specified by the Board and the first Offering Period may be of less than six months® duration. The Board
shall have the power to change the duraticn and timing of future Qffering Periods without stockholder approval.

4.3 Option Gract.  Subject to the limitations in sections 3.1(b) and 3.5 and 4.1, on the Offering
Commencement Date of each Offering Period, each Participant in that Offering Period shall be granted an option to
purchase at the Purchase Price on the Purchase Date of the Offering Period a number of shares of Common Stock
determined by dividing (x) the Participant’s payroll deductions accumulated before the Purchase Date for that
Offering Period and retained in the Participant’s account as of the Purchase Date by (y) the applicable Purchase Price.

4.4 Option Exercise. (a) Unless a Participant withdraws from the Plan as provided in section 3.5 and
except as necessary to ensure compliance with Code section 423, including but not limited to section 423(b)(8), a
Participant’s option for the purchase of shares shall, be exercised automatically on the Purchase Date. The maximum
number of whole shares subject to option shall be purchased for the Participant at the applicable Purchase Price with
the accumnulated payroll deductions in the Participant’s account. No fractional shares shall be purchased. Any payroll
deductions accumulated in a Participant’s account that are insufficient to purchase a whole share shall be retained in
the Participant’s account for the next Offening Peniod, subject to earlier withdrawal by the Paniicipant as provided in
section 3.5. During a Participant’s lifetime, a Participant’s option to purchase shares under this Plan is exercisable
solely by the Participant.

(b) As a condition to the exercise of an option, the Company may require the person exercising the
option to represent and warrant that the shares are being purchased solely for investment and without any present
intention to seli or distribute the shares if, in the opinion of counse] for the Company, such a representation is required
by the Securities Act of 1933 and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

(c) A Participant shall have no interest or voting right in shares he or she has the right to acquire by
option exercise until the option is exercised,

(d) When an option is exercised in whole or in part or when some or all of the Common Stock issued
under the Plan is disposed of, the Participant must make adequate provision for federal, state, or other tax withholding
obligations, if any, arising upon the exercise of the option or the disposition of the Common Stock. The Company
may but shall not be obligated to withhold from the Participant’s compensation the amount necessary for the
Company to satisfy applicable withholding obligations related to the Participant’s tax obligations, including any
withholding required to make available to the Company any tax deductions or benefits attributable to sale or carly
disposition of Common Stock by the Panticipant that may be available 10 the Company.

4.5 Changes in Capitalization, Dissolution, or Merger or Asset Sale. (a) Changes in capitalization.
Subject to any required action by stockholders of the Company, the number of shares reserved under section 4,1, the
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maximum number of shares each Participant may purchase in an Offering Period, and the price per share of Common
Stock covered by each option that has not yet been exercised shall be proportionately adjusted for any increase or
decrease in the number of issued shares of Common Stock resulting from a stock split, reverse stock split, stock
dividend, combination or reclassification of Common Stock, or any other increase or decrease in the number of shares
of Common Stock effected without receipt of consideration by the Company; provided, however, that issuances of
stock through equity-based compensation plans and conversion of convertible securities shall not be deemed to have
been effected without receipt of consideration by the Company. Any adjustment required under this section 4.5 shall
be made by the Board, whose determination shall be final and binding on all parties. Except as expressly provided in
this Plan, no issuance by the Company of shares of stock of aniy class or of securities convertible into shares of stock
of any class shall affect the number or price of shares of Common Stock subject to an option or require any other
adjustment under this section 4.5. A change in capitalization shall have no effect on the $25,000 maximum stated in
section 3.1(b), which shall remain fixed.

{b) ‘Dissolution or Liquidation. 1f the Company proposes to dissolve or liquidate, the Offering Period
then in progress shall be shortened by setting a new Purchase Date (the “New Purchase Date™), and shall terminate
immediately before the consummation of the proposed dissolution or liquidation, unless provided otherwise by the
Board. The New Purchase Date shall be before the date of the Company’s proposed dissolution or liquidation. At
least ten business days before the New Purchase Date, the Board shall notify cach Participant in writing that the
Purchase Date for the Participant’s option has been changed to the New Purchase Date and that the Participant’s
option will be exercised automatically on the New Purchase Date, unless before the New Purchase Date the
Participant withdraws from the Offering Period as provided in section 3.5.

(c) Merger or Asset Sale. 1f a merger of the Company with or into another corporation occurs, and if
the Company is not the surviving entity in the merger, or if sale of all or substantially all of the asscts of the Company
occurs, each outstanding option shall be assumed or an equivalent option shall be substituted by the successor
corporation or a Parent or Subsidiary of the successor corporation. If the successor corporation refuses 1o assume the
option or substitute equivalent options, the Offering Period then in progress shall be shortened by setting a new
Purchase Date (the “New Purchase Date™). The New Purchase Date shall be before the date of the Company’s
proposed sale or merger. At least ten business days before the New Purchase Date, the Board shall notify each
Participant in writing that the Purchase Date for the Participant’s option has been changed to the New Purchase Date
and that the Participant's option wili be exercised automatically on the New Purchase Date, unless before the New
‘Purchase Date the Participant withdraws from the Offering Period as provided in section 3.5.

r . ' :

4.6 ° Delivery. (a) Aspromptly as practicable after each Purchase Date on which a purchase of shares
occurs, the Company shall arrange the delivery o each Participant, to his or her broker, or to a broker designated by
the Plan- Committee, of a stock certificate representing the shares purchased by exercise of the Participant’s option.
Shares may be registered in the Participant’s name or joinily in the name of the Participant and his or her spouse as
joint tenants with right of survivorship.

(b) - Shares shall not be issued unless the option exercise and the issuance and delivery of the shares will
comply with all applicable provisions'of law, domestic or foreign, including without limitation the Securities Act of
1933, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and the requirements of
any stock exchange on which the shares may then be listed, and shall be further subject to the approval of counsel for
the Company to ensure legal compliance.
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ARTICLE 5
BENEFICIARIES AND TRANSFERABILITY

5.1 Designation of Beneficiary, A Participant may file with the Company’s designated human
resources representative a written designation of a beneficiary to receive shares, if any, from the Participant’s Plan
account in case the Participant’s death occurs afier a Purchase Date but before delivery of shares to the Paniicipant.
Likewise, a Participant may file with the Company’s designated human resources representative a written designation
of a beneficiary to receive cash from the Participant’s Plan account in case the Participant’s death occurs before
exercise of the option. Ifa Participant is married but the designated beneficiary is not the spouse, written consent of
the spouse shall be necessary for the Panticipant’s beneficiary designation to be effective.

5.2 Change of Beneficiary Designation. A Participant may change his or her beneficiary designation
at any time by written notice. If the Participant dies without a valid beneficiary designation or if the designated
beneficiary predeceases the Participant, the Company shall deliver the Participant’s shares and the Participant’s cash
to the personal representative of the Participant’s estate. 1f to the best of the Company’s knowledge no such personal
representative has been appointed, the Company may in its discretion instead deliver the shares and cash to the
Participant’s spouse. . . ..

' . -ARTICLE 6:

MISCELLANEQUS
6.1. Non-Transferability. Neither payroll deductions credited to a Participant’s account nor any right

1o exercise an option or reccive shares under the Plan may be assigned, transferred, pledged, or otherwise disposed of
by the Participant in any way other than.by will, the laws-of descent and distribution, or as provided in section 5.1.
Any attempt at assignment, transfer, pledge, or other disposition shall be disregarded, but the Company may treat the
attempt as an election to withdraw funds from an Offering Period in accordance with section 3.5. -

6.2 Amendment or Termination. (a) The Board may at any time and for any rcason terminate or
amend the Plan. Except as provided in section 4.5 no such termination shall affect options previously granted, but the
Board may terminate an Offering Period on any Purchase Date if the Board determines that termination of the
Offering Period or the Plan is in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. Except as provided in section
4.5, no amendment may make any change in a Participant’s option if the amendment adversely affects the
Participant’s rights under the option. If the Board determines that stockholder approval of the amendment is
necessary to comply with Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or Code section 423 {or any other
applicable law, regulation, or stock exchange rule), the amendment shall not become effective unless stockholder
approval is first obtained as required. .

(b) Without shareholder consent and without regard to whether any Participant’s rights may be
considered to have been adversely affected, the Board shall be entitled to (w) change the Offering Periods, the
maximum amount of permitted payroll deductions, and the frequency and number of permitted changes in the amount
withheld during an Offering Period, (x) permit payroll withholding-exceeding the amount designated by a Participant
in order to adjust for delays or mistakes in the Company's processing of properly completed withholding elections, ()
establish reasonable waiting and adjustment periods and accounting and crediting procedures to ensure that amounts
applied to the purchase of Common Stock for each Participant properly correspond with amounts withheld from the
Participant’s Compensation, and (z) establish such other limitations and procedures as the Board determines in its sole
discretion are advisable.

{c) If the Board determines that the ongoing operation of the Plan may result in unfavorable financial
accounting consequences, the Board may, in its discretion and to the extent the Board determined to be necessary or
desirable, modify or amend the Plan to reduce or eliminate the unfavorable accounting consequences including, but
not limited to -

(x) altering the Purchase Price for any Offering Period, including an Offering Period under
way at the time of the change in Purchase Price, or

) shortening any Offering Period so that the Offering Period ends on a new Purchase Date,
including an Offering Period under way at the time of the Board action,
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The Board’s modification or amendment of the Plan shall not require stockholder approval or the consent of
any Plan Participant.

6.3 Plan Administration. The Plan shall be administered by the Plan Committee. The Plan Commitiee
shall have full and exclusive discretionary authority to construe, interpret, and apply the terms of the Plan, to
determine eligibility, and to adjudicate all disputed claims filed under the Plan. Every finding, decision, and
determination made by the Plan Committee shall be final and binding upon ail parties.

6.4 Notices. All notices or other communications by a Participant to the Company shall be deemed to
have been duly given when received in the form specified by the Company at the location or by the person designated
by the Company for the receipt thereof.

6.5 Additional Restrictions of Rule 16b-3. The terms and conditions of options granted hereunder to,
and the purchase of shares by, Company directors and officers who are subject to section 16 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 shall comply with the applicable provisions of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 16b-
3. In the cases of Company directors and officers who are subject to section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, this Plan and options issued to them shall be deemed to contain and the shares issued to them upon exercise of
such options shall be subject to such additional conditions and restrictions as may be required by Rule 16b-3 to qualify
for the maximum exemption from Securitics Exchange Act section 16 for Plan transactions by them or on their behalf.

6.6 Stockholder Approval. Continuance of the Plan shall be subject to approval by the Company’s
stockholders within 12 months after the date the Plan is adopted by the Board.
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Sclected Financial Information and Other Data

(dollars in thousands, except share, per share and nonfinancial data)
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PART1
ITEM 1. Description of Business
General

Mountain 1* Bank & Trust Company (the “Bank"} was incorparated under the laws of the state of North Carelina on April 30,
2004 and opened for business on May 14, 2004 as a North Carolina chartered commercial bank. The Bank is engaged in general
commercial banking primarily in nine western North Carolina counties including Buncombe, Cleveland, Haywood, Henderson,
McDowell, Polk, Rutherford, Transylvania and Watauga. The Bank.operates under the banking laws of North Carolina and the rules
and regulations of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC"), The Bank is headquartered at 101 Jack Street,
Hendersonville, North Carolina 28792. ' .

As a North Carolina bank, the Bank is subject to examination and regulation by the FDIC and the North Carolina Commissioner
of Banks. The Bank is further subject to certain regulations of the Federal Reserve governing reserve requirements to be maintained
against deposits and other matters. The business and regulation of the Bank are also subject to legislative changes from time to time.
See “SUPERVISION AND REGULATION.”

The Bank’s primary market area is southwestern North Carolina. Its main office and Hendersonville South office are located in
Hendersonville, North Carolina. The Bank also has full service branch offices in Arden, Asheville, Boone, Brevard, Cotumbus,
Etowah, Forest City, Fictcher, Marion, Lake Lure, Shelby and Waynesville, North Carolina. The Bank’s loans and deposits are
primanly gencrated from within its local market areas.

During 2007, the Bank continued to experience accelerated growth. At December 31, 2007, the Bank’s assets totaled $606.5
million representing an increase of $130.1 million or 27.3% as compared with year end 2006 assets of $476.4 miltion. Net income for
the year ended December 31, 2007 totaled $3.5 million as compared with $2.8 million for 2006, representing an increase of 27.3%.
Diluted earnings per share totaled $0.66 for 2007 compared with $0.51 per diluted share for 2006 for an increase of 29.4%. At
December 31, 2007, the Bank’s gross loans totaled $521.9 million as compared with $379.2 million while deposits amounted to
$529.1 million as compared with $424.5 million and stockholders’ equity increased to $46.2 million from $43.0 million. These totals
represent increases of $142.7 million or 37.6%, $104.6 million or 24.7% and $3.2 million or 7.5%, respectively.

The Bank's primary source of revenue is interest and fee income from its lending activities. These lending activities consist
principatly of originating commercial operating and working capital loans, residential mortgage loans, home equity lines of credit,
other consumer loans and loans secured by commercial real estate. Current lending strategy targets 2 loan to asset ratio of 75% to
B2%. It is management’s opinion that maintaining a loan to asset ratio in this range maximizes eamings potential while still providing
adequate liquidity for the safe and sound operation of the Bank. At December 31, 2007, the Bank’s gross loan to asset ratio was
86.19, slightly above this target range, principally as a result of the loans currently being warehoused for Live Qak Bank (proposed)
as discussed elsewhere herein. These loans are expected to be sold to Live Qak upon its receipt of a banking charter. Excluding these
loans, the ratio of loans to assets would have been 80.3%. At December 31, 2007, the largest amount the Bank had outstanding to any
ane borrower and its affiliates was approximately $7.1 million.

Interest and dividend income from investment activities gencrally provides the second largest source of income to the Bank after
interest on loans. Management has chosen to introduce little credit risk into the Bank's investment portfolio and as such it is
comprised of debt and mortgage backed securities issued by agencies of the United States and Government Sponsored Enterprises. As
a result of this strategy, the Bank has been able to avoid deteriorating credit issues and associated losses sustained recently by many
institutions that invested in non-government guaranteed securities. Management expects to continue this practice for the foreseeable
future. Furthermore, management has chosen to maintain a relative[y short duration with respect to the investment portfolio as a
whole. While this strategy has resulted in a slight reduction in portfolio yield, it has reduced the market price volauhty and
consequently, mark to market charges against the Bank's capital.

Deposits are the primary source of the Bank's funds for lending and other investment purposes. The Bank atiracts both short and
long-term deposits from the general public by offering a varicty of accounts and rates. In addition to noninterest bearing checking
accounts, the Bank offers statement savings accounts, negotiable order of withdrawal accounts, money market demand accounts, fixed
interest rate certificates with varying maturities and IRA deposit accounts. During the fourth quarter of 2007 a significant change
occurred within the financial markets as a result of the sub-prime mortgage crisis with its ensuing adverse effect on liquidity within
the market as a whole. The changes experienced within the financial markets with respect to liquidity created a critical funding
challenge especially for larger banks. As a result, many of these larger institutions reverted to local and regionalized CD markets to
fill their liquidity shortfalls. As a result, during late 2007 and early 2008, these banks dramatically changed the pricing dynamics of
many of the markets in which the Bank operates. Management has made a strategic decision to apply a disciplined pricing philosophy
with respect to both loan and deposit pricing. Particularly relating to CD pricing during this period of market disruption, management
has opted to begin to utilize lower cost whoiesale sources of funds rather than pay the higher premiums en CDs which have been
manifested as a result of actions taken by larger bank competitors. Management believes that CD pricing will revert to a more
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normalized level as liquidity returns to fixed income markets during 2008. Accordingly, during the fourth quarter of 2007, the Bank
initiated its first use of wholesale funding. At December 31, 2007, a single advance had been made with the Federai Home Loan Bank
of Atlanta in the amount of $15 million. Management expects to continue to utilize this and other wholesale sources as long as the
liquidity and pricing disruption in the Bank's core CD markets persists, and may selectively use brokered deposits and internet
deposits.

Throughout most of its history, the Bank has operated in an environment of rising interest rales. However, during the last
quarter of 2007, the Federal Reserve’s Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) began 1o reduce short term interest rates in response
to a weakening economy. Heretofore, management had structured the Bank's balance sheet with a relatively short duration. Interest
rate risk, while relatively neutral, has been maintained with a slightly asset sensitive bias since the Bank’s inception. Management
considers this configuration to be favorable in most interest rate environments. The primary exception to this approach is a scenario in
which short term inlerest rates are driven down dramatically and rapidly. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2007 and continuing into
early 2008, the FOMC began the most dramatic reduction in short term interest rates experienced in the U.S. in decades. In four
months beginning with the fourth quarter of 2007, short term interest rates were reduced by 225 basis points with another 50 basis
point reduction expected by the markets before the end of the first quarter of 2008. As a result of this unprecedented drop in shont
term interest rates and the asset sensitive structure of the Bank's balance sheet, management expects the Bank’s eamings to be
adversely impacted for at least the first half of 2008 until sufficient maturities occur in the Bank's CD portfolio to allow for repricing
at lower markel rates.

Competition and Market Area

Commercial banking in North Carolina is highly competitive, due in large part to our state’s early adoption of statewide
branching. Over the years, federal and state legislation (including the elimination of restrictions on interstate banking) has heightened
the competilive environment in which all financial institations conduct their business, and the potential for competition among
financial institutions of al! types has increased significantly. '

Banking also is highly competitive in our market. North Carolina is home to scveral of the largest commercial banks in the
United States all of which have branches located in our nine county banking market. We compete with numerous national, regional
and community commercial banks in our markets as well as several savings institutions.

Interest rates, both on loans and deposits, and prices of fee-based services are significant competitive factors among financial
institutions generally. Other important competitive factors include office location, office hours, quality of customer service,
community reputation, continuity of personnel and services, and in the case of larger commercial customers, relative lending limits
and the ability to offer sophisticated cash management and other commercial banking services. Many of our competitors have greater
resources, broader geographic markets, more extensive branch networks, and higher lending limits than we do. They also may offer a
broader menu of products and services and can better afford and make more effective use of media adventising, support services, and
clectronic technology than we can. In terms of assets, we are one of the smaller commercial banks in North Carolina, and we cannot
assure you that we will be or continue to be an effective competitor in our banking market. However, we believe that community
banks can compete successfully by providing personalized service and making timely, local decisions, and that further consolidation
in the banking industry is likely to create additional opportunities for community banks to capture deposits from customers who
become dissatisfied as their financial institutions grow larger. We'also believe that the continued growth of our banking market
affords an opportunity to capture new deposits. '

Substantially all of our customers are individuals and small and medium-sized businesses. We differentiate ourselves from our
larger competitors with our focus on relationship banking, personalized service, direct customer contact, and our ability to make credit
and other business decisions locally. We also depend on our reputation as a community bank in our banking market, our involvement
in the communities we serve, the experience of our senior management team, and the quality of the members of our teams charged
with the day to day operation of the Bank. We believe our focus allows us to be more responsive to our customers’ needs and more
flexible in approving loans and customizing deposit products based on our personal knowledge of our customers.

The Bank's primary market area is the southwestern mountain region of North Carolina. The economy of the area is generally
considered stable and growing. The primary economic drivers of the area are tourism and a burgeoning retirement industry which has
provided a significant stimulus to residential and resort development. Although this area has relatively few large manufacturing
facilities, it has numerous small to mid-sized businesses, which are our primary business customers. These businesses include
agricultural producers, artisans and specialty craft manufacturers, small industrial manufacturers, and a variety of service oriented
industries. Although there are numerous financial institutions that have operations in our area, only four other community commercial
banks are headquartered in any of these counties.

Services

Our banking operations are primarily retail oriented and directed toward small to medium-sized businesses and individuals
located in our banking markets. We derive the majority of our deposits and loans from customers in our banking markets, but we also
make loans and have deposit relationships with commercial and consumer customers in areas surrounding our immediate banking
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markets. We provide most traditional commercial and consumer banking services, but our principal gctivities are taking demand and
time deposits and making commercial and consumer loans. Qur primary source of revenue is the interest income we derive from our
lending activities.

Lending Activities

General. We provide a variety of commercial and consumer lending products to small to medium-sized businesses and
individuals for various business and personal purposes, including term and instaliment loans, business and personal lines of credit,
equity lines of credit and overdraft checking credit. For financial reporting purposes, our loan portfolio generally is divided into real
estate loans, consumer installment loans, commercial and industrial foans (including agricultiral production loans if any), and
revolving consumer related plans. We currently make credit card services available to our customers through a correspondent
relationship. Staiistical information about our loan portfolio is contained in ltem 7 of this report under the caption “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Real Estate Loans. Our real estate loan classification includes all loans secured by real estate. Real estate toans include loans
made to purchase, refinance, construct or improve residential or commercial real estate, for real estate development purposes, and for
various other commercial, agricultural and consumer purposes (which may or may not be related to our real estate collateral). On
December 31, 2007, loans amounting to approximately 83.1% of our loan portfolio, excluding loans held for sale, were classified as
real estate loans. This compares with 80.8% at December 31, 2006 and 84.3% at December 31, 2005. While we do originate long
term fixed rate residential mortgages, we generally do not retain these loans in the Bank's loan pontfolio. Rather, these are sold on a
flow basis 10 other lenders after closing and are reflected in the accompanying financial statements as “Loans held for sale”. This
arrangement permits us to make long-term residential loans available to our customers and to generate fee income while avoiding
credit and interest rate risks associated with such loans in oirr loan portfolio. At December 31, 2007, the Bank had a totai of $72.4
million in residential first mortgages in the toan portfolio amounting to approximately 14.0% of the total portfolio which compares
with $49.8 million or 13.3% or the portfolio at December 31, 2006. These loans are predominantly variable rate or short maturity
mortgages.

Commercial real estate and construction loans typically involve larger loan balances concentrated with single borrowers or
groups of related borrowers. Repayment of commercial real estate loans may depend on the successful operation of income producing
properties, a business, or a real estate project and therefore may, to a greater extent than in the case of other loans, be subject to the
risk of adverse conditions in the economy generally or in the real estate market in particular.

Construction lcans involve special risks because loan funds are advanced on the secunty of houscs or other improvements that
are under construction and are of uncertain value before construction is complete. For that.reason, it is more difficult to evaluate
accurately the total loan funds required 1o complete a project and the related loan-to-value ratios. To reduce these risks, we generally
limit construction loan amounts to 85% of the cost of the projected “as built” appraised value of our collateral upon completion of
construction. For larger projects, we include amounts for contingencies in our construction cost estimates. We also generally require a
qualified permanent financing commitment from an outside lender,unless we have agreed to convert the construction loan to
permanent financing ourselives.

On December 31, 2007, our construction and acquisition and development loans (consumer. and commercial) amounted to
$159.1 million or approximately 30.8% of our loan portfolio, excluding loans held for sale. This compares with approximately 35.2%
of the portfolio at December 31, 2006. Other commercial real estaie loans totaled $164.9 million or approximately 31.9% of our loan
portfolio at the end of 2007. This compares with 26.2% of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2006.

Real estate loans also include home equity lines of credit that generally are used for consumer purposes and usually are secured
by junior liens on residential real property. Our commitment on each line is for a term of 15 years. During the terms of the lines of
credit, borrowers may either pay accrued interest only (calculated at variable interest rates), with their outstanding principal balances
becoming due in full at the maturity of the lines, or they may make monthly payments of principal and interest equal to 1.5% of their
outstanding balances. On December 31, 2007, our home equity lines of credit accounted for approximaiely $24.4 million or 4.7% of
our loan portfolio as compared with $17.8 mitlion or 4.7% at December 31, 2006.

Many of our real estate loans, while sccured by real estate, were made for purposes unrelated to the real estate collateral. This
generally reflects our efforts to reduce credit risk by taking real estate as additional collateral, whenever possible, without regard to
loan purpose. Substantially all of our real estate loans are secured by real property located in or near our banking markets. Our real
estate loans may be made at fixed or variable interest rates, and they generally have maturities that do not exceed five years (with the
exception of home equity lines of credit as discussed above) and provide for payments based on typical amortization schedules of 25
years or less. A real estate loan with a maturity of more than five years or that is based on an amortization schedule of more than five
years generally will include contractual provisions that allow us to call the loan in full, or provide for a “balloon™ payment in full, at
the end of a period generally not exceeding five years.

Consumer Installment Loans. Our consumer installment loans consist primarily of loans for various consumer purposes, as
well as the outstanding balances of non-rea! estate secured consumer revolving credit accounts. A majority of these loans are secured
by liens on various personal assets of the borrowers, but they also may be made on an unsecured basis. On December 31, 2007, our
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consumer installment loans totaled $6.5 million or 1.3% of the loan portfolio as compared with $7.2 million or approximately 1.9% of
our loan portfolio at the end of 2006. In addition to loans classified on our books as consumer installment loans, many of our foans
included in the real estate loan classification arc made for consumer purposes but are classified as real estate loans on our books
because they are secured by first or junior liens on real estate. Consumer loans generally are made at fixed interest rates and with
maturities or amortization schedules that generally do not exceed five years. However, consumer-purpose loans sccured by real estate
(and, thus, classified as real estate loans as described above) may be made for terms of up to 20 years but under terms that allow us to
call the loan in full, or provide for a “balloon” payment, at the end of a period of generally no more than five years.

Consumer installment loans are considered to involve greater risks than other loans, particularly in the case of loans that are
unsecured or secured by depreciating assets. When damage or depreciation reduces the value of our collateral below the unpaid
balance of o defaulted loan, repossession may not result in repayment of the entire outstanding loan balance. The resulting deficiency
may not warrant further substantial collection efforts against the borrower. In connection with consumer lending in gencral, the
success of our loan collection efforts is highly dependent on the continuing financial stability of our borrowers, and our collection of
consumer instaliment loans may be more likely to be adversely affected by a borrower’s job loss, illness, personal bankrupicy or other
change in personal circumstances than is the case with other types of loans.

Commercial and Industrial Leans. Our commercial and industrial loan classification includes loans to small to medium-sized
businesses and individuals for working capital, equipment purchases and various other business and agricultural purposes. This
classification excludes loans secured by real estate. These loans generally are secured by business assets, such as inveatory, accounts
receivable, equipment or similar assets, but they also may be made on an unsecured basis. On December 31, 2007, our commercial
and industrial loans totaled $80.9 million and accounted for approximately 15.6% of the Bank's loan portfolio. This compares with
$64.9 million or approximately 17.3% of our loan portfolio at December 31, 2006. In addition to loans classified on our books as
commercial and industrial loans, many of our loans included in the real estate loan classification are made for commercial or
agricultural purposes but are classified as real estate loans on our books because they are secured by first or junior liens on real estate.
Commercial and industrial loans may be made at variable or fixed rates of interest. However, any loan that has a maturity or
amortization schedule of langer than five years nermalty will be made at an interest rate that varies with our prime lending rate and
witl include contractual provisions that allow us to call the loan in full, or provide for a “balloon™ payment in full, at the end of a
period generally not exceeding five years. Commercial and industrial loans typically are made on the basis of the borrower’s ability to
make repayment from business cash flow. As a result, the ability of borrowers to repay commercial loans may be substantially
dependent on the success of their businesses, and the collateral for commercial loans may depreciate over time and cannot be
appraised with as much precision as real estate.

Loan Pricing.  Generally, we price our loans based on the level of risk identified in a particular loan transaction within market
constraints and conditions and in cenjunction with objectives established as a part of our asset/liability management function and
annual budgeting process. On December 31, 2007, approximately 64.5% of the total doliar amount of our loans accrued interest at
varioble rates. This is slightly more than the total of approximately 62.7% at December 11, 2006. Management believes that
maintenance of the portfolio at this or higher levels of floating rate loans provides for the best eamings performance under most
economic environments.

Loan Administration and Underwriting. We make loans based, to a great extent, on our assessment of borrowers” income,
cash flow, net worth, sources of repayment and character. The principal risk associated with cach of the categories of our loans is the
creditworthiness of our borrowers, and our loans may be viewed as involving a higher degree of credit risk than is the case with some
other types of loans, such as long-term residential mortgage loans, in which greater emphasis is placed on collateral values. To
manage this risk, we have adopted written loan policics and procedures, and our lean portfolio is administered under a defined
process. That process includes guidelines and standards for Joan underwriting and risk assessment, and procedures for loan approvals,
loan grading, ongoing identification and management of credit deterioration, and portfolio reviews to assess loss expasure and to test
our compliance with our credit policies and procedures.

The loan underwriting standards we use inctude an evaluation of various factors, including a loan applicant’s income, cash flow,
payment history on other debts, and ability to meet existing obligations and payments on the proposed loan. Although an applicant’s
creditworthiness is a primary consideration in the loan approval process, our underwriting process for secured loans also includes an
analysis of the value of the proposed collateral in relation to the proposed loan amount. We consider the value of collateral, the degree
of cerainty of that value, the marketability of the collateral in the event of foreclosure or repossession, and the likelihood of
depreciation in the collateral value. ‘

Our Board of Directors has approved levels of lending authority for lending and credit personnel based on our aggregate credit
exposure to a borrower. A loan that satisfies the Bank's loan policies and is within a lending officer’s assigned authority may be
approved by that officer alone. Loans involving an aggregate exposure to a single relationship in excess of a lending officer’s
authority must be approved by two of three members of the “Officer’s Credit Committee,” consisting of our Chief Executive Officer,
our President and our Chief Credit Officer. This committee has authority up to a total credit exposure amount of $4.0 mitlion. A lean
involving an aggregate exposure to a single relationship over that threshold must be approved by the Loan Committee of our Board of
Directors.




When a loan is made, our lending officer handling that loan assigns it a grade based on various underwriting and other criteria
under our risk grading procedures. Generally, any proposed loan that grades below a threshold set'by our Board of Directors must be
reviewed by a Credit Administration QOfficer before it can be made, even if the loan amount 15 within the loan officer’s approval
authority. The grades assigned to loans we make indicate the level of ongomg review and attention we will give to those loans ro
protect our posilion’ and reduce loss exposure .

After loans are made, they arec rcvxewed by our Cred:l and Loan Administration personnel for adequacy of contract
documentation, compliance with regulatory requirements, and documnentation of compliance with our loan underwriting criteria. Also,
we engage a third party consultant to perform detailed reviews of selected loans based on various criteria, including ioan type, amount,
collateral, and borrower identity, and the paiticular lending officer’s or branch’s lending history. These reviews typically include at
least 10% of the loans made by each lending officer annudlly. The Bank’s policy requires that each loan relationship involving an
aggregate exposure of more than $1.5 million be reviewed at'least annually by a third party credit reviewer. Loan Administration
personnel also periodically review various loans based on various criteria, and we retain the services of at least one third party credit
risk consultant to annually review our problem loans, a random samplmg of perfonming loans related to our larger agpregate credit
exposures, and selected other loans.

During the life of each loan, its grade is reviewed and validated or modified to reflect changes in circumstances and risk. We
generally place a loan on non-accruing staws when it becomes 90 days past due or whenever we believe collection of interest and/or
principal on that loan has become doubtful. We charge off loans when their collection has become doubtful and the loans no longer
can be considered sound collectible assets {or, in the case of unsecured loans, when they become 90 days past due).

Our Chicf Credit Qfficer is charged with monitoring the overall performance of our loan portfolio and the collection activities of
our lending officers, and directly supervises collection actions that involve legal.action or bankrupicies.

Allovance for Loan Losses.  Our Board of Directors reviews all impair'éd loans at least quarterly, and our management reviews
asset quality trends at,least monthly. Based on these reviews and our current judgments about the credit quality of our loan portfolio
and other relevant internal and external factors, we have established an allowance for loan losses. The adequacy of the allowance is
assessed by our management and reviewed by our Board of Directors at least quarterly, On December 31, 2007, our allowance was
$7.6 million and amounted to 1.46% of our total loans excluding loans held for sale. This compares with 1.54% a1 year end 2006. At
December 31, 2007, the Bank had a total of $1.3 million of nonaccruing loans, $984 thousand of which was represented by a single
credit secured by a first lien on commercial property with an appraised value of over $3 million. At that date, the Bank had no
foreclosed or repossessed property or any loans past due 90 days or more. At December 31, 2006, the Bank had no non-accruing
loans and no foreclosed or repossessed property. .

Deposit Activities

Our deposit services include business and individual checking accounts, NOW accounts, money market checking accounts,
savings accounts and certificates of deposit. We monitor our competition in order to keep the rates paid on our deposits at a
competitive level. On December 31, 2007, our time deposits of $100,000 or more amounted to approximatcly $168.9 million or
approximately 31.9% of our total deposits. To date, we have derived substantially all of our deposits from within our banking market.

Statistical information about our deposit accounts is_contained in ltem 7 of this reporl under the caption “Management’s
Discussion and Analysls of Financial Condition and Results of Operanons

L}

Investment Portfolio s -

On. December 31, 2007, our investment portfolio totaled approximately $61.1 million and included morigage-backed securities
guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA™) or issued by the Federal National Mortgage Cerporation
(“FNMA™) and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”) including collateralized mongage obligations. Also included
in the Bank’s investment portfolio are debt instruments issued by Govemment Sponsored Enterprises including FNMA, FHLMC and
FHLB. We have classified all of our securities.as “available for sale,” and we analyze lhcnr performance at least quarterly. Our
securities have vanous interest rate features, mamnty dates and cal! options.

r

Statistical information about our investment ponfoho is contained in llem 7 of this report under the caplion Managemem's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Employees : o ' . . .
At December 31, 2007, the Bank had 148 full-time equivalent employees, including 139 full-time employees (including our

executive officers) and 17 pan-time employees. We are not a party to any collective bargaining agreement with .our employeces, and
we consider our relations with our employees to be good. -




Supervision and Regulation

Our business and operations are subject to extensive federal and state govemmental regulation and supervision. The following
is a brief summary of certain statutes and rules and regulations that affect or will affect the Bank. This summary is qualified in its
entirety by reference to the particular statute and regulatory provisions referred to below and is not intended to be an exhaustive
description of the statutes or regulations applicable to the business of the Bank. Supervision, regulation and examination of the Bank
by the regulatory agencies are intended primarily for the protection of depositors rather than shareholders of the Bank.

General. We are an insured, North Carolina chartered bank. Our deposits are insured under the FDIC’s Deposit Insurance Fund
(“DIF™), and we are subject to supervision and examination by, and the regulations and reporting requirements of the FDIC and the
North Carolina Commissioner of Banks {the “Commissioner"). The FDIC and the Commissioner are our primary federal and state
banking regulators. We are not a member bank of the Federal Reserve System.

As an insured bank, we are prohibited from engaging as principal in any activity that is not permitted for national banks unless
(1) the FDIC determines that the activity or investment would not pose a significant risk to the DIF, and (2) we are, and we continue to
be, in compliance with the capital standards that apply to us. We also are prohibited from directly acquiring or retaining any equity
investment of a type or in an amount that is not permitied for national banks. '

The FDIC and the Commissioner regulate all areas of our business, including our payment of dividends and other aspects of our
operations. They examine us regularly, and we must furnish them with periodic reports containing detailed financial ard other
information about our affairs. The FDIC and the Commissioner have broad powers to enforce laws and regulations that apply to us
and Lo require us to correct conditions that affect our safety and soundncss. These powers include issuing cease and desist orders,
imposing civil penalties, removing officers and directors, and otherwise intervening in our operation if they believe their examinations
of us, or the reports we file, indicate a need for them to exercise these powers.

Our business also is influenced by prevailing economic conditions and governmental policies, both foreign and domestic, and by
the monetary and fiscal policies of the Federal Reserve Board. Although we are not a member bank of the Federal Reserve System,
the Federal Reserve Board’s actions and policy directives determine to a significant degree the cost and availability of funds we obtain
from money market sources for lending and investing. These actions and policy directives also influence, directly and indirecdy, the
rates of interest we pay on our lime and savings deposits and the rates we charge on loans.

Capital Requirements for the Bank. The Bank, as a North Carolina commercial bank, is required to maintain a surplus account
equal to 50% or more of its paid-in capital stock. As a North Carolina chartered, FDIC-insured comunercial bank that is not a member
of the Federal Reserve, the Bank is also required to comply with the capital adequacy standards established by the FDIC. The FDIC
has issucd risk-based capital and leverage capital guidelines for measuring the adequacy of a bank's capital, and all applicable capital
standards must be satisfied for us to be considered in compliance with the FDIC's requirements.

Under the FDIC's risk-based capital measure, the minimum ratio of a bank's total capital ("Total Capital") to its risk-weighted
assets {including various off-balance-sheet items, such as standby letters of credit) ("Total Capital Ratio") is 8.0%. At least half of
Total Capital must be composed of common equity, undivided profits, minority interests in the cquity accounts of consolidated
subsidiaries, qualifying noncumulative perpetual preferred stock, and a limited amount of cumulative perpewal preferred slock, less
goodwill and various other intangible assets ("Tier | Capital®). The remainder ("Tier 2 Capital”) may consist of certain subordinated
debt, certain hybrid capital instruments and other qualifying preferred stock, and a limited amount of loan loss reserves.

Under the FDIC's leverage capital measure, the minimum ratio of Tier | Capital to average assets ("Leverage Capital Ratio"),
less goodwill and various other intangible asscts, generally is 3.0% for banks that meet specified criteria, including having the highest
regulatory rating. All other banks generally are required to maintain an additional cushion of 100 to 200 basis points above the stated
minimum. However, during their first three years of operations, newly organized banks are expected to maintain Leverage Capital
Ratios of at least 8.0%. The FDIC's guidelines also provide that banks experiencing internal growth or making acquisitions will be
expected 1o maintain strong capital positions substantially above the minimum levels without significant reliance on intangible assets,
and a bank's "Tangible Leverage Ratio” (deducting all intangible assets) and other indicators of a bank's capital strength also will be
taken into consideration by banking regulators in evaluating proposals for expansion or new activities.

The FDIC also considers a bank’s interest rate risk (arising when the interest rate sensitivity of a bank's assets does not match the
sensitivity of its liabilities or its off-balance-sheet position) in the evaluation of its capital adequacy. The FDIC's methodology for
cvaluating interest rate risk requires banks with excessive interest rate risk exposure to hold additional amounts of capital against their
exposure to losses resulting from that risk. The regulators also require banks to incorporate market risk components into their risk-
based capital. Under these market risk requirements, capital is allocated to support the amount of market risk related 10 a bank's
trading activities. ..




The Bank's capita) category is determined solely for the purpose of applying the FDIC's "prompt corrective action® rules
described below, and it is not necessarily an accurate representation of our overall financial condition or prospects for other purposes.
A failure to meet the FDIC's capital guidelines could subject us to a variety of enforcement remedies, including the FDIC's issuance of
a capital directive, the termination of deposit insurance by the FDIC, a prohibition on the taking of brokered deposits, and other
restrictions on our business. As'described below, the FDIC also can impose other substantial restrictions on banks that fail to meet
applicable cepital requirements. The Bank exceeded all apphcablc capual requirerients to mee! the regulatory classification of “well
capitalized™ as of December 31, 2007. . .

Prompt Corrective Action. The. FDIC has broad powers.to take corrective action to resolve the problems of insured depository
institutions. The extent of these powers will depend upon whether the institution in question is “well capitalized,” “adequately
capitalized,” “undercapitalized,”. “significantly undercapitalized” or “critically undercapitalized.” The FDIC is required to take
various mandatory supervisory actions, and is authorized to take other discretionary actions, with respect to banks in the three
undercapitalized categories. The severity of supervisory action will depend upon the capital category in which a bank is placed.
Generally, subject to a narrow exceptlon current federal law requires the FDIC to appoint a receiver or conservator for a bank that is
cnhcally undercapitalized:

Under the FDIC's prompt cerrective action rules, an institution is considered “well capitalized” if it has (i} a total risk-based
capital ratio of 10.0% or greater, (ii} a Tier | risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% or greater, (iii) a leverage ratio of 5.0% or greater and (iv)
is not subject to any order or written directive to meet and maintain a specific capital level for any capital measure. An “adequately
capitalized” institution is defined as one that has (i) a total risk-bascd capital ratio of 8.0% or greater, (ii) a Tier | risk-based capital
ratic of 4.0% or-greater and (iii) a leverage ratio of 4.0% or greater (or 3% or greater in the'case of an institution with the highest
examination rating). An institution is considered (A) “undercapitalized” if it has (i) a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 8%, (ii)
a Tier I risk-bascd capital ratio of less than 4% or (iii) a leverage ratio of less than 4% {or 3% in the case of an institution with the
highest examination rating); (B) “significantly undercapitalized” if the institution has (i) a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 6%,
or (ii) a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of less than 3% or (jii) a leverage ratio of less than 3% and (C} “critically undercapltahzed“ if
the institution has a ratio of tangible equity to total assets equal to or less lhan 2%

-A bank that is categorized as undercapuahzed " "signifi canlly undercap:tallzed crilically undercapitalized,” is required to
submit an ecceptable capital restoration plan to the FDIC.- An "undercapitalized" bank also is generally prohibited from increasing its
average total assets, making acquisitions, establishing any branches, or engaging in any new line of business, except in accordance
with an accepted capital restoration plan or with the approval of the FDIC. [n addition, the FDIC is given authority with respect to any

"undercapitalized” bank to take any of the actions it is required to or may take with respect to a “'significantly undercapitalized” bank
ifit delermmes that those actions are necessary to carry out the purpose of the law,

Limitations on Payment of Cash Dividends. Under Nonh Carolina law, commercial banks, such as the Bank, may pay dividends
only from undivided profits. However, if our surplus is less than 50% of our paid-in capital stock, our directors may not declare any
cash dividend until we have transferred from undivided profits to surplus 25% of our undivided profits or any lesser percentage
necessary to raise our- surplus to an amount equal to 50% of our paid-in capital. In our case, the Commissioner’s approval of our
organization during 2004 was conditioned on’the requirement that, for a period of three years following the time we began banking
operations, we nol pay any.cash dividend without the Commissioner’s prior approval. This prohibition expired on April 30, 2007 and
the Board of Directors announced the Bank's first cash dividend in the fourth quarter of 2007. While a cash dividend has been paid,
management expects the Bank to maintain an above average growth rate for the foreseeable future. Therefore, management
anticipates that any further cash dividends paid for the foreseeable future will be nominal and that the majority of the Bank's earnings
will be retained to support expected growth.
. » . . . : :

In addition to these restrictions, other state and federal statutory arid regulatory restrictions apply to our payment of cash
dividends on our common stock. As an insured depository institution, federal law prohibits us from making any capital distributions,
including payment of a cash dividend, if we are “undercapitalized” (as that term is defined in the Federal Deposit Insurance Act), or
would become undercapitalized after making the distribution. .Also, the FDIC has indicated that paying dividends that deplete.a
depository institution’s capital base to an inadequate level would be an unsafe and unsound banking practice. The FDIC has issued
policy statements that provide that.insured banks generally should pay dividends only from their current operating carnings, and,
under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, no dividend may be paid by an insured bank while it is in default on any assessment due the
FDIC. If the FDIC believes that we are engaged in, or are about to engage in, an unsafe or unsound practice, the FDIC may require,
after notice and hearing, that we cease and desist from that practice. Our payment of dividends also could be affected or limited by
other factors, such as events or circumstances which lead the FDIC to require (as further described below) that we maintain capital in
excess of regulatory guidelines. In the future, our ability to declare snd pay cash dividends will be subject to our Board of Directors’
evalualion of our operating results, capital levels, financial condition, future growth plans, general business and economic conditions,
and tax and other relevant considerations. We cannot assure you that, in the future, we will have funds available 1o pay cash dividends
or that, even if funds are available, we will pay dividends in any particutar amourts or at any particular times, or that we will pay
dividends at all.
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FDIC Insurance Assessments. Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 (“FDIRA™), the FDIC uses a revised risk-
based assessment system to determine the amount of our deposit insurance assessment based on the evaluation of the probability that
the DIF will incur a loss with respect to the Bank. That evaluation 12kes into consideration risks attributable to different categories
and concentrations of our assets and liabilities and any other factors the FDIC considers to be relevant, including information obtained
from the Commissioner. A higher assessment rate results in an increase in the assessments we pay the FDIC for deposit insurance.

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, the FDIC may terminate our deposit insurance if it finds that we have engaged in
unsafe and unsound practices, are in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operation, or have violated applicable laws,
regulations, rules, or orders.

The FDIC is responsible {or maintaining the adequacy of the DIF, and the amount we pay for deposit insurance is influenced not
only by the assessment of the risk it poses to the DIF, but also by the adequacy of the insurance fund at any time to cover the risk
posed by all insured institutions. FDIC insurance assessments could be increased substantially in the future if the FDIC finds such an
increase to be necessary in order to adequately maintain the DIF,

Community Reinvestment. Under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA"), as implemented by regulations of the FDIC, an
insured institution has a continuing and affirmative obligation consistent with its safe and sound operation to help meet the credit
needs of its entire community, including low and moderate income neighborhoods. The CRA does not establish specific lending
requirements or programs for financial institutions, nor does it limit an institution’s discretion to develop, consistent with the CRA, the
types of products and services that it believes are best suvited to its particular community. The CRA requires the federal banking
regulators, in connection with their examinations of insured institutions, to assess the inslitutions' records of meeting the credit needs
of their communities, using the ratings of “outstanding,” “satisfactory,” ‘needs to improve,” or “substantial noncompliiance,” and to
take those records into account in its evaluation of certain applications by those institutions. All institutions are required to make
public disclosure of their CRA performance ratings. In its most recent CRA cxamination, Moumain 1® was rated as satisfactory.

LLINYY

Federal Securities Law. The Bank's common stock is registered under Section 12(g) of the Secunties and Exchange Act, and the
Bank files periodic reports under the Exchange Act with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.  As a result of such regiswation,
the proxy and tender offer rules, insider trading reporting requirements, annual and periodic reporting and other requirements of the
Exchange Act are applicable to the Bank. .

Transactions with Aff lmtes - Although we are not a- member of-the Federal Reserve System we are subject to the provisions of
Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act. Section 23A places limits on the amount of:

A bank’'s loans or extensions of credit to, or investment in its affiliates;
Assets a bank may purchase from affiliates, except for reat and personal property exempted by the Federal Reserve Board;
The amount of loans or extensions of credit by 2 bank to third parties which are collatcrahzcd by the securities or obligations
of the bank's affiliates; and

* A bank's guarantee, acceptance, or letter of credit issued on behalf of one of its affiliates.

Transactions of the type described above are limited in amount, as to any one affiliate, to 10% of a bank’s capital and surplus
and, as to all affiliates combined, to 20% of a bank’s capital and surplus. In addition to the limitation on the amount of these
transactions, each of these trarisactions also must meet specified collateral reqmremems We must also comply with other provisions
designed to avoid purchasing low quality assets from an affiliate.

Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act, among other things, prohibits a bank from engaging in these affiliate transactions unless
the transactions are on terms substantially the same, or at least as favorable to the bank or its subsidiaries, as those prevailing at the
tlime for comparable transactions with nonaffiliated companies.

Federal [aw also places restrictions on our ability to extend credit to our executive officers, directors, principal shareholders, and
their related interests. These extensions of credit (1) must be made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and
collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated third parties, and (2) must not involve more than
the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features.

Loans to'One Borrower. The Bank is subject to the Commissioner's loans to one borrower limits, which are substantially the same
as those applicable to national banks. Under these limits, no loans or exlensions-of credit 1o any barrower outstanding at one time and
not fully secured by readily marketable collateral shall exceed 15% of the unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus of the bank.
Loans and extensions of credit fully secured by readily marketable collateral may comprise an additional 10% of unimpaired capital
and unimpaired surplus.
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Reserve Requirements. Under Federal Reserve Board regulations, we must maintain average daily reserves against our transaction
accounts. We are not required to maintain reserves on the first $9.3 million of transaction accounts, but must maintain reserves equal
to 3.0% on the aggregate balances of those accounts between $9.3 million and $43.9 million, and reserves equal to 10.0% on
aggregate balances in excess of $43.9 million. The Federal Reserve Board may adjust these percentages. Because our reserves are
required to be maintained in the form of vault cash or in a non-interest-bearing account at a Federal Reserve Bank or a cotrespondent
bank, one effect of the reserve requirement is to reduce the amount of our interest-earning assets. At December 31, 2006, the Bank’s
reserve requirements cxceeded cash maintained in the Bank’s vault by a total of $1.5 million. This additional reserve requirement was
maintained in a segregated account with a correspondent bank on behalf of the Federal Rescrve Bank. During 2007, the Bank adopted
an internal deposit reclassification system (approved by the Federal Reserve Board of Govemors under Regulation D) whereby
significant portions of interest bearing and noninterest bearing transaction accounts are transferred to a non-reservable savings account
status. As a result, all required reserves at December 31, 2007 were met by the Bank’s vault cash.

Interstate Banking and Branching. The Bank Holding company Act, as amended by the interstate banking provisions of the Riegle-
Neal Interstatc Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the “Interstate Banking Law™), generally permmits adequately
capitalized and managed bank holding companies to acquire control of the assets of other banks, including branches, in any state.
Acquisitions are subject to antitrust provisions that cap at 10.0% the portion of the total deposits of insured depository institutions in
the United States that a single bank holding company may control, and generally cap at 30.0% the portion of the total deposits of
insured deposuory institutions in 2 state that a single bank holding company may control. Under certain circumstances, states have the
authority to increase or decrease the 30.0% cap, and states may set minimum age requirements of up to five years on target banks
within their borders. .

Subject to certain conditions, the Interstate Banking Law also permits interstate branching by allowing a bank in onc state to
merge with a bank located in a different state. Each state was allowed to accelerate the effective date for interstate mergers by
adopting a law authorizing such transactions prior to June 1, 1997, or it could “opt out™ and thereby prohibit interstate branching by
enacting legislation to that effect prior to that date. The [nterstate Banking law also pcrmits banks to establish branches in other states
by opening new branches or acquiring existing branches of other banks, provided the laws of those other states specifically pemit that
form of interstate branching. North Carolina has adopted statutes which, subject to certain conditions, authorize out-of-state bank
holding companies and banks to acquire or merge with North Carolina banks and to establish or acquire branches in North Carolina.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. The federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act enacted in 1999 (the “GLB Act”) dramatically changed various
federal laws governing the banking, securities and insurance industries. The GLB Act permits bank holding companies to become
“financial holding companies™ and, in general (1) expands opportunities to affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies; (2)
overrides certain state laws that would prohibit certain banking and insurance affiliations; (3) cxpands the activities in which banks
and bank holding companies may participate; (4) requires that banks and bank holding companies engage in some activities only
through affiliates owned or managed in accordance with certain requirements; and (5) reorganizes responsibility among various
federal regulators for oversight of certain securities activities conducted by banks and bank holding companies. The GLB Act has
expanded opportunities for banks and bank holding companies to provide services and engage in other revenue-gencrating activities
that previously were prohibited to them. However, this expanded authority also presents us with new challenges as our larger
compemors are able to expand their services and producis into areas that are not feasible for smatler, community oriented financial

institutions.

USA Patriot Act of 2001, The USA Patriot Act of 2001 was cnacted in response to the terrorist attacks that occurred in the United
States on September 11, 2001. The Act is intended to strengthen the ability of U.S. law enforcement and the intelligence community to
work cohesively (o combat terrorism on a variety of fronts. The Act's impact on financial institutions of all kinds is significant and
wide ranging. The Act contains sweeping anti-money laundering and financial transparency requlrcmcms and imposes various other
regulatory requirements, including standards for verifying customer identification at account opening and rules to promote cooperation
among financial institutions, regulators, and law enforcement entities in identifying parties that may be involved in terrorism or money
laundering.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which became effective during 2002, is sweeping federal legislation
addressing accounting, corporete govermnance and disclosure issucs. The impact of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act is wide-ranging as it
applies to all public companies and imposes significant new requirements for public company govemance and disclosure
requirements.

In general, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act mandated corporate governance and financial reporting requirements intended to enhance the
accuracy and transparency of public companies’ reported financial results. It established new responsibilities for corporate chief
executive officers, chief financial officers and audit committees in the financial reporting process and created a new regulatory body to
oversee auditors of public companies. It backed these requirements with new SEC enforcement toots, increased criminal penalties for
federal mail, wire and securities fraud and created new criminal penalties for document and record destruction in connection with
federal investigations. It also increased the opportunity for more private litigation by lengthening the statute of limitations for
securities fraud claims and providing new federal corporate whistleblower protection.
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The Act also required that the various securities exchanges, including The Nasdaq Stock Market, prohibit the listing of the stock
of an issuer unless that issuer complics with various new corporate govemance requirements imposed by the exchanges, including the
requirement that various corporate matters (including executive compensation and board nominations) be approved, or recommended
for approval by the issuer’s full board of directors, by directors of the issuer who are "indcpendent” as defined by the exchanges’ rules
or by committecs made up of "independent” directors. ‘

The economic and operational effects of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act on public companies, including the Bank, have been and will
continue to be significant in terms of the time, resources and costs associated with compliance. Because the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, for
the most part, applies equally to larger and smaller public companies, we will be presented with additional challenges as a smaller,
community-oriented financial institution seeking to compete with larger financial institutions in our market. The Bank excceded the
threshold established for accelerated filing and was therefore required to fully comply with the Act in 2006. In addition to substantial
internal resources required to fully comply with this regulation, direct accounting and other cosls associated with compliance were
substantial. Management estimaies the total cost of compliance with this regulation to be between 5% to 10% of the Bank’s net
income for 2007 and 2006.

Available Iaformation. Our Internet website address is www.mountainlst.com. Electronic versions of our annual report on Form 10-
K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reponts filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act are available on our website, We will provide electronic or paper copies of those filings
free of charge upon request. Requests for copies should be directed by mail to Sherrie Rogers, Corporate Secretary at 101 Jack Street,
Hendersonville, North Carolina 28792, or by telephone at (828) 697-3100.

Other. The federal banking agencies, including the FDIC, have developed joint regulations requiring annual examinations of all
insured depository institutions by the appropriate federal banking agency, with some exceptions for small, well-capitalized institutions
and swate chartered institutions examined by state regulators. Such regulations also establish requirements for operational and
managerial standards, asset quality, eamings and stock valuation standards for insured depository institutions as well as compensation
standards when such compensation would endanger the insured depository institution or would constitute an unsafe practice.

In addition, the Bank is subject to various other state and federal laws and regulations, including state usury laws, laws relating
to fiduciaries, consumer credit and equal credit, fair credit reporting laws and laws relating to branch banking. The Bank, as an insured
North Carolina commercial bank, is prohibited from engaging as a principal in activities that are not permitted for national banks,
unless (i) the FDIC determines that the activity would pose no significant risk to the appropriate deposit insurance fund and (ii) the
Bank is, and continues to be, in compliance with all applicable capital standards.

Under Chapter 53 of the North Carolina General Statutes, if the capital stock of a North Carolina commercial bank is impaired
by losses or otherwise, the Commissioner is authonzed to require payment of the deficiency by assessment upon the bank’s
shareholders, pro rata, and to the extent necessary, if any such assessment is not paid by any shareholder, upon 30 days notice, to sell
as much as is necessary of the stock of such shareholder to make good the deficiency.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

The following summary describes factors we believe are material risks that apply to our business. Qur discussions of these risks
include forward-looking statements, and our actual results may differ substantially from results described in the forward-looking
statements. In addition to the risks described below and investment risks that apply in the case of any financial institution, our
business, financial condition and operating results could be harmed by ather risks, including risks we have not yet identified or that
we may believe are immaterial or unlikely.

Risks Related to Our Business

e Qur business strategy includes the continuation of our growth plans, and our financial condition and operating results could
be negatively affected if we fail io grow or fail to manage our growth effectively.

We intend to continue to grow in aur existing banking markets (internally and through additional offices) and to expand into
new markels as appropriate opportunities arise. We have opened fourteen de novo branch offices since May 2004. We currently have
plans for establishing up io three new de novo branch offices 2008. We expect to continue with de nove branching during 2009 and
beyond so long as we can continue to identify and successfully recruit qualified bankers to manage such offices.

Our business prospects must be considered in light of the risks, expenses, and difficuliics frequently encountered by banking
companies that are experiencing rapid growth. We cannot assure you we will be able to expand our market presence in our existing
markets or successfully enter new markets, ar that expansion will not adversely affect our operating results. Failure to manage our
growth effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business, future prospects, financial condition or operating results, and
could adversely affect our ability to successfully implement our business strategy. Also, if our growth occurs more slowly than
anticipated, or declines, our operating results could be materially affected in an adverse way.
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Our ability to successfully grow will depend on a variety of factors, including continued availability of desirable business
opportunities and the competitive response from other financial institutions. Duc to personnel and fixed asset costs of de novo
branching, any new branch offices we establish may operate at a loss until we can establish a sufficient basc of business to operate
profitably. Also, in cstablishing a new office in a new market, we likely would be faced with competitors with greater knowledge of
that local market. Although we believe we have management resources and intermal systems in place to successfully manage our
future growth, we will need to hire and rely on well-trained local managers who have local affiliations and to whom we may need to
give significant autonomy. We cannot assure you that any de novo or other branch office we establish or acquire will not, for some
period of time, operate at a loss and have an adverse effect on our camings, that we will be able to hire managers who can successfully
operate any new branch offices, or that we will become an effective competitor in any new banking market.

e  Qur business depends on the condition of the local and regional economies where we operate,

We currently have offices only in western North Carolina. Consistent with our community banking philosophy, the majority of
our customer base is located in and does business in that region, and we lend a substantial portion of our capital and deposits to
commercial and consumer borrowers in our local banking markets. Therefore, our local and regional economy has a direct impact on
our ability to generate deposits to support loan growth, the demand for loans, the ability of borrowers to repay loans, the value of
collateral securing our loans (particularly loans secured by real estate), and our ability to collect, liquidate and restructure possible
problem loans. The local economics of the communities in our banking markets are relatively dependent on the tourism industry and
are becoming more dependent on the development of a burgeoning retirement and sccond home real estate market. [f the economies
of our banking markets are adversely affected by a general economic downturn or by other specific events or trends, including a
significant decline in the tourism industry or a substantial decline in demand for or valuc of rcal cstate in our communities, the
resulting economic impact could have a direct adverse cffect on our operating results. Adverse economic conditions in our banking
markets could reduce our growth rate, affect the ability of our customers to repay their loans to us, and generally affect our financial
condition and operating results. We are less able than larger institutions to spread risks of unfavorable local economic conditions
across a large number of diversified economies. And, we cannot assurc you that we will benefit from any market growth or favorable
cconomic conditions in our banking markets even if they do occur.

Any adverse market or economic conditions in North Carolina, particularly in the real estate, agricultural or tourism industries,
may disproportionately increase the risk our borrowers will be unable to make their loan payments. Also, the market value of real
estate securing our loans could be adversely affected by unfavorable changes in market and economic conditions. On December 31,
2007, approximately 83.0% of the total dollar amount of our loan portfolio was secured by liens on real estate, with approximately
4.7% of our portfolio representing home equity lines of credit. Our management believes that, in the case of many of those loans, the
real estate collateral is not being relied upon as the primary source of repayment, and those relatively high percentages reflect, at lcast
in part, our policy to take real estate whenever possible as primary or additional collateral rather than other types of collateral.
However, any sustained period of increased payment delinquencies, foreclosures or losses caused by adverse market or economic
conditions in North Carolina could adversely affect the value of our assets, revenues, operating results and financial conditien.

e  Future expansion involves risks.

Our business model is primarily based on growth through de nove branching, however, in the future under select conditions, we
may be presented the opportunity to acquire another financial institution or parts of an institution. We currently have no agreements,
understandings or definite plans for any acquisition, but we will evaluate opportunitics 10 establish or acquirc branches that
complement or expand our business as they arise. While we have no definite plans for any acquisitions or mergers, we are aware that
such transactions involve a totally different risk profile as compared to risks associated with growth through de nove branching.
These risks include:

e we may incur substantial costs in identifying and evaluating potential acquisitions and merger partners, or in evaluating new
markets, hiring experienced local managers, and opening new offices;

e our estimates and judgments used to evaluate credit, operations, management and market risks relating to target institutions
may not be accurate; .

« there may be substantial lag-time between completing an acquisition or opening 2 new office and generating sufficient assets
and deposits to support costs of the expansion;

» we may not be able 1o finance an acquisition, or the financing we obtain may have an adverse effect on our operating results or
ditution to our existing stockholders;

» our management's altention in negotiating a transaction and integrating the operations and personnel of the combining
businesses may be diverted from our existing business;

» we may enter new markets where we lack local experience;

14




e we may introduce new products and services we are not equipped to manage;

« we may incur goodwill in connection with an acquisition, or the goodwill we incur may become impaired, which results in
adverse short-term effects on our operating results; or

« we may lose key employees and customers.

We cannot assure you that we will have opportunities to acquire or establish any new branches, or that we will be able 1o
negotiate, {inance or complete any acquisitions that may become available to us. We may incur substantial costs in cxpanding, and we
cannot assure you thal any expansion will benefit us, or that we will be able to successfully integrate any banking offices that we
acquire into our operations or retain the deposit and loan customers of those offices. Additionally, we may experience distuption and
incur unexpected expenses in any branch acquisitions we complete, which may have a material adverse effect on our business,
operating results or financial condition. Also, we may issue equily securities, including common stock and securitics convertible into
shares of our common stock, in connection with acquisitions, which could cause ownership and economic dilution to you.

e  Building marker share through our de novo branching strategy could cause our expenses (o incregse faster than revenues.

We intend to continue to build market share in western North Carolina through our de novo branching strategy, and we have
identified several sites for possible future de novo branches. There are considerable costs involved in opening branches, and industry
averages indicate that new branches generally do not generate sufficient revenues to offset their costs until they have been in operation
for at least a year. Therefore, any new branches we open can be expected to negatively affect our operating results until those branches
reach a size at which they become profitable. Qur expenses also could be increased if there are delays in opening any new branches.
Finally, we cannot assure you that any new branches we open will be successful, even after they have become established.

¢  Our increasing volume of loans makes loan quality more difficult to control Increased loan losses could affect the value of
our common stock.

While growth in eaming assets is desirable in a community bank, it can have adverse consequences if it is not well managed.
For example, rapid increases in our loans could cause future loan losses if we cannot properly underwrite increasing volwnes of loans
as they are made and adequately monitor a larger loan portfolio to detect and deal with loan problems as they occur. Our business
strategy calls for us to continue to grow in our existing banking markets (internally and through additional offices) and expand into
new markels as appropriale opportunities arise. Because collection problems with some toans often do not arise until those loans have
been in existence for some period of time, we cannot assure you that we will not have future problems coliecting loans that now are
performing according to their terms.

o A concentration in loans secured by real estate, particularly construction and acquisition and development loans could
reduce our earnings and could adversely affect the value of our common stock.

As a result of the high demand for real estate in the markets we serve and management's belief that real estate is one of, if not
the most preferred type of collateral with which to secure our lending activities, we have a concentration of loans which are
collateralized by real estate. As a result of demand within our markets, a sizeable portion of these loans are for the acquisition or
development of real estate, including the construction of residential properties, development of subdivisions, construction of
commercizl facilities and for the acquisition of raw land for both development and investment purposes. Any concentration of assets
potentially increases risk in the cvent of a general downtumn in the valuation or desirability of that particular class of assets. In this
case, a general downturn in local real estate valuation could potentiafly have a material adverse impact on the collateral value of the
Bank’s loan portfolio which could potentially impact the overall performance of the loan portfolio, and consequently, the Bank's
profitability and the adequacy of its allowance for loan losses.

Recenily, the FDIC adopted rules aimed at placing additional monitoring and management controls on financial institutions
whose loan portfolios are deemed to have concentrations in commercial real estate (“CRE™). At December 31, 2007, the Bank’s loan
portfolio exceeded the thresholds established by the FDIC for CRE concentrations and for additional regulatory scrutiny. Discussions
with regulators have indicated that strict limitations on the amount or percentage of CRE within any given portfolio are not expected,
but rather additional reporting and analysis will be required to document management's analysis and evaluation of the potential
additiona) risks of such concentrations and the impact of any mitigating faclors. While management has implemented additional
monitoring, reporting and risk analysis of this component of the Bank’s loan portfolic which we think will meet regulatory
requirements, this issue remains fluid as regulator’s view of cconomic conditions and risks within the commercial real cstatc market
change. The final impact on the Bank is yet 10 be determined, and it is possible that regulatory constraints associated with these rules
could adversely affect the Bank’s ability to grow loan assets and thereby limit our overall growth and expansion plans. These rules
could also significanily increase the costs of monitoning and managing this component of the Bank’s loan portfolio. Either of these
eventualities could have an adverse impact on the Bank’s eamings, leverage ratios and subsequently return on equity.



o  Higher loan 1o value ratios on a portion of the Bank's loan portfolio may increase loon portfolio risk and could adversely
impact loan portfolio performance and the profitability and the value of our common stock,

During the Bank’s initial start-up phase during 2004 and 2005, management’s business plan was predicated upon reaching
critical mass as quickly as possible so as to achieve break-even and minimize operating losses and the associated reduction in the
Bank's equity. Therefore, management elected to make a number of exceptions to existing policies with regard to maximum loan to
value ratios of assets used to collateralize some select, high quality credits. At December 31, 2005, these types of loans totaled $64.2
ntillion representing 144.1% of the Bank’s total risk-based capital. During 2006, management determined that a reduction in the
amount of loans with LTV exceptions was warranted to aid in mitigating the real estate concentration risk discussed in the preceding
section. Thercfore, by the end of 2006, loans with LTVs that exceeded regulatory guidelines had been reduced to 87% of risk-based
capital. This was further reduced during 2007 and at December 31, 2007 LTV exceplions totaled only 55.0% of risk-based capital.
Even though this risk has been dramatically reduced with the substantial reduction in LTV exceptions, remaining loans with elevated
LTV ratios could present future additional collection risk which could adversely affect eamings and the financial performance of the
Bank,

e Aninadeguate loan loss allowance would reduce our earnings and could adversely affect the value of our common stock.

We use underwriting procedures and criteria we believe minimize the risk of loan delinquencies and losses, but banks routinely
incur losses in their loan portfolios, and we cannot assure you that all our borrowers will repay their loans. Regardless of the
underwriting criteria we use, we will experience loan losses from time to time in the ordinary course of our business, and some of
those losses will result from factors beyond our control. These factors include, among other things, changes in market, economic,
business or personal conditions, or other events (including changes in market intcrest rates), that affect our borrowers’ abilities to
repay their Joans and the value of properties that collateralize loans. '

We maintain an allowance for loan losses based on our current judgments about the credit quality of our loan portfolio. On
December 31, 2007, our allowance totaled 1.45% of our total loans and 1.46% of loans excluding sold mortgage loans which had not
yet been delivered. At December 31, 2007 the Bank had $1.3 million of nonperforming loans which werc all on non-accruing status.
It should be noted that our allowance is somewhat higher than more mature peer institutions as our loan portfolio, due to the rapid
growth of the Bank, is somewhat unseasoned. This factor, in and of itself, is considered to increase our loan portfolio’s risk profile.

In determining the amount of the allowance, our management and Board of Directors considers relevant internal and external
factors that affect loan collectibility. However, if delinquency levels increase or we incur higher than expected loan losses in the
future, we cannot assure you that our allowance will ‘be adequate to cover resulting losses. Charging future loan losses against the
allowance may require us o increase our provision to the allowance, which would reduce our net income. So, without regard to the
adequacy of our allowance, loan losses could have an adverse effect on our operating results and, depending on the magnitude of those
losses, that effect could be material.

e  Qur recent results may not be indicative of our future results.

Mountain 1 has experienced exceptional performance since its inception. However, it should be noted that we may not be able
to sustain our historical rate of growth or even grow our business at all. Also, our recent and rapid growth may distort some of our
historical financial ratios and statistics. In the future, we may not have the benefit of several recently favorable factors, such as a
generaily stable interest rate environment, a generally strong residential mortgage market, or the ability to find suitable expansion
opportunities. Various factors, such as economic conditions, regulatory and legislative considerations, and competition also may
impede or restrict our ability to expand our market presence. If we experience a significant decrease in our recent rate of growth, our
operating results and financial condition may be adversely affected because a significant percentage of our operating costs are fixed
expenses.

o  We may need to raise additional capital in the future in order to continue to grow, but that capital may not be available when
it is needed,

Federal and state banking regulators require us to maintain adequate levels of capital to support our operations. On
December 31, 2007, our three capital ratios were above “well capitalized” levels under bank reguiatory guidelines. However, our
business strategy calls for us to continue to grow in our existing banking markets (intemally and through additional offices) and 1o
expand into new markets as appropriate opportunities arise. Growth in our eaming assels resulting from intemnal expansion and new
branch offices, at rates in excess of the rate at which our capital is increased through retained earnings, will reduce our capital ratios
unless we continue to increase our capital. [f our capital ratios fall below “well capitalized™ levels, our FDIC deposit insurance
assessment rate would increase until we restored and maintained our capital at a “well capitalized” level. A higher assessment rate
would cause an increase in the assessments we pay the FDIC for deposit insurance, which would adversely affect our operating
results.

If we are able to effectively execute our business plan, in the future we will need to increase our capital to fund additional
growth or satisfy regulatory requirements. Based on management’s current projections, we expect to necd additional capital sometime
in the second half of 2008, Our ability to raise that additional capital will depend on conditions at that time in the capital markets that
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are outside our control, and on our financial performance. We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise additional capital on
terms favorable to us or at ail. If we cannot raise additiona) capital when needed, our ability to expand our operations through internal
growth and acquisitions could be materially impaired.

o  Our prafitability is subject to interest rate risk. Changes in interest rates could have an adverse effect on our operating
results.

Changes in interest rates can have differcnt effects on various aspects of our business, particularly our net interest income. Our
profitability depends, 1o a large extent, on our net interest income, which is the difference between our income on interest-earning
assets and our expense on interest-bearing deposits and other liabilities. Like most financial institutions, we are affected by changes in
general interest rate levels and by other economic factors beyond our control. Interest rate risk arises in part from the mismatch (i.e.,
the interest sensitivity “gap”) between the dollar amounts of repricing or maturing interest-eaming assets and interesi-bearing
liabilities, and is measured in terms of the ratio of the interest rate sensitivity gap to total assets, When meore interesi-caming asscts
than interest-bearing liabilities will reprice or mature over a given time period, a bank is considered asset-sensitive and has a positive
gap. When more liabilities than assets will reprice or mature over a given time period, a bank is considered liability-sensitive and has a
neganve 8ap. A liability-sensitive position (i.e., a negative gap) may generally enhance net interest income in a falling interest rate
environment and reduce net interest income in a rising interest rate environment. An asset-ensitive posmon (l ., a positive gap) may
generally enhance net interest income in a rising interest rate environment and reduce net interest income in a falling interest rate
environment, Qur ability 10 manage our gap position determines 1o a great extent our ability to operate profitably. However,
fluctuations in interest rates are not prcdictablc or controllable, and we cannot assure you we will be able to manage our gap position
in a manner that will allow us 1o remam profitable. '

Since opening the Bank in mid-2004 through the second half of 2006, short term mtereSI rates continually rose. From the
second half of 2006 through the third quarter of 2007 short term interest rates were static, However, during the last quarter of 2007,
the Federal Reserve’s Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) began to reduce short term interest rates in response to a weakening
economy. Heretofore, management has structured the Bank’s balance sheet with a relatively short duration. Interest rate risk, while
relatively ncutral, has been maintained with a slightly asset sensitive bias since the Bank’s inception. Management considers this
configuration to be favorable in most interest rate environments. The primary exception to this is a scenario in which short term
interest rates are driven down dramatically and rapidly. Over the course of four months in late 2007 10 early 2008, the FOMC has
driven down short term interest rates by 225 basis points. This represents the most dramatic reduction in interesi rates in decades. As
a result, managcmcnt expects the Bank’s eamings to be reduced during the first half of 2008 until the Bank's CD portfolio matures
and can be repriced downward toward current market rates.

On December 31, 2007, the Bank remained in a slightly asset sensitive position. This reflects the construct of the Bank’s
balance sheet whereby our interest-caming asscis generally would be expected to reprice at a faster rate than our interest-bearing
liabilities. Therefore, a rising rate environment would generally be expected to have a positive effect on our eamings, while a falling
rate environment generally would be expected to have a negative effect on our eamings. In our interest rate gap analysis, money
market deposit accounts are considered rate sensitive and are placed in the shortest duration period, while negotiable order of
withdrawal or other transaction accounts and regular savings accounts are assumed to be more stable sources that are less price
sensitive and are placed in the five year duration interval. Our managemenl‘s historical experience has shown that changes in market
interest rates have a lesser effect on these type deposits within a given time pcnod and, for that reason, those liabilities could be
considered much less rate sensitive.

If our historical experience with the relative insensitivity of these deposits to changes in market interest rates does not continue
in the future and we experience more rapid repricing of interest-bearing liabilities than interest-earning assets in the near term rising
interest rate environment, our net interest margin and net income may decline.

e  Our reliance on time deposits, including out-of-market certificates of deposit, as a source of funds for loans and our other
liguidity needs could have an adverse effect on our operating results.

To date, we have been able to fund our growth and hquld:ty needs predominantly through deposit gathering activities in our
own markets. ,However, as a result of: the “sub-prime mortgage crisis” and “credit crunch” a disruption in funding for some of the
larger financial institutions occurred in the fourth quarter of 2007. This resulted in some of these institutions becoming more
aggressive in pricing time deposits as they began using CDs to bridge liquidity shortfalls. As a result, the cost of locally gencrated
CDs increased disproportionately during the fourth quarter of 2007. ,Management elected to begin utilizing lower cost wholesale
funding rather than pay unusually high premiums on CDs resulting from this market disruption. At December 31, 2007, the Bank had
outstanding borrowings with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta in the amount of $15 million. Management expects to continue
to use and expand these wholesale funding sources for the foreseeable future and until CD pricing begins to normalize. Accordingly,
we intend to rely on these other funding sources to meet a portion of our loan, liquidity and overall growth requirements for some
period of time. These sources may include brokered centificates of deposit, Internet certificates of deposit, Federal Home Loan Bank
borrowings or other such wholesale sources. These sources may not be as stable as local deposits upon which we have relied 1o date
and we may have to pay a higher raie of interest to keep them or to replace such sources. Not being able to acquire those funding
sources or to keep them as they mature would adversely affect our liquidity. Paying higher deposit rates to attract, keep or replace
thosé funds could have a negative effect on our interest margin and operating results.
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e  Competition from financial institutions and other financial service providers may adversely affect our profitability.

Commercial banking in our banking markets and in North Carolina as a whole is extremely compelitive. In addition to
community, super-regional, naticnal and international commercial banks, we compcete against credit unions, savings and loan
associations, mortgage banking firms, consumer finance companies, securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money market
funds and other mutua! funds. We compete with these institutions in attracting deposits and in making loans, and we have to attract
our customer base from other existing financial institutions and from new residents. Our larger competitors have greater resources,
broader geographic markets and higher lending limits than we do, and they may be able 10 offer more products and services and better
afford and more effectively use media advertising, support services and electronic technology than we can. While we believe we
compete effectively with other financial institutions, we may face a competitive disadvantage as a result of our size, lack of
geographic diversification and inability to spread marketing costs across 2 broader market. Although we compete by concentrating
our marketing efforts in our primary markets with local advertisements, personal contacts and greater flexibility and responsiveness in
working with local customers, we cannot assure you that we will continue to be an effective competitor in our banking markets.

e  Weare subject to extensive regulation that could limit or restrict gur activities and adversely affect our earnings. :

We operate in a highly regulated industry and are subject to examination, supervision and comprehensive regulation by various
federal and state agencies.'Our compliance with these regulations is costly and restricts certain of our activities, including payment of
dividends, possible mergers and acquisitions, investments, loans and interest rates charged thereon, interest rates paid on deposits, and
establishment of new offices. We also are subject to capital guidelines established by our regulators which require us to maintain
adeguate capital to support our growth. Most of these regulations are primarily intended to protect depositors, the public and the
EDIC’s Deposit Insurance Fund rather than stockholders.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the related rules and regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission and
The NASDAQ Stock Market, have vastly increased the scope, complexity and cost of corporate governance, reporting and disclosure
practices, including the costs of completing our audit and maintaining our internal controls.

The laws and regulations that apply to us could change at any time, and we cannot fully predict the effects of those changes on
our business and profitability. However, virtually any newly imposed govenmental regulation is highly likely to create additional
expense to the Bank and in cases such as Sarbanes-Oxley noted above, the cost can be very significant. Implementation and adoption
of regulatory and accounting rules greatly affects the business and financial results of all commercial banks and bank holding
companies, and our cost of compliance would be expected to adversely affect our earnings.

e  Qur management beneficially owns a substantial percentage of our common stock, se our directors and executive officers can
significantly affect voting results on matters voted on by our stockhalders.

On March 1, 2008, our current directors and executive officers, as a group, had the sole or shared right to vote, or to direct the
voting of, an aggregate of 788,013 shares (or 15.8%) of our outstanding common stock. This group could purchase 667,812 additional
shares under currently exercisable stock options they hold. Because of their voting rights, in matters put to a vote of our stockholders,
it could be difficult for any group of our other stockholders to defeat a proposal favored by our management (including the election of

one or more of our directors) or to apptove a proposal opposed by management.
e  Wedepend on the services of our current management team.

Our operaling results and our ability to adequately manage our growth and minimize loan losses are highly dependent on the
services, managerial abilities and performance of our current exccutive officers,  Smaller banks, like us, sometimes find it more
difficult to attract and rétain experienced management personnel than larger banks. We have a highly experienced management team
with 2 demonstrated track record that our Board of Directors believes is capable of managing and growing the Bank. Also, the
successful execution of our business model is predicated on retaining our current management team and complementing it with other
experienced and talented managers. However, changes in key personnel and their responsibilities or the inability to recruit and retain
additional managers may disrupt our business and could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial

condition. :

e  We may need to invest in new technology fo compete effectively, and that could have a negative effect on our operating results
and the value of our common stock. )

The market for financial services, including banking services, is increasingly affected by advances in technology, including
developments in telecommunications, data processing, computers, automation and Internet-based banking. We depend on third-party
vendors for portions of our data processing services. In addition to our ability to finance the purchase of those services and integrate
them into our operations, our ability to offer new technology-based services depends on our vendors’ abilitics to pravide and support
those services. Future advances in technology may require us to incur substantial expenses that adversely affect our operating results,
and our small sizc and limited resources may make it impractical or impossible for us 10 keep pace with our larger competitors. Our
ability to compete successfully in our banking markets may depend on the extent lo which we and our vendors are able to offer new

——————————— |
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technology-based services and on our ability to integrate lcchnologlcal advances into our operations. Managcment currently is
planning to change its core processing vendor and software in 2008 so as to add new functionality, products, services and newer
technology for the Bank’s customer base. This change would require o systems conversion. Any inability of a new vendor to
seamlessly convert and integrate our new processing system may disrupt our business and could have a material adverse effect on our
business, operating results and financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

¢  The trading volume in our common stock has been relatively low, and the sale of a substantial number of shares in the public
market could depress the price of our stock and make it difficult for you to sell your shares.

Our common stock has been quoted “over-the-counter” on the Pink Sheets Electronic Quotation Service and the OTC Bulletin
Board since August 2004. However, our common stock is still relatively thinly traded. Thinly traded stocks can be more volatile than
stock trading in an active public market. We cannot predict the extent to which an active public market for our common stock wil!
develop or be sustained. In recent years, the stock market has experienced a high level of price and volume volatility, and market
prices for the stock of many companies have experienced wide price fluctuations that have not necessarily been related to operating
performance.

We cannot predict what effect future sales of our common stock in the market, or the availability of shares of our common stock
for sale in the market, will have on the market price of our common stock, So, we cannot assure you thai sales of substantial amounts
of our common stock in the market, or the potential for large amounts of market sales, would not cause the price of our common stock
10 decline or potentially impair our ability to raise capital in the future.

o Our ability to pay dividends is limited and we may be unable to pay future dividends.

As discussed above under “Supetvision and Regulation™ in Item 1, our ability to pay cash dividends is limited by regulatory
restrictions as well as the need to maintain sufficient capital. If our capital ratios and regulatory requiretnents are not satisfied, we will
be unable to pay cash dividends on our common stock. '

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

19




ITEM 2. Description of Property

The Bank’s corporate offices arc located in Hendersonville, North Carolina. The Bank currently maintains 14 full service
branch offices and an operations center, all of which are leased by the Bank except for the temporary mobile office facility currently
being utilized in Sheiby, NC. The following table contains information about our branch offices.

Opening date of
original banking Date current
Office location office Owned/Leased (1) | facility leased

140 Airport Road, Suite P
Arden, NC October 2004 Leased (1) 2004
52 Coxe Avenue .
Asheville, NC May 2005 Leased (1) 2005
379 New Market Blvd., Suite 2A
Boone, NC August 2007 Leased (1) 2007
19 Chestnut Sv., Suite 7
Brevard, NC December 2005 Leased (1) 2005
80 Walker Street ’
Columbus, NC January 2005 Leased (1) 2005
6534 Brevard Road
Etowah, NC May 2006 Leased (1) 2006
3270 Hendersonvilie Road
Fletcher, NC September 2005 Leased (2) 2005
102 West Main St.
Forest City, NC : July 2007 Leased {1) 2007
101 Jack Street (Corporate Headquarters
and Main Qffice)
Hendersonville, NC November 2004 Leased (1) 2004
203 Greenville Highway
Hendersonviile, NC May 2004 Leased (1) 2004
2564 Memonal Hwy,
Lake Lure, NC April 2007 Leased (1) 2007
{74 Highway 70 West
Marion, NC May 2006 Leased (3) 2006
760 South Lafayette Street
Shelby, NC September 2006 Qwned 2006
1637 South Main Strect
Waynesville, NC August 2004 Leased (1) 2004

(1) Leased from a third party.
(2) Lessed from a Dircctor of the Bank on terms comparable 1o third party leases.
(3) Leased from a company of which a Director of the Bank is co-owner

In addition to our branch offices listed above, the Bank is currently constructing a permanent branch office in Shelby NC.
Currently, this office is being operated from a temporary facility on an adjoining commercial lot. Management expects the permanent
facility to become operational carly in the second quarter of 2008. Management expects o sell and lease back this facility upon its
completion. The Bank is also currently considering the purchase or lease of additional facilities in various locations in western North

Carolina.

All the Bank’s existing branch offices are in good condition and fully equipped for the Bank’s purposes. At December 31, 2007,
the total net book value (cost less accumnulated depreciation) of the Bank’s fumniture, fixtures, leasehold improvements and equipment
was approximately $6.6 million. Additional information about this property is sct forth in Nete 6 to the Financial Statements
contained in this Form 10-K, which note is incorporated herein by reference. Any property acquired as a result of foreclosure or by
deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as Other Real Estate Owned until such time as it is sold or otherwise disposed of by the Bank
1o recover its investment. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank had no assets classified as Other Real Estate Owned.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to any legal proceeding that is expected to have a matenial cffect on our financial condition or results of
operations.
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ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Bank dunng the fourlh quaner of thc fiscal year ended December
31, 2007.. .

PART Il . '

ITEM 5. Market for Common Eguity and Related Stockholder Matters and Small Business Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities :

There currently is a limited local trading market for the Bank's common stock, and there can be no assurance that a more active
market will develop. The Bank's common stock is traded over-the-counter with quotations available ent the OTC Bulletin Board and
the Pink Sheets Electronic Quotation Service under the symbol “MOBT.” FIG Partners is the primary market maker for the Bank's
common stock. There were 2,663 stockholders of record as of December 31, 2007, not including the persons or entities whose stock is
held in nominee or “street™ name and by various banks and brokerage firms.

The table below presents the reported high and tow closing prices and the cash dividend declared .per share-for the Bank’s
commen stock for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. These prices have been adjusted to reflect the three stock
splits paid in the form of stock dividends during 2006 and 2005.

. Cash Dividends
. . 2 Declared
Righ Low P are
2007
Fourth quarter S 1687 $ 1250 $ oo
Third quarter $ 2010 $ 1598 s -
Second quarter $ 2293 S 1787 $ -
First quarter $ 2580, $ 2234 s -
2006
Fourth quarter , 8 2174 $ 2036 5 -
Third quarter $ 244 $ 2020 b3 .
Second quarter - § 2720 $ 2260 3 -
First quarter $ 2560 § 2080 5 -
2005
Fourth quarter $ 2400 5 1392 5 -
Third quarter $ 1472 $ 1293 L S
Sccond quarter $ 1536 $ 1344 - J
First quarter $ 1690 T 1328 s -

See “ltem 1. Description of Business — Supervision and Regulation” above for regulatory restrictions which limited the
ability of the Bank to pay cash dividends for three years following the date it began banking operations. In the fourth quarter of 2007,
with this restriction expired, thé Bank declared a $0.10 per share cash dividend which was pald on .lanuaJy 2, 2008 10 sharcholders of
record on December 3, 2007. -

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OTHER DATA

Selected Financial Information and Other Data are presented on page three of this filing. The information in this table is derived
in part from the audited financial statements and notes thereto of the Bank. The information in this table does not purport to be
complete and should be read in conjunction with our financial statements that are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FlNANClAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The discussion and analysis that follows is intended to assist readers in the understanding and evaluation of the financial
condition and results of operations of the Bank. It should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and
accompanying notes included in this annual report on Form 10-K and the supplemental financial data appearing throughout this
discussion and analpsis.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

. . A 1 - . . M

The following discussion includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Scction 27A of the Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Those statements include statements about our profitability, liquidity,
allowance for loan losses, nonperforming loans, interest rate sensitivity, market risk, ability 1o compete in our markets, business
strategies, and other such statements that are not historical facts. They usually will contain qualifying words such as “may,” “will,”
“expect,™ “believe,” “anticipate,” “‘intend,” “'plan,” “project,” “likely,” “estimate,™ “continue,” “could,” “would,” “should,” or similar
terms, or the negative or other variations of those terms. We have based those forward-looking statements on our cument expectations
and projections about future events, but we do not guarantee our future performance described in the stalements or that the facts or
events described in the statements actually will happen. Qur actual performance, or any of those events or facts, may never occur or be
realized, or they miay be materially-different from,.or accur in a way substantially different from, the results, facts or events indicated
by the forward-looking statements. Those statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties, including, among other things, the
factors discussed in Item 1A under the heading “Risk Factors.” Other factors that could influence the accuracy of those forward-
looking statements include, among other things: o . .

s Successful execution of our business ptan including planncd expansion of our branch network;

o general national, regional or local economic conditions may be less favorable than expected, resulting in, among other
things, a deterioration in credit quality and the possible impairment of collectibility of loans;

» the competitive-nature of the financial services industry and our ability to compete effectively against other financial
institutions in our.banking markets;

« legislative or regulatory changes, including changes in accounting standards and ;:ilanges in tax laws;

e the level of market interest mles£

» the financial success of changir{g' strategies of our customers which could impact their ability to repay their loans;
s customer acceptance of our services, products and fee structure,

» the impact of changes in monetary and fiscal policies, laws, rules and negul-alions;

+ other developments or changes in our business we do not expect.

All forward-looking statements attributable 10 us or persons acting on our behalf are é;tpréssly qualified in their entirety by the
cautionary stalements in this section. We have no obligation, and do not intend, to publicly update or otherwise revise any of the
forward-looking statements as a result of any new information, future events or otherwise. ' *

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

. During. 2007, Mouftain 1* Bank continued ;to cxpericnce exceptional growth,and performance. Growth experienced during
2007 continued to be derived from both organic growth at existing branches as well as the opening of three new branch offices in three
new markets. These new offices bring the Bank's total number of full service banking locations to fourteen. During the year, assets
increased by $130.0 million or 27.3%. The Bank’s eamings continued to increase as well. Net income for the year ended December
31, 2007 totaled $3.54 million representing an increase of $760 thousand or 27.3% as compared with 2006 earnings of $2.78 million.
Earnings per share and eamings per diluted share increased to $0.71 and $0.66, respectively. This compares with $0.56 per share and
$0.51 per diluted sharc in 2006 or increases of 26.8% and 29.4%, respectively. Pre-tax, pre-provision income during 2007 increased
$2.5 million or 36.8% to $9.! million. - During the year, provisicn for loan loss expense amounted to $3.4 million and. tax expense
totaled $2.2 million resulting in the aforementioned net income amount of $3.5 miltion. This compares with $6.7 million pre-tax, pre-
provision income for 2006 with $2.4 million in provision and a tax expensc of $1.5 million. While pre-tax, pre-provision income is a
non-GAAP financial measire, management believes it to:be a' meaningful additional metric for-periods presented within this report
and has included it herein 1o provide further information and transparency for the reader of these financial statements.

] en . ' R . . -
Lo o Lol o v I v " . . )

FINANCIAL CONDITION § .= wa- s . . o
DECEMBER 31,2007 AND 2006 o

As noted above, Mountain t* experienced continued strong growth during fiscal 2007. Growth in loans and deposits were the
primary drivers of overall growth. During the year, gross loans increased $142.7 million or 37.6% while deposits increased $104.6
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million or 24.7%. The increase in loans was comprised of increases totaling $27.2 million or 20.6% in construction and land
development loans, $66.7 mllhon or 67.9% in commercial real estate loans, $23.6 million or 43.9% in loans.secured by first liens on
one to four family residential properties, $6.5 million or 36.7% in home equity loans, $1, 3 million or 28. 8% in multifamily residential
loans and $15.9 million or 24.5% in commercial and industrial loans. Consumer loans declined by $668, r.housand or 9.3% during the
year. ' ‘ o . '

Investment securities decreased during the period by $20.1 million, or 24.7% as assets were redirected to the Bank’s loan
portfolio. At December 31, 2007, cash and cash equivalents decreased by $1.0 million or,10.0% as compared with December 31,
2006. Liquid assets, consisting of cash and demand balances due from barnks, interest-earning deposits in other banks and investment
securities totaled $70.4 million at December 31, 2007 constituting 11. 6% of total assets.. This, compares with $91.5 million or 19.2%
of total assels at year end 2006. . T I : ) :

. o
. e e

Other, assets increased from $10.!1 million at December 31, 2006 to $19.1.million at December 31, 2007 principally as a result
of the Bank's purchase of $6.0 million in life insurance policies on certain key employees during 2007. Also contnbuting 1o the
increase in other assets was a $2.0 million increase in the Bank's property and equipment from $4.6 million at December 31, 2006 10
$6.6 million at December 31, 2007. .

Deposits increased $104.6 million or 24.7% during.2007. At year end 2007, noninterest-bearing demand accounts increased
$4.6 mllllon or 3.9% to $51.0 miltion. Other transaction accounts, including NOW Money Market and Savings accounts increased
$29.9 million or 29.8%. At December 31, 2007, transaction accounts accounted for 34 2% of the Bank s total deposits. Certificates of
deposit under $100 thousand increased $39.4 million or 28,2% while jumbo CDs increased $30. 8 million or.22.3%. Through the end
of 2007, the Bank had utilized wholesale funding sources only.on a limited basis via borrowing from the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlania, At December 31, 2007 these borrowings totated $15 million and the Bank had no brokered CDs in.its CD portfolio.
Management's funding stratcgy remains centered around balanced growth.in loans and deposits generated via the Bank’s retail branch
network, supplemented through the.selective use of wholesale. ﬁmdmg when; such sources present a lower cost alternative to CD
pricing in the local markets in which the Bank aperates., v, s o . . ;

Stockholders® equity increased by $3.2 million, or 7.5%, during 2007, principally as a result of the retention of eamings. At
December 31, 2007, all of the Bank’s capital ratios continued to be sufficient to classify it as a weli-capitalized institution by
regulatory measures. Based on the Bank’s current business plan, management believes capital levels will need to be enhanced during
the second half of 2008. To that end, management is currently evaluating a number of options for generation of additional equity and
expects (o priotitize these alternatives in the near term. The initiation of the process of acquiring such additional capital as deemed
appropriate by the Board of Directors is expected to commenge in the second quarter of 2008.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

The continued asset growth Mountain 1¥ Bank experienced during 2007 was reflected in a significant increase in the Bank's net
income. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Bank reported net income of $3.5 million or $0.66 per diluted share. This
compares with $2.8 million or $0.51 per diluted share for the year ended December 31, 2006 and a net loss of 31.1 million or $0.25
per share for 2005. Net interest income increased $5.2 million or 32.8% in 2007 as compared with an increase of $7.0 million, or
78.9%, in 2006, both of which resulted from the overall growth of the Bank. Noninterest income and expense also increased as a
general result of overall growth of the Bank’s balance sheet. During 2007, noninterest income increased $789 thousand or 22.5%.
This increase resulied predominantly from increases in service charges on deposit accounts and mortgage origination fees totaling
$587 thousand or 50.3% and $168 thousand or 7.8%, respectively. During the year, noninterest expense rose $3.5 million or 27.9%.
This increase was atributed to the overall growth of the Bank, the addition and staffing of three new branch offices and the addition of
a new operations center and the associated infrastructure required to support continued future growth. Individual components with
substantial increases included personnel costs which rose $1.6 million or 23.8%, occupancy and equipment costs which increased
$534 thousand or 32.6% and data processing and telecommunications which recorded an increase of $499 thousand or 40.0%. During
2006, noninterest income increased by $977 thousand or 38.7%, as a result of increases of $647 thousand or 124.7% in service charges
on deposit accounts and an increase in mortgage origination revenues of $326 thousand or 17.7%. During the same period,
noninterest expenses increased $1.5 million or 13.2%. This increase resulted from the overall growth of the Bank necessitating the
hiring of more personnel and adding facilities and infrastructure to support the growth. See further discussion in “Noninterest
Expense” below.

Net Interest Income
The primary component of earnings for the Bank is net interest income. Net interest income is defined as the difference

between interest income, principally from the loan and investment securities portfolios, and interest expense, principally on deposits
and borrowings. Changes in net interest income result from changes in volume, spread and margin. For this purpose, “volume” refers
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10 the average dollar level of intercst-caming assets and interest-bearing liabilitics, “spread” refers to the difference between the
average yield on interest-eamning assets and the average cost of interest-bearing hiabilitics and “margin” refers to net interest income
divided by average interest-caming assets, and margin is influenced by the level and relative mix of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, as well as levels of noninterest-camning assets and noninterest-bearing liabilitics. During the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, average interest-eaming assets were $525.8 miltion, $394.2 million and $236.3 million,
respectively. During these same periods, the Bank’s net interest margins were 4.01%, 4.02% and 3.75% respectively.

Net intercst income increased to $21.1 million during 2007 as compared with $15.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2006, an increase of $5.2 million or 32.8%. The increase in net interest income during 2006 amounted to $7.0 rillion or 78.9%. The
increase in both interest income as well as interest expense primarily resulted from the overall growth of the Bank’s asset and deposit
bases. While the Bank has experienced an above average growth rate over the past threc years, nét interest margins have been
successfully maintained. However, in the fourth quarter of 2007 and through the first two months of 2008, short term intcrest rates
have been dramatically decreased by the Federal Reserve’s Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC). The unprecedented nature of
this decline in rates is cxpected 10 adversely impact the Bank’s net interest margin and conseguently net incomme for at least the first
half of 2008. The degree to which the Bank's margin and camings may be affected is dependent on future actions by the FOMC and

is currently unknown.

Management strives 1o maintain a high interest-eaming asset ratio so as to maximize'income. “To that end, management targets
an eaming asset ratio at or above 93%. For the year ended December 31, 2007 that ratio was 96.7% as compared with 96.8% for 2006
and 97.5% for 2005. Average interest-eaming assets for 2007 increased $131.6 million, or 33.4% as compared to 2006 while the
average yicld increased by 32 basis points from 7.43% to 7.75%. The increase in yield was primarity a function of a change in the
mix of the Bank’s assets with a higher percentage of earning assets being allocated to the loan portfolio in 2007 as compared to 2006.
Average interest-bearing liabilitics increased by $116.1 miltion, or 35.8%, also as a result of the overall growth of the Bank. The
average cost of interest-bearing liabilities increased by 33 basis points from 4.14% 10 4.47%. The increasc in cost was influenced by
higher promotional rates offercd in the new markets the Bank entered during 2007.  During 2007, management was able to balance
yields and costs so as to maintain margins at a stable level. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Bank’s net interest margin was

4.01% as compared with 4.02% for 2006.

-
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The following tabie presents an analysis of the Bank’s nct interest income for 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Average Batances and Net Interest Income

(dollars in thousands)

interestcaming assets:
Lonns, including loans held for sale
Tarable investment securitics
Fedeml funds sold
Imcrest-caming cash deposits
Total intercst-coming asscly

. 1
Noninterest-caming assets:
Cash and duc fom banks
Property and equipment
Allownnce for loan loss and other
Total noninterest-caming asseis
Total assets

Interest-bearing liabilities:

NOW accounts

Money markets

Savings deposins

Tuore deposis

Fedeml funds purchased and securities
3ol under agreements to repurchase

Borrowings

Total mierest-bearing liabilities

Noninteresi-bearmpg liabitnies:
Demand deposits

Interest payabl and other

Tatal noninterest-bearing Xiabilities
Total kabilities

Stackholders' equity
Tota) liabilitirs and stockhoMers' equity

Ne1 interest income: and interest mie spread

Net yield on average interesi-caminy asscts

Ratio of avemge mterest-caming assets 10
average interesi-bearing Eabilities

For The Years Ended December 31

119.44%

(1} Intercst income includes deferved loan fees

(2) For amounts lesc than or equal to 81, yields are caleulated using oetual intercrest income and aciual av

121.61%
S S—
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125.42%
————

erage assets not rounded values

2007 2006 1005
laterest Interest Interest
Average Income/ Average Average Income/ Average Average Income/ Average
Balance Expense (1)(2) Rate  Balance Expense (1) Rate Balance Expense (1) Rate
§ 450200 § 36,861 &19% S 3 s 25,533 B21% § 184051 % 12628 a86%
74943 33844 5.13% 70,693 3120 441% 40,758 1479 163%
612 M 5.06% 11,740 603 518% 9,856 02 1%
5 1 5.19% 613 27 440% 1,666 635 3.90%
525840 40,740 1.75% 394217 29,288 743% 236331 14,480 613%
11,828 . 8725 A491
5592 1544 2452
258 St6 (9335)
17,678 13,185 6,108
3 343518 $ 407,402 $ 242439
$ 51401 § 876 7% § 36992 § 499 135% § 19355 § 152 079
16,715 499 2.99% 12810 242 1.89% 2339 8 423 1L.81%
50,662 1,483 293% 43,644 1,275 292 21,852 626 2.86%
31160 16,277 5.23% 228,761 11,313 4.95% 122,760 4378 15T
FARL] -3 ‘537% 1,548 100 5.14% 1,096 kY 3,38%
3.192 158 4.95% - - n'a - - na
440,245 196758 . 44T% 324153 13,429 4,14% 188432 5616 298%
52,220 37694 2127
5,933 3,900 ll465
58,153 41,504 2,738
498,398 365,747 2{1,170
45,120 41,655 31.269
$ 543|518 3 407402 $ 242‘439
$ 21,065 3.28% S 15,859 3.29% 5 8.564 3.15%
S — S— —
4.01% 4.02% 31.75%
E— S A—




The following table illustrates that the change in the average volume of loans was the predominant factor in the higher amount
of net interest income realized by the Bank in both 2007 and 2006 as compared with each preceding year.

Volume and Rate Variance Analysis
(dollars in thousands)

Year Fnded December 31, 2007 w. Year Ended December 31, 2006 w.
Year Ended December 31, 2006 i Year Ended December 31, 2005
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
Volume (1) Rate (1) ‘Total Volume (1) Rate (1) Total

Interest ncome:;
Loans, including loans held for sale s 1130  § 6 $ 11,328 $ 10316 § 2,589 s 12,905
Taxable mvestment securities 195 529 724 1,270 3N 1.641
Federnl funds sold (560} (14) (574) 68 232 300
Interestcaming cash deposits, - (32) 6 (26) 47) 9 (38)
Total mnterest income 10,993 459 11,452 11,607 3,201 14,808
Interest expense:
NOW accounts 5 227 $ 150 5 m s 195 s 152 5 a7
Money narkets 88 169 257 (201) 20 (180
Savings deposits 204 4 208 636 13 649
Time deposits 4,290 674 4964 4,790 2,145 6,935
Federal funds purchased and securitics

sold under agreements to repurchase 278 4 282 38 25 63
Bormowings 158 - 158 - - -
Total interest expense 5,245 1,001 6,246 5,458 2,355 7,813
Net increase in net interest income S 5,748 $ {542y S 5,206 5 6,149 3 846 $ 6,995

(1) The changes for each category of income and expense are divided between the portion ofchange
attributable 1o the variance in rate or volume for that category. The amount af change that
cannot be separaied is allocated to each variance proportionately.

Provision for Loan Losses

The Bank recorded $3.4 million in provisions for loan losses in 2007, representing an increase of $994 thousand or 41.5% as
compared with the provision of $2.4 million during 2006. The increase in the provision resulted from continued growth in the Bank’s
loan portfolio as well as loan losses during 2007 which totaled $1.6 million of which $13 thousand was recovered during the year.
Approximately $1.3 million of the $1.6 million of loan losses recorded in 2007 related to a single failed real estatc development

located in Spruce Pine, N.C.

Provisions for loan losses are charged to income to bring the allowance for loan losscs 1o a level deemed appropriate by
management. In evaluating the allowance for loan losses, management considers factors that include growth, composition,
diversification, or conversely, concentrations by industry, geography or collateral within the portfolio, historical loan loss experience,
current seasoning of the portfolio, current delinquency levels, adverse situations that may affect a borrower’s ability to repay,
estimated value of any underlying collateral, prevailing economic conditions and other relevant factors. For 2007, $1.8 million of the
provision for loan losses was attributable to growth of the loan portfolio while $1.6 million resulted from toan losses. At December
31, 2007, the allowance for loan losses was $7.6 million representing an increase of $1.8 million or 31.3% from the $5.8 millicn at the
end of 2006. The allowance represented 1.46% and 1.54%, respectively, of loans outstanding at the end of 2007 and 2006, net of
toans held for sale. At December 31, 2007 the Bank had $1.3 million of impaired loans, all of which were on & non-accruing status.
Approximately $1 million of this total was represented by a singie commercial property which was in bankruptcy. The Bank holds the
first lien on this property and management expects full recovery of this credit upon the release of the property by the bankruptcy court.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income increased to $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $3.5 million for 2006 and
$2.5 million for 2005, representing increases of $789 thousand or 22.5% and $1.0 million or 38.6%, respectively for these years. Fees
associated with mortgage operations accounted for 21.3% of the total increase in 2007 growing to $2.3 million in 2007 from $2.2
million in 2006. In 2006, increases in mortgage origination income accounted for 33.4% of the total increase in noninterest income.
Service charges on deposit accounts increased in 2007 to $1.8 million as compared with $1.2 million in 2006 and $647 thousand in
2005. These increases represent 74.4% of the total increase in noninterest income during 2007 and 68.3% of the total increase in
2006. The following table is a comparative analysis of the components of noninterest income for 2007, 2006 and 2005.
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Noninterest Income
(dollars in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2008
Service chatges on deposit accounts $ 1,753 - 1.166 k3 519
Morngage origination income 2,333 2,168 1,839
Other scrvice charges and fecs 94 81 40
Net realized gain/(loss) on sale of securities (16} 8 19
Net realized gains on sale of repossessed personal property 25 , - -
Other income . 105 85 111
Total non-interest income 3’ 4,294 $ 3,505 3 2.528

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expenses include all of the operating costs of the Bank excluding interest and provision expenses. During 2007
noninterest expenscs totaled $16.2 million, increasing $3.5 million or 27.9% from $12.7 million in 2006. During 2006 expenses
increased $1.5 million or 13.2%. The most significant component of noninterest expense, personnel costs, increased $1.6 million or
23.8% during 2007 and decreased by $327 thousand during 2006. However, total compensation expense in 2005 included a one time
charge for stock compensation of $2.8 million. Excluding this charge for comparative purposes, the increase was $2.4 million or
54.1% in 2006, These increases were primarily driven by staffing increases required by expansion of the Bank's branch network and
the increase in infrastructure required by the overal! growth of the balance sheet. During 2007, the Bank's full time equivalemt
employees increased from 122 at December 31, 2006 to 148 at December 31, 2007. Expenscs associated with growth of the Bank's
branch network accounted for a significant portion of the remainder of the increase in noninterest expense. These expenses, including
occupancy, equipment and IT and telecom costs, increased $1.0 million or 35.8% in 2007 as compared with an increase of $1.3
million or 77.3% for 2006. Management expects noninterest expense to continue 10 increase in approximate proportion to the overall
growth in the Bank’s balance sheet over the foreseeable future. The following table presents a comparison of the components of
noninterest expense for 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Nonintcrest Expensc
(dollars In thoutands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Salaries and employec benefits $ 8,565 s 6.920 s 7,247
Qccupancy expensc 1,145 828 481
Fumiture/cquipment expense 1,027 810 435
Professional service fees 708 506 448
Data processing and telecommunication expense 1,745 1,246 T
Advenising and business promotion 486 956 891
Stationcry, printing and supplics 327 256 3714
Other expenses 1,808 1,157 617
Total non-intcrest cxpenses S 16,211 $ 12,679 $ 11,204

Income Taxes

In mid-2006, having depleted all net operating 1ax loss carryforwards, Mountain 1 Bank’s camings became fully taxable.
Accordingly, income tax expense totaling $1.5 million was recorded during the year for the portion of the Bank’s earnings for that
year that was taxable. During 2007, earnings for the entire year were taxable, therefore, income tax expense increased to $2.2 million
representing a marginal tax rate of 38.5%.

LIQUIDITY

The Bank’s primary sources of liquidity are customer deposits, cash and demand balances due from other banks, interest-
eaming depasits in other banks and investment securities available for sale. These funds, together with loan repayments, are used to
make loans and to fund continuing operations.
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Total deposits were $529.1 million, $424.5 million and $280.0 million at December 31; 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The Bank’s deposits increased $104.6 million or 24.7% during 2007 and $144.5 million or 51.6% during 2006. Until the fourth
quarter of 2007, deposit growth within the Bank’s retail branch bank network was sufficient to meet the Bank’s funding requirements.
However, as previously discussed, management began a limited utilization of wholesale funding in the fourth quarter of 2007. At
December 31, 2007 this was limited to a $15 million advance from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB). Management
expects to continue to utilize this and potentially other wholesale sources of funding to supplement deposits generated from the Bank’s
branch network and assist in managing the overall cost of funds.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, time deposits represented 65.8% and 65.5% of total deposits, respectively. Certificates of
deposit of $100,000 or more represented 31.9% and 32.5%, respectively, of the Bank’s total deposits at December 31, 2007 and 2006.
Management believes that a sizeable portion of the Bank’s time deposits are relationship-oriented. While the Bank appreciates the
need 1o pay competitive rates to retain these deposits, other subjective factors also influence deposil retention. Based upon prior
experience, the Bank anticipates that a substantial portion of outstanding certificates of deposit will rencw upon maturity.

in the normal course of business there are various outstanding contractual obligations of the Bank that will require future cash
outflows. In addition, there are commitments and contingent liabilities, such as commitments to extend credit that may or may not
require future cash outflows. The following table summarizes the Bank’s contractual obligations and commitments as of December
31, 2007.

Confractual Obligations and Other Commitments
(dollars in thousands}

Payments Due by Period

On Demand
or Within Over One to Ovwver Three to Ower
1 Year _Three Years Five Years Fiw Years Totad
Contractual Cash Obligations:
Operating lcasc obligations . s 650 s 1,376 $ 1,160 s 1,516 5 4,702
Fedcral funds purchased and sccuritics .
sold under agreements to repurchase 9,458 - - . - 9,458
Bormowings 15,000 - - - 15,000
Total contractual cash obligations
excluding deposits 25,108 1,376 1,160 1,516 29,160
Time deposits 344,158 3,130 693 30 348,011
Total contractual cash obligations $ 360266 S 4,506  § 1,853  § 1,546  § 3717
Commitment Expiration by Period
On Demand
or Within Over One to Ower Three to Owr
1 Year Three Years Five Years Five Years Total
Ottier commitments:
Commitmenis 10 extend credit s 33,783 s 25,865 s 4454 s 33,857 s 97,999
Commitments to sell loans held for sale 5,035 - - - 5,035
Financial standby letters of credit 960 - - - 960
Total other comenitments ) 39,778 5 25,865 s 4,494 5 33,857 5 103.994
CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Bank's equity totaled $46.2 miltion and $43.0 million, respectively. The Bank’s cquity to
asset ratio on those dates was 7.6% and 9.0%, respectively. This increase resulted primarily from the retention of a significant portion
of 2007 camings. The Bank is subject to minimum capital requirements which are further discussed in “PART 1, ITEM | -
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS — SUPERVISION AND REGULATION.”

All capital ratios place the Bank in excess of minimum requirements to be classified as “well capitalized” by regulatory

measures. The Bank’s regulatory capital ratios as of December 31, 2007 were leverage ratio 7.85%, Tier I risk-based capital ratio
9.18% and total risk-based capital ratio 10.44%. At December 31, 2006 these ratios were 9.18%, 11.01% and 12.26%, respectively.
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Note 14 to the accompanying financial statements presents an analysis of the Bank's regulatory capital position as of December
31, 2007 and 2006. The decline in capilal ratios is a result of the Bank’s successful growth and leveraging of its capital base. Based
on current capitalization and growth expectations, management anticipates that the Bank will need to generate additional capital
during the second half of 2008. Accordingly, management and the Bank's Board of Directors are currently evaluating various options
for increasing the Bank’s capital base. .

ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT ‘

The Bank's results of operations depend substantially on its net interest income. Like most financial institutions, the Bank’s
interest income and cost of funds are affected by general economic conditions as well as by competition in the market place. The
objective of the Bank’s asset/liability management process is aimed.toward providing relative stability and reduction of volatility for
the Bank’s net interest income through various scenarios of changing interest rates. The process attempts to balance the need for
stability and predictability of net interest income against competing needs such as balance sheet mix constraints, overall eamings
targets and the risk/retarn relationships between liquidity, imerest rate risk, market risk and capital adequacy. The Bank maintains an
asset/liability management policy approved by the Bank’s Board of Directors. This policy and the analysis process undertaken by
management and the Board's Asset/Liability Management Commitiee (*ALCO?’) provides guidelines for limiting exposure 1o interest
rate risk by placing limits on rate risk assumed via the existing structure of the Bank's balance sheet based on the results produced by
the Bank's computer simulation. The Bank’s policy is to control the exposure of its eamings to changing interest rates by generally
endeavoring to maintain a position within a range around an “eamings neutral position,™ which is defined as the mix of assets and
liabilities that generate a net interest margin that is least affected by interest rate changes.

When suitable lending opportunities are not sufficient to utilize available funds, the Bank has generally invested such funds in
securities, primarily securities issued by U.S. govemnmental agencies, Government Sponsored Enterprises and mortgage-backed
securities. The securilies portfolio contributes to the Bank’s camings and plays an important part in overall interest rate management.
However, management of the securities portfolio alone cannot balance overall interest rate risk. The securities portfolio must be used
in combination with other asset/liability techniques to actively manage the balance sheet. The primary objectives in the overall
management of the securities portfolio are safety, liquidity, yield, and asset/liability management (interest rate risk).

In reviewing the needs of the Bank with regard to proper management of its asset/liability program, the Bank's management
estimates its future needs, taking into consideration estimations of loan demand and deposit balances, forecasted interest rate changes,
compctition and a number of other factors. Several measures are used to monitor and manage interest raté risk, including income
simulations and interest sensitivity (gap) analyses. An income simulation model is the primary tool used to assess the direction and
magnitude of changes in net interest income resulting from changes in interest rates. Key assumptions in the model include
prepayments on loan and mortgage-backed securities, cash flows and maturitics of other invesiment securities and loan and deposit
volumes and pricing. Thesc assumptions are inherently uncertain and, as a result, the model cannot preciscly estimate nel interest
income or precisely predict the impact of higher or lower interest rates on net interest income. Actual results will differ from simulated
results due to timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes and changes in market conditions and management strategics,
among other factors.

While the Bank’s gap analysis at December 31, 2007 indicates that its balance sheet is generally asset sensitive, the results of
computer simulation modeling at that date suggests minimal interest rate exposure under moderately increasing or decreasing interest
rate scenarios. Under these scenarios, the Bank’s net interest income would be expected to decrease no more than approximately
1.25%.

The analysis of an institution’s interest rate gap (the difference hetween the repricing of interest-eaming assets and interest-
bearing liabilities during a given period of time) is another standard tooi for the measurement of the exposure to interest rate risk.
Management believes that because interest rate gap analysis does not address all factors that can affect camings performance, its
practical usefulness in managing the Bank’s interest rate risk is limited and it should be used in conjunction with other methods of
evaluating interest rate risk. ’

The “Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis™ table, presented below, sets forth the amounts of interest-caming assets and interest-
bearing liabilitics outstanding at December 31, 2007, which are projected to reprice or mature in each of the future time periods
shown. Except as stated below, the amounts of assets and liabilities shown which reprice or mature within a particular period were
determined in accordance with the contractual terms of the assets or liabilities. Loans with adjustable rates are shown as being due at
the end of the next upcoming adjustment period. Money market deposit accounts are considered rate sensitive and are placed in the
shortest period, while negotiable order of withdrawal or other transaction accounts and regular savings accounts have been evaluated
and are deemed to be mare slable sources that are less price elastic and are placed in the five year buckel. In making the gap
computations, none of the assumptions sometimes made regarding prepayment rates and deposit decay rates are used for any interest-
earning assets or interest-bearing liabilities. In addition, the table does not reflect scheduled principal payments that will be received
throughout the lives of the loans. The interest rate sensitivity of the Bank’s assets and liabilities illustrated in the lable would vary
substantially if different assumptions were used or if actual experience differs from that indicated by such assumptions.
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On a cumulative basis, at December 31, 2007, the Bank was assct sensitive for each time interval presented in the table with the
exception of the four to twelve months interval, where it was slightly liability sensitive. As stated above, certain shortcomings are
inherent in the method of analysis presented in the table. For example, although certain assets and liabilitics may have similar
maturities or periods to repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest tates. Also, the interest rates on
certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types
may lag behind changes in market intcrest rates. For instance, whilc the table is based on the assumption that money markel accounts
are immediately sensitive to movements in rates, the Bank expects that in a changing rate environment the amount of the adjustment in
interest rates for such accounts would be less than the adjustment in categories of asscts that are considered to be immediately
sensitive. The same is true for all other interest bearing transaction accounts. Additionally, certain assets have features that restrict
changes in the interest rates of such assets both on a shon-term basis and over the lives of such assets. Further, in the event of a
change in market intercst rates, prepayment and early withdrawal levels could deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating
the tables. Finally, the ability of many borrowers to service their adjustable-rate debt may decrease in the event of an increase in
market interest rates. Due to these shortcomings, the Bank places primary emphasis on its computer simulation model when
managing its exposure to changes in interest rates. The Bank does not normally make interest rate predictions, nor take significant
risk based on potential changes in interest rate dircction. The Bank is currently assel sensitive, accordingly, should interest rates
increase and all other factors remain stable, the Bank's eamings, margins and spreads would be positively impacted. The inverse
would be true in a declining interest rate environment.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
(dollars in thousands)

At December 31, 2007
13 4-12 13-60 Over 60
Months Months Months Months Total
Interest-earning assets:
Loans, excluding loans held for sale S 330276 $ 12née §. 13877 $ 35119 § 516508
Investment securities 18,911 16,441 8,049 17,714 61,115
Interesi-eaming bank deposits 69 - - - 69
Total interest-caming assets 349,256 29,157 146,846 52,813 578,092
Interest-bearing liabilides )
NOW Accounts ‘ - - 50,504 - 50,504
Savings deposits - - 53,044 - 53,044
Money markel accounts 26,552 - - - 26,552
Tume deposits under $100 87.876 89,067 2,112 30 179,085
Time deposits of $100 and greater 81,172 86,043 1,711 - 168,926
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase 9,458 - - - 0,458
Borrowings 15,000 - - - 15,000
Tolal interesi-bearing liabilities 220,058 175110 107,371 30 502,569
Interest sensitivity gap “$ 129198 $ (145953) § 18475 $§ 52,803 $ 75523
Cunmulative interest sensitivity gap $ 129,198 $ (167558 §$ 22,720 $ 75523 $ 75523
Curmulative interesi sensitivity gap
as a pereent of total interest-eaming assets 22.35% -2.90% 3.93% 13.06% 13.06%
Cunwlative ratio of interest-sensitive assets
Lo interest-sensitive habilities 158.71% 95.76% 104.52% 115.03% 115.03%

LENDING ACTIVITIES

General

The Bank provides to its customers a full range of short to medium-term commercial, monéage, construction and personal
loans, both secured and unsecured. The Bank also makes real estate mortgage and construction loans. The Bank’s loan policies and
procedures establish the basic guidelines goveming its lending operations. Generally, the guidelines address the types of loans that the
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Bank seeks, target markets, underwriting and collateral requirements, terms, interest rate and yield considerations and compliance with
laws and regulations. All loans or credit lines are subject to approval procedures and amount limitations, These limitations apply to the
borrower’s total outstanding indebtedness to the Bank, including the indebtedness of any guarantor. The policies are reviewed and
approved at least annually by the Board of Directors of the Bank. The Bank supplements its own supervision of the loan underwriting
and approval process with periodic loan audits by internal loan examiners as well as third party professionals experienced in loan
review work. The Bank has focused its portfolio lending activities on typically higher yielding commercial, construction and
consumer loans. The Bank also originates 1-4 family mortgages that are typically sold into the secondary market.

The following 1ables provide additional information regarding the Bank's loan portfolio as of December 31, 2007, 2006, 2005,
and 2004. The “Loan Summary” table provides an analysis of thc composition of the loan portfolio by type of loan. The “Loan
Maturity Schedule” presents (i) the aggregate maturitics or re-pricings of commercial, industrial and commercial mortgage loans and
of real estate constructions loans and (ii) the aggregate amounts of such loans by variable and fixed rates for the same periods
presented in the Loan Summary table.

Loan Summary (1)

(doilars in thousands)
At December M,
1007 2006 . 2008 2004
% of % of % of e of
Totat Total Total Totad
Amount losns Amount Loans Amoont Loans Amount Loans

Construction and developmem $ 159,127 3078% § 131928 5™ § 90915 3818% $ .39 25.66%

14 family residential 99,692 19.29% 58,427 18.24% 46,348 1947% 23,791 19.44%

Moultifarmily 5.768 1.12% 4478 1.19% 2343 0.95% 1,245 1.02%

Nonfarm, nonresidemial 164,940 31.91% 98,220 26.18% 61,190 25.70% 52.618 41.00%

Total real estate loans 429,527 B3.10% 303,053 80.78% 200,796 84.33% 109,050 89.12%
Commercial and indusirial loans RO.867 15.64% 64,946 17.31% 33,202 13.94% 10575 8.64%
Consumer 6514 1.26% 7,182 ) 1.91% 4,126 1.73% 2,739 2.24%

Total loans held to maturity $ 516,908 10000% §  375.18! 10000% § 238.1M 10000% § 122364 100.00%%

(1) Excluding loans held for sule
Loan Maturity Schedule
(dollars in thousands)

At December 31, 2807
Due within Due sficr onc Due after
one year year but within fiwe five years Total
Amount Yicld Amount Yicld Amount Yield Amount Yield

By loan type:

Construction and

development 3 142944 7.66%% s 10,629 2.11% 3 5554 732% % 159027 7.68%
1-4 family residentinl 67,705 1713% 27.481 745% 4.506 ' 6.81% 99692 - 761%
Multifarmity 3,696 7.52% 2072 7.44% - - 5,768 2.49%
Nonfanmm, non residential 66,648 7.66% 76,887 1.76% 21,405 7.809% 164,940 7.72%

Total real estate ans 280,993 8.62% 117,069 7.56% 31,465 6.85% 429527 8.25%
Commercial and industrial 59,261 147% 17,729 7.90% 3877 8.04% 80,867 7.59%
Consumer 2,144 BA43% 1,996 4.12% 314 8.22% 6,514 8.23%

Total boans $ 342398 860% S 118734 7.63% § 35,716 695% 3 516908 8.26%

By interesi rate type:

Fixed rate Joans s 14,130 B10% 8 133432 7.74% 3 35,690 T.62% $ 183472 1.7%

Variable ratc loans 328 268 7.62% 5,142 8.0T% 26 16.00% 333=436 7.61%
Total loans 3 342,398 $ 138.794 3 35,716 $ 516908

Commercial and Industrial Loans

Commercial business lending is another component of the Bank's lending activities. At December 31, 2007, the Bank's
commercial and industrial loan portfolio equaled $80.9 million or 15.6% as compared with $64.9 million or 17.3% of total loans at
year end 2006. Commercial and industrial loans include both secured and unsecured loans for working capital, expansion and other
business purposes. Shon-term working capital loans generally are secured by accounts receivable, inventory and/or equipment. The
Bank also maKes term commercial loans secured by equipment and real estate. Lending decisions are based on an evaluation of the
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financial strength, management and credit history of the borrower, and the quality of the collateral securing the loan. With few
exceptions, the Bank requires personal guarantecs and secondary sources of repayment.

Commercial and industrial loans generally provide greater yietds and reprice more frequently than other types of loans, such as
real estate loans, as mos! commercial loan yields are tied to the prime rate index. Therefore, yiclds on most commercial loans adjust

with changes in the prime rate.

Real Estate Loans

Real estate loans are originated for the purpose of purchasing, constructing or refinancing one- to four- family, multi- family
and commercial properties or for other such purposes. The Bank offers fixed and adjustable rate options. The Bank provides
customers access 10 long-term conventional real estate loans through its mortgage loan department which makes FNMA and FHLMC
conforming loans that are originated and sold to upstream correspondent banks on a flow basis generally within 30-45 days of closing.

Residential one- to four-family loans are classified into two categories: conforming loans, that are otiginated under the
underwriting guidclines established by FNMA or FHLMC and which are generally sold into the secondary market as discussed above
and nonconforming loans that are originated and retained in the Bank’s loan portfolio. The terms “conforming” and “nonconforming”
do not refer to credit quality, but rather to whether the loan is underwriften so that it can be readily sold in the secondary market. At
December 31, 2007, loans held for sale amounted to $5.0 million while nonconforming loans held in the Bank's permanent porntfolio
amounted to $77.4 million in loans secured by first liens and $2.9 million secured by junior liens. The Bank’s permanent residential
mortgage loans arc generally sccured by properties located within the Bank’s market area. Most of the one- to four-family residential
morigage loans that the Bank makes are conforming loans and are sold within 30 days of closing to a correspondent bank. The Bank
originated approximately 641 loans totaling $120.5 million for sale into the secondary market during 2007. The Bank receives fec
income for each loan originated and sold. Mortgage origination activities resulted in aggregale noninterest income of $2.3 million,
$2.2 million and $1.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivety. The Bank anticipates that it will
continue to be an active originator of residential loans. Nonconforming residential mortgage loans that are retained in the Bank’s loan
portfolio generally have rate terms of five years or less, with amortizations up 1o 25 years. '

The Bank has made, and anticipates continuing to make, commercial real estate loans. Commercial real estate loans amounted
to $164.9 million at December 31, 2007. These loans are secured principally by commercial office buildings, owner occupied retail
and commercial operations, storage and warchouse space, agricultural propertics and a variety of other facilities used by commercial
enterprises. Generally in underwriting commercial real estate loans, the Bank requires the personal guarantee of borrowers and a
demonstrated cash flow capability sufficicnt to service the debt. Loans secured by commercial real estate may involve a greater
degrec of risk than one to four family residential morigage loans. Payments on such loans are often dependent on successful operation
or management of the properties.

The Bank originates both commercial and one- to four- family residential construction loans. These include the construction of
commercial buildings, infrastructure for residential developments, custom homes (where the home buyer is the borrower), pre-sold
homes where the builder is the borrower and to a lesser degree speculative home construction projects. The Bank generally receives 8
pre-arranged permanent financing commitment from an outside catity prior to financing the construction of pre-sold homes. The
Bank lends to builders who have demonstrated a favorable record of performance and profitable operations and who are building in
markets that management believes it understands and in which it is comfortable with the economic conditions. The Bank further
endeavors to limit its construction lending risk through adherence to established underwriting procedures. The Bank gencrally requires
documentation for all draw requests and utilizes oan officers and third party vendors to inspect projects prior to honoring draw
requests from builders. With few exceptions, the Bank requires personal guarantees and secondary sources of repayment on
construction Joans. At December 31, 2007 construction and acquisition and development loans totaled $159.1 million or 30.8% of

total loans.

Consumer Loans and Home Equity Lines of Credits. Loans 10 individuals include automobile loans, boat and recreational vehicle
financing, home equity and home improvement loans and miscellaneous secured and unsecured personal loans. Consumer loans
generally can carry significantly greater risks than other loans, even if secured, if the collateral consists of rapidly depreciating assets
such as automobiles and equipment. Repossessed collateral securing a defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adcquate source of
repayment of the loan. Consumer loan collections arc sensitive to job loss, illness and other personal faclors. The Bank attempts to
manage the risks inherent in consumer lending by following established credit guidelines and underwriting practices designed to
minimize risk of loss. At December 31, 2007 home equity loans totaled $24.4 million or 4.7% of total loans while other consumer
lending accounted for $6.5 million or 1.3% of outstanding loans.

Loan Approvals. The Bank's loan policies and procedures establish the basic guidelines governing its lending operations, Generally,
the guidelines address the type of loans that the Bank sceks, target markets, underwriting and coilateral requircments, terms, interest
rate and yield considerations and compliance with laws and regulations. All loans or credit Jines are subject to approval procedures
and amount limitations. These limitations apply to the borrower’s total outstanding indebtedness to the Bank, including the
indebtedness of any guarantor. The policies are reviewed and approved at least annually by the Board of Directors of the Bank. The
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Bank supplements its own supervision of the loan underwriting and approval process with periodic loan audits by independent, outside
professionals experienced in loan review analysis.

Responsibility for loan production rests with the Senior Commercial Lending Officer in each market. The responsibility for
loan underwriting, loan processing and approval is with the Chief Credit Officer. The Board of Directors of the Bank determines
individual officer lending authority annually. Delegated authorities may include loans, letters of credit, overdrafs, uncollected funds
and such other authority as determined by the Board of Directors. The President and Chief Credit Officer ¢ach have the authority to
approve loans up to $2,000,000. The President in conjunction with the Chief Credit Officer and Chief Executive Officer comprise the
Officer Loan Committee and may approve loans up to $4 million, which is the maximum staff lending limit set by the Board of
Directors. The Board's Loan Committee approves all loans in excess of the staff’s lending limit. The Board Loan Commiltee consists
of the CEQ, President, Chief Credit Officer and four outside directors as appointed by the Board of Directors of the Bank. The Bank’s
legal lending limit was $8.1 million at December 31, 2007.

General Economic Lending and Real Estate Conditions. One of the most chatlenging environments for the banking industry
in decades came to the national forefront during 2007. A number of markets across the country were already experiencing a marked
downturn in real estate early in 2007. However, by midyear, the sub-prime mortgage debacle hit the country and the banking industry.
This was followed by a credit and liquidity crisis that affected many banks across the country. Fortunately, Mountain 1* was not
directly impacted by any of these events and our real estate markets have generally hetd up well 10 date. We believe that our markets
in western North Carolina are generally strong, certainly compared with many other markets across the country. As discussed
elsewhere herein, Mountain 1%, as with most community banks, has a concentration of loans secured by real estate. Management
believes- that prudent lending using real estate as collateral presents one of the most attractive lending opportunities availabie to
community banks. However, with the current widespread downturn in real estale markets, management has undertaken actions it has
deemed both-prudent and available to maintain and enhance the strength of Mountain1® and the Bank’s real estate based loan assets.
As early as two years ago, the Bank’s lending on residential lots was curtailed based on the inflated pricing on some residential lots
within the markets we serve. This along with increasing inventory of this type product in our markets prompted us to generatly exit
the residential lot lending space. [n late 2006, management began 1o reduce exposure to new acquisition and development projects as
a widespread downtum in real estate was becoming more evident. Several previously originated real estate development loans remain
in the Bank's portfolio as they progress through their life cycle. However, lending on similar new projects along with most
speculative building has been greatly curtailed. While we believe that the stcps taken to date will assist in strengthening the
performance of the Bank's real estate loan portfolio, much of the performance of this portfolio is dependent upen the duration and
depth of the current real estate downtum.

The more direct impact of these economic events on Mountain 1* has been a reduction in the Bank's net intercst margin.
Beginning cffectively in the fourth quarter of 2007, the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) of the Federal Reserve Board,
began reducing short term interest rates. In the five months proceeding February 2008, the FOMC decreased rates dramatically by
225 basis points. The unprecedented velocity of this decline in rates is expected lo adversely impact the Bank during 2008, The
duration and severity of the impact on the Bank’s earmings during 2008 will depend on the timing and amount of additional rate cuts in
2008.

COMMITMENTS TG EXTEND CREDIT

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into various types of ransactions that include commitments to extend credit
that are not included in loans, net of allowance for loan losses, as presented on the Bank’s balance sheets. The Bank applies the same
credit standards to these commitments as it uses in all its lending activities and has included these commitments in its lending risk
evaluations, The Bank's exposure to credit loss under commitments to extend credit is represented by the amount of these
commitments. See Note |3 to the Bank's financial statements and the table noted “Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments.™

ASSET QUALITY

The Bank considers asset quality to be of primary importance, and employs a formal intemal loan review process to ensure
adherence to the lending policy as approved by the Bank's Board of Directors. It is the responsibility of each loan officer to assign an
appropriate risk grade to loans when originated. Credit Administration, through the loan review process, tests the accuracy of the
initial risk grade assessment. In addition, as a given loans credit quality changes, it is the responsibility of Credit Administration 10
change the borrower’s risk grade accordingly. [n determining the allowance for loan losses and any resulting provision to be charged
against eamnings, particular emphasis is placed on the results of the loan review process. Consideration is also given to historical loan
loss experience, the value and adequacy of collateral, economic conditions in the Bank’s market area and other factors. For loans
determined to be impaired, the allowance is based on discounted cash flows using the loan’s initial effective interest rate or the fair
value of the collateral for certain collateral dependent loans. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires material estimates,
including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant
change. The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of the appropriate level of reserve to provide for probable
losses inherent in the toan portfolio.

33




The Bank’s policy regarding past due loans normally requires a prompt charge-off to the allowance for loan losses following a
thorough review and timely collection cfforts. Further efforts are then pursued through various means available. Loans carried in a
non-accrual status are generally collateralized and probable losses are considered in the determination of the allowance for loan losses.

Over the course of the past year, credit quality at a number of banks across the country has deteriorated as real estate markets
have been hit with slowing sales and declining prices. Fortunately, the markets in which Mountain 1* Bank operates have not
cxperienced such dramatic downturns. Although rea! estate prices in westem North Carolina have been relatively stable over the past
year, the longer the current real estate market downtumn persists, the more vulnerable sales volume and prices become. Management
believes that the Bank’s loan portfolio has performed very well since the inception of the Bank and currently remains strong.
However, a future scenario of protracted real estate market problems, especially if they become severe, could produce portfolio
underperformance as compared to the first three and one half years of the Bank’s existence.

NONPERFORMING ASSETS

The Bank’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, including the recognition of interest income on
loans, unless a loan is placed on non-accrual basis. Loans are accounted for on a non-accrual basis when management has serious
concerns about the collectibility of principal or interest. Generally, the Bank’s policy is to place a loan on non-accrual status when the
loan becomes 90 days past due. Loans are also placed on non-accrual status in cases where management is uncertain whether the
borrower can satisfy the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Payments received on non-accrual loans generally are applied to
principal first, and then to interest after all principal payments have been satisfied. Restructured loans are those for which
concessions, including the reduction of interest rates below a rate otherwise available to that borrower or the deferrals of interest or
principal, have been granted due to the borrower’s weakened financial condition. The Bank accrues interest on restructured loans at
the restructured rate when management anticipates that no loss of original principal will occur. Potential problem loans are defined as
loans currently performing that are not included in non-accrual o restructured Joans, but are loans that management has concems as to
the borrower’s ability to comply with present repayment terms. These loans could deteriorate to non-accrual, past due or restructured
loans status. Therefore, management quantifies the risk associated with problem loans in assessing the adequacy of the altowance for
loan losses. At December 31, 2007 the Bank had no foreclosed real estate or repossessed personal property. At that time, the Bank
had approximately $1.3 million in nonaccruing loans. Approximately $1 million of this total was represented by onc commercial real
estate parcel with an appraised value in excess of $3 million on which the Bank holds the first lien. Management expects full
collection of this loan upon release of the Bank’s collateral from the bankrupicy court which currently controls this collateral. At year
end 2006, the Bank had a total of $611 thousand in nonperforming loans, all of which had been placed on non-accrual status at that
time. The following table summanizes the Bank’s nonperforming assets at December 31, 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Nooperforming Assets
(dollars in thousands)

At December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004

Nenaccrual loans $ 1342 s 61 $ - 5 -
Loan past due 90 or more days and still accruing interest - .- o - -
Restructured loans - - - -

Total nonperforming loans . 1,342. 611 X - -
Reposscssed assets . - ] - -
Other real cstate owned . - - - -

Total nonperformmg assets . $ 1,342 5 616 3 - 3 -
Allowance for loan losscs $ 757 $ 5765 § 3632 $ 1340
Nonperforming loans to period cnd loans,

excluding loans held for sale T 0.26% 0.16% -% -%
Allowance for loan losses to period end loans,

cxcluding loans held forsale 1.46% 1.54% 1.53% 1.50%
Nonperforming sssets as a percentage of:

Loans and other real estate 0.26% 0.16% - % -%

Total asscis 022% 0.13% -% -%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 564.16% 943.54% ‘' nfa n/a
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ANALYSIS OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES .

The allowance for loan losses is established through charges to earnings in the form of a provision for loan losses. Management
increases.the allowance for loan losses by provisions charged to operations and by recoveries of amounts previously charged off. The
allowance is reduced by loans charged off. Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowance at least quarterly which is then
reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors after making any changes as may be required. In evaluating the adequacy of the
allowance, management considers the growth, composition and industry diversification of the. portfolio, historical loan loss
experience, current delinquency levels, adverse situations that may affect a borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any
underlying collateral, prevailing economic conditions and other relevant factors derived from the Bank’s limited history of operations.
In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Bank’s allowance for loan
losses and may require it to make adjustments to the allowance for loan losses based upon judgments different from those of our
management. N . : -

P ]

‘ Management uses a risk-grading system, as described under “ASSET QUALITY,” to facilitate .evaluation of probable inherent
loan losses and the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. In this program, risk grades-are initially assigned by loan officers and
reviewed and tested by Credit Administration and external loan review processes. The testing program includes an evaluation of a
sample of new loans, large loans, loans that are identified as having potential credit weaknesses, accruing loans past due 90 days or
more, and non-accrual loans. The Bank strives to maintain its loan portfolio in accordance with conservative loan underwriting
policies that result in loans specifically tailored to the needs of the Bank’s market area. Every effort is made to identify and minimize
the credit risks associated with such lending strategies.

The Bank follows a loan review program designed to cvaluate the credit risk in its loan portfolio. Through this loan review
process, an internally classified watch list is maintained that helps management assess the overall quality of the loan portfolio and the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. In establishing the appropriate classification for specific assets, management considers,
among other factérs, the estimated value of the underlying collateral, the borrower’s ability to repay, the borrower’s payment history
and the current delinquency status. As a result of this process, loans with a higher than standard risk profile are categorized as watch,
OAEM, (Other Assets Especially Mentioned - loans not placed on the watch list and not classified, but that may contain potentially
unsatisfactory c¢haracteristics), substandard, doubtful or loss, and reserves are allocated based on management’s judgment and
historical experience. i -

Loans classified as “substandard” are those loans with clear and defined weaknesses such as unfavorable financial ratios,
uncertain repayment sources ot poor financial condition that may jeopardize the collection of the debt. They are characterized by the
distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some losses if the deficiencies are not corrected. A specific reserve based on the
estimation of loss within each credit classified as substandard is allocated to such loans. Typically; allocations for substandard loans
approximate 15% on average. Loans classified as “doubtful” are those loans that have characteristics similar to substandard loans but
with an increased risk that collection or liquidation in full is highly questionable and improbable. As with substandard loans, specific
reserves are allocated to these credits. Such reserve allocations average approximately 50% of doubtful loans. Loans classified as
“loss” are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as bankable asscts is not warranted. This
classification ‘does not mean that the loan has absolutely no recovery or salvage value but rather it is not practical or desirable to defer
writing off this asset even though partial recovery may be achieved in the future. Asa practical matter, when loans are identified as
loss they are charged off against the allowance for loan losses. In addition to the above classification categories, the Bank also
categorizes loans based upon risk grade and loan type, assigning an allowance aliocation based upon each category.

Significant growth ir;'the Bank’s loan portfolio has been the primary reason for increases in the Bank’s allowance for loan
losses and the resuitant provisions for loan losses necessary to provide for those increases. This growth has been spread among the
Bank’s major loan categories, with the mix of major loan categories being relatively consistent. At December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, the percentage of each major category of loans as a percentage of total loans outstanding is illustrated in the afore-
mentioned “Loan Summary” table. During 2007, the Bank experienced $1.6 million in loan losses, of which $13 thousand was
recovered during the year. ~Approximately $1.3 million of the total amount charged off related to a single failed real estate
development in Spruce Pine, N.C. Charge offs are typically recognized when it is the opinion of management that all or a portion of
an outstanding loan becomes uncollectible. Examples of loans which may be deemed uncollectible are credits whose principal and
interest payments are past due, and/or when the fair market value of underlying pledged collateral is tess than the outstanding loan
balance and the borrower is not meeting contractual obligations. Loan repayment may be realized through a contractual agreement, or
through liquidation of assets pledged as collateral. The Bank’s allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2007 totaled $7.6 million
representing 1.46% of total loans outstanding, exctuding loans held for sale. At December 31, 2006, this total was $5.8 million or
1.54%.

The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of an amount adequate to provide for known and inherent
losses 'in the loan portfolio in the normal course of business. Management makes specific allowances that are allocated to certain
individual loans and pools of loans based on risk characieristics, as discussed below. At December 31, 2007, a portion of the Bank’s
allowance was unallocated to specific credits or specific classes of leans. This unallocated portion of the allowance has been provided
due to a number of unknown factors that management believes could potentially pose future general portfolio risks beyond those
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identified by means of specific altocations. These risks include but are not limited to the relative lack of seasoning of the Bank’s
portfolio, the significant growth of the loan portfolio in a relatively short time, continued growth, development and demands on the
credit administration function since inception of the Bank, potentiat risks associated with the concentration of real estate loans within
the portfolio and significant uncertainties within the general domestic economy and to a lesser degree, in the local economies in which
the Bank conducts its operations. '

While management believes that it uses the best information available 1o establish the allowance for loan losses, future
adjustments to the allowance may be necessary and results of operations could be adversely affected if-circumstances differ
substantially from the assumptions used in making the determinations. Furthermore, while management believes that it has
established the allowance for loan losses in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, there can be no assurance that
regulators, in reviewing our portfolio, will not require adjustment to the allowance for loan losses. In addition, because future events
affecting borrowers and collateral cannot be predicted with certainty, there can be no assurance that the existing allowance for loan
losses is adequate or that increases will not be necessary should the quality of any loans deteriorate as a result of the factors discussed
herein. Any material increase in the allowance for loan losses may adversely affect the Bank’s financial condition and results of

operations. The following table presents the allocation of the allowance for loan losses at the end of each of the last four years. The

allocation is based on an evaluation of defined loan problems, historical ratios of loan losses and other factors that may affect future
loan losses in the categories of loans shown. - .

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses
(doltars in thousands)

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004
% of Total % of Total %o of Total " o4 of Total
Al Leans (1}  Amount Loans {1}  Amount Loans (1)  Amount Loans (1)

Construction loans 2,528 30.78% $ 2042 3517% $ 1279 38.18% $ 471 25.66%
1-4 family residential 1,191 19.29% 815 18.24% 469 19.47% , 187 19.44%
Multifamily 8l 1.12% %6 1.19% 29 0.98% <19 1.02%
Nonfarm, nonres klential 2,400 31.91% 1,277 26.18% 835 25.70%% 790 43.00%
Total real estate loans 6,200 B3.10% 4210 80.78% 2,612 84.33% 1,467 89.12%
Commercial and industrial loans 1.073 15.64% 928 17.31% 610 13.94% 199 8.64%
Consunrer ' 0 1,26% 80 1.91% 50 1.73% 24 2.24%
Unallocated 228 - 547 - 380 - 150 -
Total loans $ 7,571 100.00% % 5765 100.00% § 3652 100.00% $ 1,840 100.00%

(1} Percent of loans in each category to fotal loans

The following table summarizes information regarﬂ.ihg changes in the Bank’s allowance for loan losses for the years ended

December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
Loan Loss and Recovery
(dollars in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004

Total loans outstanding at the end of the period (1) $ 516908 '$ 375,181 s 238,124 ' § 122,364
Average loans outstanding during the period (1) 3 445976 3 308,049 5 178,642 $ 75,629
Allowance for loan losses at the beginning of the period $ 5,765 s 3,652 5 1,840 b3 -
Provision for loan losses 3,390 2,396 "1,812 - 1,840
Loans charged off 1,597 288 - -
Recoveries on loans previously charged off 13 5 - -
Allowance for loan losses at the end of the period 5 7.571 $ 5,765 $ 3,652 s 1,840
Ratios:

Net charge-offs as a percent of average loans 0.36% 0.09% - % -%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of period end loans (1} 1.46% 1.54% 1.53% 1.50%

(1) Excluding loans held for sale.
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INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

The Bank’s portfolio of investment securities, all of which are available for sale, consists primarily of debt instruments of U.S.
govemnment agencies or of Government Sponsored Enterprises, and mortgage-backed securities. Securities to be held for indefinite
periods of time and not intended to be held to maturity are classified as available for sale and carried at fair value, with any unrealized
gains or losses reflected as an adjustment to stockholders’ equity. Securities held for indefinite periods of time include securities that
management intends to use as part of its asset/liability management strategy and that may be sold in response to changes in interest
rates and/or significant prepayment risks. It is the Bank’s policy to classify most investment securities as available for sale. The
following table summarizes investment securities by type at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Investment Securities Composition
(doilars in thousands)

At December 31,
2007 2006
Available for sale .
U.S. Government Agencies 3 14,284 $ 2,974
Government-sponsored enterprises 11,046 36,006
Mortgage backed securities 35,785 42,140
Total investment securities $ 61,115 3 81,210
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The following table summarizes the amontized costs, fair values and weighted average yields of securities available for sale at
December 31, 2007, by conlractual maturity groups.

Investment Securities
(dollars in thousands)
At December 31,2007
" Amortized Fair
Cost Value Yield (1)
Available for sale
U. S. Government agencies:
Due within one year s - $ - -%
Due afier one but within five years 952 921 2.52%
Duce after five but within ten years 8,839 8,660 4.33%
Due afterten years 4,745 4,703 5.74%
' 14,536 14,284 4.67%
Government-sponsored enterprises:
Due within one year . 999 997 4.00%
Due after one but within five years . 7,485 7,567 4.88%
Due after five bul within ten years - - - %
Due after ten years 2,437 2,482 7.01%
10,921 11,046 5.27%
Mongage backed securitics:
Due within one year - - %
Due afier one but within five years - - %%
Due after five but within ten years - - %
Due afterten years 35,851 35,785 5.62%
35,851 35,785 5.62%
Total sccurities available for sale
Due within one year b3 999 $ 997 4.00%
Due after one but within five years 8,437 8,488 4.61%
Due afier five but within ten years 8,839 8,660 4.33%
Duc after ten years 43,033 42,970 5.N%
Total mvestment securitics 3 61,308 ] 61,115 4.89%

(1) Yields are calculated based on amortized cost

The Bank does not engage in, nor does it presently intend to engage in, securities trading activities and therefore does not
maintain a trading account. At December 31, 2007, there were no securities of any issuer (other than governmental agencies or
Government Sponsored Enterprises) that exceeded 10% of the Bank’s stockholders’ equity.

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Deposit Activities

The Bank provides a range of deposit services, including noninterest-bearing checking accounts, interest-bearing checking and
savings accounts, money market accounts, IRAs and certificates of deposit. These accounts generally eam interest at rates established
by management based on assct/liability planning, eamings budgets, competitive market factors and management’s desire to increase or
decrease certain fypes or maturities of deposits. Management believes that one of the primary keys to the long-term success of the
Bank is the acquisition of demand deposit accounts and other transaction accounts. Accordingly, we strive to cstablish relationships
with customers which will facilitate and attract core deposits. While certificates of deposit are certainly a significant component in the
funding of the Bank, management endeavors to utilize these instruments as an entrée into a full relationship with each customer
resulting in a complete banking relationship inclusive of the customer’s transaction accounts.

As noted previously, during the fourth quarter of 2007, management initiated the use of wholesale funding as a supplemental
source of funding. Management elected to begin to utilize wholesale funding to avoid the steep increase in funding cosl associated
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with unusually high premiums being paid on CDs within the Bank’s local markets. Such unusual premiums have emanated from a
disruption of normalized CD pricing resulting from liquidity shortfalls experienced by some larger financial institutions. Management
believes that this situation stems from the disruption of the secondary mortgage market and the inability of larger institutions to
generate liquidity from commercial paper markels and from the securitization and sale of financial assets.

The following table summarizes the avérage balances outstanding and average interest rates for each major category of deposits
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Deposit Mix
(dollars in thousands)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007 For the Period Ended December 31, 2006
Average % to Total Average Average % to Total Average
Amount Deposits Rate Amount Deposits Rate
Interest-bearing deposits:
NOW Accounts s 51,401 10.66% 1.70% b 36,992 10.28% 1.35%
Moncy Market 16,715 34T% 2.99% 12,810 3.56% 1.89%
Savings 50,662 10.51% 2.91% 43,644 12.13% 292%
Time deposits under $100 158,257 32.82% 5.28% 117,267 32.58% " 4.88%
Time deposits of $100 or greater 152,903 ns 5.19% 111,494 30.98% 5.02%
Toral interest-bearing deposits 429918 §9.17% 4.45% 322207 89.53% 4.14%
Noninterest-bearing deposits 52,220 10.83% % 37,694 1047% %
Total depaosits b 482,158 100.00% 4.45% 3 359,901 100.00% 4.14%

The following table presents information regarding maturities of certificates of deposit with balances of $100,000 or more at
December 31, 2007,

Maturities of Time Deposits of $100,000 or More
(dollars in thousands)

At December 31, 2007
Amount Awerage Rate
Maturing in:
Three months for less $ 81,172 5.14%
Overthree months 10 sixmonths 55,251 5.02%
Oversixmonths to twelve months 30,792 511%
Over twelve months 1,711 4.71%
Total $ 168,926 5.10%

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 1 10 the Bank’s Financial Statements for a full description of recent accounting pronouncements including the
respective expected dates of adoption and effects on results of operations and financial condition.

INFLATION AND OTHER ISSUES

Because our assets and liabilities are primanily monetary in nature, the effect of inflation on our assets is less significant
compared to most commercial and industrial companies. However, inflation does have an impact on the growth of total assets in the
banking industry and the resuhing need 1o increase capital at higher than normal rates in order to maintain an appropriate equity-to-
assets ratio. Inflation also has a significant effect on other expenses, which tend to rise during periods of general inflation.
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Notwithstanding these effects of inflation, management believes our financial results are influenced more by our ability to react to
changes in interest rates and general economic conditions impacting the creditworthiness of customers than directly by inflation.

Except as discussed in this Mzinagemenl‘s Discussion and Analysis, management is not aware of trends, events or uncertainties
that will have or that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s liquidity, capital resources or operations.
Management is not aware of any current recommendations by regulatory authorities which, if they were implemented, would have
such an effect. :

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Allowance for Loan Losses. The Bank's most significant eritical accounting policy is the determination of its allowance for lean
losses. A critical accounting policy is one that is both very important to the portrayal of the Bank’s financial condition and-results,
and requires management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments. What makes these judgments difficult, subjective and/or
complex is the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain. If the mix and amount of future loan
write-offs differ significantly from those assumptions used in making a determination, the allowance for loan losses and resultant
provisions for loan losses could materially impact the Bank's financial position and results of operations. For further discussion of the
allowance for loan losses and a detailed description of the methodology used in determining the adequacy of the allowance, sce the
sections of this discussion titled “Asset Quality” and “Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses™ and Note 1 to the financial statements
contained in this Annual Report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrsingements
Except as discussed in Note 13 with regard to committed unfunded lines of credit, the Bank docs not have any off-balance sheet

arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on its financial condition, changes in financial
condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to investors.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The information called for by Item 7A is set forth in Item 7 under the caption Ass'et/Liabili'ly-Mnnngement and is incorporated

herein by reference.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
MOUNTAIN I°" BANK & TRUST COMPANY
oo ' FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
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Managemeat's Report On Internat Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. "Internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance to the company’s management and board of
directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the chief executive officer and principal
accounting officer, the Bank conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal contro} over financial reporting based on the
framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation under the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework, management of the Bank
has concluded the Bank maintained effective internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-15(f), as of December 31, 2007, )

Internal contro! over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting objectives because
of its inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human diligence and compliance and s
subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. I[nternal control over financial reporting can also be
circumvented by collusion ot improper management averride. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements
may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations
are known features of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce, though
not eliminate, this risk.

Management is also responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and other financial
information contained in this report. The accompanying financial statements were prepared in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles and include, as nccessary, best estimates and judgments by management.

Elliott Davis, PLLC, an independent, registered public accounting firm, has audited the Company's financial statements as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2007, and the Bank’s assertion as to the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2007, as stated in their report, which is included in Item 8 hereof. .

{s/ Gregory L. Gibson {sf Mary K. Dopko
Gregory L. Gibson Mary K. Dopko
Chief Executive Officer Controller and Principal Accounting Officer
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- - Elliott Davis, PLLC
Elllowavs 200 East Broad Street
P.O. Box 6286

Accountants and Businass Advisors Greenville, SC 29606-6286

Phone 864.242.3570
Fax 864.232.7161

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Mountain 1st Bank & Trust Company
Hendersonville, North Carolina ;

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Mountain 1st Bank & Trust Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for each of the
years in the three year period ended December 31, 2007, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the siandards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe hat our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Mountain Ist
Bank & Trust Company as of Decémber 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
years in the three year period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We also have audited. in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
Company's internal control aver financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in fnternal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Commiliee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated

March 13, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
%WM

Greeaville, South Carolina
March 13, 2008

www.elliotdavis.com
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Ellictt Davis, PLLC

E'“O@av'is 200 East Broad Street
P.O. Box 6286

Accountants and Susiness Advisors Greenville, SC 29606-6286

Phone 864.242.3370
Fax 864.232.7161

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Mountain Ist Bank & Trust Company
Hendersonville, North Carolina

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Mountain 1st Bank & Trust Company (the “Company") as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the “COSQ criteria”™). The Company’s management is responsibte for
maintaining effective intemal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report on internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is 10 express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting based on our
audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether efféctive internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an undetrstanding of iniernal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, lesting and cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides reasonable for is for our opinion. ‘

A company's intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporing and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's intenal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial stalements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition or the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial stalements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectivencss to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

www.elliotdavis.com




We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United Siates), the
balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders’
equity and comprehensive income loss), and cash flows for each of the cars in the three year period ended December 31, 2007 and our

report dated March 13, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
Eo Y pyye

Greenvilte, South Carolina
March 13, 2008
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Mountain 1st Bank & Trust Company

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2007 and 2006
(Dollars in thousands) ..  «
, ’ 2007 2006
Assets
Cash and noninterest caming bank deposits s 9210 10,300
Interest ecaming deposits with banks 69 6
Total cash and cash equivalents 9279 10,306
Investment securities available for sale 61,115 81,210
Restricted equity securitics 2,501 1,405
Loans held for sale 5,035 407
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $7,571 in 2007
and $5,765 in 2006 502,337 169416
Bank owned life insurance 6,000 -
Property and equipment, nct 6,555 4,569
Accrued interest receivable 3,534 2,810
Other assets 3,135 2631
Total assets s 606,451 476,414
Lizhilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Demand deposits s 50,994 46,402
NOW accounts 50,504 42214
Savings deposits 53,044 45,645
Money market accounts 26,552 12,386
Time deposits under 3100 179,085 139,704
Time deposits 0of $100 and greater 168,926 138,131
Total deposits 529,105 424,482
Federal funds purchased and securitics sold under agreements to repurchase 9,458 4,13}
Bormrowings 15,000 -
Accrucd interest payable 5,209 4,167
Other liabilities 1,507 639
Total liabilities 560,279 433,419
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 9 and 13) - -
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, $5 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; 4,997,027 and
4,984,529 issued and outstanding in 2007 and 20086, respectively 24,985 24,922
Additional paid-in capital 17,734 17,591
Retained camings 3621 581
Accunulated other commprehensive loss {128) (99)
Total stockholders' equity 46.212 42995
Total liabilitics and stockholders' equity $ 606,491 476,414

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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MOUNTAIN IST BANK & TRUST COMPANY
Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2004 and 2005

{Dollars {n thousands except per share duio)

-

Interest income
Loans and fees on loans
Investment securities
Interest-bearing bonk balances
Federal funds sold
Total mterest income

Interest expense
Deposits
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agroements
to repurchase
Other bomowings
Total mtercst expense
Net interest income

Provision for loan losses .
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest income

Service charges on deposit accounts

Mortgage origination income

Other service charges ond fecs

Other income

Net realized gain/(loss) on sak of investment securities

Net realized gains on sales of reposscssed personal propeny
Toial neninterest mcorne

Neninterest expense
Salaries and employcc benefits
Occupancy
Equipment
Adverntising
Data processing and teleconmmunication
Professional fees
Printing and supplies expense
Onher general and administmtive
Total noninterest expense '

Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax expense (bencfit)
Net income (loss)

Basic income (loss) per share (1)

Diluted income (1033 ) per share {1)

Baslc weighted average shares outstanding (1)
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding (1)

(1) Amouris have been adjusted for all stock splits

See accompanying noles to financial statements

For the Years Fnded Decenther 31,

© T 2007

2006 2005
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s 0.71 s 0.56 s (025)
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£181,687 5,441,815 4,295.894
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MOUNTAIN 1ST BANK & TRUST COMPANY
Statements of Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

{Dollars in thousands)
Accumulated
Additional Retained Other
Commen Stock Peidin Earnlngs Comprehensive
- .- Shares Amount Caplta! {Deficit) Income (Lass) Total

Balance, December 31, 2004 200,542 5 10,188 § 692 S (L128) § 9 8 16011
Issuance of common stock 1,150,000 5750 16,766 - - 22,516
Stock split, effected in the form

ofa stock dividend 794,332 39 (3.971) - - -
Fractional shares purchased . - - 29 - - (29)
Stock compensation expense - - 2,91 - - 2,91
Comprehensive loss )
Net loss - - - {1,071) ) - (1,071)
Net unrealized loss on investment securities

available for sale, net of income taxes of $165 - - - - (334) (339
Rechssification adjustment for gains included . - . -

in net income, net of mcome taxes of 36 (13) (13
Total comprehensive loss (1418)
Balance, December 31, 2005 3975874 19,879 2479 {2,199) (288) ° 39,871
Exercise of stock aptions 12,341 62 61 - - 123
Stock split, effected i the form

of a stock dividend . 996,314 4,981 (4,981) - - -
Fractional shares purchased : - - (23) - -t (23)
Stock compensation expense - - 55 - - 55
Comprehensive income : ’
Net come . - - - 2,780 . 2,780
Net unrealized gain on investment securitics

available for sale, net of income taxes of $87 - - - - 172 172
Rechssification adjustment for gains included - - - -

in net income, net of income 1axes of $8 . 17 17
Total comprehensive income 2,969
Balance, December 31, 2006 4,984,529 152 17,591 581 99 42,995
Excrcise of stock options 12,498 63 44 . . oy
Cash dividend ($0.10 per sharc) - - - (500) - {500)
Stock compensation expense - - 9 - - 9%
Comprehensive income .
Net income - - - 3,540 - 3,540
Net unrealized loss on mvesiment securities

avaibble for sak, net of mcome taxes of $(3) - . - - ' S )| )
Reclassification adjustment for losses incloded - - - -

in net income, net of mcome taxes of $(8) (24} 24
Total comprehensive income 3,511
Balance, December 31,2007 4997027 § 24985 § 17734 § 361 § (128) § 46212

See accompanying notes to financlal statements.
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
{Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net mcome (loss)
Adjustmenis to reconcile net mcome {loss) to net cash
provided by opemtions:

Depreciation
Provision for loan bosses
Deferred mcome taxes
Amortizalion of premium on sccuritics, net of discount accretion
Onigination of available for sak loans
Salkes of available for sale loans
Net realized loss (gain) on mvestment securities
Stock compensation expense

Changes in assets and tiabilities:
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets
Accrucd interest payable
Other liabilitics

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities '
Purchase of investment securities available for sale
Sales of mvestment securities available for sake
Maturities and calls of investment securities
Purchase of restricted equity securities
Sales of restricted equity securities
Net increase in loans
Purchasc of bank owned life insurance
Purchases of propenty and equipment |
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in deposits
Net increase i securities sol under agreements to repurchase
and federal funds purchased
Procceds fromthe issuance of common stock, net
Fractional shares purchased
Proceeds from bormowings
Dividends paid
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net {decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cdsh and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information .
Transfer ofloans to repossessions acquired in setilement of loans

Cash paid for:
Interest

Income taxes

See accompanying notes to financiol statemenis.
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For The Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 1005
140 $ 2780 § (1,07
991 644 358
3390 239 1812
(G41) (744) (1,529)
186 119 84
(120,531) (106,078) (88,908)
119,513 106,946 86,744
16 (8) 9
99 55 2,19
- (124) 1273) (935)
{100) (i36) (202)
1,042 2,305 996
868 (243) 693
7949 6,763 814
(29,667) (45918) (51,897
3,096 1,880 2,612
45422 2407 11,932
{2.086) (1,049) (355)
900 . .
(143311) (137,340) (115,760)
(6,000) - -
(2977 {2,168) (1,365)
(133,533) (160,378) (154,773)
104,623 144,529 138,001
5327 3922 54
107 123 2516
- (23) 29
15,000 A .
(500) - -
124,557 148,551 160,542
(Le27) (5064 6,583
10,306 15,370 8,787
9279 § 10306 § 15370
670 § s s .
18633 § s s 4,620
2646  § 2,335 829
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Note! - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(A} Business and Basis of Presentation

Mountain 1% Bank & Trust Bank (the “Bank”) is a federally insured non-member commercial bank incorporated and chartered
under the laws of North Carolina on April 30, 2004 and commenced operations on May 14, 2004. The Bank provides financial
services through its branch network located in western North Carolina and operates under the banking laws of North Carolina and the
Rules and Regulations of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Bank competes with other financial institutions and
numerous other non-financial services commercial entities offering financial services products. The Bank is further subject to the
regulations of certain federal and siate agencies and undergoes periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities. The Bank's
customers are principally located in westem North Carolina.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank follow generally accepted accounting principles and general practices within
the financial services industry. Following is a summary of the more significant policies.

{B) Business Segments

The Bank reports its activitics as a single business segment. In determining proper segment definition, the Bank considers the
materiality of a potential segment and components of the business about which financial information is available and regularly
evaluated, relative to resource allocation and performance assessment.

(C) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheets and the reported amounts of income and expenses for
the periods presented. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination of the
allowance for loan losses.

(D) Casb and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts due from banks, shon-term
interest-beasing deposits and federal funds sold. Cash and cash equivalents have maturities of three months or less. Accordingly, the
carrying amount of such instruments is considered to be a reasonable estimate of fair value.

(E) Investment Securities

Management determines the appropriate classification of investment sccuritics at the time of purchase. Securities are classified
as held to maturity (HTM) when the Bank has both the positive intent and ability to hold the securitics to maturity. HTM sccurities
arc stated at amortized cost. Securities that are baught and held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term are classified as
trading securities and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in camnings. Securities not classified as HTM or
wrading are classified as available for sale (AFS). AFS securities are stated at fair value, with the unrealized gains and losses, net of
income taxes, reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

The fair value of securities is based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes. If a quoted market price is not available, fair
value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

A decling in the market value of any AFS or HTM security befow cost thal is deemed to be other-than-temporary results in a
reduction in camying amount to fair value. The impairment is charged to earnings and a new cost basis for the security is established.
To determine whether an impairment is other-than-temporary, the Bank considers whether it has the ability and inteat to hold the
investment until a market price recovery and considers whether evidence indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable
outweighs evidence to the contrary. Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment, the severity and
duration of the impairment, changes in value subsequent to year-end and forccasted performance of the investee.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Bank had no trading assels nor any investment securities classified as HTM. At those
dates, all of the Bank’s investment securitics were classified as AFS.
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Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related security as an adjustment to yield using the
effective-interest method. Dividend and interest income are recognized when eamed. The cost of securities sold is based on the
specific identification method. Gains and losses are recorded on the trade date.

(F) Restricted Equity Securities

The Bank, as a member institution is required to own stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlama (FHLB). No-ready
market exists for this stock and it has no quoted market value, however, redemption of these stocks has historically been at par. Also,
the Bank owns stock in its upstrcam correspondent, Silverton Bank (formerly the Bankers Bank of Atlanta, Georgia). At December
31, 2007, the Bank owned $1,532,600 in FHLB stock compared to $736,600 at December 31, 2006. The Bank’s investment in
Silverton Bank stock totated $105,457 at December 31, 2007 and 2006. Also included in restricted equity securities at December 31,
2007 is an $862,500 investment in Capital South Parmels LLC (a Small Business Investment Corporation). This includes an
addmonal $300,000 investment made during 2007. The investment in Capital South totaled $562,500 at December 31, 2006.

{G) Bank Owned Lile Insurance

In December, 2007 the Bank purchased $6.0 million in life insurance policies on certain key employees and in January 2008
purchased an additional $5.0 million. These policies are recorded on the Bank’s balance sheet at their cash surrender value, or the
amount that can be realized, and any income from these policies and changes in the net cash surrender values are recorded in Other
Noninterest lncome on the Bank's Statement of Operations.

-

(H) Loans Held for Sale

The Bank originates single family, residential first montgage loans on a pre-sold, flow basis. Loans held for sale are carried at the
lower of cost or fair value in the aggregate as determined by ouistanding commitments from investors. Al closing, these loans,
together with their servicing nghts, are sold to other financial institutions under prearranged terms. The Bank recognizes cenain
origination and service release fees upon the sale which are classificd as mortgage origination income on the statements of operations.

() Loans

Loans are generally stated at their oulstanding unpaid principal balances net of an allowance for loan losses and net deferred
fees and costs. Loan origination fees net of certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and amortized as a yield adjusunent over
the contractual life of the related loans using the level-yield method.

Interest on loans is recorded based on'the principal amount outstanding. The Bank ceases accruing interest on loans (including
impaired loans} when, in management’s judgment, the collection of interest appears doubtful or the loan is past due 90 days or more,
Payments received on non-accrual loans gencrally are applied to principal first, and then to interest afler all principal payments have
been satisfied. Management may rcturn a loan classified as nonaccrual to accrual status when the obligation has been brought 'current,
has performed in accordance with its contractual terms over an extended period of time, and the ultimate collectibility of the total
contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt.

(J} Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan and lease Josses (ALLL) is established through provisions for Josses charged against income. Loan
amounts deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the ALLL, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.
The ALLL represents management’s cstimate of the amount necessary to absorb estimated probable losses in the loan portfolic.
Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on individual loan reviews, past loan loss experience,
economic conditions in the Bank's market arcas, the fair value and adequacy of underlying collateral, and the growth and loss
attributes of the loan portfolio. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates, including the amounts and .
timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans, that may be susceptible to significant change. Thus, future
additions to the ALLL may be necessary based on the impact of changes in economic conditions. In addition, various regulatory
agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Bank’s ALLL. Such agencies may require the Bank
to recognize adjustments to the ALLL based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination.

A loan is considered impaired when full payment according te the terms of the loan agreement is not probable or when the terms
of a loan are modified. The ALLL related to loans that are deemed impaired is based on discounted cash flows using the loan’s initial
effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price,. or the fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans. At
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 the only loans considered by the Bank to be impaired were non-accrual loans which
totaled $1.3 million at December 31, 2007 compared to $611 thousand at December 31, 2006.
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{K) Real Estate Acquired in Settlement of Loans

Rea! estate acquired in setilement of loans (ORE) consists of property acquired through a foreclosure proceeding or dcceptance
of a decd-in-licu of foreclosure. Real estate acquired in settlement of loans is recorded initially at estimated fair value of the property
less estimated selling costs at the date of foreclosure. The initial recorded value may be subsequently reduced by additional write-
downs, which are charged to eamings if the estimated fair value of the property less estimated selling costs declines below the initial
recorded value. Costs related to the improvement of the property are capitalized, whereas thase related to holding the property are
expensed. Such properties are held for sale and, accordingly, no depreciation or amortization expense is recognized. As of December
31, 2007, the Bank has foreclosed on no loans collateralized by real estate and accordingly had no ORE.

(L) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Dépmciation is computed by the straight-line method
and is charged to operations over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from 2 10 15 years for leaschold improvements
and 2 to 25 years for furniture and equiptnent.

Maintenance, repairs, renewals and minor improvements are charged to expense as incurred. Major improvements are
capitalized and depreciated.

(M) Advertising Costs

Advertising, promotional and other business development costs are generally expensed as incurred. External costs incurred in
preducing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place. External costs relating to direct mailing costs arc
expensed in the period in which the direct mailings are sent.

(N) Short-term Borrowings

Al December 31, 2007, the Bank’s short-terin borrowings consisted of $15.0 million in ovemight borrowings from the Federal
Home Loan Bank, federal funds purchased of $7.9 million and securities sold under agreements to repurchase of $1.5 million. At
December 31, 2006, the Bank’s short-term borvowings consisted of federal funds purchased totaling $2.6 million and securities sold
under agreements to repurchase of §1.5 million. .

(0) Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consists of amounts currently payable to taxing authorities and the net change in income taxes
payable or refundable in future-years.. Income taxes deferred to future ycars are determined using the asset and liability method.
Under this method, deferred income taxes are determined based on temporary differences between the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such amounts are realized or settled.

In 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of
SFAS No. 109.” FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxcs recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 also prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement of
a tax position taken or expected to be taken in an enterprise’s tax return. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. Accordingly, the Bank adopted FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have any
impact on the Bank’s financial position.

(P) Stock Splits

On February 14, 2005, December 1, 2005 and December 5, 2006 the Bank effected 5-for-4 stook splits in the form of stock
dividends. Net income (loss) per share information has been adjusted for all periods prior to the splits.

(Q) Net Income {(Loss) Per Share

Basic income (loss) per share represents the net income (loss) allocated to stockholders divided by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive income (loss) per share reflects additional common shares that would have
been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued. Potential common shares that may be issued by the Bank relate
to outstanding stock options, and are determined using the treasury stock method. For the year ended December. 31, 2007, basic
weighted average shares outstanding totaled 4,988,604 and basic camings per shere amounted to $0.71 per share. Diluted weighted
average shares totaled 5,381,687 which accounted for dilution of $0.05 per share and resulted in fully diluted EPS of $0.66 for the
year ended December 31, 2007. For the year ended December 31, 2006, basic weighted average shares outstanding totaled 4,977,795
and basic earnings per share (EPS) amounted to $0.56 per share. Diluted weighted average shares totaled 5,442,835 which accounted
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for dilution of $0.05 per share and resulted in fully diluted EPS for 2006 of $0.51 per share. Due to the net loss for the year ended
December 31, 2005, the outstanding stock options were anti-dilutive, therefore basic and dilutive shares and loss per share,
respectively, are the same. Had the Bank not had a net loss, dilutive shares would have been 4,629,935 at December 31, 2005.

(R} Compreilensive Income (Loss)

Cornprehenswc income (loss) consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income, consists of
unrealized gains and losses on investment securities available for sale, net of taxes. Comprehcns:ve income (loss) is presented in the
statements of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss).

(S) Stock Compensation

in December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS' No. 123(Rcv:scd) “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)”). SFAS 123(R)
replaces SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock- Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123"), and supersedes APB Opinion No 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (*APB 257). SFAS 123(R) requires compensation costs related to share-based payment
transactions to be recognized ratably in the financial statements over the period that an emplayee provides service in exchange for the
award. Public companies are required to adopt, and the Bank has adopted effective January I, 2006, the new standard using a
modified prospective method. Under the modificd prospective method, companies are allowed to record compensation cost for new
and modified awards over the related vesting period of such awards prospectively and record compensation cost prospectively on the
nonvested portion, at the date of adoption, of previously issued and oulstanding awards over the remaining vesting period of such
awards. No change to prior periods presented is permitted under the modified prospective method. At December 31, 2006, the Bank
had two stock-based payment plans,one for directors and another for employees, which is described below. Prior to January 1, 2006,
the Bank, as permitted under SFAS 123, applicd the intrinsic value method under APB 25 and related interpretations in accounting for
its stock-based compensation plan.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank adopted the provisions of SFAS [123(R} thereby expensing employee stock-based
compensation using the fair value method prospectively for all awards granted, modified, or settled on or after Janvary 1, 2006. The
fair velue at the date of grant of the stock option is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model based on assumptions
noted in a table below. The dividend yield is based on estimated future dividend yields. The risk-free rate for periods within the
contractual term of the share option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Expected volatilities are
generally based on historical volatilities. The expected term of share options granted is generally derived from historical experience.
Compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the stock option vesting period. The impact of adoption of the fair
value based method for expense recognition of employee awards resulted in net expense of approximately $99 thousand for the year
ended December 31, 2007 compared to $55 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2006.

The Bank’s stock option plans, which are stockholder approved, provide for stock options to be granted primarily to directors,
officers and other key associates. Options granted under the directors’ stock option plan are non-incentive stock options while options
granted under the employee stock option plan are incentive stock options. Share option awards are granted with an exercise price
equal to, or higher than, the market price of the Bank's shares at the date of grant. Options vest ratably over a pre-determined peried,
generally five years, and expire afler ten years from the date of gram, except as discussed below. Share options awards provide for
accelerated vesting if there is a change in control, as defined in the stock option plan. At December 31, 2007, no shares were available
to be granted under the directors” plan and 37,511 shares remained available for award under the employee plan. Of the 941,095
options awarded prior to December 31, 2005, 933,283 or 99.2% were fully vested at that date with the remaining shares fully vested
duriag the first and second quarters of 2006.

As noted in Note 12, the Plans were established in 2004 subject to approvals of sharehoklers and the Commissioner, which
oceurred in June 2005. The Bank entered into stock option agreements during 2004 with directors and certain employees.
Agreements executed in June and July of 2004 for options to purchase approximately 595 thousand shares (all share and per share
amounts in this note have been adjusted for all stock splits) had an exercise price of $5.63 per share that was less than the market value
of $10.35 per share of the Bank’s stock on the deemed grant date in hine 2005. The difference between the exercise price and the
market value of the stock was $4.72 per share (i.e. the intrinsic value). Compensation cost recognized in the year ended December 31,
2005 was approximately $2.8 million. This amount represents the per share intrinsic value based on the 595 thousand shares at the
value of $4.72 per share.

Management believes that the over-the-counter {"OTC™) quoted market prices of the Bank’s stock do not reflect an accurate
value of the stock since the stock is not traded in large volumes and the OTC bid and ask quotes are for very small shate lets. The
Plans themselves contemplate that there is no efficient market unless the stock is listed on an cxchange. The Plans assign the
responsibility to value the stock at each grant date to the Board of directors, until such time the Bank's stock trades on a stock
exchange. Management believes that this approach to valuation i$ consistent with the measurement principles established by APB 25.
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The Bank engaged an investment banker to assist in the valuation of the Bank’s stock as of June 2005. The investment banker
first concluded that the Bank’s stock does not-freely trade on an established market, which is the condition requircd to be met by APB
25 when the value of the underlying stock is valued on a basis other than a quoted market price. Next the valuation considered the
ratio of the market price of publicly traded (on an exchange) peer group banks in relation to their book values. This ratio was then
applied to the book value of the Bank to estimate a value under this approach. The valuation also included a discounted cash flow
analysis using discount rates of 13% to 15% applied to growth and performance assumptions provided by management. The results of
the values obtained under the two methodologies were analyzed and a conclusion was reached by the Board of Directors that the value
of the stock at the time the Plans were approved was $10.35 per share. ‘

Under the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board {“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”) if a company elects to follow the intrinsic value method of measuring
compensation cost under APB 25, proforma disclosures of compensation cost must be made as if the Bank had adopted the fair value
recognition method under SFAS 123. The following table illustrates the cffect on net income {loss) per share and eamnings (loss) per
share as if the fair value method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in each of the periods presented (dollars in

thousands except per share data):

For Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2008

Net income (loss) as reported S 3,540 $ 2,780 | | § (1,071)
Add: stock-based employee compensation expense

included in reported net income : 9 55 -
Deduct: total stock based employee compensation cost i

detenmined vnder fair value based method (99) {55 (2,498)
Pro form net loss, based on SFAS No. 123R s 3,540 s 2780 1§ {3,569}

}

Basic eamings (loss) per share:

As reported s 0.7} s 0.56 s (0.25);

Pro forrm b3 07| I8 056118 (1.04)
Diluted camings (loss) per share:

As reported 3 0.66 $ 0.51 s (0.25)

Pro forma 3 0.66 $ 0.51 s (1.04)
Assumptions in estimating option vatues:
Risk-free rate - 4.96% 3.73%
Dividend yield - -% Yo
Volatility - 30% 45%
Expected life - 10 years 10 years

The weighted average fair value of options granted for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $10.36 and $5.21,
respectively. There were no options granted in the year ended December 31, 2007.

(T} Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified in the financial statements to conform with the current year presentation. The
reclassifications had no effect on previously reported net income (loss) or stockholders™ equity.

(U) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The foliowing is a summary of recent authoritalive pronouncements that could impact the accounting, reporting, and / or
disclosure of financial information by the Bank.
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In September 2006, the-FASB issucd SFAS No, 157, “Fair Value Measurements." SFAS' 157 defines ‘fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring .fair. value in ‘generally accepted: accointing ‘principles, and-‘expaids disclosuresabout * fair” value
measurements. This standard does not.require any new fair value measurements; but rather eliminates inconsistencies found in various
prior pronouncements. SFAS.157 is effective for the Bank on January 1, 2008 and:is not expected to have any- nmpact on the Bank’s
financial statements. . e B A 11 A IR T

: ! -t e :: J.“' .'l . ' i ‘ N L

In September, 2006, the FASB ratified the consensses: reached by lhe FASB’s Emergmg lssucs Task Force (“EI'I'F") relanng to
EITF 064 “Accounting for the Deferred. Compensation and "Postrétirenient -Béefit ‘Aspecr “of Endorsement-Split-Dollar Life
Insurance Arrangements”. EITF 06-4 dddressés cmptoyer decounting for cndorsement split-dollar life i insurance arrangements that
provide a benefit to an employee that exfends-to poslrcuremem penods should recoghize a liability for ﬁnure benefits in accordance
with SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Poslrctlremem Benefits-OtherThan Pensions”,"or. Accounting Principles Board
(“APB™) Opinion No. 12; “Omnibus Opinion—1967"' EITF 064 is "effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007
Entities should recognize the effects of applying this Issue through either (a)'a change in'accounting principle through a cumulanvc-
effect adjustment to retained eamings or to other components of equity or net assets in the statement of financial 'pdsilion as of ‘the
beginning of the year of adoption or (b) a change in accounting principle through retrospccuve application (o all prior pcnods The
Bank does not believe the adoption of EITF 06-4 will'have a material 1mpact o its current financial position, results 6f operations and
cash flows, however, it is continuing to analyze the poténtial for impact ‘on’ future penods which may resultfrom the adoption of EITF
06-4.

i Y IR TR UL D O RO

In September 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-5, “Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance—
Determining the Amount That Could Be Reallzed in Accordance Jwith, FASB Technical Bulletiii No 85-4 Accoummg for' Purchases
of Life Insurance” ("EITF 06-5"). ElTF 06 5 slates that a pollcyholder should consider any' addltlonal amolunls included in the
contractual terms of the insurance pol:cy other than the cash surrender vahi€ i in detcrmxmng the amoum that ‘could be reahzed under
the insurance contract. EITF 06-5 also states that a pohcy‘holder should detérmine the amount tHat could be reahzed undcr the life
insurance contract assumirig the, surrender of an’individual-lifé by individual-life policy’ (or certificate by certificate in ' group poltcy)
EITF 06-5 is effective for the Company on January 1, 2008: l’The‘Bank does not’ bchcvc the adopuon of ~EITF 06 5 wnll have a
material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-10, “Accouming for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar
Life Insurance Arrangements” (“EITF, 06- 107). The postretirement aspect of this EITF is substantially similar to EITF 06-4 discussed
above and requires that an cmployer recognize' a liability for the postrcnrcmcnt benefit related'to a collateral ass:gnmcm spllt-dollar
life insurance arrangement in accordance with cither FASB Statemcnl No 106 or '‘APB Opinion’ No |2 as appropnate if the cmploycr
has agreed to maintain a life insurance policy during ihe ert:ployee s rguremremh or pmvtde the? employcc with'a death benet' t based oni
the substantive agreement with lhe employee. In addmon, a corisensus, was ‘redched that an emplSyer should recognizé and rhieasure
an asset based on the nature and Subslance of the collateral assngnmcnt sph:-dollar life's insurance arrangement EITF 06-10 is effective
fo the Company on January 1, 2008, Thé Bank does not belicve the adopuon of EITF 06-10 _vnll have a matenal 1mpaci on its
financial position, results of opcrauons or cash flows. : -

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabifities —
Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” This statement permils, but does not require, entities to measure many financial
instruments at fair value. The objective is to provide entities with an opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earings caused by
measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. Entities electing this
option will apply it when the entity first recognizes an eligible instrument and will report unrealized gains and losses on such
instruments in current eamings. This statement, 1) applies to ail entities, 2) specifies certain election dates, 3) can be applied on an
instrument-by-instrument basis with some exceptions, 4) is irrevocable and 5) applies only te entire instruments. One exception is
demand deposit liabilities which are explicitly excluded as qualifying for fair value. With respect to SFAS 1135, available-for-sale and
held-to-maturity securities at the effective date are eligible for the fair value option at that date. If the fair value option is elected for
those securities at the effective date, cumulative unrealized gains and losses at that date shall be included in the cumulative-effect
adjustment and thereafler, such securities will be accounted for as trading securities. SFAS 159 is effective for the Bank on January 1,
2008. The Bank is currently analyzing the fair value option provided under SFAS 159.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations,™ (“SFAS 141(R)") which replaces SFAS
14]. SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business combination recognizes and measures in
its financial statements the identifiable asscts acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any controlling interest; recognizes and measures
goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase; and determines what information to disclose to
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. FAS 141(R) is
effective for acquisitions by the Company taking place on or after January 1, 2009. Early adoption is prohibited. Accordingly, a
calendar year-end company is required to record and disclose business combinations following existing accounting guidance until
January 1, 2009. The Company will assess the impact of SFAS 141{R) if and when a future acquisition occurs.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an
amendment of ARB No. 51” (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. Before this statement, limited guidance existed for reporting
noncontrolling interests (minority interest). As a result, diversity in practice exists. In some cases minority interest is reported as a
liability and in others it is reported in the mezzanine section between liabilities and equity. Specifically, SFAS 160 requires the
recognition of a noncontrolling interest (minority interest) as equity in the consolidated financials statements and separate from the
parent’s equity. The amount of net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest will be included jn,consolidated net income on
the face of the income statement. SFAS 160 clarifies that changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
deconsolidation are equity transactions if the parent retains its controlling financial interest. In addition, this statement requires that a
parent recognize gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. Such gain or loss will be measured using the fair
value of the noncontrolling equity investment on the deconsolidation date. SFAS 160 atso includes expanded disclosure requirements
regarding the interests of the parent and its noncontrolling interests. SFAS 160 is effective for the Company on January 1,.2009.
Earlier adoption is prohibited. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS 160 will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not expected to
have a material impact on the Bank’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

(V) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
(“SFAS 133”) as amended by SFAS No.’s 137, 138 and 149 establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivatives and
hedging activities. It requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet, and measures
those instrurnent;'; at fair value. Changes in the fair value of those derivatives are reported in current earnings or other comprehensive
income depending on the purpose for which the derivative is held and whether the derivative qualifies for hedge accounting. The
Bank does not currently engage in any activities that qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS 133. " Accordingly, changes in fair
value of these derivative instruments are included in gain on sales of loans held for sale in the consolidatéd statements of operations.

Note 2 - Restrictions on Cash

The Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances, computed by applying prescribed percentages to its various types of
deposits, either at the Bank or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank (FRB). At December 31, 2006, the Bank’s reserve
requirements exceeded cash maintained in the Bank’s vault by a total of $1.5 million. This additional reserve reguirement was
maintained in a segregated account with a correspondent bank on behalf of the FRB. During 2007, the Bank adopted an internal
deposit reclassification system (approved by the Board of Governors under Regulation D) whereby significant portions of interest
bearing and noninterest bearing transaction accounts are transferred to a non-reservable savings account status. As a result, all required
reserves at December 31, 2007 were met by the Bank’s vault cash.
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Note 3 - Investment Securities

Following is a summary of investment securities at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands):

At December 31, 2007
. "~ Gross Gross
Amortized unreatized unrealized Fair
cost gains losses value
Securities available for sale;
{J.5. Government agencies b 14,536 $ 54 b 306 5 14,284
Govemnment-sponsored enterprises 10,921 128 3 11,046
Mortgage backed securities 35,851 128 194 35,785
Total securities available for sale $ 61,308 $ 310 3 503 3 61,115
At December 31, 2006
~ Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
cost gains losses value
Securities available forsale: . -
U1.S. Government agencies « * . $ 2922 % 52 % - § 2,974
- Govermnment-sponsored entefprises 36,160 23 87 36,056
Mortgage backed securities 42,279 32 171 42,140 -
Total securitics available for sale $ 81,361 $ 107 3 258 3 81,210

The following tables show the gross unrealized losses and fair values, aggregated by investment category and length of time
that the individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. All
unrealized fosses on investmem securities are considered by management to be temporary in nature. Given the credit ratings on these
investment securitics, the short duration of the individual securities, and the Bank’s ability and intent to hold these securities to
maturity, these securities are not considered to be permanently impaired. (dollars in thousands):

At December 31, 2007
Less Than 12 Months. . 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
value losses value losses value losses
Securities available for sale:
U. §. Govemment Agencies , h) 10,168 306 | 8§ -1 18 -1 13 10,168 306
Govemment-sponsored enterprises - - - 97 3 997 3
Morigage backed securities £.341 190 1,597 4 9,938 194
Total temporarily impaired sccurities $ 18,509 491 | § 2594) | § 7113 21,103 503
At December 31, 2006
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
value losses value losses value losses
Securities available for sale: \ .
Govemnment-sponsored enterprises 14,478 $ 21 $ 13,432 $ 66 $ 27,910 87
Mortgage backed secarities 8,376 330 18,598 138 26,974 171
Total temporarily impatred securitics 228541 | 8 541 1% 32,030) 1 % 2041 1 % 54,884 258
| !

Four individual securities were in a continuous unrealized loss position for twelve months or more at December 31, 2007,
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The aggregate amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale at December 31, 2007, by. remaining
contractual maturity, are shown below. Actua! expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have
the right to call or prepay obligations (dolldrs.in thousands): ‘ : ot - oo

o7 ot T At Dedember 31, 2007
. Amortized . . Fair
«_cosl value
U.S.Governmenl agencies . o
Due after | year through 5 years 5 952 % 921
Due after 5 years through 10 years . : 8,839 8,660
Due afier 10 years . 4,745 4,703 .
Government-sponsored enterprises T : ; ‘
Due within | year ‘ - 999 997 Ca e
Due afier | year through S years ’ 7485 7,567
Due after 10 years 2,437 2,482
Mortgage-backed securities R .. 35,851 35,785
Total B T8 b 61308 8 61,115

Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale were $3.1 million and $1.9 million for the years ended December
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. There were no gross realized gains from the sales of investment securities available for sale'for the
year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $8,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 and $19,000 for the year ended December

31, 2005. Gross realized losses for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $1 6,000. There were no realized losses for the-years end
December 31, 2006 or 2005, _ oL . A R

Investment sccurities with amortized cost of $15.4 million and fair value of $15.5 million were pledged as collateral on a credit
availability thfough Bankers Bank, for securities sold under agreements to repurchase and other banking purposes at December 31,
2007,

TN nooor

Note4 —~-Loans. . - - T N T S L .

P e . . .t r A

LY | . . N .. .. e s ! LI . - 4 'J o
. Following is a summary of loans, qxclljdi.ng loans held for sale, at December 31, 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (doliars in - .
thousands). o . o . L o - L .

L At December 31,
: ‘2007 2006 .. . 2005 2004

Real estate: i LN I L .

_Construction and development } $ 159,122} s ... 131,938 S . 99IS 5 31,396
14 family residential 99,692 68,427 46,348 23,791
Muttifamily 5,768 4,478 2343 | 1 -n24s
Nonfarm, nonresidential 164,940 ' - 98220 61,190 - 52,618

Total real estate loans . 429,527 . 303,053 |, 200,796 T 109,050

Commercial and industrial loans [~ - 80,867 - - 64946 |- - 33,202 . 10,575

Consumer — Tt - 6,514 7,182 - 4126 | 2,739

. . . 516508 375,181 238,124 122,364

Allowancé for loan-losses - I Y1) T (5763) J {3,652) (1,840)

Totalloans =~ | iR 509,337 ¢ $§ "7 69416 T I'ST. T 234472 $ 120,524

At December 31, 2007, the Bank had $1.3 million in non-accruing loans compared to $61 ) thousand at December-31, 2006. The
foregone interest associated with these loans totaled $124 thousand at December 31, 2007 compared to $26 thousand ot December 31,
2006. No other crédits were deemed impaired at December 31, 2007 or December 31, 2006. . . - - .

[ -

- -, . a, .-
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Note 5 — Allowance for Loan Losses

(g

'\"l"-‘ ',

+.An analysis.of the changes in the aliowance for loan lossesiis as follows {dollars in fhousands) -,

b u C CLlr TP TL T Y ', elo Mo
For the Vear Ended December 31, 5
2007 ] 2006 2005 2004
Balance, begimning, _ GG 3 5,765 b3 1,652 3 1,840 -
Provision for loan losscs chargcd to cxpcnsc 3,390 2,396 1,812 1,840
Loan charge-offs _ e .t (1,597) (288) o -
Loan recovenes 13 5 - -
Balance,ending . .. - |s 17,571 $ 5,765 3 -~ 36521 - -1.840
L N o . .
Note 6 — Property and Equipment
Thc componcnts of propcny and cqunpmcnt and accumulated depreciation are as follows (amoums in rhousands)
- . M. a1
oy o e ll l
At December 31, i
2007 2006
Premises: , . -~ ol SASINUPYIN NS EPR L Y RS ' PR
: Land an s e ie o I8 L 275008 ot 275 Ve
Buidings ., - . 4 s L 241} . 77 o
Leaschold improvemenis 2,631 : 1,183 | '
Fumiture and fixtures 3,468 2,520
- |Computer and telecom equipment and software . - ¢ . . - nle 1,962 J,598 |,
- |Other . . e e “ .26 ' 26 ‘
Property and.equipmeat, total g - .. 8656 )] [~.0,n +, 5,679 | .
Less accunmlated depreciation .. L e . (2,101 , v, (1,110) 0
Property and equipment ) $ 6,555 $ 4,569 . N

Depreciation amounted to $991 thousand, 8644 thousand and $358 thousand for the years endcd I)ecember 31, 2007 2006 and

U . i, [

2005, respectively..

Note 7 - Time Deposits

ol

LR PR Y

Al

LI S S

K0

LY

W

ot
.

Time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more were $168.9 million and $138.1 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Interest expense on such deposits aggregated approximately-$7.9 million, $5.6 million and $2.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.~Time deposits matunng subsequent 10 December 31, 2007 are as follows

{dollars in thousands): P
.rMaluring in " Amount
- {2008 b 344,158
+ 12009 2,381
2010 ~ 749
BT 464
2012 229
A DU T 1. 12013 - o | v T30
v b [T O L B R St B L TR LN [ 9 N T SO T g . ;-348"0”
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Note 8 — Borrowings : :
At December 31, 2007, the Bank’s borrowings consisted of overnight borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank, federal

funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase. Additional information as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 is
summarized below (dollars in thousands):

2007 _2006
Outstanding balance at Decernber 31 3 24458 % 4,131
Year-end weighted average rate 4.43% S5.44% .
Daily average outstanding during the period b3 10307 % 1,946
Average rate for the period s, 24%I L s
Maxirmurm outstanding' at any month-end during the period o $ 24458 3% ) 15,464

At December 31, 2007, the Bank’s short-term borrowings consisted of $15.0 million in overnight borrowings from the Federal
Home Loan Bank at a rate of 4.40%, federal funds purchased of $7.9 million at a rate of 4.60% and securities sold under agreements
to repurchase of $1.5 million at a rate of 3.84%. A portion of the Bank’s short-term borrowings are collateralized by mvestmem
securities as described in Note 3, "

As of December 31, 2007, the Bank had lines of credit to purchase federal funds from unrelated banks totaling $33.5 million.
These lines of credit are unsecured and are available on a one to fourteen day basis for géneral corporate purposes. As of December
31, 2007, the Bank had $7.9 million drawn from these lines. The Bank also has a line of credit to borrow funds from a correspondent
bank on a secured basis. This $10.0 million line is available on a one day basis and is secured by investment securmes with total fair
market values of $11.4 million. ’ .

Note 9 - Leases

As of December 31, 2007, the Bank leases office space under non-cancelable operating leases. Future minimum lease payments .
required under the leases are as follows {dollars in thousands):

: Year Ending

December 31, Amount

2008 $ 650

2000 668

2010 708
20 - - 594
2012 566
Thereafter 1,516

$ ' 4,702

The leases contain options for renewals after the expiration of the current lease terms. The cost of such renewals is not included
above. Total rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounted to $606 thousand, $465 thousand and
$300 thousand, respectively.
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Note 10 — Income Taxes

The following table presents the Bank’s current and deferred income tax provision (benefit) at the end of 2007, 2006 and 2005

(dollars in thousands):

[ [T

The components of income tax expense are as follows (amounts in thousands}:

Current- Deferred Total

Year ended December 31, 2007:
Federal 3 2,165 $ (280) $ 1,885
State ‘ 394 {61) 333
$ 2,559 $ (341} s 2,218

7 Year ended December 31, 2006:
Fedem! » $ 1,958 $ (638) $ 1,270
. State 205 {56) 239
$ 2,253 3 (744) 5 1,509
Year ended December 31, 2005: . .
Federal $ 307 3 (1,483) 5 {676)
State 169 (46) 123
$ 976 3 (1,529) $ (553)

Reconciliation between the income tax expense and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate of

34% to income before income taxes is as follows (dollars in thousands):

For the Years Ended
2007 2006 2005
Tax at statutory federal rate 3 1,958 5 1,458 3 (552)
State income tax, net of federal benefit 220 158 97
Nondeductible employee stock compensation 34 - 442
Other 6 101 51
Deferred taxasset valuation allowance change, net - (208) (591)
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 2,218 b 1,509 3 (553)

The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarized as follows (dolfars in thousands):

At December 31,
2007 2006
Deferred taxassets:
Allowance for loan losses $ 2,555 $ 2,024
Pre-opening expenses 80 138
Nonqualified stock compensation 575 567
Unrealized losses on securities available for sale 66 51
Deferred tax asset $ 3,276 $ 2,780
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation $ (542) $ {438)
Defermred loan costs, net (55 {18)
Deferred tax liability $ (597) 3 {456)
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Deferred tax assets represent the future tax benefit of deductible differences and, if it is more likely than not that a tax asset will
not be realized, a valuation allowance is required to reduce the recorded deferred tax assets to net realizable value. As of December
31,2007 and 2006, management. determined that it- was more-likely than not that al} assets would be realized and no valuation
allowance was appropriate. As of December 31, 2005, in consideration of the lack of an established eamings history, management
provided valuation allowances of approximately 11% to reflect its estimate of net realizable value as of that date. The net deferred
asset is included in “other assets” in the balance sheet.

N L

The Bank has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax returns and has concluded it has no liability

related to uncertain tax positions in accordance with FIN 48,

Note 11 - 401(k) / Profit Sharing Plan

Effective January 1, 2005, the Bank adopted a 401(k) / Profit Sharing Plan which is available to all full-time employees and part-time
employees worklng more than 1000 hours per year. The 401(k} plan provides that employee contributions are matched in an amount
equal to 100% of employee contributions“which do not exceed 3% of compensation and 50% of employee contributions over 3% and
up to 5% of compensation. Both employee contributions and the initial 3% Bank matching contribution under the 401(k) Plan are
100% vested at all times. The additional 2% match under the 401(k) Plan, as well as any discretionary Bank contributions under the
Profit Shanng Plan are fully vested aﬁer three years. Maiching contributions under the 401(k) Plan / Profit Sharing Plan totaled
approximately $202 chousand, $164 thousand and $100 thousand for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Discretionary contributions
totaled $112 thousand for 2006 and $138 thousand for the 2005 plan year. There were no discretionary contributions made in 2007.

Note 12 - Stock Options Vo it in

Stock Option Plans

During 2004, the Bank’s Board of Directors approved both an Employee Stock Option Plan and a Director Stock Option Plan
(collectively referred to as the Plans) subject to the approval of the Bank’s stockholders and the North Carolina Commissioner of
Banks. The Plans, as they subsequently were amended by the Board and approved by the Bank’s stockholders and the Commissioner,
provide that up to 497,110 shares (adjusted for all stock splits) of the Bank’s common stock may be issued under each of these plans
for a combined total of $94,220 shares. Options granted under the Plans may be vested immediately and expirc no more than 10 years
from date of grant. The exercise price for any options granted under the Plans is set by the Board of Directors at the date of grant (and
is adjusted on a pro rata basis for any subsequent stock split). In 2007, no options were granted either under the Employee Stock
Option Plan or the Director Stock Option Plan. During 2006, 25,000 options were granted under the Employee Stock Option Plan
while no options were granted under the Director Stock Option Plan. In 2005, 180,803 options were granted under the Director Stock
Option Plan and 149,062 ‘options” were, granted under the Employee Stock Option Plan. Including options forfeited and those
exercised, the total number of options outstanding at December 31, 2007 under each plan was 497,110 in the Director Stock Option
Plan and 431,667 in the Employee Stock Option Plan.
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A summary of the activity in the Plans and related information for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, 2005 is as follows:

1 Il
Qutstanding Options Exercisable Options
Shares Weighted Weighted
Available Awerage Awrage
for Number Exercise Number Exercise
Grants Qutstanding Price Qutstanding Price
At December 31, 2004 20,606 614,160 s 5.82 - s -
Plan amendment 359454 - - - -
{Opticns granted (329.865} 329,865 13.45 329,865 13.45
Options vested - - - . 606,348 58
[Options forfeitcd 2.930 (2,930) 5.63 (2.930) 5.63
At December 31, 2005 53,125 - 541,095 8.49 933.283 8.49
Options granted (25,000) 25,000 2390 - -
[_E_)ptions vested - - - 7,812 5.63
Options exercised - (15,434) 7.97 (15,434) 197
Options forfeited 2,344 (2,344) 13.31 (2.344) 13.31
At December 31, 2006 30,469 948,317 8.90 923317 £8.90
Options granted .- - - - .-
thions vested - - - 5,000 23.90
thions cxercised - (12,498) . 8.51 {12,498) 8.51
Options forfeited 7,042 (7,042) 13.31 {7,042) 13.31
At December 31, 2007 37,511 928,777 $ 8.86 908,777 s 8.86

Additiona) information concerning the Bank’s Plans as of December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Awerage - Weighted Awrage
Number Nuomber Intrinsic Remaining
Exercise Price Qutstanding Exercisable Value (1) Contractual Life
$5.63 576,063 576063 |$ 4820 6.49 Years
$10.75 ) 6,336 6,816 2 6.73 Years
S22 : 9,766 9,766 17 6.6 Years
13,31 292,306 292,806 21 7.75 Years
$14.03 12,056 12,056 (1) 1.75 Years
$20.60 6230 6,250 4n 7.94 Years
$23.80 12,500 500 {125) .94 Years
$24.00 . 12,500 2.500 {122) 8.50 Years
Total cutstanding at end of the year 928717 987774 | § 41N 6.98 Years
(1) doilars in thousands

It is the Bank's policy to issue new shares 1o satisfy option exercises. Cash received from option exercises amounted to $107
thousand and $123 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options
exercised during 2007 and 2006 was 3160 thousand and $339 thousand, respectively.

Anticipated total unrecognized compensation cost related to outstanding non-vested stock options will be recognized over the
following periods (in thousands):

2008 $ 57
2009 34
2010 18
2011 1

S 116
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Note 13 — Contingent Liabilities, Commitments and Uncertainties
Litigation

In the normal course of business the Bank is involved in various legal proceedings. Management belicves that any liability
resulting from such proceedings will not be material to the financial statements.

Risks and Uncertainties

In the normal course of its business, the Bank encounters numerous risks. Two of the most significant of these types of risk are
economic and regulatory. There are three main components of economic risk; interest rate risk, credit risk, and market risk. The Bank
is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different speeds, or on different bases,
than its interest-eaming assets. Credit sk is the risk of default on the Bank’s loan portfolio that results from borrowers’ inability or
unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market risk reflects changes in the value of collateral underlying loans
receivable, the valuation of real estate held by the Bank, and the valuation of loans held for sale and investment secunities available for
sale.

The Bank is subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies. These regulations can and do change significantly
from period to period. The Bank also undergoes periodic ¢xaminations by the regulatory agencies, which may subject it to further
changes with respect to asset valuations, amounts of required loss allowances, and operation restrictions, resulting from the regulators’
judgments based on information available to them at the time of their examination.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet-Risk

The Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, credit nisk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheets. The Bank's exposure to
credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party 10 the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as for on-balance-sheet instruments. A summary of the Bank’s commitments are as follows
(doflars in thousands):

At December 31
2007 2006
Cormmutments to extend credit $97,999 $92,555
Standby letters of credit 960 1,156
$98,959 $93,711

Commitments to extend credit are agreements 10 lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established
in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.
Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the
party. Collateral held varies, but may include accounts receivables, inventory, property and equipment, residential real estate and
income-producing commercial propertics.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third
party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing armangements. The credit risk involved in
issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral held varies as
specified above, and is required in instances which the Bank deems necessary. Since most of the letters of credit are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, they do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank has not recorded a liability
for the current carrying amount of the obligation to perform as a guarantor, and no contingent liability was considered necessary, as
such amounts were not considered material.
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Conceatrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Bank to concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of loans,
investment securities, federal funds sold, and amounts due from banks with loans accounting for the most signiftcant risk.

The Bank makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various personal and commercial purposes primarily in western
North Carolina. Management does not consider the loan portfolio to be significantly concentrated in loans to any single borrower or a
rclatively small number of borrowers. Additionally, management is not aware of any concentrations of loans to classes of borrowers
or industries that would be similarly affected by economic conditions.

Recently, banking regulators have raised concern and are preparing to heighten regulatory scrutiny regarding loan porifolios
with concentrations of loans collateralized by real estate, particularly commercial real estate (“CRE"). They have defined CRE to
include construction loans, acquisition and development loans, loans collateralized with tracts of raw land for speculative purposes,
any sort of commercial premise unless it is owner occupied and a number of other subcategories. As noted within this report, slightly
more than 83% of Mountain 1* Bank’s loan portfolio is collateralized by real estate. As with the vast majority of community banks,
management believes that ulilizing real estate as collateral generally provides the safest form of lending reasonably available to the
Bank. Furthermore, real estate lending is the principal corc competency and expertise of the Bank’s lending team. North Carolina has
become the number one state in the country for in-migration and westem North Carolina has been and is forecast to continue to be the
beneficiary of a sizeable portion of this influx of new residents. These factors, coupled with the diversification of the different types
of real estate collateral and the Bank’s emphasis on borrowers’ secondary repayment sources rather than placing over reliance on
liquidation of real estate as the source of repayment of loans, significantly mitigates the risk of this concentration in management’s
opLnion.

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or groups of borrowers, industries,
geographic regions and loan types, management monitors exposure to credit risk from other lending practices such as loans that
subject borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g. principal deferral periods, loans with initial interest-only periods, etc.) and
loans with high loan-to-value ratios (“LTV”). Regulatory guidelines state that the total amount of all loans in excess of the regulatory
loan-to-value ratio limits should not exceed 100% of a bank's total risk-based capital. These types of loans totaled $64.2 million at
December 31, 2005 representing 148.6% of the Bank’s total risk-based capital. During 2006, management determined that a reduction

in the amount of loans with LTV exceptions was warranted to aid in mitigating the above noted real estate concentration risk. As a
result of management’s actions, loans with LTV’s that exceeded regulatory guidelines were reduced to 88% of risk-based capital at
December 31, 2006. Continued efforts in 2007 further reduced the amount of loans with LTV exceptions to $29.0 million or 55.0% of
risk-based capital at December 31, 2007.

The Bank's investment portfolio consists principally of obligations of the United States, its agencies, Government Sponsored
Enterprises and general obligation municipal securities. In the opinion of management, there is no concentration of credit risk in its
investment portfolio.

The Bank places its deposits’ and correspondent accounts with and sells its federal funds to high quality institutions.
Management believes credit risk associated with commespondent accounts is not significant. '

Note 14 — Stockhalders’ Equity
Restriction oo Dividends

As a North Carolina banking corporation, the Bank may pay cash dividends only out of undivided profits as determined pursuant
to North Carolina banking laws. However, regulatory authorities may limit payment of dividends when it is determined that such a
limitation is in the public interest and is necessary to ensure a bank’s financial soundness. In addition, as a condition to receiving its
charter, the Bank entered into an agreement with the North Carolina Banking Commission (which is standard with all newly chartered
banks in the state) restricting the payment of cash dividends for the first three years of its existence.

Capital Requirements

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal and state banking agencies. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory (and possibly additional discretionary) actions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitalive measures
of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain ofT-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s
capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and
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other factors. Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier [ capital to risk-weighed assets, and of Tier I capital to average
assets, as all those terms are defined in the applicable regulations.

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notification from the Bank’s primary regulator categorized the Bank as “well-
capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no events or conditions since the notification that

management believes have changed the Bank’s category.

The table below summarizes the Bank’s capital ratios at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (doflars in thousands).

Actual Required Actign Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31,2007 .

Tier | capital $ 45339 9.18 1%/ §  20,18) 4.00% § 30271 6.00
(to risk-weighted asstes)

Total capital 52,661 10.44 40,362 '8.00 |- 50,452 10.00
(to risk-weighted assies) R

Leverapge - Tier | capital 46,139 7.85 23,612 4.00 29,515 5.00
{to average asscis)

As of December 31, 2006

Tier | capital S 430% 11.01 |%]| § 15657 400 |% § 23,485 6.00
(to risk-weighted assics)

Totsl capital 47,997 12.26 31,383 8.00 39,228 10.00
(to risk-weighted asstes)

Leverage - Tier | capital 43,054 9.18 18,768 4.00 23,460 5.00
(to averuge assels) :

Note 15 — Related Party Transactions

The Bank has loan and deposit relationships with most of its directors and executive officers and with companies with which
certain directors and executive officers are associated. The following is a reconciliation of loans directly outstanding to executive
officers, directors and their affiliates {dollars in thousands).

At December 31,
2007 - 2006
Balance, beginning $ 15,625 $ 13,096
New loans and advances 9,153 6,322
Repayments {6,558) (3,793)
Balance, ending $ 18,220 $ 15,625

As a matter of policy, these Joans and credit lines are approved by the Board of Directors and are made with interest rates, terms,
and collateral requirements comparable to those required of other borrowers. In the opinion of management, thesc loans do not involve
more thao the normal risk of collectibility. The Bank also enters into other transactions in the ordinary course of business with
affiliates. Bank policy requires transactions with affiliates to be on terms no less favorable than could be obtained from an unaffiliated
third party and to be approved by a majority of disinterested directors. The following are two transactions entered into with affiliates
which were outstanding at December 31, 2007:

The Bank leases the site for its Fletcher branch from a company owned by a director of the Bank. The initial lease term is ten
years, with options to renew the lease for up to three successive five-year renewal terms. The terms of the lease call for a $3,200 per
month rental payment during the first five years of the initial term, with payments during the second five years to be increased by the
lesser of 18% or the aggregate increase in the Chained Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers dunng the previous five years.
Rental payments during each renewal term will be adjusted by the lesser of 15% or the aggregate increase in the Chained Consumer
Price Index for all Urban Consumers for the immediately preceding five years. Lease payments under this lease totaled $38,400 for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 and $9,600 for the portion of fiscal 2005 during which the Bank leased this facility.
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The Bank leases the site for its Marion branch from a company of which a director is co-owner. The initial lease term is five
years, with options to renew the lease for up to four successive three-year renewal terms. The terms of the lease call for a $3,500 per
month rental payment during the initial term. Rental payments for each renewal term will be adjusted by the aggregate increase in the

- Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers for the immediately preceding lease term. Lease payments under this lease totaled

$42,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007 and $26,250 for the portion of the year during which the Bank leased this facility in
2006.

Note 16 — Fair Value of Financial [nstruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” requires a company to disclose the fair value of its
financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet, where it is practical to estimate that value.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information about the financial instrument,
These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time the Bank’s entire holding of
a particular financia instrument. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair value estimates are based on judgments
regarding future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of vartous financial instruments and other
factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot
be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. In addition,, the tax ramifications
related to the realization of the unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect on fair value estimates and have not been
considered in the estimates. Finally, the fair value estimates presented herein are based on pertinent information available to
management as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. )

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is
practicable to estimate that value:

Cash aod Due from Banks, Federal Funds Sold and Interest-Earning Deposits

The carrying amounts for cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits approximate fair value
because of the short maturities of those instruments, These instruments are considered cash and cash equivalents.

Investment Securities

Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market price if such information is availablé. If a quoted market price is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Loans Held (or Sale

Fair values of mortgage loans held for sale are based on commitments on hand from investors-or prevailing market prices.

Loans

For centain homogenous categories of loans, such as residential mortgages, fair value is estimated using the quoted market prices
for securities backed by similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics. The fair value of other types of loans is
estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rate at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar
credit ratings and (or the same remaining maturities.

Bank Owned Life Insurance

The carrying value of life insurance approximates fair value since this investment is carried at cash surrender value, as
determined by the insurer.

Depasits, Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt

The fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of
time deposits, shor-term borrowings and long-term debt is estimated based upon the discounted value of projected future cash
outflows using the rates currently offered for instruments of similar remaining maturities.
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Accrued Interest Receivable and Accrued Interest Payable

The carrying amounts of accrued interest receivable and accnued interest payable are assumed to approximate fair values. The
following table presents the carrying values and estimated fair values of the Bank's financial instruments at December 31, 2007 and
2006 (dollars in thousands): :

Carrying Estimated
vatue fair value
As of December 31, 2007
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 9,210 3 9210
Federal funds sold and interest eaming bank balances 69 69
Investment securitics available for sale 61,115 61,115
Loans available for sale 5,035 5,035
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 509,337 513,995
Bank owned life insurance 6,000 6,000
Financial liahilities:
Deposits $ 529,105 $ 525989
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and
federal funds purchased 9,458 9,460
Borrowings 15,000 14,785
As of December 31, 2006
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents b 10,300 $ 10,300
Federal funds sold and interest eaming bank balances 6 6
Investment securities available for sale 81,210 81,210
Loans available forsale 4017 4,017
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 369,416 370,110
Financial liabilities:
Deposits $ 424,482 $ 415800
Securities sold under agreements to repurchasc and
federal funds purchased 4,131 4,131
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Note 17 - Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

1

Unauditcgj condensed financial data by quarter for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows (dollars in
thousands except per share data):.

69
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For the Year Fnded December 31, 2007 For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second . _First
Quarter | | Qusctec | | Quarter | | Quarter Quartsy | | Quarter | | Ouarler Quarter |

[nterest income $ 10977 s I0.'{63 $ 10,009 § 89911 |$ 8648 $ R&lI6 $ 6891 5 5,633
[nterest expense {5.363)} ° (5.197) (4,761 (4,348) (4,208) (3.883) {3,012) (2,326)
Net interest income 5614 |'[ - 5566 5,242 4,643 4,440 4,233 3,879 3,_307
Provision for loan losses (1,035 | (860)) (832) (663) ' {655) (460) -(630) (651}
Not interest income afler
|_provision for loan losses 4,579 4,706 - 4410 3,980 1,785 3,773 3,249 2,656
Nonintercst income 1,016 1,119 1,100 1,059 1,084 933 873 615
Noninterest expense {4,426) {4,281} (3,976) (3,528)/ (3,910} {3,278) (3,047) (2,444)
Income before income taxcs 1,169 4,544 1,534 1,511 859 1,428 1,075 227
Income tax eipense (390} (602) {606) {620} {44) (705) 273) {EB)
Net income S 779 $ 942 $ 928 3 891 S 516 $ 723 3 802 $ 739
Eamings per cormmon sharex(1) - N q L.

Basic $ 0.16 k) 0.19 5 0.18 s 0.18 s 0.10 $ 0.15 S 0.16 3 0.15

Diluted s 0.15 $ 0.18 3 Q.17 s 0.16 s 0.09 3 0.13 3 0.15 5 0.14
| Weighted average

shares outstanding: (1)

Basic 4,997,027 4,988,197 4,984,529 4984 529 4,984,529 4,984,250 4,975,875 4,969,843

Dituted 5,291,732 5,366,787 5.414,185 5,446,481 5,451,906 5492314 5,459,960 5,435,824
(1) All share and per share amounts have been adjusted for stock splits
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE .

Not applicable

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our management, with the participation of our chicf executive officer and principal accounting officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures in accordance with Section 13a — 15 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™). Based on the evaluation, our chief executive officer and principal
accounting officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures arc
effective in enabling us to record, process, summarize and report in a timely manner the information required to be disclosed in
pericdic reports we file under the Exchange Act. )

It should bé noted that the design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of
future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future

."conditions, regardless of how remote.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reponing 15 included on page 42 of this report on Form 10-K. The
attestation report of cur independent accountants regarding managcmcm s assessment of our mtemal control over financial reporting is
included on pages 44 and 45 of this report.

No change in our internal control over financial reporting has occurred during the Bank’s fourth fiscal quarter of 2007 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materialiy affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors

Information regarding the Bank's directors is contained in the following table.

~Nameand Age
B. Lee Beason
(30)

William H. Burton
(54)

Michael D. Foster
(66)

Gregory L. Gibson .
(51)

James C. Kirkpatrick
(44}

H. Steve McManus
(66)

Van F. Phillips
(56)

Vincent K. Rees
(40)

Bradley B. Schnyder

(31

Catherine H.
Schroader
(1)

First elected/
current term

Positlon with Us expires (1)

Principal occupation

and business experience

Chief Operating Officer 2004 /2009  Ouwr exccutive officer

and Director
Director 2004 /2008

Diregtor 200472010

and Director  * «

Director . 2004 /2010
Chairman - 2004 / 2008
' Director 2004 /2010

Y

Chief Executive Officer 2004 /2009,

Owner and Chairman, Cafe Enterprises, Inc., Taylors,
SC (parent company of Fatz Cafe restaurants);
previously served as director and Audit Committee
Chairman’of MountainBank and MountainBank
Financial Corporation

Owncr and President, Foster Real Estate Appra:scrs
[nc Ashcvn!lc, NC (n:al estate apprmsal firm)

Our executive officer - .

Real estate investor; former Co-owner and President,

.. Forge Mountain Foods, Hendersonville, NC (specialty

food wholesaler and retailer) (2000 to 2004); previously,
part-time weather anchor for WSPA TV, Spananburg,
SC (CBS affiliate tclevision station) .

" Owier, McManus Development LLC, and Moon- b
McManus Development LLC (residential real estate

-developers); Co-owner and President, Beacon Food .

Services, Inc., {restaurants); previously, Chief Executive
Officer, Hardee's Food Systems, Inc., Rocky Mount, NC
(1995 to 1996); previously served as director and
Executive Committee member of MountainBank and

, MountainBank Financial Corporation

President and Director 2004 /2009 .

Vice Chairman

Director 2004 7 2010

2004 /2008 -

*Co-owner and Vice Président, Great Meadows, Inc.,.

Spruce Pine, NC (real estate developer and investor);
previously served as director and Executive Committee
member of MountainBank and MountainBank Financial
- Corporation, and as Chairman, First Western Bank,
Burnsville, NC

Our executive officer

Owner, Mountainscape, Inc., Hendersonville, NC
(residential contractor); and co-owner, Schnyder and
Riels, Hendersonville, NC (residential community
developer); and Bumey Mtn Assoc. Inc.,
Hendersonville, NC (residential community developer)

Co-owner, Schroader Honde, Hendersonville, NC
{motorcycle dealership); previously served as director
and Compensation Committee Chairman, MountainBank
and MountainBank Financial Corporation
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Firs{ elected/

current term Principal occupation
Name and Ape Position with Us expires (1) and business experience
John S. Sheiry Director 2004 /2009 Owner, Historic Inns, Inc., Hendersonville, NC (bed and
(56) breakfast accommodations)
J. Michael Smith Director 2004 /2008  Certified Public Accountant; Financial Planner, Trillium
{54) Links and Lake Club, Cashiers, NC (real estate

developer); Chief Financial Officer, River Solutions,
Inc. {packing machinery manufacturer) (2000 to 2004)

(1)  With the exception of Mr. Smith, each person was a member of our organizational board prior to our incorporation and was first named asa
director at the time we were incorporated.

Executive Officers
We consider our officers listed below to be our executive officers.

Gregory L. Gibson, age 51, serves as our Chief Executive Officer. He was employed by MountainBank from 2000
until October 2003, where he served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of that bank and its parent
holding company. From 1997 until 2000, Mr. Gibson operated his own public accounting and financial institutions
consulting firm. He was employed as Senior Vice President of Bank of Mecklenburg, Charlotte, North Carolina, from 1994
to 1997, and as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Rock Hill National Bank and its parcnt holding
company, RHNB Corporation, Rock Hill, South Carolina, from 1985 until 1994, and he previously held positions with two
other North Carolina commercial banks. Mr. Gibson is a centified public accountant and has a total of 28 years of experience
in the banking industry, having served as an executive officer of six community banks and bank holding companies.

Vincent K. Rees, age 40, serves as our President. He was employed by MountainBank from its organization during
1997 until October 2003. He served MountainBank as Chief Lending Officer from 1997 until 2001 and then as a Regional
President of that bank and Executive Vice President of its parent holding company. Mr. Rees previously was employed in
South Carolina for seven years by NationsBank (now Bank of America) and its predecessor, C&S Bank, where he served in
various positions in branch management, credit analysis, and consumer and commercial lending. Mr. Rees has a total of

18 years of banking experience.

B. Lee Beason, age 50, serves as our Chief Operating Officer. From 2001 to November 2003, he was employed by
MountainBank in various administrative and branch supervisory positions, including State Executive. He was employed as
City Executive of High Street Banking Co., Asheville, North Carolina, from 1997 until 2001. He has a total of 18 years of

banking experience.

Peggy H. Denny, age 57, scrves as our Chief Administrative Officer and is responsible for branch network
management, training, and various other functions. From 1997 to November 2003, Ms. Denny was employed by
MountainBank as Senior Vice President. Earlier, she was employed by First Umon National Bank and its predecessor
Northwestern Bank. She has a total of 35 years of banking experience.

Kirk P. Robinson, age 40, has served as our Chief Credit Officer since 2004. He previously was employed by
Capital Bank in Raleigh, North Carolma as Senior Credit Analyst from 2003 10 2004; by MoumainBank as Senior Credit
Analyst from 2002 to 2003; and by BB&T as a City Executive and Business Banker in Lexington, South Carolina, from 1998

10 2002. He has a total of 12 years of banking experience,
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Audit Committee

Our Board of Directors has an Audit Committee that operates under a written charter approved by our Board. The
charter sets out the Committee's composition, authority, duties and responsibilitics. We believe that each member of the
Audit Committee is an "independent director” as that term is dcfined by the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market.
The current members of the Audit Committee are:

Van F. Phillips - Chairman
William H. Burton
H. Steve McManus
Bradley B. Schayder
J. Michael Smith

Under its charter, the Committee is responsible for:

L selecting our independent accountants and approving their compensation and the terms of their engagement ;
®  approving services proposed to be provided by the independent accountants; and
L monitoring and oversecing the quality and integrity of our accounting and financial reporting process and systems of

internal controls.

The Committee reviews various reports from our independent accountants (including its annual report on our audited
consolidated financial statements), reports we file under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, and reports of
examinations by our regulatory agencies, and it oversees our intemal audit program. The Committee met six times during
2007.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

‘Our Board of Directors belicves that Mr. J. Michael Smith, who serves as a member of our Audit Committee, is an
"audit financial expert” as that term is defined by the rules of the Sccurities and Exchange Commission.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Our directors and executive officers are required by federal law to file reports with the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation regarding the amounts of and changes in their beneficial ownership of our common stock. Based on our review
of copies of those reports, our proxy statements are required to disclose failures to report shares beneficially owned or
changes in beneficial ownership, and failures to timely file required reports, during previous years. We are currently not
aware of any required reports which were not filed, or which were filed late, during 2007.

Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to our directors and al! of our executive officers,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Principal Accounting Officer, and, among other things, is intended to promote:

o honest and cthical conduct:
® the ethical handling of actual or apparent cenflicts of interests between personal and professional relationships;
® full, fair accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that we file with the FDIC and

Securities and Exchange Commission and other public communications we make;

L compliance with governmental laws, rules and regulations;
L4 prompt internal reporting of violations of the Code to the Board's Audit Committee; and
g accountability for adherence to the Code.
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A copy of the Code of Ethics will be provided without charge upon written requ.est to our Corporate Secretary at
Mountain Ist Bank & Trust Company, 10! Jack Street, Hendersonville, North Caro]ma 2879L, or by telephone at (828) 697-
3100. ;

. © et

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION n

FLASE! J PRI

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 1r

The compensation tables in the section captioned “Qfficer Compensation” in this Report give details about the salary,
bonus, options, and other compensation paid or awarded to the Bank's Chief Execun\;gpfﬁcec,,ﬁnnmpal Accounting
OfTicer, and the three other most highly compensated executive officers. The narratmc,pccompanymg those tables gmes
addmonal information about the terms on which the compensation is paid or awarded.

The Corporate Governance Committee’s deliberations about compensation,.Compensation of executive officers,
including the five cxecutives named in the Summary Compensation Table, is withig the jurisdiction of the Board’$ Corporale
Governance Committee, although the full Board has reserved to itself the final authority to accept or reject Committee

recommendations. As of December 31, 2007 members of the Committee were John S, Sheiry (Chalr) William H. Burton, N

Catherine H. Schroader, and H. Steve McManus, each of whom is “independent” within the meaning of the listing standards i

of the Nasdagq, is a “non-employee director” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 of the, Securities. Exchange Act of 1934 and is .-,

an “outside director” within the meaning of section 162(m) of the Intemnal Revenug Code of 1986.

The Committee frequently discusses executive compensation and Bank and individual performancc with executives,

including the CEO. At the Committee’s request, management provides pertinent finarcial, tax, accounting, or operational .
information relevant to board deliberations on a monthly basis. Three exccutives - ,Mcssrs Gibson, Beason, and Rees -

serve as directors and therefore participate in board deliberations and voting concerning Corporate Governance Commltlee L

recommendations, but the Committee itself is comprised entirely of directors who are neither executive officers npr =~
employees. In both 2006 and 2007 thé Committee engaged compénsation consulgants to assist with. thc.analyms of and to
recommend enhancements of the Bank's executive compensation practices. The Committee also relies on_its own,
independent outside legal counsel for advice about compensation lssucs G PR
. . 1
-1 LI

Peer group compansons are used by many banks not only to judge bank ﬁnancnal perfqnnance but a]su executive

RPN

oL

compensation pracuces and individual éxecutives’ performance. The Committee engaged Clark Consulting in 2006 to'doan ~ '

in-depth peer comparison of executive and director compensation. The Committee’s originak.intention was to commission
peer group analyses by third party compensation consultants and to cause those anglyses to be updated periodically foT the -
Committee’s use. In 2007 the Committee dedicated significant time and resources:to establishing the terms of execitives’ -
compensation arrangements, including employment agreements that will potenhallxprowde.severancc benefits for'the’ =
executives, split dollar insurance arrangements that will provide death benefits to-executives’.designated bencficiaries at the
exccutives’ death, and salary continuation agreements that will assure the executives of retirethent benefits when thicit Setvice
with the Bank is ended. The employment agreements and split dollar insurance agréements were finalized at the end-6f 2007 -

and the salary continuation agreements were finalized in March 2008. After obtaiping ¢ estimates of the costs assocnated wnh

purchasing customized peer group analyscs, and taking into account the cxpenscs incurred in 2007. in the process of
Vepyl b

establishing the employment, split dollar, and salary continuation arrangements, the Commnt{ee delermmed that the-
considerable additional costs to obtam 2007 peer group analyses were not Justlﬁed L

x . .--.."

.t l,s.-. <

EREA

The Committee is generally aware of compensauon paid by other Nonh Carolma and South Camlma conimmny
banking organizations that are publicly owned and that therefore report compensation information in proxy statentéiits fifed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, particularly those organizations that managerent considers to be comparable
or peers in size or business focus to the Bank or that are direct competitors of the Bank. And the Gommittee hasa vq\‘y actwe
role with executive compensation issues and maintains an ongoing dialogue with Senior managemeat about compenﬁatlon
topics. The committee chair attended the 2006 and 2007 Bank Director Conference on Compgnsation and pamcprted lh the
2007 Peer Exchange Program held the day immediately preceding that conferencesBoth of these conferences were’
accredited events sponsored by Bank Director magazine and the NASDAQ Stock Exchange. These events brought* togethcr
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leading experts in compensation consulting and banking to provide exposure to industry best practices and invaluable first-
hand information on the topic of compensation. The events featured separate tracks focusing on the perspectives of large
banks, public community banks, and private/thinly traded banks. As a result of information abtained at these conferences
combined with information provided by other sources such as the Committee’s outside counsel, the Committee’s subjective
impression is that executive compensation paid by the Bank is actually more modest than that of organizations that are
comparable in size or business focus in North and South Carolina or that are direct competitors of the Bank, particularly
taking into account MFB’s performance and growth that the Committee considers to be very favorable in companson. As the
Bank continues to grow, the Committee plans 10 continue staying informed on current compensation trends and periodically
aflocate the resources necessary for production of peer group analyses to assist the Committee’s deliberations about executive
compensation. .

Results of the Corporate Governance Committee’s Deliberations. The principal elements of compensation of the
five executives identified in the Summary Compensation Table consist of salary, annual incentive cash bonuses, stock
options, and post-termination benefits.

Salary. To control expenses and promote more rapid achievement of profitability when the Bank's operations began
in 2004, executive officers suggested that base salaries be less than the amounts they could have demanded. The Corporate
Governance Committee and ultimately the board of directors concurred, anticipating that other benefits forming part of a
comprehensive executive benefit arrangement would be added as the Bank matred. Base salaries have been maintained
since inception at rates the Committee considers to be below market levels. Based on recommendations from the Committee,
on March 24,2008 the Committee approved the following salaries for the five executives identified in the Summary
Compensation Table: $173,250 to Gregory L. Gibson, $157,500 for Vincent K. Rees, $131,250 for B. Lec Beason, $131,250
for Peggy H. Denny. This represents a 5% increase in the executives’ salary over 2007,

Senior management, the Committee, and the board remain committed to controlling compensation expense —
consisting both of salary and employee benefit expense and stock compensation expense — which is second only to deposit
interest expense in its impact on the Bank’s net income. Also, establishing a comprehensive benefits program that offers the
approptiate mix of rewards for services rendered and incentives for further contributions to the Bank's success requires
careful planning, review, and analysis. The death benefit promise under endorsement split dollar insurance agreements
entered into with executives in 2007, the severance benefits potentially payable under employment agreements also entered
into in 2007, and the retirement benefit promise under salary continuation agreements entered into in March 2008 are
component parts of the comprehensive benefits arrangement that senior management and the Committee had in mind in 2004
when they agreed to maintain salary at modest levels. With input from management, from Grady & Associates, a Cleveland,
Ohio law firm that acts as legal counsel to the Committee, from Clark Consulting, and from the company that arranged the
Bank's purchase-of split dollar insurance and that will service the Bank's split dollar and salary continuation arrangements,
the Committee invested significant time and resources in 2007 to establish the terms of executives’ employment agreements,
endorsement split dollar insurance agreements, and salary continuation agreements. Initially an RFP was sentoutto 5
qualified vendors with superior reputations within the banking community for their ability to provide and service the types of
insurance products in which the Committee was interested. After a thorough review of the RFP responses, two of the five
vendors were selected to come and give presentations. The process of final vendor interviews and selection was turned over
to the ALCO Committee for two reasons. First, the purchase of bank owned life insurance is considered an investment
decision and those types of decisions should be reviewed and recommendcd by the ALCO Committee. Second, the
Committee felt strongly that additional input and review would be an invaluable addition to the decision making process. The
ALCO Committec sclected Clark Consulting to be the vendor which would invest and administrate the selected program and
made that recomnmendation to the full Board of Direciors who approved it unanimously. Taking into accoun? that these new
benefit-arrangements fill in most if not all of the missing picces of a comprehensive executive benefit arrangement, the
Committee recommended nominal salary increases for 2008.

These factars also account for the more significant salary increases established at the beginning of 2007, when Mr.,
Gibson’s salary increased by approximately 38% compared to 2006 and 25% to 30% for Messrs. Beason and Rees and Ms.
Denny. Although the Committee’s consideration of polential severance, death benefit, and retirement benefit arrangements
had begun before 2007, those arrangements became a Committee priority in carly 2007. At that time the Committee
anticipated that final agreement upon the terms of employment, split dollar, and salary continuation arrangements, sclection
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of life insurance vendors for the insurance policies supporting the split dollar agreements, Committee and Board approval of
the arrangements, and execution of the final documents would not occur for many months.

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code places a limit on the tax deduction for compensation exceeding $1
million paid to the chief executive officer and four most highly compensated executive officers of a corporation in a taxable
year, but performance-based compensation such as stock-option compensation and performance-based cash bonuses are
generally exempt from the $1 million limit. We expect all of the compcnsatlon paid in 2007 and in 2008 to our executive
officers to be deductible. '

Annual Cash Incentive Bonuses. Calculation of the annual cash incentive bonus is in part a mathematical process
determined by the Bank’s net income, return on average assets, return on average equity, and asset growth. The Committee’s
role is limited to (x) annually recommending target amounts for each findncial measure (net income, ROAA, ROAE, and
total assets) at each performance level (minimum, strategic, superlative, and extraordinary) and (y) annually recommending
the bonus amounts for each of Messrs. Gibson, Rees, and Beason and Ms. Denny at each performance level. Ms. Dopko is
not a participant in the annual cash incentive bonus plan, although she is eligible for cash bonus payments based on
Management’s subjective assessment of her performance. Recommended by the Committee and thereafier approved by the
board at their separate May 29, 2007 mectings, the targets established for 2007 were as follows:

poul weight wiatmes strategle wupertative extraordinary
net income afizTtax. .. ... o . $3750.000 $4,000,000 $4,250,000 | $4,500,000

" retum on average ausets (ROAA} 0% 0.75% 0.78% . 080% oA
return on average cquity (ROAE) 20% B36% RE9% 9.42% 954%
ot BaSEES. L aieeian s 0% $525.000,000 $550,000,000 $350,000,000 $615,000,000 -

The Committee fixed the bonus potential of Messrs. Gibson and Rees at $60,000 for minimum performance, with an
additional $20,000 at each performance level beyond the minimum.- The Committee fixed the bonus potential of Mr. Beason
and Ms. Denny at $50,000 for minimum performance, with an additional $15,000 at each performance level beyond the
minimum. The aggregate bonus of each officer is the sum — for each of the four financial measures — of the weighted value
of (x) the bonus applicable to the performance level achieved plus (y) a proportionate share of the additional bonus amount
for financial results within the range between performance levels. It is not necessary to achieve minimum performance in all
four financial measures in order for a bonus to be payable. Achievément of minimum performance in any one of the four
financial measures is sufficient to yield a bonus. The potential bonus amounts under the annual cash incentive plan are
capped at $120,000 for each of Messrs. Gibson and Rees and $95,000 for Mr. Beason and Ms. Denny, but the Committee and
the board have the discretion to award cash bonuses beyond those amounts based on extraordinary performance on a non-
objecnve area of performance.

in the case of each executive, the minimum bonus amounts for 2007 are less than the actual bonuses paid to the
executives for 2006 results, reflecting the Committee’s conclusion that the minimum performance level would probably be
achieved merely by continuation of established trends in the Bank’s financial performance. The Commitiee’s expectation
when the Committee established the bonus amounts and financial goals was that financial results should at least reach the
strategic level. The Committee fixed the bonus amounts for the four executives at levels the Committee believes reflect the
exccutives’ responsibilitics and ability to contribute to achievement of the targeted financial metrics, with a potentially
significant increase over the bonus actually paid for 2006 performance if and only if the Bank’s financial results reach the
extraordinary performance level. :

Because of unsustainably rapid growth that naturally occurs in a bank’s start-up phase, it was difficult to establish
perfonnancc targets for cash incentive compensation in the period from 2004 through 2006.- The annual incentive bonuses
paid in early 2007 for performance in 2006 were therefore awarded based on the Committee’s subjective assessment at year-
end 2006 of each executive’s individual performance as well the Bank’s asset growth, eamings growth asset quality, and
overall achievement of the Bank's annual strategic business plan and budgetary goals.
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There currently is no formal policy requiring repayment by executives of cash bonuses if financial restatements
adversely affect the financial measures that formed the basis of the cash bonus payments. However, the Committee has had
several discussions throughout 2007 on this matter and is in the process of establishing a formal clawback provision that will
have that effect. The Bank will thereafter have the right to demand repayment of bonuses if financial restatements undermine
the basis on which bonus payments were made, even if the restatements are not the result of misconduct on the executives’

part. -

Long-Term Incentives; Stock Options. The Corporate Governance Committee administers the 2004 Employee
Stock Option Plan, in addition to the Committee’s responsibility for other forms of executive compensation. The Committee
awarded no stock options in 2007 10 the executives named in the Summary Compensation Table.

The Bank belicves that equity ownership by executive officers aligns their interests with those of shareholders and
that stock options create incentives for executives to promote the Bank's short-term and long-term success. Although the
stock option grants made to the executive officers identified in the Summary Compensation Table have become fully vested
and exercisable, the time-based vesting feature of stock option grants creates-an incentive for key employees to remain with
the Bank and to maintain their commitment to the Bank’s long-term success.

The attention given by the Committee to planning, negotiation, and implementation of endorsement split dollar,
salary continuation, and employnient agreements throughout 2007 and into early 2008 demanded a significant amount of
Committee time and resources. With the recent finalization of those arrangements, however, the essential parts of a
comprehensive executive benefits arrangement have now been assembled. When the Committee again considers whether to
make additional stock option awards, including awards to executives identified in the Summary Compensation Table, the
Committee will take account of the executives’ previous stock option grants as well as the Committee's subjective
impression of the total compensation and benefit arrangements provided by the Bank to the executives,

Post-Termination Benefits; Employment Agreements. As summarized elsewhere in this Report, at the end of
December 2007, the Bank entered into employment agreements with Messrs. Gibson, Rees, and Beason, with Ms. Denny,
and with one other executive officer who is not identified in the Summary Compensation Table. The Bank and the
exccutives had deferred doing so because neither the executives nor the Committee felt there was a compelling reason to rush
into these types of agreements during the Bank’s start-up phase. With 2007 representing the Bank’s third year of operations
and with the Bank’s growth patterns and profitability established, both senior management and the Committee concluded that
entry into employment contracts would promote long-term management stability. The Bank’s employment agreements were
finally entered into on September 24, 2007, although they were replaced by.new agreements at the end of December 2007, for
the principal purpose of eliminating the operation of a parachute payment tax gross up in 2007 and 2008 that was otherwnse
promised by the employment agreements executed on September 24, 2007. X

To assist the Committee and senior management with negutiation of the terms of the agreements, the Committee’s
independent legal counsel prepared surveys of the terms of executive employment agreements and change-in-control benefit
arrangements of publicly owned community banking organizations located in South Carolina and North Carolina. The vast
majority of peer banks in the two Carolinas with assets less than $1 billion use employment contracts for their most senior
officers. Because a company’s top executive officers are the people most likely to be terminated after a change in control and
because their undivided attention to the goal of maximizing shareholder values is most urgently needed in the context of a
possible change in control, the board believes that severance and change-in-control benefit arrangements are in the Bank’s
best interest. The Bank believes the arrangements are necessary to remain competitive for top management talent.

The employment agreements entered into in September 2007 promised a full section 280G parachute payment tax
gross-up benefit to the executives, After examining with the assistance of legal counsel estimated change-in-control benefits
potentially payable to sentor management in a hypothetical change in control of the Bank occumng in 2008, including -

- estimated section 280G gross-up benefits,

- change-in-control benefits payable under the employment agreements, and

- change-in-control benefits payable under the salary continuation agreements entered into in March 2008,

the Committee and management agreed that total unaccrued benefits payable to senior management as a percentage of the
total value payable to shareholders in the hypathetical change in control exceeded the levels the Committee and management
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considered reasonable. For that reason the Committee and management agreed to revise the employment agreements
principally for the purpose of reducing the gross-up benefit. Accordingly, the September 2007 employment agreements were
replaced by new employment agreements in December 2007.

As revised in December 2007, no gross-up benefit would be payable for a change in control occurring in 2007 or
2008. A gross-up benefit equal to 33% of a full gross-up benefit could be payable for a change in control occurring in 2009,
66% of a full benefit for a change in control occurring in 2010, and 100% for a change in control occurring in2011 or
thereafter. The salary continuation agreements entered into in March 2008 contatn an identical parachute payment tax gross-
up provision, but that contract right merely reiterates the executives’ entitiement to the gross-up benefit and does not
represent an additional benefit expectation. The Committee reasoned that the total value payable to sharcholders in a change
in control is likely to increase significantly as the Bank grows over time, with the effect that total benefits payable to senior
management should represent a smaller percentage of that aggregate value with each passing year. Secondly, calculation of
total change-in-control benefits for section 280G and section 4999 purposes is not based simply on cash benefits paid.
Instead the calculation takes account of non-cash benefits to which executives become entitled on an accelerated basis
because of a change in control (such as accelerated vesting of stock options), as well as the present-value enhancement
associated with cash benefits paid immediately after a change in control that would otherwise not have been paid to the
executives for many years, such as retirement benefits under a salary continuation agreement. In other words, a retirement
benefit under a salary continuation agreement that is settled for a lump sum in cash after a change in control is much more
likely to cause total change-in-control benefits to exceed the section 280G and section 4999 threshold (three times base
amount) immediately after that benefit arrangement is adopted, with 2 diminishing effect each year thereafier as the executive
approaches retirement or as his or her vested interest in the benefit grows. Taking account of the implementation in 2007 and
early 2008 of comprehensive benefit arrangements for executives, the Committee and management agreed to eliminate the
gross-up benefit for a change in control occurring in 2008 and to phase in the full gross-up benefit over a four-year period.

Finally, the change-in-control benefit feature of the employment agreements (and of the salary continuation
agreements entered into in March 2008) is known as a single-trigger benefit, meaning the benefit is payable immediatcly after
a change in control even if the executive’s employment is not also terminated afler the change in control. The Bank
recognizes that single-trigger change-in-control benefits are more disfavored by shareholder advocates and others than are
double-trigger change-in-control benefits, which are payable if and only if employment termination follows shortly after a
change in control. The Bank nevertheless agreed to single-tnigger change-in-control benefits for reasons having to do with
section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. That section imposes a six-month delay on termination benefits — such as
double-trigger change-in-control benefits — payable to a publicly traded company’s highest compensated executives, with a
series of exceptions that could potentially be difficult to apply and that might or might not be available when termination

actually occurs. But section 409A imposes no delay at all-on single-trigger change-in-control benefits. Recognizing that the

executives who are parties to the employment agréements are highly likely to be terminated after a change in control in any
event, and taking into account the potential legal complications and potential legal expenses associated with applying the six-
month delay required by section 409A for double-trigger change-in-contro} benefits, the Committee concluded that the only

- practical differences between a single-trigger versus double-trigger benefit are (x) the terminated executive would receive

single-trigger benefits immediately, as intended, whereas the same terminated executive might have 1o wait six months for
the double-trigger benefit, and (v) the single-trigger benefit is clear and requires no expertise to apply, whereas the double-
trigger benefit would almost inevitably involve payment of legal expenses to determine whether exceptions to the six-month
delay are available and to determine preciscly when the benefit may be paid, as well as expenses associated with ensuring
that the acquiring company honors payment of the delayed benefit. Finally, all of the NEO’s of the bank are founding
employees since the date of original charter. The success of the bank to date is largely the result of their leadership and
commitment to the organization. For these reasons, the Bank’s employment agreemients provide for single-trigger change-in-
control benefits.

Post-Termination Benefits; Endorsement Split Doilar Life Insurance and Salary Continuation Agreements. In
December 2007 the Bank entered into endorsement split dollar insurance agreements with Messrs. Gibson, Rees, and Beason,
with Ms. Denny, and with one other executive officer who is not identified in the Summary Compensation Table, entitling
each executive to designate the beneficiary of a specified portion of the death benefits payable under bank-owned policies on
the executive’s life. The death benefit payable to an executive’s beneficiary is the lesser of (x) the policy’s net death
proceeds, meaning the total death benefit minus the policy’s cash surrender value, or () $1.25 million in the case of Messrs.
Gibson and Rees and $1 million in the case of Mr. Beason and Ms. Denny. The Bank is entitled to all insurance policy death
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proceeds remaining after payment of the death benefit to the executive’s beneficiary. The Bank paid a total premium of $5.6
million in 2007 and 2008 for all policies on the executives’ lives, but the Bank expects to recover in full its life insurance
investment from its portion of the policies' death proceeds.

Adequate life insurance coverage for executive management.is an essential component of the compensation
necessary to retain, attract and reward excellent service. The Bank fully paid the premiums for the five policies on the five
lives (Messrs. Gibson, Rees and Beason, Ms. Denny and the other executive officer not named in the Summary
Compensation Table) with one lump sum premium payment in the aggregate of $2.9 million. The Bank determined that a
lump sum premium was the most financially 2dvantageous way to secure coverage because the premium paid is not an
expense and the initial cash surrender value equals the premiums paid. Like any whole life insurance policy, the bank-owned
life insurance policy contract has a cash surrender value that increases over time. For purposes of generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP™), the increase in cash surrender value is booked as “other non-interest income”. The Bank ,
expects to recover in full premiums paid and the eamings credited to the cash value from the Bank’s portion of the policies’
death benefits. : :

Because it is the intention of the Bank to hold the bank-owned life insurance until the death of the insureds, the
increase of cash surrender value should be tax-free income under current federal income tax law. This compares to the |
taxable gain the Bank would recognize for assets in traditional taxable investments such as U.S. Treasury or agency
securities. The collection of death benefits on the policies, which is likewise currently tax free under current federal and state
income taxation, is expected to further enhance the company’s retura. .

This informal life insurance financing is not expected to result in any material cost to the Bank, and the bank-owned
life insurance is expected to increase the Bank’s non-interest income in future operating periods. The BOLI (bank-owned life
insurance), financing is designed to earn sufficient income on the insurance policies’ cash surrender value that will offset the
afler-tax expense of the accrual for the bank’s supplemental executive retirement agreements with the five executives.

The life insurance purchased by the Bank is designed to offset the Bank’s contractual obligation to pay retirement
benefits and to recover the Bank's cost of providing benefits. While the insurance contracts and the salary continuation
agreements are executed at the same time, there is no direct linkage between the two.

The combination of tax-preferred income generated by the cash value of the insurance policy, the tax-free insurance
death benefit, and fully tax-deductible benefit payments to participants are the economic reasons that a bank can often
provide this significant fringe benefit to its executives at little or no cost to the Bank. The board believes that the bank-
owned life insurance used to finance the salary continuation agreements allows the Bank 10 cost effectively implement
compensation programs that serve the vital purpose of attracting, retaining and rewarding valued executive officer service.

Because the split dollar life insurance death benefit is payable to executives’ designated beneficiaries whether death
occurs before or after employment termination, the Bank is required by accounting principles clarified in 2006 to accrue
during the executives’ working yecars for the cost of maintaining the insurance in the executives’ retirement. With
clarification in 2006 that expense recognition for the post-retirement benefit is necessary, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board permitted employers to recognize the cost of post-retirement split dollar arrangements with a one-time charge to
retained eamings for agreements in force at the end of 2007, with recognition of accrual expense beginning in 2008. For that
reason the Bank completed in 2007 the purchase of insurance dedicated to the executives’ endorsement split dollar
agreements and entered into the split dollar arrangements before the end of 2007, the Bank belicves that the split dollar
insurance arrangement reinforces executives’ long-tern commitment to the Bank,

In early 2008, the Bank established a separate endorsement split dollar life insurance arrangement for other officers,
including Ms. Dopko, providing to each of these other officers the right to designate the beneficiary of a $50,000 portion of
death proceeds payable under Bank-owned policies on the officer’s life. The officers” rights lapse at employment
termination, however.

In March 2008, the Bank also entered into salary continuation agreements with the same five executive officers who
entered into employment and split dollar insurance agreements.
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With the aid of the Committee’s legal counsel and the company that arranged the Bank’s purchase of BOLI, which
also will service the Bank’s BOLI, split dollar and salary continuation arrangements, the salary continuation agreement
retirement benefit payable to each of the executive officers was determined by projecting the executive’s final pay at
retirement, assuming retirement at age 62. The Bank’s goal was to ensure that the executive’s final income produced by all
employer-financed retirement benefits would approximate 60% of his or her projected final pay at 62, taking into account the
Bank’s portion of Social Security benefits, Bank 401(k) plan contributions, and benefits payable under the salary
continuation agreements. Payable for 15 years in monthly installments beginning at age 62, the annual rctirement benefils
are as follows: $134,000 for Mr. Gibson, $186,000 for Mr. Rees, $100,000 for Mr. Beason, and $72,000 for Ms. Denny. The
salary continuation agreements provide that the annual retirement benefit shall be increased by 3% each year in retirement.
Also increasing by 3% annually, the benefit for termination before age 62 is a reduced amount that is calculated based on the
Bank’s liability accrual balance existing when employment termination occurs, also payable in monthly instatiments for 15
years beginning at age 62. :

1f a change in control of the Bank occurs, each exccutive will be entitled under his or her salary continuation
agreement to the greater of (x) an amount equal to the Bank’s liability accrual balance existing when the change in control
occurs or (y) $750,000 ($400,000 in the case of the executive officer who is not identified in the Summary Compensation
Table), in cither case payable in a single lump sum immediately after the change in control. Because most of the executives
are many years away from the age 62 normal retirement age, the Bank’s liability accrual balance for any of the five officers
receiving a salary continuation agreement will not exceed $750,000 for many years. The Bank believes the change-in-control
benefit feature of a salary continuation agreement is important and that it, together with the retirement benefit featurcs of the
agreement, reinforces an executive's long-term commitment to the Bank. For that reason the Bank believes the change-in-
control benefit feature of the salary continuation agreements as well as the retirement benefit features of the agrecment are in
the Bank's best interest.

Like the employment agreement change-in-control benefit discussed elsewhere, the change-in-control benefit
payable under the salary continuation agreement is a single-trigger benefit.

Perquisites and Other Compensation. Our executive officers participate in the Bank’s broad-based employee
benefit plans, such as medical, dental, supplemental disability, and term life insurance programs. However, during 2007 they
did not receive any special, unique, or additional perquisites or personal benefits that are not available to all of the Bank's

employees.

Effective January 1, 2005 the Bank adopted a 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan (the *401(k) Plan”), enabling all full-time
employees and all part-time employees working more than 1,000 hours per year to make contributions to individual plan
accounts. Employee contributions take the form of deferred compensation. An employee’s contribution of up to 3% of his or
her compensation is maiched dollar-for-dollar by the Bank. The Bank also matches 50% of the employee’s contribution over
3% and up to 5% of his or her compensation. Both employee contributions and the Bank matching contribution of up to 3%
of compensation are 100% vested at al times. The Bank’s additional 50% matching contribution becomes 100% vested after
three years. The Bank also makes discretionary annual profit-sharing contributions to the 401(k) Plan, depending on the
Bank’s profitability and subject to Internal Revenue Code and 401(k) Plan contribution limits. The board of directors
determines the final amount of the profit-sharing contribution, after considering management’s recommendation at the end of
the fiscal year. Employees with service of six months or more are eligible to participate in the profit-sharing portion of the
401(k) Plan. The profit-sharing contribution is allocated among participating employees in the proportion that each
participant’s compensation for the fiscal year bears to the total compensation for all participating employees for the year.
Benefits attributable to profit-sharing contributions vest at a rate of 20% annually. Participants may receive distributions
from their profit-sharing accounts at retirernent, employment termination, or attainment of age 59.5, but distributions may
occur sooner for a participant who experiences a financial hardship. The 401(k) Plan does not offer MFB stock as an
investment option. The Bank made no profit-sharing contribution for the 2007 plan year.
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Compensation Committee Report
The Corporate Governance Committee, in its capacity as our compensation committee, has:

® .  reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis that is included in this Report;
and ‘ ' ) '

® based on that review and discussion, recommended to the full Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion
" and Analysis be included in our proxy statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

.The Corporate Governance Committee

John 8. Sheiry  H. Steve McManus  Catherine H. Schroeder William H. Burton

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary

The following table shows the cash and certain other compensation paid or provided to or deferred by our hamed
officers for 2007 and 2006. Qur cxecutive officers are compensated by the Bank for their services as its officers, and they
receive no separate salaries or other cash compensation from us for their services as our officers. With the exception of Ms.
Dopko, each of our named executive officers are employed under an émployment agreement with the Bank as described
below. Ms. Dopko is employed on an "at will” basis and subject to reelection as an officer each year.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and . . Noo-Equity
Principal Position ' Option lacentive Plan |
Salary * Awards Compensation All Other )
Xear 1 2 ~Bonus (3) {2) (4) Compenaation {§)  _Total '
R . ; 1
Gregory L. Gibson (1) 2007 $165,000 £- -0 $61,322 10,771 237,093 !
Chief Executive Officer....ccnivcnn 2006 120,000  $100,000 32,620 - 10,427 230,427 '
Vincent K. Rees (1) 2007 150,000 0- 0- 61,322 . 12,658 223,980
g (2371 L= 11 O 2006 117,813 100,000 2,620 D~ 8,536 226,349
B. Lee Beason (1) 2007 125,000 . -0- 50,896 8373 184,269
Executive Vice President .
and Chief Operating Officer............. 2006 99,447 75,000 2,620 -0- 18,685 193,132
Peggy H. Denny 2007 125,000 -0- 0- 50,896 8.116 184,012
_Executive Vice President . ) :
and Chicf Administrative Officer ... 2006 99,375 75,000 2,620 -0- 16,644 191,019
Mary K. Dopke 2007 60,000 30,000 0 ©- 3,640 93,640
Controller and R - .
Principal Accounting Officer............ 2006 52,000 25,000 - - . 7.822 84822
ount . :

)
3)

4)

Messrs. Gibson, Rees and Beason are members of our Board, but they do not receive any additional compensation for service as directors.

Includes the amount of salary deferred at each officer’s election under our Section 401 (k) plan.

Reflects the amount of compensation expense, as catculated under SFAS 123R, that we recognized in our financial statements for each year relating to
outstanding stock options held by cach officer. A discussion of material assumptions made in our valuation of and expense related to outstanding
stock options is contained in Notes 1(S) and 12 to our audited financial statements.

Reflects the amounts of cash awards paid to each officer for each year under our annual Incentive Plan described below under the caption "Plan Based
Awar

The 2607 amounts include;

»  for each officer; matching contributions made by us under our Section 401(k) plan as follows: Mr. Gibson - $9,053; Mr. Rees - $6,703; Mr.
Beason - $7,453; Ms. Denny - $7,036; Ms. Dopko - $3,600; and

s payments to two officers as reimbursement for additional incomne taxes and penalties rcsulung from crrors in prior years by our outside payroll
processing agency as follows: Mr. Gibson - $480; Mr. Rees - $5,280.
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s for cach officer, the imputed income for the officer’s interest under a split dollar agrecment, in insurance policies owned by the Bank as follows:
M. Gibson - $1,238; Mr. Rees - $675; Mr. Beason - $920; Ms. Denny - $1,080; and Ms. Dopko - 340. '
In addition to compensation paid in cash, from time to time our exceutive officers receive various personal benefits. None of the named officers
received personal benefits during 2007 for which our estimated aggregate incremental cost exceeded $10,000, and the amounts of any such
. benefits they received during 2007 are not included in the table. We also provide our offices with group life, health, medical and other insurance i
coverages that are generally available to all salaried employees, and the cost of the insurance is not included in the table.

The 2006 amounts include: . .

e for each officer, matching contribwtions made by us under our Section 401(k) plan as follows: Mr. Gibson - $6,000; Mr. Rees - $4,109; Mr.
Beason - $8,978; Ms. Denny - $8,975; Ms. Dopko - $3,080; and ’ ‘

o for each officer, additional profit-sharing contributions made by us under our Section 401(k) plan for 2006 (on the same basis as payments were
made to our other employees) as follows: Mr. Gibson - $4,427; Mr. Rees $4,427; Mr, Beason - $4,427; Ms. Denny - $4,427, Ms. Dopko -
$1,550; and

e payments to thrée officers as reimbursement for additional income taxes and penalities resulting from crrors in prior years by our outside payroll
processing agency as follows: Mr. Beason - $5,280; Ms. Denny - $3,242; Ms. Dopko - $3,192.

In addition to compensation paid in cash, from time to time our executive officers receive various personat benefits. None of the ramed officers
received personal benefits during 2007 for which our estimated aggregate incremental cost exceeded $10,000, and the amounts of any such
benefits they received during 2007 are not included in the table. We also provide our offices with group life, health, medical and other insurance
coverages that are generally available to alt salaried employees, and the cost of such insurance is not included in the table. 1

Employment Agreements

‘Messrs. Gibson, Rées, Béason and Ms. Denny are employed pursuant to Employee Agreements which have "rolling" .
three year terms which, on each anniversary date of the agreement, is extended by onc additional year unless our Board of
Directors gives notice that it will niot be extended. Unless sboner terminated, the term of the agreement will end at the time
each of them reaches age 65. Each agreement provides for: ' ' ’

®  annual base salary, which will be reviewed and must be increased for cost of living increases on an annual
basis; and otherwise may be increased at the discretion of the Board, )

®  participation in all officer or employee compensation, bonus, incentive and benefit plans in effect from time to
time; -

®  reimbursement of reasonable businéss expenses and reasonable expenses for attendance at annual and other
periodic meetings of trade associations; and

®  reimbursement for the cost of disability insurance providing an annual benefit not to exceed 60% of the
officer's base and bonus salary and an elimination period of 90 days. '

The employment agreements were entered into on September 24, 2007, and then amended at the end of 2067 to
eliminate the operation of a parachute payment tax gross up in 2007 and 2008, and phase in the gross up beginning in 2009,
and to eliminate the payment of outplacement expenses.

The agreements contain other provisions under which payments and benefits will be provided to Messrs. Gibson,
Rees, Beason and Ms. Denny following an involuntary tetmination of his employment without cause, or a voluntary
termination under various circumstance, whether before or after a change in control of the Bank, and that restrict their ability
to complete against the Bank following termination of employment. Those provisions are described below under the caption
“Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment or a Change of Control.” L

+

Plan-Based Awards

We have two compensation plans under which we grant awards from time to time to our executive officers, including
our:

e  Employee Stock Option Plan under which options to buy shares of our common stock have been grantéd; and
e Incentive Plan under which additional cash compensation may be paid each year based on our corporate
performance. ' _ Ce
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Stock Options. Stock options granted under the Employee Stock Option Plan give the officer to whom it is granted
the right to buy shares of our common stock during a stated period of time (ordinarily ten years) at a fixed price per share that
is equal to the market value of our stock on the date the option is granted. Unless the individual option agreement that
evidences an option provides otherwise, an officer's options will terminate 90 days following his or her voluntary termination
of ecmployment (except in the case of retirement), or one¢ year following termination as a result of disability. In the case of
retirement, death or invotuntary termination without cause, an officer's options will remain in effect for their full terms. They
will terminate immediately following the involuntary termination of an officer's employment for cause. Option grants
currently do not include any performance-based conditions. The exercise price and vesting schedule for each option are
approved by our Corporate Governance Committee at the time the option is granted.

Stock options granted under the Employee Stock Option Plan do not include any performance-based conditions. The
price per share of stock options were determined by our Board, based on the recommendation of our Corporate Governance
Committee, at the time they were granted. The Commitiee generally has used its own judgment in determining the levels of
awards that were considered to be reasonable and that would help us achieve the goals of the Employee Stock Option Plan.
There are no specific measures or criteria on which the Committee determined the amounts of stock options that were granted
to executive officers. R

Incentive Plan. Under our Incentive Plan, a portion of the cash compensation paid each year to our executive
officers and other employees chosen to participate in the plan is tied to the extent to which we achieve goals set by our Board
for the year with respect to various measures of corporate performance. Cash awards under the plan are calculated based on a
percentage of each executive officer's annual base salary. Additional information about the operation of the plan for 2007,
including information about the threshold, target and maximum targets, and the relative weights of, each performance
measure, and the formula used to calculate each named officer's award is contained under the caption "Compensation
Discussion and Analysns '—Annual Cash Incentive Bonuses. -

Grams During 2007. During 2007, there were no new stock options granted to any of our officers named in the
Summary Compensation Table, however cach of them was a participant in the Incentive Plan. The following table contains
information about the cash award each officer was eligible to receive under the Incentive Plan.

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS DURING 2007

stimated Future Payouts
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awa
Name Graat |  Minimum Stratepic Supertatly Extpsordinary
Date
Gregory L. Gibson................. NIA $ 60,000 3 80,000 $100,000 - $120,000
Vincent K, Rees. . vvvevenenenennn, N/A 60,000 - 80,000 100.000 120,000
B. Lee Beason.................-... N/A 50,000 65,000 80,000 95,000
Pepey H. Denny......oooeeeeee... N/A 50,000 65,000 80,000 95,000

{f) Reflects ihe dollar amount cach officer could have received for 2007 under our Incentive Plan based on corporate performance at each level.
Outstanding Stock Options. During 2007, no previously granted options were exercised by any of our executive

offices named in the Summary Compensation Table. The following table contains information about ail outstanding options
held by those named officers on December 31, 2007,
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OQUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2007 YEAR END

QOption Awards
Number of Securities Number of Secarities
Undertying Undertying
Unexercised | Unexercised Option Option
Stock Optivas Stock Opticns Exercise Explration
Name {Ex¢rcisable) (Unexercisable) Price Date
Gregory L. Gibson . 32,108 0. $ 563 0262014
Vincent K. Rees e cnnnee 37,108 -0- 5.6 077262014
B. Lee Beason.......cceciivieviiiininin 37108 - 5.63 07/2612014
Peggy H. Denny.......lveeeenincnnnanae 37,108 -0- " 563 07/2612014
Mary K. DOpKO.....ocovvererrenernerens 6,836 0. 563 071262014
Mary K. DOPKO. .vvvverreveereerenn 6.250 -0- : 1331 0973012015

Potential Payments Upon Termiration of Employment or a Change of Control

Under ecmployment agreements between the Bank and Messrs. Gibson, Rees and Beason and Ms. Denny (the
““executive officers™), the executive officers will receive payments and benefits from the Bank if their employment terminates
under various circumstances. Those arrangements are described in the following paragraphs, and a summary of the payments
and benefits each officer will receive following different termination events is contained in the table below.

Employment Agreements. Messrs. Gibson, Rees and Beason and Ms. Denny's (the "executive officers™)
Employment Agreements are described under the caption "Employment Agreements.” If the executive officer's employment
is terminated by us without cause, or if the exccutive officers terminate their own employment for "good reason,” they will
continue to receive salary payments for the unexpired term of the agreement, and we will provide them with continued life
and medical insurance coverage for the remaining term or, if earlier, until he reaches age 55, dies, or becomes employed
elsewhere. Continued life and medical insurance coverage also will be provided for the remaining term of the agreement
following termination of his employment as a result of disability. "Good reason” will exist if, without the executive officer's

consent:

] the executive officer's salary is reduced;

duties are assigned to the executive officer that are materially inconsistent with his or her position or represent
a reduction in the officer's authority;

®  amaterial diminution in the authority, duties, or responsibilities of the supervisor to who the executive officer
is required to report; )

®  amaterial change in the geographic location at which the executive officer must perform services; or

any action or inaction that constitutes a material breach of the employment agreement.

No payments will be made under the agreement if the executive officers' cmployment is terminated by us for cause or
by the executive officer without good reason.

If there is a change in control of our holding company or the Bank, the executive officers will be entitled to:

®  alump-sum payment equal to three times the total of their base salary rate at the time of the change in control
plus the amount of any bonuses or incentive compensation eamed for the preceding calendar year;

®  continued medical and life insurance coverage for the remaining term of the agreement or, if earlier, until the
executive officer reaches age 65, dies, or becomes employed clsewhere;

®  immediate vesting of his benefits under any qualified and non-qualified plans in which he participates, unless
those plans separately address the effect of a change in control; and
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®  if the payment and acceleration of benefits-under other plans or arrangements results in a “parachute payment”
that is subject 1o an excise tax under Sections 280G and 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code in 2009 or later , an
additional "gross-up payment” equai to the amount of the excise tax he or she owes, plus the additional amount
needed to receive the amount of the excise tax net of all income, payroll or other excise taxes.

Those changes in control payments and benefits would be in lieu of any other severance payments provided for in the
agreement, and his right 1o receive the lump-sum payment would not depend on whether his employment is terminated.

The executive officer’ agreements provide that, in general, a "change in control" will have occurred if:

®  aperson accumulates ownership of our stock that amounts to more than 50% of the total fair market value or
total voting power of our outstanding stock;

®  within a §2-month period a person acquires shares of our stock that amount to 30% or more of the total voting
power of our outstanding stock;

® 2 majority of our directors are replaced during any 12- month period by persons whose appointment or elechon
is not endorsed in advance by a majority of our directors; or

® there is a change in ownership of our assets that amounts to 40% or more of the total gross falr market value of
| all of our assets.

information regarding our company or the Bank to any other person and that, for the remaining period of the agreement
following a termination of his employment, he may not directly or indirectly compete with the Bank by providing financial
products or services on behalf of another financial institution, or assisting anather financial institution in providing financial
products or services, within the counties or contiguous counties in North Carolina in which the Bank or any of its affiliates
conducted operations at the time the executive officers’ employment was terminated. If the executive officer violates the
agreement by competing with the Bank during the restriction period, he will forfeit all his rights and retirement benefits under
his or employment agreement as well as all death benefits under hig Endorsement Split-Dollar Agreement described below.
However, the restriction on their ability to compete against the Bank will terminate immediately upon a change in control.

| Under the Employment Agreement, the executive officers agreed not to disclose any confidential or proprietary
!

The following table lists estimates of aggregate payments and benefits that would have been paid or provided to the
exccutive officers under their employment agreements if their employment had terminated under various ciscumstances, or
there had been a change in control, on December 31, 2007.

Type of Termination Event and G.L. V. K. B.L. P. H.
Description of Payment or Benefit Gibson Rees Beason Denny
INVOLUNTARY TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE,
OR
VOLUNTARY TERMINATION WITH "GOOD
REASON,"
OTHER THAN AFTER A CHANGE IN CONTROL
Aggregate cash payments ..., $S488,151(1)  $443,774(1)  $369,811(1) $369,811{1)
Continued insurance coverage ................... 23,831 23,831 23,831 23,831

CHANCGE IN CONTROL, WITHOUT RECARD
T0O TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

Lump Sum Cash Payment ........cceecnasms .. $795,000 $750,000 $600,000 $600,000
Continned Insurance Coverage...wven.. 25,209 25,209 25,209 25,209

Endorsement Split-Dollar Agreements. The Bank has purchased insurance policies on the lives of 33 of its officers,
including our named executive officers, and has entered into Endorsement Split-Dollar Agreements with each of them. The
policies arc owned by the Bank. Under the agreements, upon an officer’s death while he or she remains employed by the
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Bank or after a termination of employment, a portion of the total death benefits under the policies on his or her life will be
paid 1o the officer's beneficiary. The amount that will be paid to each officer's beneficiary will be equal to the lesser of the
policy's net death proceeds meaning the total death benefit minus the policy's cash surrender value or $1.25 million in the
case of Messrs. Gibson and Rees or $1 million in the case of Mr. Beason or Ms. Denny. In 2008, the Bank established a
scparate endorsement split dollar life insurance arrangement for other officers, including Ms. Dopko, providing the right to
designate the beneficiary of a $50,000 portion of the death proceeds payable under the Bank-owned policies on her life. The
Bank will receive the remainder of the death benefits from each officer's policies including the full cash surrender value of

the policies.

Employee Group Life Insurance Plan. We also provide life insurance benefits to each of the named executive
officers under our group life insurance plan in which all employees participate. Under the group plan, death benefits are
payable to a participant's beneficiaries equal to two and one-half times the participant's annual salary rate at the date of death

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Directors' Fees

Our outside directors serve and are compensated for their services as directors of the Bank, and they do not receive
any additional cash compensation for their services as our directors. The following table describes our standard schedule of

fees paid to our directors beginning in July 2007.

Description . Amount

Per diem fee for attendance at

meetings of our Board. ... $400
Per diem fee for attendance at

COTNMIHEE MECLNES ..ovveveerenervernerersnenerrmsererentrasa s sseens s nsassensaas 100
Additional per diem for attendance at

Committce meetings by the Committee Chairman 100
Additional per diem for attendance at Audit

Committee meetings by financial eXpert .....oouimieecenirniernnes 100

Director Stock Options

We have a Director Stock Option Plan under which options are granted from time to time to our directors to purchas
shares of our common stock. Each stock option gives the director to whom it is granted the right to buy shares of our
common stock during a stated period of time (ordinarily ten years) at a fixed price per share that is equal to the market value
of our stock on the date the option is granted. Options generally remain in effect for their full terms following the
termination of a director's service for any reason. Option grants do not include any performance-based conditions. The
exercise price and vesting schedule for each option is recommended by the Corporate Governance Committee to our Board ¢

Directors which approves the terms of such grants at the time the option is granted.

New Awards During 2007

During 2007, no new stock options were granted to any of our directors, and no previously granted options were
exercised by any of them. Information about stock options held by our outside directors on December 31, 2007, is contained
in the footnotes to the Director Compensation Table below.
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Director Compensation for 2007

2007 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Fees Eamed or . All Other
Name (1} Paid in Cash Qption Awards (2} Compensation ___Total
William H. Burton......cuwien $4,160 s -0 $ -0- $4,100
Michael D. Foster ........oouumennees 3,800 -0- 0- 3,800
James C. Kirkpatrick.....oe.. - 4,400 -0- -0- 4,400
H. Steve McManus ........... - 2,800 -0- 20 2,800
Yan F, PRULPS ...comssmsnesnnn - 3.600 -0- -0- 3,600
Bradley B. Schnyder .....ccccee. 3,600 -0- £ 3,600
Catherine H. Schroader......... 3,700 . - -0- 3700
John S. Sheiry .ccireeriven 3,800 -0- 0- 3,800
J. Michael Smith 3.500 -0- -0- 3,500

(I} Messrs. Beason, Gibson and Rees are not listed in the table. They are compensated as officers and employecs of the Bank and docs not reccive any
separate cash compensation for their services as directors. . . . .

{2) All outstanding stock options held by our outside directors are fully vested and exercisable. As & result, we did not recognize any comgensatwn
expense of those options in our financial statements for 2007 under SFAS 123R, On December 31, 2007 each of our outside dircetors held stock
oplions covering 55,589 shares, with the exception of Mr. Smith who held options covering 50,237 sharcs. )

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Beneficial Ownership of Our Common Stock

The following table describes the beneficial ownership of our commeon stock on April 28, 2008 by our current
directors, nominees for election as directors, and certain of our officers, individually, and by all our directors and executive
officers as a group. On that date, we were not ware of any person that owned, beneficially or of record, more than five
percent (5%) of our outstanding common stock.

Amount and natuce of Percent of
Name of beneficial owner . beneficial ownership (1) class (2)
B. Lee BeaSon......c.covvrirmieerenrenssnenrnseessesanns 62,314 1.25%
William H. BUMON ... cvernens 171,106 3139%
Peggy H. DENNY......ooocccececviremmoemenserserssesees 51.033 1.01%
Mary K. Dopko 14,218 0.28%
Michael D. FoSter.......ooovvviireeeeeeer e 95,271 1.89%
Gregory L. Gibson 98,639 1.96%
fames C. Kirkpatrick ......ccooeirmsnrarinsinnns 111,555 221%
H. Steve MeManus ........ocoeerevennvnmrirenreseenine 167,167 3.31%
Van F. Phillips c....oooovooreereiececee s ' 170,231 3.37%
Vincent K. Rees.......ocoecvvrirmvvenrenna. erveerirea 99,076 1.97%
Bradley B. Schnyder..........cocoiiiirinninnens 106,531 2.11%
Catherine H. Schroeder.......cccoovrvvnieiceenrens 163,280 31.23%
JOhn S, Sheiry ..o 67,185 1.33%
J. Michael Smith ..ot 70,158 1.39%
All current directors and executive
officers as a group (15 people)......ccvnunens 1,471,625 2592%

(1) Except as otherwise noled, and to the best of our knowledge, the individuals named and included in the group exercise sole voting and investment
power with respect to all listed shares. Individuals named and included in the group have shared voling and investment power with respect to
centain of the listed shares as follows: Mr. Beason - 7,952 shares; Mr. Burton — 32,445 shares; Ms. Denny - 4,707 shares; Ms. Dopko - 195 sheres;
M. Foster - 5,421 shares; Mr. Gibson - 52,631 shares; Mr. McManus - 19,531 shares; Mr, Phillips - 109,678 shares; Mc. Schayder—6,805;

Ms. Schroader - 21,875 shares; and all persons included in the group - 261,396 shares. The listed shares include the following numbers of shares
that could be purchased pursuant to stock options granted under our stock option plans that could be exercised within 60 days following April 28,

87




2008, end with respect to which shares the individuals named and included in the group may be considered to exercise sole investment power only
Mr. Beason, Ms. Denny, Mr. Gibson, and Mr. Rees - 37,108 shares cach; Mr. Burton, Mr. Foster, Me, Kirkpatrick, Mr. McManus, Mr. Phillips,
M. Schnyder, Ms. Schroader, and Mr. Sheiry - 55,858 shares each; Ms. Dopko - 13,086 shares; Mr. Smith - 50,237 shares; all individuals include
in the group - 680,884 shares. Shares listed for certain of the named individuals have been pledged as security for loans as follows: Mr.
Kirkpatrick - 35,227 shares; and Mr. McManus — 98,290 shares.

(2) Percentages are calculated based on 4,997,027 total outstanding shares plus, in the case of each named itidividual and the group, the number of
additional shares that could be purchased by that individual or by persons included in the group pursuant to stock options that could be exercised
within 60 days following April 28, 2008.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans.

The following table summarizes all compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements which were in
effect on December 31, 2007, and under which shares of our common stock have been authorized for issuance.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION (1)

(a) (b) ()
Number of shares Number of shares remalning
to be issued upon Weighted-average  available for future issaance under
exercise of exercise price of  equity compensation plans (excluding
Plan category outstanding options gutstanding options shares reflected in column (a)}
Equity compensation plans approved '
by the Bank's security holders ............... 928,777 $8.86 40,605
Equity compensation plans not approved
by the Bank's security holders ................. - - -
Toat ...... 928,777 $8.86 ' 40,605

(1) As adjusted for all stock splits. b

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCI

Our Policy

Our Board of Directors has adopted a written policy under which our independent directors, acting as a separate
committee, review and approve certain transactions, arrangements or relationships in which we are a participant and in whicl
any of our “related persons” has a material interest. Our related persons include our directors, nominees for election as
directors, executive officers, beneficial owners of more than 5% of a class of our common stock, and members of the
immediate family of one of those persons.

Except as described below, the policy covers:

b any transactions, arrangements or relationships, or series of transactions, arrangements or relationships that are
required to be disclosed in our proxy statement under rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (in general,
those in which the dollar amount involved exceeds or will exceed an aggregate of $120,000, including all periodic
payments); and,

L] any other transactions, arrangements or relationships that would fall in the first category above except for their
amount being less than the $120,000 dollar threshold specified above.

The transactions covered by the policy generally include loans, but it does not cover loans we make in the ordinary
course of our business that are subject to banking regulations related to "insider loans” and that are required to be approved
by a majority of our Board of Directors. The policy also does not cover our provision of services as a depositary of funds o
similar banking services in the ordinary course of our business, or compensation paid to our executive officers that has been
reviewed and approved, or recommended to our Board of Directors for approval, by our Corporatc Governance Commitiee.
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In its review of rclated person transactions, the policy provides that the Committee should exercise independent
judgment and should not approve any proposed transaction unless and until it shall have concluded to.its satisfaction that the
transaction:

L4 has been or will be agreed to or engaged in on an arm's-length basis,
L4 is to be made on terms that are fair and reasonable to us, and
L is in our best interests.

Related Person Transactions During 2007

The Bank has had, and expects to have in the future, banking transactions in the ordinary course of its business with
certain of our current directors, nominces for director, executive officers, and other related persons. All loans included in
those transactions during 2007 were made in the ordinary course of the Bank's business on substantially the same terms,
including interest rates, repayment terms and collateral, as those prevailing at the time those loans were made for comparable
transactions with other, persons, and those loans did not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or present other
unfavorable features. .

The highest aggregate outstanding balance of loans to our current directors, nominees for election as directors,
executive officers, and their associates, as a group, since January 1, 2007, was $21.576 million which represented
approximately 45.5% of our then current equity capital accounts. On April 7, 2008, the aggregate outstanding balance of
those loans was $21.570 million, or approximately 45.3% of our then current equity capital accounts.

Of these loans, certain of our current directors and their associates, respectively, have had aggregate outstanding
loans that exceeded 10% of our equity capital accounts. The following table shows, for each of those directors and his
associates, the highest aggregate balance of loans since January 1, 2007, the aggregate balance of loans as of April 7, 2008,
and the relatlonshlp of those aggregate balances to our then current cqunty capital dccounts.

Highest aggregate batance  Percentage of ' Aggrégate balance Percentage of
Name of director since January 1, 2007 (1) equity capital (2) on April 7, 2008 (1) equity capital (2)
H. Steve McManus......cccooeeee $6,915 15.2% $6,617 14.0%

{1}  Dollars are presented in thousands in the above table.
(2)  Percentages are calculated based on the amount of our equity capital accounts as of the time that each aggregate loan balance
existed. .

During prior years, we entered into leases with related parties of two of our directors on buildings that we use as
branch offices. . Van F. Phillips 1s Vice President and co-owner of Great Meadows, Inc., which has leased us the building that
houses our branch office in Marion, North Carolina. The initial lease term is five years, and we have options to renew the
lease for up to four successive three-year rengwal terms. The terms of the lease call for a $3,500 per month rental payment
during the initial term. Rental payments for each renewal term will be adjusted by the aggregate increase in the Consumer
Price Index for all Urban Consumers for the immediately preceding lease term.

H. Steve McManus is the owner of McManus Development LLC which leases us the building that houses our
Fletcher, North Carolina, branch office. The initial lease term is ten years, and we have options to renew the lease for up to
three successive five-year renewal terms. The terms of the lease call for a $3,200 per month rental payment during the first
five years of the initial term, with payments during the second five years to be increased by the lesser of 18% or the aggregate
increase in the Chained Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers during the previous five years. Rental payments
during each renewal term will be adjusted by the lesser of 15% or the aggregate increase in the Chained Consumer Price
Index for all Urban Consumers for the immediately preceding five years.

In each of the above leases we are responsible for the payment of insurance and property taxes on the building during
the term of the lease. Both of these leases were approved by our Board of Directors and are on terms and conditions our
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Board believes are at least as favorable to us as those we couid have obtained in leases from non-affiliated lessors on
comparable properties in similar locations.

Director Independence

Our Board of Directors periodically reviews transactions, relationships and other arrangements involving our
directors and determines which directors the Board considers to be "independent.” In making those determinations, the
Board applies the independence criteria contained in the listing requirements of The Nasdaq Stock Market. The following
table lists persons who served as directors during 2007, who our Board believes are, or will be, "independent” directors under

Nasdaq's criteria.

william H. Burton H. Steven McManus " John S. Sheiry
Michae! D. Foster Van F. Philtips Catherine H. Schroader
James C. Kirkpatrick Bradley B. Schnyder J. Michael Smith

In addition 10 the specific Nasdaq criteria, in determining the independence of each director the Board considers
whether it believes any other transactions, relationships, arrangements or factors (including our directors’ borrowing
relationships with us) could impair their ability to exercise independent judgment. In its determination that the above
directors are independent, those other factors considered by the Board included the lease arrangements between us and Mr.
McManus' and Mr. Phillips' companics described in Item 13 above under the caption "Related Person Transactions During
2007"; as well as appraisal services provided to us from time to time by Mr. Foster's company.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Under its current procedures, our Audit Committee specifically pre-approves all audit services and other services
provided by our independent accountants. In the future, in connection with its approval of services the Committee may
authorize its Chairman to approve non-audit services that we propose to obtain from time to time during the year from our
accountants. The Chairman would report his approval of any services to the full Committee at its next regularly scheduled
meeting. '

As our independent accountants for 2007, Elliott Davis PLLC provided us with various audit and other professional
services for which we were billed, or expect to be billed, for fees as further described below. QOur Audit Committee considers
whether the provision of non-audit services by our independent accounting firm is compatible with maintaining its
independence. The Committee believes that the provision of non-audit services by Elliott Davis PLLC during 2007 did not
affect its independence.

The following table lists the aggregate amounts of fees paid to Elliott Davis PLLC for audit services for 2007 and
2006, and for other services they provided during 2007 and 2006.

Type of Fees and Description of Services 200 2006
Audlt Fees, including nudits of our financial statements and reviews .
of our interim fiNancial SIAEMENIS .......orrveeveiiiiesimri s e ranares e srsssetsesss mansases $119,000 $149,588
AUL-Relaled FEES comvnrrrssimriisinrivns N -
Tax Fees -0- -0-

All Other Fees, including for 2006, consultation regarding compliance
with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Ox1eY Act ..o ins s
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND SCHEDULES
(a) Financial statements. The following financial statemenis are included in Item 8 of this Repont:

Report of Elliott Davis, PLLC

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006

Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Notes to Financial Statements — Decémber 31, 2007 and 2006

® & &8 & & &

(b) Exhibits. An Exhibit Index listing exhibits that are being filed or furnished with, or incorporated by reference into,
this Report appears immediately following the signature page and is incorporated herein by reference.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules. No separate financial statement schedules are being filed as all required schedules
either are not applicable or are contained in the financial statements listed above or in Item 7 of this Report.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, we have caused this Amendment No. | to Annual
Report on Form 10-K to be signed on our behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

L}

MOUNTAIN 1ST BANK & TRUST COMPANY

L

Date: April 28,2008 . ' . By:__//Gregory L. Gibson
. Gregory L. Gibson
.+ Chief Executive Officer
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This Annual Report serves as the annual financial disclosure statement furnished
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1, Gregory L. Gibson, certify that:

EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION
{Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a))

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of Mountain 1st Bank & Trust Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this repor, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report; . ~

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-1 5(¢)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consalidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entitics, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemnal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

(c) " Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and ]

1

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal contro! over financial reporting that occutred during
the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that |
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting; and :

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intcrnal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors {or persons
performing the equivalent functions).

{a) All significant deficiencies and materia} weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reponting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

()] Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employecs who have a significant role in
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 28, 2008 ' By:__/s/ Gregory L. Gibson

Gregory L. Gibson
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
{Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a))

I, Mary K. Dopko, certify that:

1. I have re_viewéd this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of Mountain 1st Bank & Trust Company,

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary t0 make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this repon,

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)} for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures (o be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, inciuding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

{b) Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

«© Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

{(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions}:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and '

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control aver financial reporting,.

Date: April 28, 2008 By:_/s/ Mary K. Dopko
Mary K. Dopko
Controller and Principal Accounting Officer




EXHIBIT 32
CERTIFICATIONS f
(Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

The undersigned hereby certifies that (i) the foregoing Annual Report on Form 10-K /A filed by Mountain Ist Bank
& Trust Company (the "Registrant") for the year ended December 31, 2007, fully complies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (fi) the information contained in that Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Registrant.

Date: April 28, 2008 By:_ /s/ Gregory L. Gibson
Gregory L. Gibson
Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 28, 2008 By:_/s/ Mary K. Dopko
Mary K. Dopko

Controller and Principal Accounting Officer




